
The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.solanolinks.com 
 

 
 
 
 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA  

 
5:30 p.m., Closed Session 

6:00 p.m., Regular Meeting  
July 14, 2010 

Suisun City Hall Council Chambers 
701 Civic Center Drive 
Suisun City, CA  94585 

 
 
Mission Statement:  To improve the quality of life in Solano County by delivering transportation system projects to ensure 
mobility, travel safety, and economic vitality. 
 

Public Comment:  Pursuant to the Brown Act, the public has an opportunity to speak on any matter on the agenda or, for 
matters not on the agenda, issues within the subject matter jurisdiction of the agency.  Comments are limited to no more than 
3 minutes per speaker unless modified by the Board Chair, Gov’t Code § 54954.3(a).  By law, no action may be taken on any 
item raised during the public comment period (Agenda Item  IV) although informational answers to questions may be given 
and matters may be referred to staff  for placement on a future agenda of the agency.   
Speaker cards are helpful but not required in order to provide public comment.  Speaker cards are on the table at the 
entry in the meeting room and should be handed to the STA Clerk of the Board. 
 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA):  This agenda is available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a 
disability, as required by the ADA of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Govt. Code §54954.2).  
Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation should contact Johanna Masiclat, Clerk of the Board, 
at (707) 424-6008 during regular business hours at least 24 hours prior to the time of the meeting. 
 

Staff Reports:  Staff reports are available for inspection at the STA Offices, One Harbor Center, Suite 130, Suisun City 
during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday-Friday.  You may also contact the Clerk of the Board via 
email at jmasiclat@sta-snci.com.  Supplemental Reports:  Any reports or other materials that are issued after the agenda has 
been distributed may be reviewed by contacting the STA Clerk of the Board and copies of any such supplemental materials 
will be available on the table at the entry to the meeting room. 
 

Agenda Times:  Times set forth on the agenda are estimates.  Items may be heard before or after the times shown. 
 
 

 
ITEM 

I. 

BOARD/STAFF PERSON 

CLOSED SESSION 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

pursuant to CA Gov’t Code §54956.9 et seq. Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation v. Solano 
Transportation Authority, Solano Transportation Authority Board of Directors;  

B. PERSONNEL CLOSED SESSION pursuant to CA Gov’t Code § 549547  
et seq.; Public Employee Performance Review – Executive Director; and 

C. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR pursuant to CA Gov’t Code § 
54054.6 et seq., STA Board Chairman – STA Executive Director 

(5:30 – 6:00 p.m.) 
 

 

Pete Sanchez 
STA BOARD MEMBERS 

Harry Price Elizabeth Patterson Jack Batchelor, Jr. Jan Vick Len Augustine Osby Davis Jim Spering 
Chair Vice-Chair       

City of Suisun 
City 

City of Fairfield City of Benicia City of Dixon City of Rio Vista City of Vacaville City of Vallejo County of Solano 

        

Mike Hudson 
STA BOARD ALTERNATES 

Chuck Timm Mike Ioakimedes Rick Fuller Ron Jones Curtis Hunt Erin Hannigan Mike Reagan 
 

http://www.solanolinks.com/�
mailto:jmasiclat@sta-snci.com�


The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.solanolinks.com 
 

II. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                               Chair Sanchez 
(6:00 – 6:05 p.m.) 
 

III. CONFIRM QUORUM/ STATEMENT OF CONFLICT                                     Chair Sanchez 
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision; (1) publicly identify in detail the financial 
interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on the matter; (3) leave the 
room until after the decision has been made. Cal. Gov’t Code § 87200. 

 
IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
 

V. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
(6:05 – 6:10 p.m.) 
 

 

VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT – Pg. 1 
(6:10 – 6:15 p.m.) 
 

Daryl K. Halls 

VII. COMMENTS FROM CALTRANS, THE METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION (MTC), AND STA 
(6:15 – 6:20 p.m.) 
 

 A. MTC Report 
B. Caltrans Report 
C. STA Reports: 

1. Directors Reports: 
a. Planning 
b. Projects 
c. Transit and Rideshare 

 

Supervisor Spering 
 
 
 

Robert Macaulay 
Janet Adams 

Elizabeth Richards 
 

VIII. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Recommendation
Approve the following consent items in one motion. 

: 

(Note: Items under consent calendar may be removed for separate discussion.) 
(6:20 - 6:25 p.m.) 

 
 A. STA Board Meeting Minutes of June 9, 2010 

Recommendation
Approve STA Board Meeting Minutes of June 9, 2010. 

: 

Pg. 5 
 

Johanna Masiclat 

 B. Review Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Draft Minutes 
for the Meeting of June 30, 2010 
Recommendation
Receive and file. 

: 

Pg. 15 
 

Johanna Masiclat 

http://www.solanolinks.com/�


The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.solanolinks.com 
 

 C. Eastern Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Improvement 
(CMAQ):  SNCI Climate Initiatives Funding  
Recommendation: 
Approve the Solano Napa Commuter Information Program for 
$445,000 from MTC’s Climate Initiative ECMAQ Program. 
Pg. 23 
 

Robert Guerrero 

 D. Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
(TFCA) 40% Program Manager Funds 
Recommendation: 
Adopt Resolution No. 2010-08 approving the following projects and 
TFCA funding amounts for FY 2010-11: 

1. A reduced amount of $205,929 for the Solano Napa Commuter 
Information Program; and 

2. $88,000 for the Solano Bikeway Extension/McGary Road 
Project jointly sponsored by the City of Vallejo and County of 
Solano. 

Pg. 27 
 

Robert Guerrero 

 E. STA Grant Proposals:  MTC Climate Initiatives Grant Program 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to submit a grant application to MTC 
for a total request of $500,000 to implement the STA Safe Routes to 
School Program as specified in Attachment A. 
Pg. 31 
 

Robert Guerrero 

 F. Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 Transportation Development Act (TDA) 
Article 3 Bicycle Projects 
Recommendation: 
Approve FY 2010-11 TDA Article 3 Resolution No. 2010-07. 
Pg. 37 
 

Sara Woo 

 G. Solano Bicycle and Pedestrian Project Funding Amendment 
Recommendation: 
Amend the City of Fairfield’s Linear Park Alternate Route Nightingale 
Drive project by reprogramming $29,000 of TDA Article 3 funds from 
preliminary engineering (PE) to the construction phase. 
Pg. 51 
 

Sara Woo 

 H. Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) Member Appointment  
Recommendation: 
Appoint David Pyle as City of Fairfield’s representative to the STA 
Bicycle Advisory Committee for a three-year term. 
Pg. 55 
 

Sara Woo 

 I. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) Member Appointment 
Recommendation: 
Appoint Stephen Sikes as City of Dixon’s representative to the STA 
Pedestrian Advisory Committee for a three-year term. 
Pg. 59 
 

Sara Woo 

http://www.solanolinks.com/�


The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.solanolinks.com 
 

 J. I-780 Overcrossing Dedication  
Recommendation:  
Support the City of Benicia nomination to dedicate the Benicia I-780 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Overcrossing in the name of “Austin Howard 
Gibbon.” 
Pg. 63 
 

Sara Woo 

 K. Countywide Bicycle Plan Project List Amendment: Dixon West B 
Street Undercrossing Project 
Recommendation: 
Amend the Solano Bicycle Plan Project List to include the City of 
Dixon West B Street Undercrossing as shown in Attachment A. 
Pg. 65 
 

Robert Macaulay 

 L. Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 & FY 2011-12 Safe Routes to School 
(SR2S) Programming Update 
Recommendation: 
Approve the STA’s SR2S Program’s revised FY 2010-11 and FY 2011-
12 Final Workscope to reduce the Education and Encouragement 
activities by $35,000 over the next two years in exchange for funding 
$35,000 in SR2S planning activities. 
Pg. 81 
 

Sam Shelton 

 M. Contract Amendment for Jepson Parkway Project Environmental 
Document and Preliminary Engineering 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to amend the contract with PBS&J 
for $75,000 for the additional work required to complete the 
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) and preliminary engineering. 
Pg. 87 
 

Janet Adams 

 N. Contract Amendment for the Mark Thomas & Co./Nolte Joint 
Venture for the Gordon Waterline Relocation Project 
Recommendation: 
Approve a contract amendment for MTCo/Nolte in the amount of 
$235,000 for construction support services for the Gordon Water Line 
(Rockville Road Water Main) Relocation Project. 
Pg. 91 
 

Janet Adams 

 O. Award Construction Contract for the Mitigation Planting and 
Irrigation Project for the North Connector Project 
Recommendation: 
Approve Resolution No. 2010-10 for the Mitigation Planting and 
Irrigation Project for the North Connector. 
Pg. 103 
 

Janet Adams 

http://www.solanolinks.com/�


The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.solanolinks.com 
 

 P. Approve Modification to the North Connector Phase 2 Project 
Recommendation: 
Approve a modification to the North Project increasing the 
contingency budget of $1,157,000 to cover the increased cost of the 
30” water line, for a revised contingency budget of $2,566,212 and a 
revised total construction budget of $11,960,960. 
Pg. 107 
 

Janet Adams 

 Q. Contract Amendment for Associated Right of Way Services 
(ARWS) for North Connector Project  
Recommendation: 
Approve a contract amendment with ARWS for $2,000 and an extended 
term to April 2011 to complete the Right-of-Way relocation services 
for the North Connector Project. 
Pg. 109 
 

Janet Adams 

 R. Contract Amendment for HDR for the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia 
Truck Scales Relocation Project 
Recommendation: 
Approve a contract amendment for HDR in the amount of $1,400,000, 
to complete the PS&E and R/W engineering for the I-80 Eastbound 
Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project. 
Pg. 113 
 

Janet Adams 

 S. Mitigation Agreements for I-80 Eastbound Truck Scales 
Relocation Project  
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to finalize and execute separate 
agreements with Elsie Gridley Mitigation Bank for $14,000 for 
seasonal wetland mitigation and Jenny Farms Mitigation Bank for 
$95,950 for Swainson’s Hawk mitigation for the I-80 Eastbound Truck 
Scales Relocation Project. 
Pg. 129 
 

Janet Adams 

 T. Advertise and Award Tree Removal Contracts for I-80 Eastbound 
Truck Scales Relocation Project 
Recommendation: 
Approve Resolution No. 2010-11 authorizing the Executive Director to 
advertise and award one or more tree removal contract(s) for the I-80 
Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project for a total 
amount not-to-exceed $120,000 plus a 20% contingency. 
Pg. 145 
 

Janet Adams 

http://www.solanolinks.com/�


The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.solanolinks.com 
 

 U. Utility Relocation Agreements for I-80 Eastbound Truck Scales 
Relocation Project 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Authorize the Executive Director to finalize and execute 
separate agreements between STA, PG&E and Solano 
Irrigation District (SID) as required; and 

2. Approve Resolution No. 2010-12 authorizing the Executive 
Director to advertise and award one or more construction 
contracts for the SID Utility Relocations for a total amount not 
to exceed $900,000 plus 20% contingency. 

Pg. 151 
 

Janet Adams 

 V. Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 Transportation Development Act (TDA) 
Matrix – July 2010 
Recommendation: 
Approve the FY 2010-11 TDA Matrix – July 2010 as shown in 
Attachment A for the County of Solano and Vallejo Transit. 
Pg. 171 
 

Elizabeth Richards 

 W. 2010 Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
Recommendation: 
Adopt the revised 2010 Solano CMP as specified in Attachment A. 
Pg. 175 
 

Robert Macaulay 

IX. ACTION NON-FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. Public Input for Proposed Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) 
Expenditure Plan Categories  
Recommendation: 
Receive public comment and provide staff with direction regarding the 
eligible categories for VRF expenditures and options for allocation of 
VRF funds for each category. 
(6:25 – 6:55 p.m.) 
Pg. 177 
 

Daryl K. Halls 
Bill Gray, 

Gray-Bowen, Inc. 

 B. Locally Preferred Alternative for the I-80/I-680/State Route (SR) 
12 Interchange Project  
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to send a letter to Caltrans to inform 
them STA has identified Alternative C (and Alternative C-1) as the 
locally preferred alternative and to include this information in the 
Draft EIS/EIR for public review and comment. 
(6:55 – 7:05 p.m.) 
Pg. 217 
 

Janet Adams 

http://www.solanolinks.com/�


The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.solanolinks.com 
 

 C. Solano County Transit Joint Powers Agreement – Consolidation of 
Benicia and Vallejo Transit Services  
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Resolution No. 2010-09 approving the creation of the Solano 
County Transit (“SOLTRANS”)  Joint Powers Agency by and 
among the STA, the City of Benicia, and the City of Vallejo; 
and   

2. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a JPA with the 
Cities of Benicia and Vallejo to form Solano County Transit.  

(7:05 – 7:15 p.m.) 
Pg. 265 
 

Elizabeth Richards 

X. ACTION FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. STA’ Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 Budget Revision and FY 2011-12 
Proposed Budget 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Adopt the STA’s FY 2010-11 Budget Revision as shown in 
Attachment A; and 

2. Adopt the STA’s FY 2011-12 Proposed Budget as shown in 
Attachment B. 

(7:15 – 7:25 p.m.) 
Pg. 337 
 

Daryl K. Halls 
Susan Furtado 

XI. INFORMATIONAL – NO DISCUSSION 
 

 A. Regional Transportation Improvement Fee (RTIF) Update 
Informational 
Pg. 345 
 

Sam Shelton 

 B. PM 2.5 Hotspot Analysis Follow-up 
Informational 
Pg. 347 
 

Sam Shelton 

 C. Legislative Update 
Informational 
Pg. 363 
 

Jayne Bauer 

 D. Funding Opportunities Summary 
Informational 
Pg. 375 
 

Sara Woo 

 E. STA Board Meeting Schedule for 2010 
Informational 
Pg. 379 
 

Johanna Masiclat 

http://www.solanolinks.com/�


The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.solanolinks.com 
 

XII. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS 
 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 
The next regular meeting of the STA Board is scheduled for Wednesday, September 8, 2010,  
6:00 p.m., Suisun City Hall Council Chambers. 
 

 

http://www.solanolinks.com/�


Agenda Item VI 
July 14, 2010 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  July 6, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Daryl K. Halls 
RE:  Executive Director’s Report –July 2010 
 
 
The following is a brief status report on some of the major issues and projects currently 
being advanced by the STA.  An asterisk (*) notes items included in this month’s Board 
agenda. 
 
SB 83 Vehicle Registration Fee – Public Input Meeting * 
In preparation for the development of an Expenditure Plan for a proposed vehicle 
registration fee, staff has been obtaining public input from various advisory committees 
and stakeholders on the options and specifics for this plan.  This meeting has been 
designated as an opportunity for the public to provide input to the Board and for the 
Board to ask questions and discuss various options prior to final consideration by the 
Board at a follow up Board meeting later in July.  Per direction of the Board, the focus of 
the plan has been on maintenance of local streets and roads, safe routes to school, and 
senior and disabled mobility.  At the meeting, staff and the Expenditure Plan consultant, 
Gray-Bowen, will provide a draft ExpenditurePplan and a summary of comments from 
the various advisory committees and stakeholders.  
 
Selection of Locally Preferred Option for I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange *  
For the past few years, STA has been working with Caltrans on the environmental 
document for the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange complex.  Caltrans is preparing to release 
this document for public review and comment in July or August of this year.  Based on 
discussions with the City of Fairfield and the County of Solano, the two local agencies 
located adjacent to the interchange complex and technical information, the STA staff is 
recommending the STA Board inform Caltrans that Alternative C (and Alternative C-1), 
which would realign I-680 with SR 12 west, as the locally preferred alternative for this 
project.  This will help clarify for the Caltrans and the various resource agencies the 
alternative preferred by STA and the local agencies prior to the release of the draft 
environmental document and the initiation of the design of the next phase of the project. 
 
California Transportation Commission Approves CMIA Savings for Interchange 
On June 30, 2010, the California Transportation Commission (CTC) approved the request 
from STA, MTC and Caltrans District IV for $24 million in Corridor Mobility 
Investment Account (CMIA) savings from the I-80 High Occupancy Vehicle project to 
remain on the I-80 corridor in Solano County and to be available to help fund the next 
phase of the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange.  These CMIA savings can be used to help 
match an estimated $100 million in bridge toll funds dedicated to the Interchange project. 

1



Executive Director’s Memo 
July 14, 2010 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 
CTC Approved Allocation of Jepson Parkway Project Funds 
At the same July 1st meeting, the CTC approved $2.4 in design funds for the design phase 
of the Jepson Parkway, contingent on the approval of the State Budget.  Due to the State 
fiscal crisis, this vote took place over a year behind schedule.  It is anticipate that the 
STA will be able to begin the design of this project in the Fall of 2010. 
 
Solano County Transit Joint Powers Agreement *  
Last year, the STA Board recommended the consolidation of the Benicia Breeze and 
Vallejo Transit into one transit system.  This was one of several recommendations to 
emerge following the conclusion of an 18-month long Countywide Transit Consolidation 
Study.  The STA has worked with members of the city councils and staff from both 
agencies through a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to develop a draft Joint 
Powers Agreement (JPA) and transition plan.  The STA has been recommended to be a 
partner with the cities of Benicia and Vallejo in the formation of the new transit JPA, to 
be called Solano County Transit (SolTrans).  
 
Approval of STA’s FY 2010-11 and FY 2011-12 Budgets * 
STA’s Susan Furtado has prepared a Revised FY 2010-11 Budget and a new FY 2011-12 
Budget for consideration by the STA Board.  Despite challenges facing transportation in 
California, both budgets are balanced and will enable the STA to continue to work 
proactively and productively on priority plans, projects and programs contained in the 
STA’s adopted Overall Work Plan.  
 
Attachment: 

A. STA Acronyms List of Transportation Terms (Updated April 2010) 

2



  ATTACHMENT A 
STA ACRONYMS LIST OF TRANSPORTATION TERMS 

Last Updated:  February 2010 
 

 
A               

ABAG  Association of Bay Area Governments 
ACCMA  Alameda County CMA 
ADA  American Disabilities Act 
AVA  Abandoned Vehicle Abatement 
APDE            Advanced Project Development Element (STIP) 
ARRA            American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
AQMD  Air Quality Management District 
ARRA  American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 

B 
BAAQMD  Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
BABC  Bay Area Bicycle Coalition 
BAC  Bicycle Advisory committee 
BART  Bay Area Rapid Transit 
BATA  Bay Area Toll Authority 
BCDC  Bay Conservation & Development Commission 
BT&H  Business, Transportation & Housing Agency 

C 
CAF  Clean Air Funds 
CALTRANS  California Department of Transportation 
CARB  California Air Resources Board 
CCCC (4’Cs)  City County Coordinating Council 
CCCTA (3CTA)  Central Contra Costa Transit Authority 
CCJPA  Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority 
CCTA  Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
CEQA  California Environmental Quality Act 
CHP  California Highway Patrol 
CIP  Capital Improvement Program 
CMA  Congestion Management Agency 
CMAQ  Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality Program 
CMP  Congestion Management Plan 
CNG  Compressed Natural Gas 
CTC  California Transportation Commission 

D 
DBE  Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
DOT  Department of Transportation 

E 
ECMAQ  Eastern Solano Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Program 
EIR  Environmental Impact Report 
EIS  Environmental Impact Statement 
EPA  Environmental Protection Agency 
EV  Electric Vehicle 

F 
FEIR  Final Environmental Impact Report 
FHWA  Federal Highway Administration 
FTA  Federal Transit Administration 

G 
GIS  Geographic Information System 

H 
HIP  Housing Incentive Program 
HOT  High Occupancy Toll 
HOV  High Occupancy Vehicle 

I 
ISTEA  Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act 
ITIP  Interregional Transportation Improvement Program 
ITS  Intelligent Transportation System 
 
 

J 
JARC  Jobs Access Reverse Commute Program 
JPA  Joint Powers Agreement 

L 
LEV  Low Emission Vehicle 
LIFT  Low Income Flexible Transportation Program 
LOS  Level of Service 
LS&R  Local Streets & Roads 
 

M 
MIS  Major Investment Study 
MOU  Memorandum of Understanding 
MPO  Metropolitan Planning Organization 
MTC  Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
MTS  Metropolitan Transportation System 

N 
NCT&PA  Napa County Transportation & Planning Agency 
NEPA  National Environmental Policy Act 
NHS  National Highway System 

O 
OTS  Office of Traffic Safety 

P 
PAC  Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
PCC  Paratransit Coordinating Council 
PCRP  Planning & Congestion Relief Program 
PDS  Project Development Support 
PDT  Project Delivery Team 
PDWG  Project Delivery Working Group 
 
 
PMP  Pavement Management Program 
PMS  Pavement Management System 
PNR  Park & Ride 
PPM  Planning, Programming & Monitoring 
PS&E  Plans, Specifications & Estimate 
PSR  Project Study Report 
PTA  Public Transportation Account 
PTAC  Partnership Technical Advisory Committee (MTC) 

R 
RABA  Revenue Alignment Budget Authority 
RBWG   Regional Bicycle Working Group 
RFP  Request for Proposal 
RFQ  Request for Qualification 
RM 2  Regional Measure 2 
RPC   Regional Pedestrian Committee 
RRP  Regional Rideshare Program 
RTEP  Regional Transit Expansion Policy 
RTIF  Regional Transportation Impact Fee 
RTP  Regional Transportation Plan 
RTIP  Regional Transportation Improvement Program 
RTPA  Regional Transportation Planning Agency 

S 
SACOG  Sacramento Area Council of Governments 
SAFETEA‐LU  Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient     
  Transportation Equality Act‐a Legacy for Users 
SCTA  Sonoma County Transportation Authority 
SCVTA  Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority 
SFCTA  San Francisco County Transportation Authority  
SHOPP  State Highway Operations & Protection Program 

3



  ATTACHMENT A 
STA ACRONYMS LIST OF TRANSPORTATION TERMS 

Last Updated:  February 2010 
 

 
SMAQMD  Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality 
  Management District 
SMCCAG  San Mateo City‐County Association of Governments 
SNCI  Solano Napa Commuter Information 
SOV  Single Occupant Vehicle  
SP&R  State Planning & Research 
SR2S  Safe Routes to School 
 
 
SR2T  Safe Routes to Transit 
STA  Solano Transportation Authority 
STAF  State Transit Assistance Fund 
STIA  Solano Transportation Improvement Authority 
STIP  State Transportation Improvement Program 
STP  Surface Transportation Program 

T 
TAC  Technical Advisory Committee 
TAM  Transportation Authority of Marin 
TAZ  Transportation Analysis Zone 
TCI  Transportation Capital Improvement 
TCM  Transportation Control Measure 
TCRP  Transportation Congestion Relief Program 
TDA  Transportation Development Act 
TDM  Transportation Demand Management 
TE  Transportation Enhancement Program 
TEA‐21  Transportation Efficiency Act for the 21st Century 
TFCA  Transportation Funds for Clean Air Program 
TIF  Transportation Investment Fund 
TIP  Transportation Improvement Program 
TLC  Transportation for Livable Communities 
TMA  Transportation Management Association 
TMP  Transportation Management Plan 
TOS  Traffic Operation System 
TRAC  Trails Advisory Committee 
TSM  Transportation System Management 

U, V, W, Y, & Z 
UZA  Urbanized Area 
VTA  Valley Transportation Authority (Santa Clara) 
W2W  Welfare to Work 
WCCTAC  West Costa County Transportation Advisory  
  Committee 
WETA  Water Emergency Transportation Authority  
YSAQMD  Yolo/Solano Air Quality Management District 
ZEV  Zero Emission Vehicle 

4



Agenda Item VIII.A 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Minutes for Meeting of 

June 9, 2010 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Sanchez called the regular meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  A quorum was confirmed. 
 

 MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 

 
Jack Batchelor, Jr., Acting Chair 

 
City of Dixon 

  Elizabeth Patterson City of Benicia 
  Chuck Timm, Alternate Board Member City of Fairfield 
  Jan Vick City of Rio Vista 
  Mike Hudson, Alternate Board Member City of Suisun City 
  Len Augustine City of Vacaville 
  Osby Davis City of Vallejo 
  Jim Spering County of Solano 
    
 MEMBERS 

ABSENT: 
 
Pete Sanchez, Chair 

 
City of Suisun City 

  Harry Price, Vice Chair City of Fairfield 
 STAFF 

PRESENT: 
 
Daryl K. Halls 

 
Executive Director 

  Bernadette Curry  Interim Legal Counsel 
  Johanna Masiclat Clerk of the Board 
  Robert Macaulay Director of Planning 
  Elizabeth Richards Director of Transit and Rideshare 

Services 
  Liz Niedziela Transit Manager 
  Susan Furtado Accountant and Administrative 

Services Manager 
  Judy Leaks Program Manager 
  Sam Shelton Project Manager 
  Sara Woo Assistant Planner 

    

5



 ALSO  
PRESENT: 

 
In Alphabetical Order by Last Name: 

  Kevin Adgate Resident, City of Rio Vista 
  Eric Cordoba Cordoba Consulting, Inc. 
  Cliff Covey County of Solano 
  Dale Dennis PDM 
  George Gwynn Jr. Resident, City of Fairfield 
  Dan Kasperson City of Suisun City 
  Wayne Lewis City of Fairfield 
  Alysa Majer City of Suisun City 
  Jeanne McCormack Resident, City of Rio Vista 
  Kevin Graham Resident, City of Rio Vista 
  Gary Leach City of Vallejo 
  Brian McLean City of Vacaville 
  Wayne Lewis City of Fairfield 
  James Lira Resident, City of Rio Vista 
  Steve Melinski AECOM 
  Rod Moresco City of Vacaville 
  Mike Roberts City of Benicia 
  Vern Van Buskirk  Resident, City of Fairfield 
  Paul Wiese County of Solano 
  Eddie Woodruff Resident, City of Rio Vista 
    
II. CONFIRM QUORUM/STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 

A quorum was confirmed by the Clerk of the Board.  There was no Statement of Conflict 
declared at this time. 
 

III. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
On a motion by Board Member Vick, and a second by Acting Chair Batchelor, the STA 
Board unanimously approved the agenda. 
 

IV. 
 

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 

V. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
Daryl Halls provided an update on the following topics: 
 Release of Draft Rio Vista Bridge Study 
 Status of Safe Routes to School Program and Grants 
 Initial Senior and Disabled Advisory Committee Holds First Meeting 
 Funding Next Wave of Transportation Planning and Land Use Projects 
 Status of Next Phase of I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange 

 
VI. COMMENTS FROM METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

(MTC), CALTRANS, AND STAFF: 
 

 A. MTC Report:   
None presented. 
 

6



 B. Caltrans Report: 
Nicolas Endrawos, Caltrans District 4 Project Manager, provided a report on the State 
Highway Operations and Protection Program (SHOPP) Projects in Solano County. 
 

  C. STA Reports: 
1. Overview of Bike to Work Day on May 13, 2010 presented by Judy Leaks 
2. Directors Reports: 

a. Planning: 
Robert Macaulay provided an update on the SR 12 Corridor Advisory 
Committee. 

b. Transit and Rideshare 
Elizabeth Richards provided an update on the Transit Consolidation Study. 
 

VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 On a motion by Board Member Augustine, and a second by Board Member Davis, the STA 
Board approved Consent Calendar Items A through P.  
 

 A. STA Board Meeting Minutes of May 12, 2010 
Recommendation: 
Approve STA Board Meeting Minutes of May 12, 2010. 
 

 B. Review Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Draft Minutes for the Meeting of 
May 26, 2010 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
 

 C. Fiscal Year (FY) 2009-10 Third Quarter Budget Report  
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
 

 D. Fiscal Year (FY) 2009-10 Final Budget Revision  
Recommendation: 
Adopt FY 2009-10 Final Budget Revision as shown in Attachment A. 
 

 E. Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Matrix – June 
2010 
Recommendation: 
Approve the FY 2010-11 TDA Matrix – June 2010 as shown in Attachment A for 
Vacaville City Coach. 
 

 F. Contract Amendment for Transit and Funding Consultant - 
Nancy Whelan Consulting 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to extend the consultant contract with Nancy Whelan 
Consulting for Transit Funding and Technical Services until June 30, 2011 for an 
amount not-to-exceed $35,000. 
 

7



 G. Contract Amendment for Transit Project Management Consultant - John Harris 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to extend the consultant contract with John Harris for 
Transit Project Management until June 30, 2011 for an amount not-to-exceed $15,000. 
 

 H. Lifeline Transportation Funding Program  
Recommendation: 
Authorize the programming of $616,070 in STAF/Lifeline funds in FY 2009-10 and FY 
2010-11 to fund the Lifeline Projects as shown in Attachment E. 
 

 I. Resolution for Allocation of FY 2010-11 Transportation Development Act (TDA) 
Funds 
Recommendation: 
Approve Resolution No. 2010-05 authorizing the filing of a claim with MTC for the 
allocation of TDA funds for FY 2010-11. 
 

 J. Appointment of Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) Members 
Recommendation: 
Appoint Rachel Ford as the Public Agency – Department of Health and Social Services 
representative and Ted Newton as the Social Service Provider representative to the PCC 
for a 3-year term. 
 

 K. Transportation Planning and Land Use (T-PLUS) Planning Grants 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following  

1. Designate $150,000 of T-PLUS funds to planning grants for one or more 
jurisdictions with designated PDAs; 

2. Designate $35,000 of T-PLUS funds to planning grants to one jurisdiction that 
does not have a designated PDA; and 

3. Authorize the Executive Director to issue a Call for Projects for planning grants. 
 

 L. Solano Countywide Bicycle Plan Priority Projects – Amendment to Cycle 1 
Funding Strategy  
Recommendation: 
Approve the following:   

1. Amend the bike funding amount approved for the City of Vacaville’s Ulatis 
Creek Bicycle Path to be reduced from $915,000 to $810,000; and 

2. Reprogram the $105,000 from Vacaville’s Ulatis Creek Bicycle Path project to 
Solano County’s Vacaville-Dixon Bicycle Route project as part of Cycle 2 bike 
funding. 

 
 M. 2011 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. The 2011 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) for Solano County’s 
projects; and 

2. Authorize STA staff to submit the 2011 Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP) for Solano County’s projects to the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) as shown in Attachments A and B. 

 

8



 N. Project Manager for Jepson Parkway and Redwood Parkway – Fairgrounds Drive 
Improvements Projects 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to: 

1. Release a Request for Proposals for Project Management Services for the 
Redwood Parkway – Fairgrounds Drive Improvement Project and the Jepson 
Parkway Project; and 

2. Enter into an agreement with a consultant for Project Management Services for 
an amount not-to-exceed $75,000 for a one-year term with provisions to extend 
yearly. 

 
 O. Public Private Partnership Feasibility Study 

Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to: 

1. Execute a Project Management contract with Nancy Whelan Consulting for an 
amount-not-to exceed $20,000; 

2. Release a Request for Proposals for the Public Private Partnership (P3) 
Feasibility Study; and 

3. Enter into a contract for Public Private Partnership (P3) Feasibility Study for an 
amount not-to-exceed $130,000. 

 
 P. MTC High School Summer Internship Program 

Recommendation: 
Approve STA’s participation in MTC’s High School Internship Program, and the use of 
additional Safe Routes to School funds to hire up to 3 interns at 200 hours each for an 
amount not-to-exceed $5,200. 
 

VIII. ACTION – FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. Allocation of State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 
Elizabeth Richards reported that legislation (ABX8 6 and ABX8 9) was passed to stop 
the flow of funds from the Public Transportation Account (PTA) to the STAF.  She 
cited that the legislation was passed and included in the budget package signed by the 
Governor in March 2010 which provided a one-time allocation of $400 million in STAF 
funds.  
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Approve STAF allocations for FY 2010-11 as shown in Attachment D. 
 

  On a motion by Board Member Davis, and a second by Board Member Vick, the STA 
Board unanimously approved the recommendation. 
 

9



 B. Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 & FY 2011-12  Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Project  
Program Grant Funding 
Sam Shelton provided an overview of the recommended grant funding for the SR2S 
Program for the next two fiscal years, FY 2010-11 and FY 2011-12.  He cited that the 
SR2S Program has split funding between the Engineering program and the non-
engineering program.   
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
Board Member Patterson requested clarification of the TAC’s discussion regarding 
MTC’s policy of programming federal funding at amounts of no less than $250,000.  
Sam Shelton discussed MTC’s Cycle 1 project funding policy and MTC’s reasons for a 
$250,000 minimum project policy.  Board Member Patterson noted that this policy does 
not accommodate smaller safety projects.  Mr. Shelton noted that the type of federal air 
quality funding available from MTC further restricts project types to those that expand 
or create bicycle and pedestrian capacity, excluding safety projects such as radar speed 
signs. 
 
Board Member Patterson requested to know if the STA will help agencies secure future 
Safe Routes to School funding from MTC.  Mr. Shelton responded that the STA is 
committed to helping agencies plan for all manner of grants for their priority SR2S 
projects. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Approve the FY 2010-11 & FY 2011-12 Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Project & 
Program Grant funding as shown in Attachment A. 
 

  On a motion by Alternate Board Member Timm, and a second by Board Member Vick, 
the STA Board unanimously approved the recommendation. 
 

 C. Prior to the presentation of this item, Board Member Spering recused himself from 
participation on the next item to avoid a potential conflict of interest and left the 
meeting. 
 
Award Construction Contract for the Gordon Water Line (Rockville Road Water 
Main) Relocation Project 
Dale Dennis, STA Project Manager, cited that bids were received and opened on June 7, 
2010 at the STA offices.  He stated that construction bids were received and announced 
the lowest bidder was North Bay Construction with a bid of $1,540,067.  He cited that 
the final project budget is $1,848,080.00 which includes a 20% project contingency of 
$308,013.00 for contract change orders. 
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
None presented. 
 

10



  Recommendation: 
Approve Resolution No. 2010-06 for the Gordon Water Line (Rockville Road Water 
Main) Relocation Project. 
 

  On a motion by Board Member Davis, and a second by Board Member Vick, the STA 
Board unanimously approved the recommendation. 
 

  Supervisor Spering returned to the meeting. 

IX. ACTION NON-FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. State Route (SR) 12 Rio Vista Bridge Study 
Steve Melinski, AECOM, provided a project review and project summary of the SR 12 
Realignment/Rio Vista Bridge Preliminary Study.   
 

  Board Comment: 
Board Member Patterson asked about the assumptions for cost in the appendix.   
 

  Public Comments: 
Eddie Woodruff addressed the STA Board and raised concerns about the potential 
impact on Rio Vista businesses.  
 
Jeanne McCormack, Director of Bank of Rio Vista, commented that moving the bridge 
would cause severe economic damage and the hardship of moving the route would hurt 
the community from farmers to major trucking construction business.  She requsted the 
adoption of the tunnel method and not impose a toll.   
 
James Lira, small business owner, Lira Supermarket, opposed tolling the bridge.  He 
stated moving the road hurt the community. 
 
Ken Adgate, car dealership owner, indicated they are responsible for 40% of the tax 
revenue in the city.  He stated that manufacturers will eliminate the dealership if they 
relocate. 
 
Kevin Graham, owner Paul Graham Drilling, stated they are the largest employer in 
town since 1968.  He requested STA consider work to keep the route as close as it is and 
to study in a proper fashion. 
 
Julie McCormack raised concerns on the negative impact on their business.  
 

  Board Comments: 
Mayor Jan Vick commented that Rio Vista City Council will discuss on July 28 at a city 
council regular special meeting.  Rio Vista will provide STA with comments from the 
city by the August 10 deadline. 
 
Board Member Spering shared his own experience on the overpass on Highway 12 
when he was Mayor of Suisun City. He encouraged the group to not to be discouraged 
and actively get engaged.  He also stated that if we do not find a funding strategy then 
he doesn’t think another dime should be spent on studying the bridge. 
 

11



  Recommendation: 
Approve the release of the Draft Rio Vista Bridge Study for a 60-day public comment 
period. 
 

  On a motion by Board Member Vick, and a second by Board Member Patterson, the 
STA Board unanimously approved the recommendation. 
 

 B. 2010 Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
At the request of Board Member Patterson, this item was tabled until the next meeting 
in July to allow more time to review.   
 

  By consensus, the STA Board approved to table this item until the next meeting in July. 
 

 C. Legislative Update 
Robert Macaulay recommended a support position for S. 3412, The Public 
Transportation Preservation Act of 2010. 
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Approve a position of support for S. 3412, The Public Transportation Preservation Act 
of 2010. 
 

  On a motion by Board Member Patterson, and a second by Board Member Augustine, 
the STA Board unanimously approved the recommendation. 
 

X. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  - NO DISCUSSION 
 

 A. 2010 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) Update  
 

 B. Jepson Parkway Update 
 

 C. Regional Measure 2 (RM 2) Update 
 

 D. Funding Opportunities Summary 
 

 E. STA Board Meeting Schedule for 2010 
 

XI. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT  
 

 The STA Board meeting was adjourned at 7:45 p.m.  The next regular meeting of the STA 
Board is scheduled for Wednesday, July 14, 2010, 6:00 p.m., Suisun City Hall Council 
Chambers. 
 

12



  
Attested by: 
 
 
 
                                                      
Johanna Masiclat                          Date 
Clerk of the Board 
 

 

13



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

14



Agenda Item VIII.B 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 

 
 
 

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
DRAFT Minutes for the meeting of 

June 30, 2010 
 

I. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
The regular meeting of the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) was called to order at 
approximately 1:30 p.m. in the Solano Transportation Authority’s Conference Room. 
 

 Present: 
TAC Members Present: 

 
Charlie Knox 

 
City of Benicia 

  Janet Koster City of Dixon 
  Gene Cortright City of Fairfield 
  Morrie Barr City of Rio Vista 
  Dan Kasperson City of Suisun City 
  Rod Moresco City of Vacaville 
  Gary Leach City of Vallejo 
  Matt Tuggle County of Solano 
    
 STA Staff Present: Daryl Halls STA 
  Robert Macaulay STA 
  Elizabeth Richards STA 
  Jayne Bauer STA 
  Robert Guerrero STA 
  Sam Shelton STA 
  Sara Woo STA 
  Johanna Masiclat STA 
  Bridget Carlson STA Intern 
  Aysha Berrios Strader STA Intern 
  Marisa Berrios Strader STA Intern 
    
 Others Present: (In Alphabetical Order by Last Name) 
  Joe Aguilar Caltrans District 4 
  Erik Alm Caltrans District 4 
  Jennifer Brown MV Transportation 
  Dale Dennis PDM 
  Jeff Knowles City of Vacaville 
  Alysa Majer City of Suisun City 
  Monica Manuel MV Transportation 
  Cameron Oakes Caltrans District 4 
  David Rosenberg City of Suisun City Intern 

15



II. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
On a motion by Charlie Knox, and a second by Rod Moresco, the STA TAC approved the 
agenda. 
 

III. 
 

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
None presented. 
 

III. 
 

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
None presented. 
 

IV. REPORTS FROM CALTRANS, MTC AND STA STAFF 
 
Caltrans: Caltrans staff (Joe Aguilar, Erik Alm, and Cameron Oakes) presented the 

I-80 and SR 12 Corridor System Management Plans (CSMP). 
MTC: None presented. 

STA: None presented. 
 

 

V. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
On a motion by Rod Moresco, and a second by Matt Tuggle, the STA TAC approved 
Consent Calendar Items A, and I. 
 

 A. Minutes of the TAC Meeting of May 26, 2010 
Recommendation: 
Approve TAC Meeting Minutes of May 26, 2010. 
 

 B. Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Matrix – July 
2010 
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the  
FY 2010-11 TDA Matrix – July 2010 as shown in Attachment A. 
 

 C. Commute Profile 2010 Study – Solano and Napa Counties 
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the Commute Profile 2010 
Study – Solano and Napa Counties. 
 

 D. Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Article 3 
Bicycle Projects 
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the attached FY 2010-11 
TDA Article 3 Resolution No. 2010-07. 
 

 E. Eastern Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ):  SNCI 
Climate Initiatives Funding  
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the Solano Napa Commuter 
Information Program for $445,000 from MTC’s Climate Initiative ECMAQ Program. 
 

16



 F. Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) 40% 
Program Manager Funds 
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to adopt a resolution approving the 
following TFCA funding amounts for FY 2010-11: 

1. A reduced amount of $205,929 for the Solano Napa Commuter Information 
Program; and 

2. $88,000 for the Solano Bikeway Extension/McGary Road Project jointly 
sponsored by the City of Vallejo and County of Solano. 

 
 G. Solano Bicycle and Pedestrian Project Funding Amendment 

Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to amend the City of Fairfield’s Linear 
park Alternate Route Nightingale Drive project by reprogramming $29,000 of TDA 
Article 3 funds from preliminary engineering (PE) to the construction phase. 
 

 H. Countywide Bicycle Plan Project List Amendment: West B Street 
Undercrossing 
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to amend the Solano Bicycle Plan 
Project List to include the Dixon West B Street Undercrossing as shown in 
Attachment A. 
 

 I. Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) Member Appointment Representing the 
City of Fairfield 
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to appoint David Pyle as City of 
Fairfield’s representative to the STA Bicycle Advisory Committee for a three-year 
term. 
 

VI. ACTION FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 & FY 2011-12 Safe Routes to School (SR2S) 
Programming Specifics 
Sam Shelton reviewed the submittal process of a final workscope to MTC.  He 
indicated that final submittal date of the workscope from each CMA is due to MTC 
by July 30, 2010.   
 

  Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to modify the STA’s SR2S Program’s 
FY 2010-11 and FY 2011-12 Final Workscope as specified. 
 

  On a motion by Janet Koster, and a second by Gary Leach, the STA TAC 
unanimously approved the recommendation. 
 

17



VII. ACTION NON-FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. Discussion of Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) Expenditure Plan Categories 
Daryl Halls provided an overview on the development of the three expenditure plan 
priorities.  They are 1) Maintenance of Local Streets and Roads, 2) Safe Routes to 
School, and 3) Senior and Disabled Transportation Mobility.  He noted that the TAC 
is being requested to review and provide input regarding the eligible categories for 
VRF expenditures and the options for allocation VRF funds for each category.  He 
added that this information will be provided to the STA Board at their meeting of July 
14, 2010. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Review and provide input regarding the eligible categories for VRF expenditures and 
options for allocation of VRF funds for each category. 
 

  A.1 Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) Expenditure Plan - Maintenance of Local 
Streets and Roads Expenditure Plan Options 
Recommendation: 
Review and provide input regarding the “Maintenance for Local Streets and 
Roads” category for VRF expenditures and allocation options. 
 
Sam Shelton reviewed the two options to distribute Agency Shares of an 
estimated funding of $1.6 million per year ($1.6 million) for the SB 83 50% 
for Local Streets and Roads. 
 
After discussion, the STA TAC recommended including the elements listed 
below with minor changes, and Option 2 for funding distribution with a 
minimum per agency of $75K/year. 

• Repair and maintain local streets and roads 
• Traffic signal maintenance and upgrades 
• Signing, striping and lighting on roadways 
• Fixing potholes 

The TAC also requested to STA staff provide the actual DMV registrations by 
city to determine any impact on the proposed distribution formula. 
 

  A.2 Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) Expenditure Plan - Safe Routes to Schools 
Expenditure Plan Options 
Recommendation: 
Review and provide input regarding the “Safe Routes to School” category for 
VRF expenditures and allocation options. 
 
Sam Shelton reviewed the two proposed options to allocate using an estimated 
funding of $800,000 per year compared to K-12 School District Student 
Enrollment for each school district.  It was proposed to use 25% for Safe 
Routes to School/Education and Encouragement Programs.. 
 

18



   After discussion, the STA TAC recommended including the elements listed 
below with minor change and Option 2 for funding distribution with a 
minimum per agency of $40K/year and a minimum for Rio Vista of $20K. 

• Crossing guards 
• Radar speed detection signs 
• Improved bike and pedestrian paths near schools 
• Improved rail, highway, and road crossings near schools 
• Increased traffic enforcement near schools 
• Bicycle & pedestrian safety programs 
• Education and encouragement programs 

 
  A.3 Discussion of Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) Expenditure Plan – Senior 

and Disabled Mobility 
Recommendation: 
Review and provide input regarding the “Senior and Disabled Mobility” 
category for VRF expenditures and allocation options. 
 
Liz Niedziela reviewed the four proposed options to distribute an estimated 
funding of $640,000 per year for Senior and Disabled Mobility.  She added 
that at an earlier meeting, the Consortium supported Option 3, with an 
amendment to expand the eligible categories as noted below and allocate 
funding on a countywide basis: 

• Intercity and/or local subsidized taxi services for ambulatory and/or 
non-ambulatory passenger 

• Reduced price senior and disabled fares 
• Purchase of paratransit vehicles 
• Senior Shuttles 
• Mobility programs (public and non-profit) to assist the disabled and 

seniors 
 
After further discussion, the STA TAC concurred with the Consortium’s 
recommendation.   
 

 B. Locally Preferred Alternative for the I-80/I-680/State Route (SR) 12 Interchange 
Project 
Dale Dennis, Project Consultant, provided an overview of the locally preferred 
alternative for the I-80/I-680/State Route (SR) 12 Interchange Project.  He noted that 
under the National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA), a locally preferred 
alternative can be identified in the draft environmental document if one is known at 
the time of publication.  He stated that staff believes that Alternative C (and 
Alternative C-1) should be identified in the Draft EIR/EIS as the locally preferred 
alternative for the reasons identified above.  He indicated that staff further believes it 
is important the Draft EIR/EIS include this determination in the Draft EIS/EIR for 
public review and comment. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to inform Caltrans that STA has 
identified Alternative C (and Alternative C-1) as the locally preferred alternative and 
to include this information in the Draft EIS/EIR for public review and comment. 
 

19



  On a motion by Gene Cortright, and a second by Morrie Barr, the STA TAC 
unanimously approved the recommendation. 
 

 C. State Route (SR) 12 Jameson Canyon Corridor Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Connections Plan 
Sara Woo provided a brief update on the status of the SR 12 Jameson Canyon Road 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Connections Plan.  Gene Cortright requested to modify the 
section regarding the status of McGary Road to be updated to reflect that the road is 
currently closed, both to vehicular and bicycle/pedestrian traffic. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the release of the draft 
sections of the SR 12 Jameson Canyon Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Connections 
Plan for a 30-day public comment period. 
 

  On a motion by Gene Cortright, and a second by Matt Tuggle, the STA TAC 
unanimously approved the recommendation as amended. 
 

 D. STA Grant Proposals:  MTC Climate Initiatives Grant Program 
Robert Guerrero reviewed the process to submit grant applications for MTC’s 
Innovative Grant Program.  He described in detail STA’s proposal for two project 
applications submitted to MTC.  The two projects are the Clean Air Innovative 
Transit Implementation and Transportation Demand Management for the SR 
12/Jameson Canyon Corridor and the STA Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Education 
and Encouragement School Route Maps, Marketing and Education Resources, and 
Student Engagement Incentives. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the following two project 
applications for MTC’s Innovative Grant Program: 

1. Clean Air Innovative Transit Implementation and Transportation Demand 
Management for the SR 12/Jameson Canyon Corridor; and 

2. STA Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Education and Encouragement School 
Route Maps, Marketing and Education Resources, and Student Engagement 
Incentives. 

 
  On a motion by Gary Leach, and a second by Dan Kasperson, the STA TAC 

unanimously approved the recommendation. 
 

20



VIII. INFORMATIONAL – NO DISCUSSION  
 

 A. Regional Transportation Improvement Fee (RTIF) Update 
 

 B. PM 2.5 Hotspot Analysis Follow-up 
 

 C. MTC CMA Block Grant Project List  
 

 D. Solano Rail Accident Inventory 
 

 E. Regional Measure 2 (RM 2) Update 
 

 F. Legislative Update 
 

 G. Funding Opportunities Summary 
 

 H. STA Board Meeting Highlights of June 9, 2010 
 

 I. STA Board and Advisory Committee Meeting Schedule  
for 2010 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 The meeting was adjourned at 3:30 p.m.  The next meeting of the STA TAC is scheduled at 
1:30 p.m. on Wednesday, August 25, 2010. 
 

 
 

21



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

22



Agenda Item VIII.C 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  July 8, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Robert Guerrero, Senior Planner 
RE: Eastern Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ): 

SNCI Climate Initiatives Funding 
 
 
Background: 
The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) created a program called Climate 
Initiatives as part of their overall Cycle 1 Congestion Mitigation Air Quality 
Improvement (CMAQ) Program.  This included an allocation of $3 million of CMAQ 
funds for eastern Solano County (i.e. ECMAQ).  MTC’s Climate Initiatives Program is a 
separate, but related program to the STA’s Block Grants.  The Block Grants are discussed 
in more detail in a separate staff report. In summary, the STA was required to submit a 
Block Grant Strategy for Cycle 1 CMAQ/Surface Transportation Program (STP) funding; 
this included the Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) Program as part of the 
Climate Initiatives.   
 
Discussion: 
The Cycle 1 CMAQ funding involved several separate steps to approve the allocation of 
local streets and roads, as well as bicycle and pedestrian projects.  The remaining formal 
allocation action needed is the ECMAQ approval of SNCI’s Rideshare Program.   
 
SNCI’s Rideshare Incentives Program continues to be a cost effective and successful 
program in terms of clean air emission and climate action initiatives.   Benefits of the 
program include marketing and promotion of commute alternatives through transit 
brochure distribution, vanpool formations, bicycle and pedestrian education, employer 
presentations, marketing events, and incentives campaigns (e.g. Bike to Work Day and 
Commute Challenge).  SNCI continues to be successful in recruiting more participants in 
the Bike to Work campaign, as well as recruiting large employers and their employees to 
participate in the Solano Commute Challenge.  SNCI also took the lead in being the 
primary support for vanpools in Solano County and Napa County with more than 230 
vanpools currently travelling to or from both counties.  
 
The SNCI program traditionally receives the majority of its program funding through a 
combination of Transportation Fund for Clean Air Funds (TFCA), Clean Air Program 
funds and ECMAQ funds.  The TFCA and Clean Air grants are not as reliable as 
ECMAQ; for example, Clean Air Funds provided by the Yolo Solano Air Quality 
Management District are expected to be reduced in future years.  In addition, as indicated 
in a separate staff report for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 TFCA Program, a deficit of 
$54,071 currently exists from a reduced TFCA estimate.  

23



In order to maintain STA’s SNCI program at its current level of service, STA staff is 
recommending an approval of $445,000 from ECMAQ funds.  The SNCI Program relies 
on an ECMAQ allocation each cycle to augment grants from TFCA and Clean Air funds, 
typically $150,000-200,000 and $50-$100,000 respectively. 
 
The STA TAC reviewed and unanimously recommended this item for STA Board 
approval at their June 30, 2010 meeting. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
A total of $445,000 is recommended from Cycle 1 ECMAQ for SNCI’s Program. The 
ECMAQ funds will augment TFCA and Clean Air Funds.  A shortfall of $54,071 still 
exists for the program. STA staff is reviewing funding options to fully fund the SNCI the 
program.  Options include State Transportation Assistance Funds and/or future 
commitments from the TFCA and Clean Air Program.   
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Solano Napa Commuter Information Program for $445,000 from MTC’s 
Climate Initiative ECMAQ Program. 
 
 
 
 

24



Agenda Item VIII.D 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  July 2, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Robert Guerrero, Senior Planner 
RE: Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) 40% 

Program Manager Funds 
 
 
Background: 
The Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) Transportation Fund for 
Clean Air (TFCA) 40% Program Manager Funds are administered by each Bay Area 
congestion management agency (CMA).  The Solano Transportation Authority is the 
CMA for Solano County.  Eligible TFCA projects are those that reduce air pollution from 
motor vehicles.  Examples include clean air vehicle infrastructure, clean air vehicles, 
shuttle bus services, bicycle projects, and alternative modes promotional/educational 
projects.   
 
Funding for the TFCA program is provided by a $4 vehicle registration fee, with 60% of 
the funds generated applied toward the TFCA Regional Program and the remainder 
toward the county 40% Program Manager Program.  The BAAQMD, in coordination 
with the CMA’s, establishes TFCA policies for both programs annually.   
 
The cities of Benicia, Fairfield, Suisun City, Vallejo, and southwestern portions of Solano 
County located in the Bay Area Air Basin are eligible to apply for these funds.  The Yolo 
Solano Air Quality Management District provides similar funding (i.e. Clean Air 
Program Funds) for the remaining cities and the County unincorporated area within the 
Yolo-Solano Air Basin.    
 
Discussion: 
The TFCA funds were originally estimated at $348,000 for FY 2010-11. On March 10, 
2010, the STA Board approved the Solano Napa Commuter Information’s (SNCI) 
Incentives Program as a priority for TFCA Program Manager Funds FY 2010-11 
Program and approved up to $260,000.    The estimated remaining balance of funding 
was $88,000.  Two related events occurred since the STA Board action in March: 1)  
Solano Bikeway Extension/McGary Road Gap Closure Opportunity and 2) a reduction in 
this year’s TFCA estimate.   
 
McGary Road Gap Closure Opportunity 
STA staff worked to find eligible TFCA projects for the remaining $88,000 since the 
March 10th Board Action.  After considering options, STA staff recommends funding the 
final segment of the McGary Road Class II Gap Closure Opportunity.  McGary Road is a 
frontage road paralleling I-80 from Hiddenbrooke Parkway in the City of Vallejo to Red 
Top Road in the City of Fairfield.  The majority of McGary Road is within the City of 
Fairfield; however, the County of Solano and the City of Vallejo also have small 

25



segments of McGary Road within their jurisdiction.  The City of Fairfield has closed 
McGary road to motorists and bicycle travelers for approximately 10 years due to safety 
issues.  This created a significant barrier to the countywide bicycle network, and fixing 
and re-opening McGary Road became a priority project for the STA at the 
recommendation of the STA’s Bicycle Advisory Committee. 
 
In coordination with the City of Fairfield and the County of Solano over the last 18 
months, STA staff worked to find options to fully fund the City of Fairfield’s segment of 
McGary Road.  As a result of all three agencies effort, the STA was able to help the City 
of Fairfield to obtain several fund sources to fully fund the reconstruction of the McGary 
Road, including paving of Class II bike lanes.  Completion of the project is anticipated by 
the September 2010.   
 
In anticipation of Fairfield’s segment being completed, the County of Solano and the City 
of Vallejo plan to rehabilitate each of their segments of McGary Road, including paving a 
Class II bicycle lane.  There is an opportunity for cost savings if the two segments are 
completed together.  The total project cost to complete both segments together is 
$686,467.  Rehabilitation of both segments separately could amount to slightly less than 
$1 million.  
 
The County of Solano and the City of Vallejo staff requested TFCA funding to take 
advantage of this cost savings opportunity.  The City of Vallejo and the County of Solano 
indicated that they can complete the project with a minimum contribution of $88,000 
from TFCA funding if available.  The project could be delivered by the end of summer if 
it is approved for funding.  It will complete the final gap of McGary Road and provide a 
seamless transition between each jurisdiction from a user perspective.  The BAAQMD 
indicated that this project was eligible and cost-effective.   
 
TFCA Estimate Reduction 
The original estimate of TFCA funds was reduced to $293,929, a difference of $54,071. 
STA staff is recommending a reduction to SNCI’s allocation from $260,000 to $205,929 
to absorb the difference.  This is necessary to accommodate the $88,000 recommended 
for the McGary Road project described above.  Staff believes that there are other 
opportunities for the SNCI Program to make up the loss of the $54,071.  These 
opportunities potentially include STAF funding and/or future commitments of TFCA and 
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Program funds.  STA staff will provide a 
recommendation on these options at the September Board meeting. 
 
STA staff is recommending that the STA Board adopt a resolution approving the 
recommended reduction in funding for the SNCI Program and the approval of funding for 
the Solano Bikeway Extension/McGary Road Gap Closure Project. The resolution is 
necessary for completing a fund package submittal to the BAAQMD.  The resolution is 
included as Attachment A.   
 
The STA Technical Advisory Committee reviewed and unanimously recommended the 
STA Board approve this item at their June 30, 2010 meeting. 
 
 

26



Fiscal Impact: 
1. Solano County and the City of Vallejo will receive $88,000 in TFCA funding to 

match $598,467 to rehabilitate their segments of McGary Road.  This is the minimal 
amount that the project needs, anything less will jeopardize the project.   

2. The original FY 2010-11 TFCA fund allocation for the SNCI program will be 
reduced by $54,071 as a result of a lower estimate of TFCA funding.   

 
Recommendation: 
Adopt Resolution No. 2010-08 approving the following projects and TFCA funding 
amounts for FY 2010-11: 

1. A reduced amount of $205,929 for the Solano Napa Commuter Information 
Program; and 

2. $88,000 for the Solano Bikeway Extension/McGary Road Project jointly 
sponsored by the City of Vallejo and County of Solano.   

 
Attachment: 

A. Resolution No. 2010-08 
  

27



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

28



ATTACHMENT A 
 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION # 2010-08 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

APPROVAL OF TRANSPORTATION FUND FOR CLEAN AIR (TFCA) FY 2010-11 
40% PROGRAM MANAGER FUNDS 

 
WHEREAS, the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) is the Congestion Management 
Agency for Solano County and is the BAAQMD designated administrator for the TFCA 40% 
Program Manager funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the estimated TFCA 40% Program Manager Funds allocation balance for FY 
2010-11 is $293,929; and 
 
WHEREAS, the STA prioritized and approved the SNCI Program for TFCA 40% Program 
Manager funds for FY 2010-11 at their March 10, 2010 meeting; and   
 
WHEREAS, the City of Vallejo and the County of Solano, through a joint partnership, have 
requested TFCA funding to complete the Solano Bikeway Extension/McGary Road Gap 
Closure Project; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Vallejo will be the lead coordinator for the TFCA funding; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Solano Bikeway Extension/McGary Road Gap Closure Project is an 
eligible cost-effective clean air project; and  
 
WHEREAS, all TFCA funding is required to reduce air pollution from motor vehicles and 
the STA Board has determined that all the proposed projects support the BAAQMD's Clean 
Air Program objectives and policies, and will reduce air emissions.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Solano Transportation Authority Board of 
Directors approve the following projects for the Fiscal Year 2010-11 Solano TFCA 40% 
Program Manager funds: Solano Napa Commuter Incentives Program for $205,929 and the 
City of Vallejo’s Solano Bikeway Extension/McGary Road Gap Closure Project for $88,000. 
 
 

 
Pete Sanchez, Chair  
Solano Transportation Authority 
 

I, Daryl K. Halls, the Solano Transportation Authority Executive Director, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing resolution was introduced, passed, and adopted by 
said Authority at a regular meeting thereof held this 14th day of July, 2010.  
 

 
 
Daryl K. Halls, Executive Director  
Solano Transportation Authority 

29



Passed by the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) Board on this 14th day of July, 
2010 by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 

  

Nos:   
Absent:   
Abstain:   
 
Attest: 

  

 Johanna Masiclat 
Clerk of the Board 

 

30



Agenda Item VIII.E 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 

 
DATE:  July 1, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Robert Guerrero, Senior Planner 
RE:  STA Grant Proposals:  MTC Climate Initiatives Grant Program 
 
 
Background: 
On March 31, 2010, STA staff reported on the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) 
Climate Initiatives Program to the TAC and Consortium.  MTC created the Climate Initiatives 
Program as part of the 2009 New Surface Transportation Act Cycle 1 Project Selection Criteria 
and Programming Policy adopted in December 2009.  The Climate Initiatives Program focuses on 
four primary elements: (1) public education campaign, (2) Safe Routes to Schools, (3) Innovative 
Grants, and (4) evaluation of the Climate Initiatives Program.  MTC’s process was designed to 
simplify the application submittals by first issuing a call for letters of interest and then notifying 
interested agencies with the most promising projects to submit a formal application.   
 

MTC issued a call for letters of interest on April 30
Discussion: 

th

1)   Clean Air Innovative Transit Implementation and Transportation Demand Management 
for the SR 12/Jameson Canyon Corridor 

 and hosted workshops in May.  As reported 
to the STA Board in April, STA staff submitted letters of interest for the following two projects: 

2)   STA Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Education and Encouragement School Route Maps, 
Marketing and Education Resources, and Student Engagement Incentives 

 
MTC recently announced which projects were invited to submit an application.  The STA’s 
SR2S Program was among the selected projects; unfortunately, the Clean Air Innovative Transit 
proposal for SR 12 Jameson Canyon was not selected.   
 
The SR2S proposal focuses on working with new and existing partnerships to: 1) participate in 
education and marketing events, 2) create and distribute SR2S maps and other education 
materials, and 3) focus on solutions in locations where school closures and school bus program 
cuts have increased travel distances to schools. The grant request is for $500,000.  
 
With MTC’s invitation, STA staff requests authorization from the STA Board to submit a grant 
application for the SR2S proposal at this time. The STA Technical Advisory Committee 
reviewed and unanimously recommended the STA Board approve this item at their June 30, 
2010 meeting. 
Fiscal Impact: 
STA is requesting $500,000 for the Safe Routes to School Program.  MTC’s Innovative Grants 
are federal funds and require a local match of 11.5 %. The TDA Article 3 and TFCA funds are 
already secured for the Safe Routes to School Program. A total of $65,000 will count towards a 
local match for the $500,000 request.  

31



Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to submit a grant application to MTC for a total request of 
$500,000 to implement the STA Safe Routes to School Program as specified in Attachment A. 
 
Attachment: 

A. STA Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Proposal Summary 
 

32



 

 
 
June 1, 2010 
 
Ashley Nguyen, Project Manager 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
101 Eight Street, Oakland, CA 94607 
 
RE: Application for “Solano Transportation Authority’s (STA) Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Education 
and Encouragement School Route Maps, Marketing & Education Resources, and Student Engagement 
Incentives” 
 
Dear Ms. Nguyen: 
 
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) is please to submit this letter of interest for the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission’s (MTC) Safe Routes to School Creative Grant for the STA’s “Safe Routes to School 
(SR2S) Education and Encouragement School Route Maps, Marketing Materials, and Student Engagement 
Incentives” project.  The STA is requesting $500,000 to: 

 Develop GIS-based suggested route to school maps by coding all streets for bicycle and pedestrian safety 
($200,000); and 

 Publish and circulate these suggested route to school maps as part of the STA SR2S Program’s marketing 
and safety education campaign to register students for walking school bus and bicycle train contests 
($100,000); and 

 Partner with Breathe California, the Lawrence Hall of Science, and the Solano Asthma Coalition to 
educate grades 3-12 students in SR2S environmental science & health issues and engage high school and 
middle school students to volunteer at SR2S events at their former elementary schools ($200,000); and 

 Target communities where school closures and school bus program cuts have increased travel distances to 
schools to achieve the maximum program and emission benefits. 

 
STA SR2S Program Background 
The STA has been a leader in SR2S Programs in the Bay Area by building a countywide program in partnership with every 
school district and city in Solano County.  In 2008, the STA’s SR2S Plan received a Northern California American Planning 
Association (NCAPA) Grassroots Initiative Award for our efforts to involve people from all levels of SR2S issues, including 
City Engineers, STA Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee members, City Council appointees, School Board 
appointees, and police department representatives.  Walking audits and public planning meetings helped define 29 school 
specific plans and countywide problems and solutions.  Since the plan’s adoption in February 2008, the STA has helped 
leverage local funding to obtain a total of $2.28 M in air district and federal funding grants for a variety of education, 
encouragement, enforcement, and engineering projects and activities. 
 
How is this project innovative and addresses one of more E’s of SR2S? 
Sustainable behavior change is the overarching goal of this mostly grant-funded SR2S Program.  After fiscal year 2011-12, 
the STA has not identified additional sources of funding other continuing to apply for additional state and federal grants.  To 
make sure that our current efforts and benefits do not disappear with our grant funding, the STA is dedicated to giving 
schools, local agencies, and volunteers the tools to continue providing SR2S Program resources after FY 2011-12. 
 
This project focuses on the Education and Encouragement E’s of the SR2S framework.  Using cutting-edge GIS modeling, 
streets coded for student walking and bicycle safety will help create the basis of Suggested Route to School Maps for each 
school.  In FY 2009-10, the STA has created 10 pilot maps using this technique and has commissioned an additional 5 to be 
completed by July 2010.  These maps elegantly display suggested routes to school, accurate to the side of the sidewalk and 
along specific crosswalks, noting specific hazards, locations of crossing guards & traffic signals, and the walking time from 
potential walking school bus meeting points.  The back of the maps will be a sign-up sheet for walking school buses and 

33

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



 

bicycle trains. Student groups forming busses will sign the sheet and get their parents to sign the sheet, providing contact 
information and if the parent plans to join the bus.  These maps will record the bus’s route and be on file at the school in case 
of emergencies.  Registered walking school buses will be able to compete for larger prizes, should the bus be seen walking to 
school on contest event days, which will be randomly organized throughout the school year.  This makes everyday a potential 
walk and bike to school prize day. 
 
Benefitting from MTC’s High School Internship Program over the summer of 2010, all of the remaining streets in Solano 
County will have been coded for student walking and bicycling safety.  Of the $200,000 requested, about $100,000 is 
estimated to be needed to design final maps for all of the remaining schools in Solano County by the end of Spring 2011 
(should this funding be available by February 2011). 
 
How does this project remove substantial barriers to implementation? 
Since “project concept planning” is not eligible for Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) program funding, 
walking audits and planning events are not part of this application.  However, the data collected as part of the mapping 
project can help build a countywide baseline of safety information to assist local agencies and schools with future project 
concept planning and holding future walking audits that can target safety issues revealed during the mapping process.  This 
will help remove a substantial barrier to identifying future student travel safety issues and assist future SR2S audits. 
 
The STA plans to partner with Breathe California of Sacramento and the Lawrence Hall of Sciences to educate students 
grades 3-12 about the environmental science and issues related to SR2S.  To take this partnership and outreach concept 
further, the STA will integrate these educational activities with outreach and volunteer opportunities for high school and 
middle school students who want to make a change in their community.  All SR2S events at schools require a number of 
volunteers (e.g., Bicycle Rodeos, Walk and Roll Contest events, Safety Assemblies).  School staff and Parent/Teacher 
Associations (PTAs) have often been unable to provide the needed number of volunteers to more successful events.  By 
recruiting middle school and high school students to volunteer at events at their former elementary schools, their numbers 
will help remove a substantial barrier to implementing more successful SR2S events. 
 
How will this project measurably reduce greenhouse gas emissions as well as yield co-benefits in reducing criteria 
pollutant emissions? 
In 2007 and 2009, the STA collected “National Safe Routes to School Student Arrival and Departure Tally Sheets” for 
schools participating in the STA’s SR2S planning process and subsequent programs.  Currently, about 53% of students are 
driven to school, 22% walk, 11% carpool, 10% bus, and 2% bike.  Not only has the STA established a baseline for 
comparison of our future SR2S program work, but there is also much more room for improvement through the combination 
of all four SR2S E’s and room for reducing GHG and criteria pollutant emissions.  The STA is currently in the process of 
collecting surveys conducting on May 25, 26, and 27 and plans to survey students in September 2010 near the beginning of 
the next school year. 
 
Prior to receiving Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA) grant 
funding, the STA performed an analysis of the number of students within a 1-mile radius of their schools.  Using FY 2008-09 
student enrollment addresses from the Solano County Office of Education, the STA was able to show that almost all 
elementary students in Solano County lived within one mile of their schools, making even the longest walking distance about 
20 minutes. 
 
However, since that analysis, several school districts in Solano County have closed schools and eliminated school bus 
programs, in some instances, tripling the distance to walk or bicycle to school.  For example, the Vallejo City Unified School 
District has closed and consolidated multiple elementary schools, middle schools, and high schools, effectively creating a 
situation where areas east of I-80 are now served by one middle school and one high school.  Dixon and Vacaville’s school 
districts have eliminated school bus programs while Fairfield and Vallejo districts are considering additional cuts.  The 
STA’s SR2S Program will target these expanded school boundary areas and areas without school bus programs to achieve 
the maximum amount of emission reductions. 
 
How will this project further best practices in the SR2S field, significantly adding to the knowledge base? 
Safe Routes to School maps have never been produced in such a rigorous manner.  Common suggested route to school maps 
created by public works engineers show all streets as being safe with multiple arrows pointing in all potentially safe walking 
directions.  This element of the project will further safe routes to school mapping practices. 

34



 

 
Partnerships are a typical element of successful SR2S programs.  Marin and Alameda Counties began their SR2S Programs 
by partnering with non-profits like TransForm and the Marin County Bicycle Coalition.  The STA’s partnerships with 
Breathe California, the Lawrence Hall of Science, and the Solano Asthma Coalition will reflect the current best practices in 
SR2S and build on those practices by expanding their work to recruit high school and middle school volunteers.  The Solano 
Asthma Coalition’s existing connections to school nurses, school district wellness coordinators, and area hospitals (e.g., 
Kaiser Permanente, Sutter Health) will extend the reach of the STA’s SR2S program’s message.  This element of the project 
will further the safe routes to school practices by not only partnering with public health advocates but also partnering with 
the students themselves. 
 
Air Districts typically prioritize projects that address areas of high particulate matter (PM) emissions.  Typical SR2S 
programs wait for schools to volunteer for the program, which is usually dependent on school principals who have the time to 
coordinate activities, or are fed up with the amount of congestion in front of their schools, or have experienced a recent 
student accident or fatality.  The STA’s SR2S Program has been and will continue to be proactive in our approach towards 
incorporating additional schools into the SR2S Program.  The STA’s SR2S Program will further SR2S best practices by 
reaching out to schools negatively affected by expanded school boundary areas and areas without school bus programs to 
achieve the maximum amount of emission reductions. 
 
How can this project be replicated at a larger scale? 
To replicate the STA’s efforts on a larger scale, the STA will provide GIS map training manuals, GIS mapping templates, 
sample RFPs and funding agreements to help other agencies extend their current grant funding by leveraging existing public 
agency GIS technology and partner agencies with similar missions. 
 
The STA has been a leader in the SR2S field with regards to replication.  In 2007, the STA was a presenter at the 1st National 
SRTS Conference at Dearborn, Michigan, sharing how the STA began and will sustain a countywide SR2S program with 
multiple partner agencies and stakeholders.  Recently, Sonoma County Transportation Authority contacted the STA 
requesting the RFP used to solicit consultants for the 2008 STA SR2S Plan. 
 
The STA has produced a SR2S GIS Mapping & Analysis Training Manual to help other agencies reproduce our street safety 
coding and mapping process.  With MTC’s SR2S Creative Grant funding, this manual will be extended to contain sample 
map templates and outreach materials for use by local agencies.  Copies of Requests for Proposals and Funding agreements 
between partner agencies and non-profits will also be made available as resources for other agencies.  For example, the STA 
partners with the Solano County Department of Public Health for Program Coordination of SR2S Education and 
Encouragement events, such as safety assemblies, bicycle rodeos, and walk n’ roll contests. 
 
How much grant funding is requested and how much local match funding is available? 
$281,000 in remaining air district and other grant funding is available for the STA’s SR2S program for FY 2010-11.  
Specifically, the STA will match this $500,000 with at least $65,000 in air district grants and TDA Article-3 funding, as this 
funding source is eligible for bicycle safety education.  These funds do not include the $942,000 in MTC SR2S Solano 
County funding for Cycle 1 SR2S projects and programs. 
 
Questions 
If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please contact myself at (707) 399-3211 or at sshelton@sta-snci.com.  
Example maps and other materials can be provided upon request. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sam Shelton 
Project Manager 
Solano Transportation Authority 

35



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

36



Agenda Item VIII.F 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 

 
DATE:  July 1, 2010 
TO:   STA Board 
FROM: Sara Woo, Associate Planner 
RE:  Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 Transportation Development Act (TDA) 

Article 3 Bicycle Projects 
 
 
Background: 
TDA funding is generated by a 1/4 cent tax on retail sales collected in California's 58 
counties. Two percent of the TDA funding generated, called TDA Article 3, is returned to 
each county from which it was generated for bicycle and pedestrian projects. The 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) administers this funding for each of the 
nine Bay Area counties with assistance from each of the county congestion management 
agencies (e.g., Solano Transportation Authority for Solano County). As part of the final 
approval of funds, the STA submits a Countywide Coordinated TDA Article 3 
application that includes TDA Article 3 applications for each of the projects. 
 
The TDA Article 3 funding is one of three primary bicycle and pedestrian fund sources 
for Solano County. The STA Board approved the following projects for TDA Article 3 
funding on May 12, 2010 which included $266,000 in TDA Article 3 funds for five 
priority projects: 

 
Discussion: 
MTC requires a resolution for projects that are approved for TDA Article 3 funds.  
Attachment A is a resolution that will satisfy this requirement by reiterating the STA 
Board’s May 12th approval. Upon approval by MTC, project sponsors will be eligible to 
claim a reimbursement in the amount specified for each project. The STA TAC approved 
the recommendation at their June 30, 2010 meeting.

FY 2008-09 TDA Article 3 Approved Projects 
Mode Agency Project Approved  

Funding 
Bike City of Dixon Vacaville-Dixon Bike Route (Phase 1): 

Adams Street 
$52,000 

Bike City of Dixon Bicycle Racks at City Facilities $2,000 

Bike City of Fairfield Linear Park Alternate Route: Nightingale 
Drive 

$29,000 

Bike Solano County Vacaville-Dixon Bike Route (Phase 5): 
Hawkins Road 

$112,000 

Bike/ 
Ped 

Solano Transportation 
Authority (STA) 

Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Program $71,000 

 Total Approved: $266,000 

37



Recommendation: 
Approve FY 2010-11 TDA Article 3 Resolution No. 2010-07
 

. 

Attachments: 
A. Resolution No. 2010-07 
B. TDA Article 3 Applications/Resolutions of Local Support from Project Sponsors  

38



ATTACHMENT A 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2010-
 

07 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
APPROVING THE SUBMITTAL OF THE COUNTYWIDE COORDINATED CLAIM 

TO THE METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION FOR THE 
ALLOCATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2010-11 TDA ARTICLE 3 PEDESTRIAN/BICYCLE 

PROJECT FUNDS TO CLAIMANTS IN SOLANO COUNY 
 

WHEREAS, Article 3 of the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Public Utilities Code 
(PUC) Section 99200 et seq

 

., authorizes the submission of claims to a regional transportation 
planning agency for the funding of projects exclusively for the benefit and/or use of pedestrians 
and bicyclists; and 

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), as the regional transportation 
planning agency for the San Francisco Bay region, has adopted MTC Resolution No. 875, 
Revised, which delineates procedures and criteria for submission of requests for the allocation of 
TDA Article 3 funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, MTC Resolution No. 875, Revised requires that requests from eligible claimants 
for the allocation of TDA Article 3 funds be submitted as part of a single, countywide 
coordinated claim, composed of certain required documents; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Solano Transportation Authority has undertaken a process in compliance with 
MTC Resolution No. 875, Revised for consideration of project proposals submitted by eligible 
claimants of TDA Article 3 funds in the County of Solano, and a prioritized list of TDA Article 3 
projects, included as Attachment A of this resolution, was developed as a result of this process; 
now, therefore, be it 
 
RESOLVED, that the Solano Transportation Authority approves the prioritized list of TDA 
Article 3 projects included as Attachment A to this resolution; and furthermore, be it 
 
RESOLVED, that the Solano Transportation Authority approves the submittal to MTC, of the 
County of Solano fiscal year 2010-11 TDA Article 3 countywide, coordinated claim, composed 
of the following required documents:   

A. Transmittal letter 

B. A certified copy of this resolution, including Attachment A;  

C. One copy of the governing body resolution, and required attachments, for 
each claimant whose project or projects are the subject of the coordinated 
claim;  

D. A description of the process for public and staff review of all proposed 
projects submitted by eligible claimants for prioritization and inclusion in the 
countywide, coordinated claim.   

 
 

39



 
 
 

 
Pete Sanchez, Chair  
Solano Transportation Authority 
 

I, Daryl K. Halls, the Solano Transportation Authority Executive Director, do hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing resolution was introduced, passed, and adopted by said 
Authority at a regular meeting thereof held this the day of July 14, 2010.  

 
 
 
Daryl K. Halls, Executive Director  
Solano Transportation Authority 
 
 

 
Passed by the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) Board on this 14th day of July, 2010 by the 
following vote: 
 
Ayes: ________ 
Nos: ________ 
Absent: ________ 
Abstain: ________ 
 
 
Attest: ______________________ 
 Johanna Masiclat 
 Clerk of the Board 
 

40



 

 
Attachment A 

 
 Short Title Description of Project TDA 

Article 3 
Amount 

1. City of Dixon Vacaville-Dixon Bicycle Route (Phase 1): Adams Street $52,000 
2. City of Dixon Bicycle Racks at City Facilities $2,000 
3. City of Fairfield Linear Park Alternate Route: Nightingale Drive* $29,000 
4. Solano County Vacaville-Dixon Bicycle Route (Phase 5): Hawkins Road $112,000 
5. STA Safe Routes to School (SR2S) $71,000 

6.   
7.   
8.   
9.   

10.   
11.   
12.   

 Totals $266,000 
 

41



42

swoo
Text Box
Attachment B



43



  

 Page 3 of 5 

Resolution No. ______________ 
Attachment A 

RE: REQUEST TO THE METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION FOR THE 
ALLOCATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2010-11 TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT 
ARTICLE 3 PEDESTRIAN/BICYCLE PROJECT FUNDING FOR THE NORTH ADAMS 
STREET BIKE LANE (PHASE 1 VACAVILLE-DIXON BIKE LANE) AND BIKE RACKS AT 
CITY FACILITIES 

Findings 
Page 1 of 1 

1. That the City of Dixon is not legally impeded from submitting a request to the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission for the allocation of Transportation Development Act (TDA) Article 3 
funds, nor is the City of Dixon legally impeded from undertaking the project(s) described in 
“Attachment B” of this resolution.   

2. That the City of Dixon has committed adequate staffing resources to complete the project(s) 
described in Attachment B. 

3. A review of the project(s) described in Attachment B has resulted in the consideration of all pertinent 
matters, including those related to environmental and right-of-way permits and clearances, attendant 
to the successful completion of the project(s).   

4. Issues attendant to securing environmental and right-of-way permits and clearances for the projects 
described in Attachment B have been reviewed and will be concluded in a manner and on a schedule 
that will not jeopardize the deadline for the use of the TDA funds being requested. 

5. That the project(s) described in Attachment B comply with the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code Sections 21000 et seq.).   

6. That as portrayed in the budgetary description(s) of the project(s) in Attachment B, the sources of 
funding other than TDA are assured and adequate for completion of the project(s).   

7. That the project(s) described in Attachment B are for capital construction and/or design engineering; 
and/or for the maintenance of a Class I bikeway which is closed to motorized traffic; and/or for the 
purposes of restriping Class II bicycle lanes; and/or for the development or support of a bicycle safety 
education program; and/or for the development of a comprehensive bicycle and/or pedestrian 
facilities plan, and an allocation of TDA Article 3 funding for such a plan has not been received by 
the City of Dixon within the prior five fiscal years.   

8. That the project(s) described in Attachment B which are bicycle projects have been included in a 
detailed bicycle circulation element included in an adopted general plan, or included in an adopted 
comprehensive bikeway plan (such as outlined in Section 2377 of the California Bikeways Act, 
Streets and Highways Code section 2370 et seq.).  

9. That any project described in Attachment B that is a “Class I Bikeway,” meets the mandatory 
minimum safety design criteria published in Chapter 1000 of the California Highway Design 
Manual.  

10. That the project(s) described in Attachment B are ready to commence implementation during the 
fiscal year of the requested allocation.   

11. That the City of Dixon agrees to maintain, or provide for the maintenance of, the project(s) and 
facilities described in Attachment B, for the benefit of and use by the public. 

44

jkoster
Typewritten Text
10-095



  

 Page 4 of 5 

Resolution No. _________________ 
Attachment B 

page 1 of 2 

TDA Article 3 Project Application Form 

Fiscal Year of this Claim: 2010-11 Applicant:  City of Dixon  
Contact person:  Janet Koster  
Mailing Address:  600 East A Street   
E-Mail Address:  jkoster@ci.dixon.ca.us Telephone: 707-678-7031 x 304  
Secondary Contact (in event primary not available)  Jason Riley  
E-Mail Address:  jriley@ci.dixon.ca.us Telephone: 707-678-7031 x 311  
Short Title Description of Project: North Adams Street Bike Lane  
Amount of claim: $52,000  
Functional Description of Project: 
Vacaville – Dixon Bike Lane Phase 1:  North Adams Street Bike Lane between West A Street and West H Streets.  
  
  
Financial Plan: 
List the project elements for which TDA funding is being requested (e.g., planning, environmental, engineering, right-of-way, 
construction, inspection, contingency, audit). Use the table below to show the project budget. Include prior and proposed future 
funding of the project. If the project is a segment of a larger project, include prior and proposed funding sources for the other 
segments. 
 
Project Elements:  Engineering/Design-  $4,000; Construction - $44,000; Inspection/Construction Management- $4,000.  
  
 

Funding Source All Prior FYs Application FY Next FY Following FYs Totals 
TDA Article 3  $52,000   $52,000 
list all other sources:      
1.       
2.       
3.      
4.       

Totals  $52,000   $52,000 
 

Project Eligibility:   YES?/NO? 
A. Has the project been approved by the claimant's governing body?  (If "NO," provide the approximate date approval is 

anticipated). 
YES 

B. Has this project previously received TDA Article 3 funding?  If "YES," provide an explanation on a separate page. NO 
C. For "bikeways," does the project meet Caltrans minimum safety design criteria pursuant to Chapter 1000 of the California 

Highway Design Manual? (Available on the internet via: http://www.dot.ca.gov). 
YES 

D. Has the project been reviewed by a Bicycle Advisory Committee? (If "NO," provide an explanation). YES 
E. Has the public availability of the environmental compliance documentation for the project (pursuant to CEQA) been 

evidenced by the dated stamping of the document by the county clerk or county recorder?  (required only for projects that 
include construction). 

YES 

F. Will the project be completed before the allocation expires?  Enter the anticipated completion date of project (month and 
year)   June 30, 2011  

YES 

 
 

45

jkoster
Typewritten Text
10-095



  

 Page 5 of 5 

Resolution No. _________________ 
Attachment B 

page 2 of 2 

TDA Article 3 Project Application Form 

Fiscal Year of this Claim: 2010-11 Applicant:  City of Dixon  
Contact person:  Janet Koster  
Mailing Address:  600 East A Street   
E-Mail Address:  jkoster@ci.dixon.ca.us Telephone: 707-678-7031 x 304  
Secondary Contact (in event primary not available)  Jason Riley  
E-Mail Address:  jriley@ci.dixon.ca.us Telephone: 707-678-7031 x 311  
Short Title Description of Project: Bike Racks at City Facilities  
Amount of claim: $2,000  
Functional Description of Project: 
Purchase and installation of bicycle racks at existing City facilities such as City Hall, Police Department Building, and Market Lane Park and 
Ride Lot.  
Financial Plan: 
List the project elements for which TDA funding is being requested (e.g., planning, environmental, engineering, right-of-way, 
construction, inspection, contingency, audit). Use the table below to show the project budget. Include prior and proposed future 
funding of the project. If the project is a segment of a larger project, include prior and proposed funding sources for the other 
segments. 
 
Project Elements:  Purchase and install racks.  
  
 

Funding Source All Prior FYs Application FY Next FY Following FYs Totals 
TDA Article 3  $2,000   $2,000 
list all other sources:      
1.       
2.       
3.      
4.       

Totals  $2,000   $2,000 
 

Project Eligibility:   YES?/NO? 
A. Has the project been approved by the claimant's governing body?  (If "NO," provide the approximate date approval is 

anticipated). 
YES 

B. Has this project previously received TDA Article 3 funding?  If "YES," provide an explanation on a separate page. NO 
C. For "bikeways," does the project meet Caltrans minimum safety design criteria pursuant to Chapter 1000 of the California 

Highway Design Manual? (Available on the internet via: http://www.dot.ca.gov). 
YES 

D. Has the project been reviewed by a Bicycle Advisory Committee? (If "NO," provide an explanation). YES 
E. Has the public availability of the environmental compliance documentation for the project (pursuant to CEQA) been 

evidenced by the dated stamping of the document by the county clerk or county recorder?  (required only for projects that 
include construction). 

YES 

F. Will the project be completed before the allocation expires?  Enter the anticipated completion date of project (month and 
year)   June 30, 2011  

YES 

G. Have provisions been made by the claimant to maintain the project or facility, or has the claimant arranged for such 
maintenance by another agency?  (If an agency other than the Claimant is to maintain the facility provide its name:  
 ) 

YES 

 

46

jkoster
Typewritten Text
10-095



47



48



49



50



Agenda Item VIII.G 
July 14, 2010 

  
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  July 1, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Sara Woo, Associate Planner 
RE: Solano Bicycle and Pedestrian Project Funding Amendment 
 
 
Background: 
On May 12, 2010, the STA Board approved the recommendation for Cycle 1 (Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2010-11 and FY 2011-12) bicycle and pedestrian funds for Solano Countywide 
Bicycle Priority Projects and Pedestrian Priority Projects. The funding strategy for 
programming Cycle 1 bike funding was to fully fund as many priority bicycle and 
pedestrian projects as possible and accommodate longer-term projects by getting them 
shelf-ready for future funding cycles.  
 
Since the Board approval of these projects and funding amounts, administrative 
amendments have been identified through the programming process. 
 
Discussion: 
Attachment A provides a summary of the bicycle and pedestrian project funding 
amendments that have taken place as part of the programming process since the May 12, 
2010 Board action, including this report’s proposed amendment. The changes include the 
following: 

 
City of Vacaville Ulatis Creek Bicycle and Pedestrian Path: the amendment was 
to reduce the funding amount of $915,000 by $105,000 to a new amount of 
$810,000 (adopted by STA Board on June 9, 2010); and reprogram $105,000 to 
Solano Vacaville-Dixon Bicycle Route project in Cycle 2. As the project 
continued to progress, the bids for construction were lower than expected. 
 
City of Dixon West B Street Bicycle and Pedestrian Undercrossing: this project 
was originally programmed for $1,220,000 in Cycle 1 Eastern Solano CMAQ 
(ECMAQ) funds, deferred to Cycle 2 to be spent on construction. During the 
programming process, it was noted by MTC staff that Cycle 1 funding could not 
be deferred to Cycle 2. Therefore, the $1,220,000 in ECMAQ must be re-
programmed to a project(s) that can spend the money in Cycle 1. STA will 
continue to maintain the full commitment of $1,220,000 to the project through the 
Cycle 2 funding strategy. 
 
City of Fairfield Linear Park Alternate Route – Nightingale Drive: the 
amendment is to reprogram $29,000 of TDA Article 3 in the PE phase to the 
construction phase of the project. The local match funding for federal fund 
sources is required to be programmed in the same project phase as the federal 

51



funds which it is matching. The City of Fairfield’s Nightingale Drive project had 
to be adjusted to meet this requirement since the local match was placed in a 
separate phase. 

 
The recommendation was approved by the STA TAC at their June 30, 2010 meeting. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
No impact to the STA general fund.  The $29,000 from the recommended amendment of 
the City of Fairfield’s Linear Park Alternate Route project will be reprogrammed from 
the design phase to the construction phase. The source of the funding is Transportation 
Development Act (TDA) Article 3 and the federal Congestion Mitigation Air Quality 
(CMAQ) Improvement Program.   
 
Recommendation:  
Amend the City of Fairfield’s Linear Park Alternate Route Nightingale Drive project by 
reprogramming $29,000 of TDA Article 3 funds from preliminary engineering (PE) to 
the construction phase. 
 
Attachments:  

A. Cycle 1 Bicycle and Pedestrian Project Funding Summary 

52



Attachment A

Mode

Bike 
(120 
pts. 

max)

Ped 
(132 
pts. 

max) Sponsor Project

Env/ 
Design 

Cost

ROW/ 
Construction 

Cost
Total Project 

Cost Status

TDA Bike Share 
($266k FY 10-11; 
$266k FY 11-12)

CMAQ: MTC 
Regional Bike or 

TLC Program ECMAQ Local Match

Total STA Staff 
Recommended 

Funding Notes
Available Funding: $532,000 $2,312,000 $2,340,000 $900,000 $5,184,000 

Bike/ 
Ped 81 75 Vacaville

Ulatis Creek Bicycle/Pedestrian 
Class I Path (Phase I) - Ulatis Drive 
to Leisure Town Road $61,000 $854,000 $915,000

$61,000 needed for Env/Design. 
Environmental clearance expected October 
2010. Construction-Ready by Spring 2011. $0 $0 $810,000 $0.00 $810,000

FY2010-11; local 
match needed

Bike/ 
Ped 78 78 STA SR2S Program Projects N/A N/A $120,000

Projects TBD; Note: The amount of 
$142,000 is the local match needed to 
leverage $1,000,000 MTC SR2S grant $71,000 $0 $0 $0.00 $71,000

$35.5k FY2010-
11; $35.5k 
FY2011-12

Bike 77 N/A Dixon

Vacaville-Dixon Bike Route (Phase 
I) - Adams Street: SR 113 to Porter 
Road $6,000 $46,000 $52,000

$52,000 needed to complete Env/Design and 
Construction. Environmentally cleared. $52,000 $0 $0 $0.00 $52,000

FY2010-11; Fully 
funded

Bike/ 
Ped 77 77 Suisun City Grizzly Island Trail (Class I) $300,000 $2,100,000 $2,400,000

$300,000 needed for Env/Design. 
Environmental clearance expected September 
2010. If selected for funding in Cycle I, 
anticipated to be construction-ready by 
Summer 2011. $0 $814,000 $0 $900,000 $814,000

FY 2011-12; 
Regional Bike; 
eligible for approx. 
$300,000 SR2S

Bike 73 N/A Dixon Bicycle Racks at City Facilities $0 $2,000 $2,000 Construction-Ready. $2,000 $0 $0 $0.00 $2,000
FY2010-11; Fully 
funded

Bike 67 N/A
Solano 
County

Vacaville-Dixon Bike Route (Class 
II) - Hawkins Road: Pitt School 
Road to Leisure Town Road $450,000 $3,800,000 $4,250,000

$300,000 needed for prelim. Env/Design. 
$1M needed for env/design and construction 
of first phase. $112,000 $0 $250,000 $0.00 $362,000

Eligible for 
YSAQMD CAF 
and ECMAQ

Bike 66 N/A Fairfield

Fairfield Linear Park Alternate Route 
(CII or CIII) - Nightingale Drive: 
Dover Avenue to Air Base Pkwy $45,000 $250,000 $250,000 $45,000 needed for Env/Design $29,000 $221,000 $0 $0.00 $250,000

FY 2010-11; 
Regional Bike 
construction phase 
funded

Ped N/A 99 Vallejo
Downtown Vallejo Renaissance 
Project (TLC/PDA eligible) $0 $7,000,000 $7,000,000

$7,000,000 needed to complete construction. 
Environmentally cleared. Construction-
ready. $0.00 $1,277,000 $0.00 $0.00 $1,277,000

FY2010-11; TLC; 
local match needed

Ped N/A 97 Dixon
West B Street Pedestrian 
Undercrossing $0 $6,100,000 $6,100,000

$6.1 million needed to complete 
construction. Enviromentally cleared as part 
of the Dixon Transportation Center CEQA 
and NEPA docs. Design completion 
anticipated July 2010. Construction-ready by 
July 2010. $195,000 $0.00 $1,175,000 $0.00 $1,370,000

Contruction 
cannot be phased; 
Funding proposed 
for deferment to 
Cycle 2

Bike/ 
Ped 78 78 STA SR2S Program Projects N/A N/A $120,000

Projects TBD; Note: The amount of 
$142,000 is the local match needed to 
leverage $1,000,000 MTC SR2S grant $71,000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $71,000

$35.5k FY2010-
11; $35.5k 
FY2011-12

Cost Assumptions Total: $532,000 $2,312,000 $2,235,000 $5,079,000
2010 $'s

Remainder: $0.00 $0.00 $105,000.00

Cycle 1 Bicycle and Pedestrian Project Funding Summary

$105,000 ECMAQ will be deferred to Cycle 2 for Solano Vacaville-Dixon 
Bike Route Project; $1,175k ECMAQ will be deferred to Cycle 2 for 
Dixon West B Street BikePed Undercrossing

53



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

54



Agenda Item VIII.H 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  July 1, 2010 
TO:   STA Board 
FROM: Sara Woo, Associate Planner 
RE:  Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) Member Appointment 
 
 
Background: 
The STA Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) is responsible for providing funding and 
policy recommendations to the STA Board on bicycle related issues and for monitoring, 
implementing, and updating the Countywide Bicycle Plan.   
 
Membership consists of representatives from each of the seven (7) cities, the County, and 
a member-at-large appointment by the STA Board. The representatives are nominated 
either by their respective organization’s mayor or city council before being considered by 
the STA Board for a formal appointment.  Member-at-large positions are appointed 
directly by the STA Board. Attachment A shows the BAC membership including the 
current nomination and terms. 
 
Discussion:  
The City of Fairfield has nominated David Pyle to continue to participate as its 
representative on the STA BAC.  A letter from the mayor confirming this nomination is 
shown in Attachment B. 
 
Upon approval by the STA Board, this applicant will be appointed for a three-year term 
(from July 14, 2010 through July 14, 2013). The recommendation was approved by the 
STA TAC at their June 30, 2010 meeting. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Appoint David Pyle as City of Fairfield’s representative to the STA Bicycle Advisory 
Committee for a three-year term. 
 
Attachments:  

A. STA Bicycle Advisory Committee Membership/Terms 
B. City of Fairfield Nomination Letter 
C. Nomination Form for David Pyle 

55



STA Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) 
Membership Terms 

 
 
 
 
 

* Nominated for Appointment or Reappointment 
**Resignation submitted on July 3, 2010 
 

Jurisdiction Member Term Expires 
Member-at-Large Barbara Wood February 10, 2013 

Benicia J.B. Davis April 14, 2013** 

Dixon Jim Fisk April 14, 2013 

Fairfield David Pyle July 14, 2013* 

Suisun City Jane Day February 14, 2013 

Rio Vista Larry Mork February 14, 2013 

Vacaville Ray Posey February 14, 2013 

Vallejo Mick Weninger December 10, 2010 

Solano County Michael Segala February 14, 2013 

56



57

swoo
Text Box
Attachment B

swoo
Rectangle

swoo
Rectangle



58

swoo
Text Box
Attachment C

swoo
Rectangle

swoo
Rectangle

swoo
Rectangle



Agenda Item VIII.I 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  July 1, 2010 
TO:   STA Board 
FROM: Sara Woo, Associate Planner 
RE:  Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) Member Appointment 
 
 
Background: 
The Solano Transportation Authority's (STA) Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) 
membership currently has vacant positions. The Committee is responsible for providing 
funding and policy recommendations to the STA Board on pedestrian related issues for 
monitoring, implementing, and updating the Countywide Pedestrian Plan. 
 
Membership consists of representatives from a city, agency, and/or advocacy group, as 
well as a member-at-large. The representatives are nominated either by their respective 
organization’s mayor or city council before being considered by the STA Board for a 
formal appointment. Member-at-large positions are appointed directly by the STA Board. 
The current STA PAC membership and terms are detailed in Attachment A. 
 
Discussion:  
The City of Dixon has nominated Stephen Sikes to continue to participate as its 
representative on the STA PAC.  A letter from the mayor confirming this appointment is 
shown in Attachment B. 
 
Upon approval by the STA Board, this applicant will be appointed for a three-year term 
(from July 14, 2010 through July 14, 2013). 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Appoint Stephen Sikes as City of Dixon’s representative to the STA Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee for a three-year term. 
 
Attachments:  

A. STA Pedestrian Advisory Committee Membership/Terms 
B. City of Dixon Nomination Letter 

59



Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) 
Membership Terms 

 
 
 
 
 

*Nominated for Appointment or Reappointment 

Jurisdiction Member Term Expires 
Member-at-Large Allan Deal February 10, 2013 
Benicia Carol Day December 10, 2010 
Dixon Stephen Sikes July 14, 2013* 
Fairfield Betty Livingston April 14, 2013 
Rio Vista Larry Mork February 10, 2013 
Solano County Thomas Kiernan April 14, 2013 
Suisun City Mike Hudson December 10, 2010 
Vacaville Joel Brick June 9, 2013 
Vallejo Lynne Williams February 10, 2013 
Other Agency PAC Representation:   
Tri City and County Cooperative Planning 
Group 

Brian Travis December 9, 2011 

Solano Land Trust Frank Morris February 10, 2013 
San Francisco Bay Trail Program Maureen Gaffney December 10, 2010 
Bay Area Ridge Trail Council VACANT VACANT 
Solano County Agriculture Commission VACANT VACANT 
Solano Community College VACANT VACANT 

60



61

swoo
Text Box
Attachment B

swoo
Rectangle



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

62



Agenda Item VIII.J 
July 14, 2010 

  
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  July 1, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Sara Woo, Associate Planner 
RE: I-780 Overcrossing Dedication 
 
 
Background: 
The City of Benicia is currently constructing the I-780 Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Overcrossing Project which connects to the Benicia State Recreation Area. This project 
was identified as a priority project by the Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) and the 
STA through local planning efforts and coordination with the City of Benicia. The project 
serves to complete a bicycle transportation gap, while improving bicycle and pedestrian 
travel safety between the cities of Benicia and Vallejo. 
 
Discussion: 
At the April 21, 2010 BAC meeting, the advisory committee members recommended that 
STA work with City of Benicia to possibly dedicate the bridge in honor of a past BAC 
member, Austin Howard Gibbon, who originally helped develop the vision for the 
project. If City of Benicia staff is able to move forward with a local action to implement 
this, STA supports the BAC’s recommendation.  
 
Mr. Gibbon served on the BAC throughout the 1990’s.  He was an advocate for the safe 
connectivity between downtown Benicia and the northwestern, more residential part, 
particularly for school children.  While a member of the BAC, Mr. Gibbon and his BAC 
colleagues worked to address the safety needs of bicyclists and pedestrians along the 
narrow overcrossing over I-780. The 0.1 mile length of the overcrossing’s endpoints 
include a freeway onramp and off-ramp for I-780, with high vehicle speeds with little  
room for both bicyclist/pedestrian and vehicular traffic to safely travel simultaneously. 
 
Through his early advocacy efforts on the project, the City of Benicia and the STA 
Bicycle Advisory Committee have since made the I-780 safety improvements a priority. 
The City of Benicia expects to have the project completed by the end of summer.    
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation:  
Support the City of Benicia nomination to dedicate the Benicia I-780 Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Overcrossing in the name of “Austin Howard Gibbon.” 

63



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

64



Agenda Item VIII.K 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  July 8, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Robert Macaulay, Director of Planning 
RE: Countywide Bicycle Plan Project List Amendment: Dixon West B Street 

Undercrossing Project 
 
 
Background: 
The Solano Bicycle Master Plan project list and the Solano Pedestrian Master Plan 
project lists were adopted by the STA Board on May 12, 2010, after six months of 
extensive development work.  During the subsequent discussion of funding priorities, it 
was noted that the West B Street Undercrossing project in the City of Dixon will carry 
both pedestrian and bicycle traffic, but that it is only listed as a project in the Pedestrian 
Master Plan. 
 
Discussion: 
The West B Street railroad crossing is an existing at-grade crossing of the Union Pacific 
railroad tracks in downtown Dixon.  It receives substantial use by students traveling to 
nearby elementary and middle school campuses.  The at-grade crossing is proposed for 
replacement with a grade-separated undercrossing, which can also serve as platform 
access for the future Dixon rail station. 
 
The undercrossing project is only listed as a project in the Solano Pedestrian Master Plan.  
As such, it is only eligible for funding from pedestrian-focused sources.  However, the 
STA BAC reviewed the project and also recommended that the project be included in the 
Countywide Bicycle Plan.  The recommendation stemmed from the crossing carrying a 
number of bicycle riders, particularly school children. The West B Street Undercrossing 
project would be eligible for a larger number of fund sources by including this project in 
the Countywide Bicycle Plan.  The Countywide Bicycle Plan project list is included as 
Attachment A. 
 
At its meeting of June 30, 2010, the STA Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 
considered this item.  The TAC voted to recommend that the STA Board amend the 
Solano Bicycle Plan Project List to include the City of Dixon West B Street 
Undercrossing. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None.  Listing the West B Street undercrossing as a bicycle project will not impact the 
current prioritized fund list for either pedestrian or bicycle projects, though it may impact 
future funding decisions. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve an amendment to the Solano Bicycle Plan Project List which will include the 
City of Dixon West B Street Undercrossing as shown in Attachment A. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Bicycle Plan Projects List 
 65



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

66



ATTACHMENT A 
BICYCLE PLAN PROJECTS LIST 

(Last Adopted by STA Board on March 15, 2010) 
 

ID Agency Project/Segment From/To Description Project Status 
      

1.  Benicia East West Corridor 
Bicycle Connection: 
Military East Street/ 
East L Street/Adams 
Street – Priority #1 

Park Road to 
First Street 

Plan, design, and construct class II bike lanes and/or Bicycle 
Boulevard/sharrows in the East L Street/Military 
East/Adams Street corridor from Park Road to First Street to 
improve safety for cyclists entering the City from the 
Benicia Bridge. 
 

Planned 

2.  Benicia Park Road/Industrial 
Way Bike Route – 
Priority #2 

Benicia 
Bridge 
Bikeway to 
Lake 
Herman 
Road 

Phase I: Construct Class III Bike Route on Park Road from 
the Benicia Bridge Bikeway to Industrial Way. 
 
Phase II: Construct Class III Bike Route on Industrial Way 
from Park Road to Lake Herman Road. 

Planned 

3.  Benicia East H Street Bicycle 
Connection to 
Benicia Historic 
Arsenal District – 
Priority #3 

Second 
Street to 
Lower 
Arsenal 

Plan, design, and install a Class III facility on East H Street 
from East Second Street to East Sixth Street, then to and 
along either East J Street or East K Street, and then into the 
Lower Arsenal as a Class I facility to Jackson Street. This 
project would improve overall accessibility of residents and 
visitors to the Arsenal District (as would a future route 
extending from East H Street directly into the Lower 
Arsenal). 

Planned 

67



ID Agency Project/Segment From/To Description Project Status 
      

4.  Benicia Lake Herman Road Industrial 
Way to 
Benicia City 
Limit 

Construct a class II bicycle lane on Lake Herman Road from 
Industrial Way to the Benicia City Limit in both directions.  
Note: This project is developer funded 

Planned 

5.  Benicia Columbus Parkway Benicia 
Road to 
Rose Drive 

0.2 mile Class II bicycle lane on Columbus Parkway from 
Benicia Road to Rose Drive in both directions 
Note: This project is developer funded 

Planned 

6.  Dixon Parkway Blvd – 
Priority #1* 

Valley Glen  
Rd to Pitt 
School Rd 

Construction of 0.5 mile Class II pathway as part of a 
roadway overcrossing extending Parkway Boulevard from 
Valley Glen Road to Pitt School Road in both directions 

Planned 

7.  Dixon Vaca-Dixon Bike 
Route: North Adams 
Street – Priority #2 

SR 113 to 
Porter Road 
 
A Street to 
Pitt School 
Road 

Phase 1: Striping for a Class II pathway on Adams Street 
from SR 113 to Porter Road in both directions 
 
Phase 2: Road widening to add Class II path on Porter Road 
between A Street and Pitt School Road in both directions 

Planned 

8.  Dixon Bicycle Racks at City 
Facilities – Priority 
#3 

Various 
Locations 

Construction of bicycle racks, lockers, and other related 
amenities for bicyclists at City facilities  

Planned 

9.  Dixon  West B Street 
Bicycle and 
Pedestrian 
Undercrossing 

West B 
Street/Union 
Pacific 
Railroad 

Construction of a grade separated undercrossing of the 
Union Pacific Railroad tracks to replace the existing at-grade 
crossing at West B Street adjacent to the Multi-modal Center 
(B Street Bike and Pedestrian Under-Crossing Project). 

Planned 

10.  Dixon Pedrick Road 
Overcrossing (OC)* 

Pedrick Rd 
RR OC 

Provide a grade separated over crossing of the Union Pacific 
Railroad tracks at Pedrick Road (Pedrick Road Over-
Crossing Project).  Proposed Over-Crossing Project includes 
2 travel lanes in each direction plus Class I bike/ped facility. 

Planned 

68



ID Agency Project/Segment From/To Description Project Status 
      

11.  Fairfield Linear Park Path 
Alternative Route: 
Nightingale Drive – 
Priority #1 

Dover 
Avenue to 
Air Base 
Parkway 

Construction of 0.5 miles of Class II or Class III 
improvements on Nightingale Drive from Dover Avenue to 
Air Base Parkway Pedestrian Bridge (near Swan Way). The 
improvements would remain even if the Linear Park is 
extended.  This project also includes other project 
components such as: including enhancements to the existing 
Laurel Creek multiuse trail, signage, lighting, and signage 
north of Airbase Parkway 

Planned 

12.  Fairfield Specified North 
Connector 
Connections – 
Priority #2 

Projects 
TBD 

Construction of specified local connections to the STA 
North Connector project (projects to be determined) 

Planned 

13.  Fairfield* 
 

Linear Park Path Dover 
Avenue to 
Cement Hill 
Road 

Complete a Class I bicycle/pedestrian pathway from Solano 
Community College to northeastern Fairfield.  The section 
between Solano Community College and Dover Avenue has 
been largely completed. 

Planned 

14.  Fairfield* 
 

Laurel & Ledgewood 
Creek Bike Paths 

Rockville 
Road to 
SR12 

Extension of the Ledgewood Creek multi-use pathway 
below Rockville Road to Highway 12 near east of Beck 
Avenue.    
Extension of the Laurel Creek trail south to Travis 
Boulevard with a Class 2 bicycle lane along Sunset Avenue 
south into Suisun City.   

Planned 

15.  Fairfield Red Top Road Lopes to 
McGary 

1 mile Class II bicycle lane on McGary Road from Lopes 
Road to McGary Road in both directions. 

Planned 

16.  Fairfield Dover Avenue Paradise 
Valley Drive 
to Fairfield 
Linear Park 

1.8 mile Class II bicycle lane on Dover Avenue from 
Paradise Valley Drive to Fairfield Linear Park in both 
directions. 

Planned 

69



ID Agency Project/Segment From/To Description Project Status 
      

17.  Fairfield Peabody Road  Vanden 
Road to Air 
Base 
Parkway 

1 mile Class I bicycle/pedestrian path on Peabody Road 
from Vanden Road to Airbase Parkway in both directions. 

Planned 

18.  Fairfield Walters Road Cement Hill 
Road to Air 
Base 
Parkway 

1.1 mile Class I bicycle/pedestrian path on Walters Road 
from Cement Hill Road to Air Base Parkway. 

Planned 

19.  Fairfield Walters Road  Air Base 
Parkway to 
East Tabor 
Ave 

0.5 Class II bicycle lane on Walters Road from Air Base 
Parkway to East Tabor Avenue in both directions. 

Planned 

20.  Rio Vista Rio Vista Loop: 
Church Road – 
Priority #1 

Airport Road 
to Harris 
Road (about 
50 feet past 
Harris Road) 

0.3 mile Class I off-street bicycle/pedestrian path on Church 
Road from Airport Road to Harris Road in both directions. 

Planned 

21.  Rio Vista Rio Vista Loop: 
Airport Road – 
Priority #2 

Saint Francis 
Way to 
Church Road 

1 mile Class I off-street bicycle/pedestrian path on Airport 
Road from Saint Francis Way to Church Road in both 
directions. 

Planned 

22.  Rio Vista Rio Vista Loop: 
Liberty Island Road – 
Priority #3 

Airport Road 
to 
Summerset 
Road 

1.2 mile Class I off-street bicycle/pedestrian path on Liberty 
Island Road from Airport Road to Summerset Road in both 
directions. 

Planned 

23.  Rio Vista* Sacramento River 
Waterfront 

First Street 
to SR 12 

Construct a Class I bike/ped path along the Sacramento 
River from First Street to SR 12. 
Phase 1 completed. 
 

5Planned 

70



ID Agency Project/Segment From/To Description Project Status 
      

24.  Rio Vista* Citywide Trail 
System 

Various 
Routes 

Construct a looped bicycle trail system linking the 
waterfront, downtown and major residential areas, as 
identified in the Rio Vista general plan and the Countywide 
Bicycle Master Plan. 

Planned 

25.  Rio Vista Rio Vista Loop: 
Gardiner Way 

SR12 to 
Saint Francis 
Way 

0.1 mile Class I off-street bicycle/pedestrian path on 
Gardiner Way from SR12 to Saint Francis Way in both 
directions. 

Planned 

26.  Rio Vista Rio Vista Loop: Saint 
Francis Way 

Gardiner 
Way to 
Airport Road 

0.9 mile Class I off-street bicycle/pedestrian path on Saint 
Francis Way from Gardiner Way to Airport Road in both 
directions. 

Planned 

27.  Rio Vista Rio Vista Loop: 
Summerset Road 

SR12 to 
Liberty 
Island Road 

400 feet Class II bicycle lane on Summerset Road from SR 
12 to Liberty Island Road in both directions. 

Planned 

28.  Rio Vista Rio Vista Loop: 
Unnamed road 

Saint Francis 
Way to 
River 
Road/SR84 

0.3 mile Class I off-street bicycle/pedestrian path on 
Unknown road parallel to Poppy House Rd (south) 

Planned 

29.  Rio Vista Suisun City to Rio 
Vista (Central County 
Bikeway): SR12 

Azevedo 
Road to Rio 
Vista Bridge 

3.2 mile Class I off-street bicycle/pedestrian path on SR12 
from Azevedo Road to the Rio Vista Bridge in both 
directions. 

Planned 

30.  Solano County* Dixon to Vacaville 
Bike Route: Hawkins 
Road – Priority #1 

Pitt School 
Road to 
Leisure 
Town Road 

Construct a Class 2 bike route connection from Vacaville to 
Dixon, along Hawkins Road and Pitt School Road.  
Three segments of the Pitt School Road portion of the 
project have been constructed. 
This project was also submitted by the City of Dixon. 

Planned 

71



ID Agency Project/Segment From/To Description Project Status 
      

31.  Solano County Lake Herman Road Benicia City 
Limit to 
Vallejo City 
Limit 

Class II bicycle lane on Lake Herman Road from Benicia 
City Limit to Vallejo City Limit in both directions. 
 
*This project is supported by the STA BAC as a priority 
long-term project 
 

Planned 

32.  Solano County Suisun Valley Road Mangels 
Boulevard to 
Mankas 
Corner Road 

4.4 miles of Class II bicycle lane on Suisun Valley Road 
from Mangels Boulevard to Mankas Corner Road in both 
directions. 
 
*This project is supported by the STA BAC as a priority 
long term project 
 

Planned 

33.  Solano County* Green Valley  Various 
locations 

Construct bicycle, pedestrian, and landscaping 
improvements throughout the middle Green Valley area. 

Planned 

34.  Solano County* Support addressing 
pedestrian and 
bicycle needs when 
Solano County 
bridges are replaced 

Various 
bridge 
locations 

Support bridge widening and handrails on bridge 
replacement projects to allow for safe bicycle and pedestrian 
use. 

Existing 
Program 

35.  Solano County* Support Cordelia 
Hills Sky Valley 
open space and trail 
project 

McGary 
Road to 
regional 
open space 

Connect open space to McGary Road or other segment of the 
regional bike network. 

Planned 

36.  Solano County Abernathy/Mankas 
Corner Route: 
Mankas Corner Road 

Suisun 
Valley Road 
to Abernathy 
Road 

2.1 mile class II bicycle lane on Mankas Corner Road from 
Suisun Valley Road to Abernathy Road in both directions. 

Planned 

72



ID Agency Project/Segment From/To Description Project Status 
      

37.  Solano County Abernathy/Mankas 
Corner Route: 
Abernathy Road 

Mankas 
Corner Road 
to Rockville 
Road 

1.9 mile class II bicycle lane on Abernathy Road from 
Mankas Corner Road to Rockville Road  in both directions. 

Planned 

38.  Solano County Abernathy/Mankas 
Corner Route: 
Abernathy Road 

Rockville 
Road to 
Fairfield 
Linear Park  

0.2 mile class II bicycle lane on Abernathy Road from 
Rockville Road to Fairfield Linear Park in both directions. 

Planned 

39.  Solano County Pleasants Valley 
Road 

Cherry Glen 
Road to 
Yolo County 
Line 

13 mile class II bicycle lane on Pleasants Valley Road from 
Cherry Glen Road to Yolo County Line in both directions. 

Planned 

40.  Solano County; 
STA 

SR 12: Bicycle-
Pedestrian 
Overcrossing 

Red Top 
Road to 
North 
Connector 

0.1 mile bike/ped overcrossing Planned 

41.  Solano County SR 12 Shoulder 
Improvements 

Rio Vista 
Bridge/Sac 
County Line 
to Walters 
Road 
(various 
locations) 

20 mile class II bicycle lane or class III bicycle route Planned 

42.  Solano County; 
Fairfield 

Lopes Road Second 
Street 
(Benicia) to 
Mangels 
Blvd 

9.8 mile Class III bicycle route on Lopes Road from Second 
Street in City of Benicia to Mangels Boulevard in both 
directions. 

Planned 

73



ID Agency Project/Segment From/To Description Project Status 
      

43.  Solano County Jameson Canyon 
Route – Alternative 
A: Class I 
improvements in 
Jameson Canyon 
Corridor 

Red Top 
Road to 
Napa County 
Line 

3 miles Class I bicycle-pedestrian path in Jameson Canyon 
Corridor from Red Top Road to Napa County Line. 
Note: the SR 12 Jameson Canyon Corridor Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Connections plan will consider collaborative 
alignment alternatives between Solano County and Napa 
County. 

Planned 

44.  Solano County Jameson Canyon 
Road Route – 
Alternative B: Class 
II Improvements 
(SR12) 

Red Top 
Road to 
Napa County 
Line 

Class II bicycle lanes included as part of SR 12 Jameson 
Canyon Road Widening Project 

Designed 

45.  Solano County Gibson Canyon 
Road/Dobbins Street 

East Monte 
Vista 
Avenue to 
Cantelow 
Road 

4.3  mile class II bicycle lane on Gibson Canyon 
Road/Dobbins Street from East Monte Vista to Cantelow 
Road in both directions. 

Planned 

46.  Solano County Cherry Glen Road Nelson Road 
to Pleasants 
Valley Road 

1.1 mile class II bicycle lane on Cherry Glen Road from 
Nelson Road to Pleasants Valley Road in both directions. 

Planned  

47.  Solano County Nelson Road Pena Adobe 
Road to 
Paradise 
Valley Road 

2.1 mile Class I bike/ped path on Nelson Road from Pena 
Adobe Road to Paradise Valley Road 

Planned 

48.  Solano County Leisure Town Road 
(Jepson Parkway) 

Hawkins 
Road to 
Vanden 
Road 

1.6 mile class I on Leisure Town Road from Hawkins Road 
to Vanden Road in both directions. 

Planned 

74



ID Agency Project/Segment From/To Description Project Status 
      

49.  Solano County; 
Caltrans; Vallejo 

SR 37 SR29/Mini 
Drive to 
Sonoma 
County Line 

2.1 mile class I bike/ped path or class II bicycle lane on SR 
37 from SR 29 to Sonoma County Line in both directions. 

Planned 

50.  Suisun City* Grizzly Island Trail – 
Priority #1 

Grizzly 
Island Road 
to Mariana 
Boulevard 

Construct a safe route to school path system from Crescent 
Elementary School to Crystal Middle School.  Path will 
include a Class I Path along the south side of SR 12 from 
Grizzly Island Road to Marina Boulevard, then south along 
Marina Boulevard to Driftwood Drive. 

Preliminary 
Design 

51.  Suisun City* Petersen Road Bike 
Path – Priority #2 

Walters 
Road to 
Suisun City 
sports 
Complex 

Construct bike lanes on Petersen Road from Walters Road to 
Suisun City Sports Complex. 
Part of Travis Air Force Base South Gate Project managed 
by Solano County.  This is related to the fully-funded Travis 
AFB Southgate Access improvements.  
This is a Route of Regional Significance. 

Planned 

52.  Suisun City* McCoy Creek 
Pedestrian/Bike Path 
– Priority #3 

Pintail Drive 
to Railroad 
Ave 

Construct a Class 1 pedestrian path from Pintail Drive to 
Railroad Avenue along McCoy Creek. 
This is a multiphase project. 

Planned 

53.  Suisun City* SR 12 
Pedestrian/Bike Gap 
Closure Path 

Marina Blvd 
and Capitol 
Corridor 
Train Station 

Construct Class I bike path segments on the north side of SR 
12 between Marina Boulevard and the Capitol Corridor train 
station on Main Street.  The path of travel is Complete.  The 
landscaping and lighting is in Preliminary Design.  This 
project will be complete in June 2010. 

Under 
Construction 

75



ID Agency Project/Segment From/To Description Project Status 
      

54.  Vacaville* Ulatis Creek Bike 
Facilities – Priority 
#1 

Phase I: 
Ulatis Dr to 
Leisure 
Town Rd; 
Phase II: 
Allison 
Drive to I-80 

Construct Class 1 off-street bike path, and Class 2 bike lanes 
at various locations along Ulatis Creek from Vaca Valley Rd 
to Leisure Town Rd.  Various segments are either Planned or 
Preliminary Design (depending upon location).  
 
Phase 1: Ulatis Drive to Leisure Town Road 
 
Phase 2: Allison Drive to I-80. 

Planned 

55.  Vacaville* Elmira Road Bike 
Path – Priority #2 

Leisure 
Town Road 
to Edwin Dr 

Construct Class 1 off-street bike path along the old SPRR 
right of way on the north side of Elmira Road from Leisure 
Town Road to Edwin Drive.  

Planned 

56.  Vacaville* Alamo Creek Bike 
Facilities 

TBD Construct Class 1 off-street bike path, and Class 2 bike lanes 
at various locations along Alamo Creek from No. Alamo Dr. 
to Leisure Town Rd. Various segments are either Planned or 
Preliminary Design (depending upon location). 

Planned 

57.  Vacaville Leisure Town Road 
(Jepson Parkway) 

I-80 to 
Ulatis Creek 

1.5 mile class I bike/ped path on Leisure Town Road from I-
80 to Ulatis Creek in both directions. 

Planned 

58.  Vacaville Leisure Town Road 
(Jepson Parkway) 

Ulatis Creek 
to Alamo 
Drive 

2 mile class I bike/ped path on Leisure Town Road from 
Ulatis Creek to Alamo Drive in both directions. 

Planned 

59.  Vallejo McGary Road – 
Priority #1 

Vallejo City 
Limit to 
Hiddenbrook
e Parkway 

0.25 mile class II bicycle lane on McGary Road from 
Vallejo City Limit to Hiddenbrooke Parkway in both 
directions. 

Planned 

60.  Vallejo Georgia Street 
Corridor Bicycle 
Improvements – 
Priority #2 

Columbus 
Parkway to 
Mare Island 
Way 

Identify alignment along the 3.4 mile Georgia Street corridor 
for class II bicycle lanes to provide a direct thru-route from 
Columbus Parkway to Mare Island Way in both directions. 

Planned 

76



ID Agency Project/Segment From/To Description Project Status 
      

61.  Vallejo SR 29 – Priority #3 Georgia 
Street to 
Carquinez 
Bridge 

2.1 mile of class II bicycle lane on SR 29 from Georgia 
Street to the Carquinez Bridge in both directions. 

Planned 

62.  Vallejo McGary Road Hiddenbrook
e Parkway 

Improve pavement condition on Hiddenbrooke Parkway 
leading to class II bicycle lane on McGary Road to Vallejo 
City Limit. 

Planned 

63.  Vallejo* Bay Trail Completion Various Complete segments of the Bay Trail. Planned 
64.  Vallejo* Blue Rock Springs 

Hans Park 
Pedestrian/Bike Path 

Undefined Construct a Class 1 bike/ped path along Blue Rock Springs 
Golf Course. 

Planned 

65.  Vallejo* Columbus Parkway 
Pedestrian/Bike Path 

I-80 to 
Georgia 
Street 

Construct a Class 1 bike/ped path along Columbus Pkwy 
from I-80 to Georgia Street in both directions. 

Planned 

66.  Vallejo Broadway Street Alameda 
Street to 
Napa County 
Line 

3.8 mile class II bicycle lane on Broadway Street from 
Alameda Street to Napa County line in both directions. 

Planned 

67.  Vallejo Sacramento Street Valle Vista 
to SR 37 

0.9 class II bicycle lane on Sacramento Street from Valle 
Vista Street to SR 37 in both directions.  

Planned 

68.  Vallejo Mare Island Way Vallejo 
Ferry 
Terminal to 
Curtola 
Parkway 

0.4 class II bicycle lane on Mare Island Way from Vallejo 
Ferry /Terminal to Curtola Parkway in both directions. 

Planned 

77



ID Agency Project/Segment From/To Description Project Status 
      

69.  Vallejo Solano Avenue Benicia 
Road to 
Sonoma 
Boulevard 

0.5 class III bicycle route on Solano Avenue from Benicia 
Road to Sonoma Boulevard in both directions. 

Planned 

70.  Vallejo Solano Avenue Mariposa 
Street to 
Sonoma 
Boulevard 

1 mile class II bicycle lane on Solano Avenue from 
Mariposa Street to Sonoma Boulevard in both directions. 

Planned 

71.  Vallejo Mariposa Street Redwood 
Boulevard to 
Solano Ave 

1.1 class II bicycle lane on Mariposa Street from Redwood 
Boulevard to Solano Avenue in both directions. 

Planned 

72.  Vallejo* I-780 Pedestrian/Bike 
Grade Separation 

I-780 OC Replace existing structure  Planned 

73.  Vallejo* Fairgrounds Drive 
Pedestrian/Bike Path 

Marine 
World 
Parkway to 
Redwood 
Street 

Construct a Class 1 bike/ped path along Fairgrounds Drive 
from Marine World Parkway to Redwood Street. 

Planned 

74.  Vallejo SR 29 Curtola 
Parkway to 
Maritime 
Academy 
Drive 

2.3 mile class II bicycle lane from SR 29 from Curtola 
Parkway to Maritime Academy Drive in both directions. 

Planned 

75.  Vallejo* Broadway to 4 lanes 
and Pedestrian/Bike 
Path 

Napa County 
Line to 
Curtola 
Parkway 

Construct a bike/ped path along Broadway Street. Planned 

78



ID Agency Project/Segment From/To Description Project Status 
      

76.  Vallejo* Mare Island 
Pedestrian & Bike 
System 

Various Construct a loop system of trails to connect the Mare Island 
Causeway with major employment and educational facilities 
on Mare Island. 

Planned 

77.  1STA* Solano Bike and Ped 
Wayfinding Signage 

Various 
Locations 
TBD 

Install common wayfinding signage on all existing and 
future segments of the Solano Bicycle network. 

Permitted and 
Ready to 
Construct 

78.  1STA* Safe Routes to 
School Projects and 
Programs 

Various 
Projects 

Identify, design and construct individual projects per the 
STA’s Safe Routes to Schools Plan.  Develop and 
implement enforcement, education and encouragement 
programs. 

5Planned 

79.  1STA* Safe Routes to 
Transit Plan 

Various 
Projects To 
Be Identified 

Conduct a study and develop a Solano Safe Routes to Transit 
Plan.  This plan would identify connections/gaps in 
accessibility for cyclists to transit. Develop and implement a 
subsequent Safe Routes to Transit Program. 

5Planned 

80.  STA North Connector 
Bicycle Connections 

North of I-
80 between 
SR 12 West 
to Abernathy 
Road and SR 
12 East 

Project involves roadway improvements needed to reduce 
congestion and improve mobility for local residents north of 
the Interstate 80 between State Route (SR) 12 West to 
Abernathy Road and SR 12 East. Improvements include 
bike/pedestrian path, streetscaping, landscaping, traffic 
calming and gateway signs.  

Planned 

81.  STA  Jepson Parkway 
Bicycle Segments 

Jepson 
Parkway in 
Fairfield, 
Suisun City, 
and 
Vacaville 

The Plan includes elements for: transit, with local and 
express bus and a future multi-modal rail station; bicycle and 
pedestrians, with a 10-foot wide bike path along most of the 
entire 12-mile length of the planned Parkway; a landscape 
element; a guide to transit-compatible land use and design, 
and roadway phasing and management. 

Planned 

 

79



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

80



Agenda Item VIII.L 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  July 6, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Sam Shelton, Project Manager 
RE:  Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 & FY 2011-12 Safe Routes to School (SR2S) 
  Programming Update 
 
 
Background: 
To date, the STA’s Safe Routes to School Program has obtained nearly $1M in grant funding for 
Fiscal Years (FY) 2009-10 and 2010-11.  The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) 
acted on December 16, 2009 to create a Bay Area Safe Routes to School funding program.  
Nearly $1M will come directly to the STA’s SR2S program for FY 2010-11 and FY 2011-12.  
Other grant funding sources, such as air district funding, Transportation Development Act 
funding, and federal air quality funding will also be considered for potential programming. 
 
Discussion: 
Final Workscope for FY 2010-11 and FY 2011-12 
On June 9, 2010, the STA Board recommended a total of $1.064 M for the STA’s SR2S Program 
for FY 2010-11 and FY 2011-12.  The next step to receive this funding is to request that MTC 
program these funds into their Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).  In general, the TIP 
is a listing of all federal transportation projects and programs that have received federal funding.  
On June 4, 2010, MTC staff requested a detailed description of the use of these funds 
(Attachment A) as part of the “final workscope”: 

1. Project Description (contact info, goals, objectives) 
2. Scope of Work & Schedule (tasks, products, completion dates, partners) 
3. Approach to Project Evaluation (surveys) 
4. Project Cost and Funding (budget table of tasks and funds showing local match) 
5. Schedule (milestones, grant obligations, contract advertisements, etc.) 

 
TAC Member $250,000 Minimum Project Concerns 
On May 26, 2010, the STA Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) discussed the engineering 
project programming limitations of MTC’s SR2S Congestion Management and Air Quality 
(CMAQ) funds.  As part of MTC’s Resolution 3925 for Cycle 1 Surface Transportation Program 
(STP)/CMAQ funds, project grants cannot be below a minimum grant size of $250,000 for 
Solano County ($500,000 for counties with populations over one million).  The objective of this 
requirement is to minimize the number of federal-aid projects, which place administrative 
burdens on project sponsors, MTC, Caltrans, and Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
staff. 
 
Individual TAC members were concerned that MTC’s $250,000 project minimum policy was too 
restrictive for smaller agencies and smaller SR2S projects.  The Benicia TAC member, with the 

81



concurrence of the TAC, asked STA staff to review the potential to program the MTC SR2S 
CMAQ funding in a more programmatic nature by lumping smaller projects together under a 
single countywide program for over $250,000.  The TAC voted to approve the staff 
recommendation with the exception of the City of Benicia TAC representative who voted no. 
 
STA staff discussed this proposal with MTC staff and received the following comments:  

1. MTC has already discussed the potential for this option with Caltrans and recommends 
against programming projects countywide with multiple agencies.  This approach does 
not alleviate the administrative burdens on MTC, Caltrans and FHWA. 

2. However, MTC does recommend programming projects that have multiple similar 
improvements within a single agency, such as programming various street rehabilitation 
segments as one project for at least $250,000. 

 
Based on MTC’s response, STA staff recommends pursuing SR2S planning for multiple segment 
SR2S projects for MTC’s Cycle 2 SR2S funding, should MTC make these funds available in FY 
2012-13.  This planning will also benefit other SR2S grants currently available, such as 
Caltrans’s State SR2S grant, which has a grant maximum of $450,000, and future Federal SR2S 
grants, which have had a grant maximum of $1 M. 
 
Swapping Program Funding for Planning Funding 
In addition to this request for further program details, MTC has given the STA some flexibility 
with the source of funding for this $642,000.  The primary source of this funding comes from the 
Federal CMAQ Program, which is eligible for education/ encouragement programs and 
bicycle/pedestrian projects.  However, MTC has made a limited amount of Surface 
Transportation Program (STP) funding available to be swapped with shares for CMAQ funding.  
STP funding can be spent on a wider variety of transportation projects and planning, including 
funding for additional school site walking audits and plans as well as engineering project design.  
This new flexibility being extended by MTC is the result of many Bay Area counties requesting 
planning funds to begin their SR2S Programs.  To date, only Marin, Alameda, and Solano 
County have countywide SR2S Programs. 
 
In 2007, the STA spent approximately $122,300 on the 2008 STA SR2S Plan using STP funding 
and local gas tax funds.  Consultant supported walking audits can cost between $2,000 to $5,000 
per school, which includes time spent on the walking audit, an evening planning event, a 
narrative of issues and solutions, maps of the area, and conceptual designs of engineering 
improvements.   The original vision of the STA SR2S planning process in 2007 was to hold 
seven “training audits” for city and school district staff at pilot schools in each Solano city, as 
selected by local SR2S task forces, so local agency staff could carry on additional SR2S 
planning.  City of Benicia Public Works staffs were able to create plans for the six remaining 
schools in their district.  However, not all of these training audits were attended by city and 
school district staff.  Having attended seven of these training audits, sixteen additional schools 
were added to the plan by STA staff leading additional SR2S planning.  56 schools across the 
county still require SR2S planning. 
 
STA staff recommends applying the same model of “training audits” in the fall of 2010 for 
seven additional schools countywide at a cost of $35,000.  As the STA’s SR2S Program has 
gained additional attention, these training audits may receive better attendance by local agency 
staff, allowing them to continue this work at more schools.  This will require swapping SR2S 
CMAQ funding for STP funding, meaning that the SR2S Program’s Education and 

82



Encouragement activities will be reduced by $35,000 over the next two years, which is 
approximately 2-3 schools. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
SR2S Program’s Education and Encouragement activities will be reduced by $35,000 over the 
next two years in exchange for funding $35,000 in SR2S planning activities. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the STA’s SR2S Program’s revised FY 2010-11 and FY 2011-12 Final Workscope to 
reduce the Education and Encouragement activities by $35,000 over the next two years in 
exchange for funding $35,000 in SR2S planning activities. 
 
Attachment: 

A. MTC Update on the County Safe Routes to School Program, 06-04-10 

83



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

84



 

TO: CMA Staff  June 4, 2010 

FR: Craig Goldblatt W. I.   

RE: Update on the County Safe Routes to School Program 

 
The congestion management agencies have been making significant headway in developing their 
Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Programs.  Based on a number of questions I have received and 
upcoming deadlines, I would like to bring to your attention a number of issues: 
 
1. CMAQ eligibility: FHWA has clarified that a number of SR2S activities are not eligible 
under the CMAQ program. A walking audit is considered to be a general planning activity, 
which is ineligible.  In response MTC is pleased to announce that there is now a limited amount 
of STP funds available that can be requested in place of CMAQ funds for SR2S planning 
activities only including walk audits. If interested, CMAs should request STP funding in their 
workscope submittal (#3 below) and the use of these funds for MTC consideration. Alternatively, 
CMAs may elect to incur costs immediately using their CMA Planning Program funds (STP), 
which is available to underwrite any planning activities needed to implement their Safe Routes to 
School programs. Caltrans authorization and a MTC contracts are already in place to access 
CMA Planning Program funds.   

Crossing guards and mobile radar trailers are also ineligible for CMAQ funding as they 
specifically address safety but do not result in changes to travel behavior, resulting in air quality 
improvement.  
 
2. School Rideshare Matching Software:  Some CMAs have expressed an interest in funding 
ridesharing programs which directly address students and school employees.  MTC offers tools 
through the regional 511 Rideshare program, which includes a matching system that could also 
be used for school pool matching.  If any of you are considering projects that include carpool 
matching, please get in touch with the 511 Rideshare program manager to discuss using this free 
tool first.  Contact Susan Heinrich at 510.817.5822 or sheinr@mtc.ca.gov. 
 
3. Submittal of Workscope to MTC: The next milestone for the SR2S Program is a submittal 
of a final workscope from each CMA no later than July 30, 2010 outlining its SR2S program 
concept.  Please include the following components: 

a. Project Description: Identify the project title, project manager(s), and contact information. State the 
specific goals and objectives of the SR2s program for the County as a result of the funding provided 
by MTC. 

b. Scope of Work and Schedule: Detail the actions/tasks, work products, estimated completion dates 
and key partners. 

85



c. Approach to Project Evaluation: Describe an evaluation approach for your program and include it 
as a line item in your budget. There is also a MTC budget for the Climate Initiatives Evaluation 
Program, which potentially could offset some of the SR2S program evaluation costs, which is to be 
determined. However, at a minimum direct data collection in the classrooms, schools, etc. would be 
covered by your budget. MTC is in the process of hiring consultants to develop study approaches to 
evaluate the overall Climate Initiatives Program.  Ultimately, this fall MTC will develop one set of 
evaluation metrics to be used for all nine SR2S programs, before projects/programs are implemented. 
An objective will be to use standard tools already being used in the field to the greatest extent 
possible. 

d. Project Cost and Funding: Describe the major resources needed for this project (e.g., staff, 
consultant, equipment, materials, design, construction, etc.) Provide a detailed budget that shows 
total project and cost breakdown for each major task/action, including a cost estimate for the project 
evaluation. Provide a funding table that identifies the amount of grant funds requested, amount of 
local match, and funding source for local match.  

e. Schedule:  Discuss the milestones, including grant obligations, contract advertisements, and 
implementation milestones. 
 

4. Availability of Funding and the TIP: MTC has already processed a generic 2009 TIP 
amendment which includes the County SR2S program in all nine counties for PE activities only.  
Final approval of this amendment will take place in mid-July.  This provides an earlier 
opportunity for a CMA wishing to begin implementing their programs using SR2S funds.  To do 
so, CMAs can apply to Caltrans for an E-76 (obligation) starting immediately; and after the TIP 
amendment is approved in July Caltrans may issue the E-76 allowing program costs to be 
incurred and reimbursed. Any obligations during the present FY 2009-10 (through September 30, 
2010) are dependent on obligation authority being available after April 30, 2010.  Please call me 
to discuss this further, if you are interested. 

The standard approach will be to rely on the development of the 2011 TIP which will be tailored 
to your program submittal. The 2011 TIP will be approved in mid-December 2010. For details 
please refer to the programming instructions and template which were previously provided to the 
CMAs for the CMA Block Grant and Safe Routes to School programs.  They are attached for 
your information. 
 
5. Caltrans Review:  Caltrans has noted that there have been a number of challenges 
administering and delivering federal and State SR2S projects, with respect to sub-grantees.  If 
applicable, Caltrans will be requiring and reviewing agreements between CMAs and subgrantees, 
clearly outlining implementation responsibilities as a condition of authorizing your fund requests. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at (510) 817-5837 or cgoldb@mtc.ca.gov. 
 
 
 
J:\PROJECT\Funding\T4 - New Act\T4 - STP-CMAQ\T4 New Act - Cycle Programming\T4 First Cycle\T4 Reauthorization Policy 
Development\CCI - Climate Change Initiatives\SRTS\SR2S update 5-28-10.doc 

86

mailto:cgoldb@mtc.ca.gov�


Agenda Item VIII.M 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 
 

 
DATE:  July 1, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Janet Adams, Deputy Executive Director/Director of Projects  
RE: Contract Amendment for Jepson Parkway Project Environmental 

Document and Preliminary Engineering 
 
 
Background: 
The Jepson Parkway Concept Plan was completed in 2000 by the Solano Transportation 
Authority (STA), the City of Fairfield, the City of Suisun City, the City of Vacaville and 
Solano County.  The Concept Plan provided a comprehensive, innovative, and coordinated 
strategy for developing a multi-modal corridor; linking land use and transportation to 
support the use of alternative travel modes, and protecting existing and future residential 
neighborhoods.  The 12-mile Jepson Parkway project is an I-80 Reliever Route that will 
improve intra-county mobility for Solano County residents.  The project upgrades a series 
of narrow local roads to provide a north-south travel route for residents as an alternative to 
I-80.  The plan proposes a continuous four-lane roadway from the State Route 12 / Walters 
Road intersection in Suisun City to the I-80 / Leisure Town Road interchange in Vacaville.  
The project also includes safety improvements, such as the provision for medians, traffic 
signals, shoulders, and separate bike lanes.  The Jepson Parkway project is divided into 10 
segments for design and construction purposes.  Five (5) construction projects within the 
Jepson Parkway project have been completed:  the extension of Leisure Town Road from 
Alamo to Vanden; the relocation of the Vanden/Peabody intersection; improvements to 
Leisure Town Road bridges; the Walters Road Widening (Suisun City); and the 
I-80/Leisure Town Road Interchange (Vacaville).   
 
The remaining segments of the Jepson Parkway Project are obtaining environmental 
clearance as one project.  Since 2002, STA has been working to prepare alignment plans 
for the four Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement (EIR/EIS) 
alternatives and to complete a range of environmental studies.  The overall estimated 
construction cost of the remaining segments is $185 million.  In March 2009 the STA 
Board certified the EIR for the Project.  Staff has continued to work with Caltrans, the 
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) lead, to obtain approval of the EIS. 
 
The NEPA-404 (Clean Water Act) process has been completed, with US Army Corps of 
Engineers (USACOE) concurrence in Alternative B as the preferred alternative and Least 
Environmentally Damaging, Practicable Alternative (LEDPA).  The Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA), US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and National Marine 
Fisheries (NMFS) have all agreed with this LEDPA decision. 

87



A $2.4 million allocation request for State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 
programmed funds for Plans, Specifications & Estimate (PS&E) was originally made to 
the California Transportation Commission (CTC) in June 2009.  One year later at the June 
2010 CTC meeting, this allocation request was approved pending approval of the state 
budget and availability of funds.  As part of the 2010 STIP re-programming activities, 
CTC staff has reprogrammed the $3.8 million Right-of-Way funds to Fiscal Year (FY) 
2010-11.  An allocation request for these funds will be made in FY 2010-11, but it remains 
unclear when these funds will actually be allocated.  In addition, the CTC staff recently 
recommended the $30 million in construction funding be moved out two additional years 
to FY 2014-15.   
 
Earlier this year, the STA and the County entered into a funding agreement, whereas, the 
County will contribute $1 million towards the Vanden Road project.  These funds will get 
the design started as the project awaits allocation of state funds.   
 
The City of Fairfield is considering the Train Station Specific Plan (TSSP), which affects 
the central portion of the Jepson Parkway Project area.  While improvements under this 
TSSP are likely years away due to the current economic conditions, it will be important to 
coordinate the projects.  The coordination needs to consider, access points along Leisure 
Town and Vanden Roads, to maintain a Level of Service (LOS) C, utility relocations and 
future utility needs, facility type with regard to urban or rural design and financial 
contribution of improvements above the approved Jepson Parkway Project.  In addition, 
the City of Vacaville has plans to modify the Leisure Town/Vanden intersection; therefore, 
coordination with these plans is also vital with regard to timing, LOS and staging.   
In coordination with the Jepson Parkway design activities, the STA intends to update the 
Jepson Parkway Concept Plan.  This update will provide a link from the 2000 Concept 
Plan to the current conditions; discuss implementation requirements and 
roles/responsibilities for implementation.  The Updated Concept Plan will also provide 
staging opportunities for the Class 1 bike facility, consider transit stops along the corridor, 
provide a landscape concept plan for the entire corridor, and provide the basis for a future 
corridor LOS operating agreement. 
 
The STA is planning to retain a Project Manager for this project as it get ready to move 
through design and Right-of-Way acquisition.  Action to select and hire the Project 
Manager is underway. 
 
Discussion: 
The EIR/EIS process has been exhaustive due to the need to study a wide range of 
alternatives and the proximity of environmentally sensitive habitats within the project area.  
The Section 7 (federal Endangered Species Act) consultation is nearly complete.  The 
Biological Assessment was prepared and submitted to USFWS and NMFS.  NMFS has 
concurred that the project is not likely to adversely affect listed species; USFWS has 
preliminarily concurred in the mitigation strategy, indicating that a No-Jeopardy Biological 
Opinion was received for the Project. 
 
The FEIS has been prepared and submitted to Caltrans for District and NEPA reviews.  In 
addition, the local Working Group, which is comprised of staff from STA, the City of 
Fairfield City of Vacaville and the County, is coordinating on the details of the first 
construction phase and will be working on updating the Concept Plan.  Additional 
engineering work is required to support his effort. 

88



PBS&J is the lead consultant for the delivery of the EIR/EIS.  They have done an excellent 
effort in seeking approval of the EIR and the concurrence of the preferred alternative by 
the federal agencies.  However, it has been determined that additional effort is needed to 
support the approval of the Final EIS, Record of Decision (ROD) and engineering support 
for the Working Group coordination.   
 
To complete this work, a contract amendment will be required.  PBS&J will require a 
contract amendment of $75,000.  Approval of this contract amendment will enable 
completion of the FEIR, ROD and engineering support for the Working Group 
coordination. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The contract amendment will be funded from a federal earmark and matching 20% local 
funds already allocated to the project.   
 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to amend the contract with PBS&J for $75,000 for the 
additional work required to complete the Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) and 
preliminary engineering. 
 
  

89



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

90



Agenda Item VIII.N 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 
 

 
DATE: June 30, 2010 
TO: STA Board 
FROM: Janet Adams, Deputy Executive Director/Director of Projects 
RE: Contract Amendment for the Mark Thomas & Co./Nolte Joint Venture for the             

Gordon Waterline Relocation Project 
 
 
Background: 
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA), in cooperation with the City of Vallejo, is the 
implementing agency for the Gordon Water Line (Rockville Road Water Main) Relocation 
Project.  The Gordon Water Line (Rockville Road Water Main) Relocation Project includes 
the relocation of the existing 24-inch Gordon Water Line from its current position within the 
State Route (SR) 12 and Interstate 80 (I-80) corridors.  Last month the STA Board awarded 
the construction contract for the Gordon Water Line (Rockville Road Water Main) 
Relocation Project. 
 
Discussion: 
Consistent with STA Board direction, staff has been proceeding with the implementation for 
the Gordon Water Line (Rockville Road Water Main) Relocation Project.  Now that 
construction project has been awarded, construction will be initiated in the near future.   The 
Mark Thomas & Company (MTCo)/Nolte team has provided design services for the Gordon 
Water Line (Rockville Road Water Main) Relocation Project and will be providing 
construction support services as STA moves into and through the construction phase.  This 
Project recently started construction.  As such, STA staff is recommending the Board 
approve a contract amendment with MTCo/Nolte to perform construction support services 
for an amount not-to-exceed $235,000.  These services are presented in more detail in 
Attachment A, a letter from MTCo/Nolte dated June 30, 2010.   
 

Fiscal Impact: 
The construction support services to be provided by the MTCo/Nolte team will be funded 
with Bridge Toll funds, which have already been allocated by the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC). 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve a contract amendment for MTCo/Nolte in the amount of $235,000 for construction 
support services for the Gordon Water Line (Rockville Road Water Main) Relocation 
Project. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Letter from the MTCo/Nolte Joint Venture dated June 30, 2010. 

91



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

92



 

Mark Thomas & Company, Inc.  Nolte Associates, Inc. 
1243 Alpine Road, Suite 222, Walnut Creek, CA  94596-4431 

ph. 925/938-0383  fx. 925/938-0389 

June 30, 2010 CC-09105B-B (039 R1) 
 
Ms. Janet Adams 
Solano Transportation Authority 
One Harbor Center, Suite 130 
Suisun City, California  94585 
 
RE: ROCKVILLE ROAD WATER LINE PROJECT AMENDMENT REQUEST NO. 2 

CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE 
 
Dear Ms. Adams: 
 
The current contract scope of work for the Rockville Road Water Main Project covered the 
environmental clearance, preparation of final Plans, specifications and estimates and bidding 
assistance.  As we are close to moving into construction, this request is for additional tasks 
related to the following construction support tasks: 
 
• Mark Thomas & Company (MTCo) construction assistance; 
• Biological monitoring assistance (RCL Ecology); 
• Cultural Resource Monitoring (Condor Country Consulting); 
 
A more detailed description of each task is provided below. 
 
TASK 1 - CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE (MTCO) 

MTCo will provide support during the construction phase and we will address Contractor 
questions regarding construction documents, water line design, and construction details, provide 
additional design services to address conflicts which may be encountered in the field during 
construction, perform as-built surveys and incorporate into as-built plans for submittal to the City 
of Vallejo and Solano County.  We will also oversee and manage the two subconsultants work 
for biological and cultural monitoring shown in Tasks 2 and 3 of this scope.  We propose to 
perform this work on a time and materials basis since the amount of assistance is unknown at this 
time.  We have estimated a total of 80 hours for the construction support effort and another 50 
hours for subconsultant management of cultural resource work. 
 
Subtotal Costs = $20,000 
 
TASK 2 - BIOLOGICAL MONITORING ASSISTANCE (RCL ECOLOGY)  

RCL Ecology completed final tasks related to the final EIR resulting from the comment received 
from CDFG and will be responsible for both the initial nesting bird survey and the final survey. 
 
• Spring botanical survey and summary report of special-status plants per CDFG comments. 

93

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



Agenda Item VIII.O 
July 14, 2010 

 
 

 
 

DATE:  July 7, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Janet Adams, Deputy Executive Director/Director of Projects 
RE: Award Construction Contract for the Mitigation Planting and Irrigation Project  
 for the North Connector Project 
 
 
Background: 
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) is the implementing agency for Mitigation 
Planting and Irrigation Project (Mitigation Site).  The STA entered into an agreement on 
June 17, 2009 with the Solano Community College for implementation of the mitigation 
site for the North Connector on Solano Community College property.  The Mitigation Site 
is located directly north of the Linear Park Trail, west side of Suisun Creek and east of 
Solano College Athletic fields.  The work to be done consists of approximately 4 acres of 
mitigation planting, including placement of over 650 trees and 350 shrubs, hydroseeding, 
installation of electrical service for irrigation controllers, irrigation, and development of a 
water supply. 
 
Discussion: 
Consistent with STA Board direction, staff has been proceeding with implementation of the 
Mitigation Planting and Irrigation Project (Mitigation Site).  The Project was designed by 
HD Harvey and Associates, a professional ecological consulting firm with experience in 
designing mitigation planting projects.  In accordance with legal requirements, the Project 
was advertised in the Daily Republic newspaper.  
 
Bids were received and opened on July 7, 2010 at the STA offices on One Harbor Center, 
Suite 130, Suisun City, CA.  The construction bids received are shown in Attachment A.  
The lowest responsible bidder was Cagwin & Dorward, Inc. for a bid of $233,000.00.  The 
final Project budget is $279,600.00, which includes a 20% project contingency of 
$46,600.00 for contract change orders.   
 
Once staff has verified that all the contract-related documents, such as bonds and insurance 
certificates, are in order as required by the contract, Cagwin & Dorward, Inc will be given 
the Notice to Proceed. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
The Mitigation Planting and Irrigation Project (Mitigation Site) construction will be funded 
with Bridge Toll funds already allocated to the North Connector Project. 
 
Recommendation:    
Approve Resolution No. 2010-10 for the Mitigation Planting and Irrigation Project for the 
North Connector 
 
Attachments:   

A. Construction Bids Received 
B. Resolution No. 2010-10 for the Mitigation Planting and Irrigation Project  

103



ATTACHMENT A 
 

Mitigation Planting and Irrigation Project (Mitigation Site) 
July 7, 2010 

 
 

             
 Contractor Amount 

1 Cagwin & Dorward, Inc.  $233,000.00 
2 Sansei Gardens, Inc. $240,705.00 
3 DK Environmental $248,388.00 
4 Watkins & Bortolussi $275,100.00 
5 Restoration Resources, Inc. $291,589.00 
6 Pacific Park Landscaping  $300,945.00 
7 North Coast Resource Management $316,127.25 
8 Elite Landscaping $325,832.50 
9 Natures Image, Inc. $387,900.00 
   

   
   

 

104



ATTACHMENT B 
 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION 2010-10 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
AWARDING THE MITIGATION PLANTING AND IRRIGATION PROJECT 
CONTRACT AND AUTHORIZING RELATED ACTIONS NECESSARY TO 

IMPLEMENT THE MITIGATION PLANTING AND IRRIGATION PROJECT 
CONTRACT 

 
WHEREAS, on  May 14, 2008 the STA Board authorized the Executive Director to 
advertise the Mitigation Planting and Irrigation Project Contract (Mitigation Site); and 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received and opened on July 7, 2010 at the STA offices at One 
Harbor Center, Suite 130, Suisun City, California; and 
 
WHEREAS, the engineer’s estimate for the project was $300,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, the STA Board certified the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the 
North Connector Project on May 14, 2008; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of the Solano 
Transportation Authority hereby:      
 

1. Approves the Mitigation Planting and Irrigation Project Contract, Notice to 
Contractors and Special Provisions, including issued Addendum No. 1, 2, and 3 

 
2. Determines that the Mitigation Planting and Irrigation Project Contract 

(Mitigation Site), which addresses mitigation requirements, is in compliance with 
the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code §21000, et 
seq.), and has been fully analyzed in the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for 
the North Connector project certified by the STA Board on May 14, 2008. 

3. Awards the contract for furnishing labor, equipment, and materials for the 
Mitigation Planting and Irrigation Project Contract (Mitigation Site) Contract to 
Cagwin and Dorward, Inc, the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, in the 
amount of $233,000.00 and require the contractor to present surety bonds for 
payment and faithful performance in the amounts of $233,000.00 and 
$233,000.00, respectively. 

 
4. Authorizes the Executive Director or his designee to sign the contract on behalf of 

the STA Board subject to the Executive Director or his designee having reviewed 
and found sufficient all required documents, including the contract signed by the 
contractor and the required surety bonds and certificates of insurance. 

 
5. Directs that, in accordance with the project specifications and/or upon the 

execution of the contract by the Executive Director or designee, any bid bonds 
posted by the bidders be exonerated and any checks or cash submitted for bid 
security be returned. 

105



6. Authorizes the Executive Director or his designee to execute required contract 
change orders for up the difference between the Engineers Estimate and the 
contract bid amount or  $67,000. 

 
7. Authorizes the Executive Director or his designee to sign any escrow agreements 

prepared for this project to permit direct payment of retention into escrow or the 
substitution of securities for moneys withheld by the STA to ensure performance 
under the contract pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 22300. 

 
8. Delegates the STA Board’s functions under Public Contract Code Sections 4107 

and 4110 to the Executive Director or his designee. 
 

9. Pursuant to Section 6705 of the Labor Code, delegate to a registered civil or 
structural engineer employed by the STA and so designated by the Executive 
Director, the authority to accept detailed plans showing the design of shoring, 
bracing, sloping, or other provisions to be made for worker protection during 
trench excavating covered by that section. 

 
10. Declare that, should the contract award be invalidated for any reason, the STA 

Board in any event would not have awarded the contract to the second bidder or 
any other bidder but instead would have exercised its discretion to reject all of the 
bids received. Nothing herein shall prevent the Board from awarding the contract 
to another bidder in cases where the successful bidder establishes a mistake, 
refuses to sign the contract, or fails to furnish required bonds or insurance (see 
Public Contract Code Sections 5100 et seq.). 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Board of the Solano Transportation Authority, held on the 14h day 
July, 2010, by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:  __________ 
Nos:  __________ 
Absent: __________ 
Abstain: __________ 
 
Attest by: _________________________________ 
  Johanna Masiclat 
  Clerk of the Board 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Pete Sanchez, Chair 
       Solano Transportation Authority 
 
I, Daryl K. Halls, the Solano Transportation Authority Executive Director, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing resolution was introduced, passed, and adopted by 
said Authority at a regular meeting thereof held this the day of July 14, 2010.  
 
       ______________________________ 
       Daryl K. Halls, Executive Director 
       Solano Transportation Authority 
     

106



Agenda Item VIII.P 
July 14, 2010 

 
 

 
 

 
DATE:  July 2, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Janet Adams, Deputy Executive Director/Director of Projects 
RE: Approve Modification to the North Connector Phase 2 

Project 
 
 
Background: 
Consistent with STA Board direction, staff has been proceeding with the implementation 
for the North Connector Project.  In May 2008, the Board authorized the Executive 
Director to advertise one or more construction contracts for the North Connector Project 
for a total amount not to exceed $23.3 million, including construction management 
services.  The Engineer’s Estimate for construction was $20,840,000.  The project 
included installing a 30” water line under the N. Connector for the City of Fairfield, with 
the City being responsible for all costs associated with the water line, including any 
associated construction change orders.  

On June 16, 2009, contract bids were opened and the contractor for the North Connector 
Phase 2 project was awarded to Ghilotti Brothers Inc., for the amount of $9,394,748.13 
(45.1% of Engineers Estimate).  Project contingency of 15% of the bid amount was 
established as $1,409,212.22, for a total project budget of $10,803,960.   
 
Discussion: 
As mentioned above, the project included installing a 30” water line as part of the North 
Connector construction contract for the City of Fairfield, with the City being responsible 
for the cost.  The base contract included a budgeted cost of $1,134,070 for the 
construction of the water line.  As discussed below, Construction Contract Change Orders 
(CCOs) have been executed or will need to be executed for the installation of the 30” 
water line. 
 
CCO 10R, 10RS1, 10RS2, and 10RS3:  City of Fairfield Waterline Casing 
This base change order and supplemental change orders are for modifications to the 
profile grade of the 48” casing for the bore and jack under Suisun Creek, and suspension 
of work related to the bore and jack from 2009 until 2010 due to permit restrictions for 
this work.  This 48” casing is the carrier pipe for the City of Fairfield cross town 
waterline.   Because of the additional depth of shoring, modifications to the shoring type 
had to be made to withstand earth loads and to provide for worker safety.  As such, the 
cost to install and to remove the shoring is significantly increased.  In 2009 the 
Contractor was able to dewater on the adjacent project sire (with permission from the 
developer) into an existing pit that had been dug adjacent to the project.  This pit served 
as a desilting basin and then the water was removed from the pit through a filter, and 
utilized by the Solano Irrigation District (SID) for irrigation water.  For work performed 
this year, the adjacent developer has filled in the pit, and there are no local dewatering 

107



sites.  Thus, the contractor had to implement a complex dewatering system with large 
desilting tanks (three 21,000 gallon tanks and three 18,000 gallon tanks), followed by two 
filter systems before the water can be discharged into Raines Drain through installed 
piping some 4000’ east.   
 
This cost of the additional work to construct the 30” water line, in conjunction with last 
year’s work, is anticipated to be approximately $1,157,000.  This cost is in addition to the 
base cost of $1,134,070.  As such, staff is recommending approval of a commensurate 
increase in the contingency budget of $1,157,000 to cover the increased cost of the water 
line.  Again, the City of Fairfield will be responsible for the total cost of constructing the 
30” water line and all change order relating to this work have been concurred with by the 
City.   
 
Fiscal Impact:  
The City of Fairfield will be funding the total costs of constructing the 30” water line.  
 
Recommendation:    
Approve a modification to the North Project increasing the contingency budget of 
$1,157,000 to cover the increased cost of the 30” water line, for a revised contingency 
budget of $2,566,212 and a revised total construction budget of $11,960,960. 
 
 

108



Agenda Item VIII.Q 
July 14, 2010 

 
 

 
 

 
DATE:  July 2, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Janet Adams, Deputy Executive Director/Director of Projects 
RE: Contract Amendment for Associated Right of Way Services (ARWS) 
 for North Connector Project 
 
 
Background: 
STA is taking the lead on the Right-of-Way acquisition for the North Connector Project, 
including Right-of-Way relocation services.  In August 2008, STA retained Associated 
Right of Way Services (ARWS) to provide relocation services for the North Connector 
Project. 
 
Discussion: 
As mentioned above, STA has retained ARWS to provide relocation services for the 
North Connector Project.  The relocation of the various businesses/tenants is almost 
complete, but there are a couple of property owners that still have ongoing claims.  As 
such, staff is recommending approval of a contract amendment with ARWS that would 
extend the term of the contract to April 2011 and increase the contract amount by $2,000 
to complete the necessary relocation services.  The remaining services are discussed in 
more detail in the attached letter from ARWS dated July 2, 2010 (Attachment A).  
 
Fiscal Impact:    
The relocation services recommended at part of this staff report will be funded with 
Regional Measure 2 (RM 2) funds already allocated to the Project. 

 
Recommendation:    
Approve a contract amendment with ARWS for $2,000 and an extended term to April 
2011 to complete the Right-of-Way relocation services for the North Connector Project. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Letter from the ARWS dated July 2, 2010. 

109



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

110



111

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



112



Agenda Item VIII.R 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 
 

DATE: July 2, 2010 
TO: STA Board 
FROM: Janet Adams, Deputy Executive Director/Director of Projects 
RE: Contract Amendment for HDR for the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales 

Relocation Project 
 
 
Background: 
STA is taking the lead on completing Plans, Specifications and Estimate (PS&E) and Right-
of-Way (R/W) engineering for the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project. 
In spring 2008, STA retained HDR Engineering, Inc. (HDR) to prepare the PS&E and R/W 
engineering, including coordinating utility relocations and demolition of two residences. 
 
Discussion: 
Consistent with STA Board direction, staff has been proceeding with the implementation for 
the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales.  HDR is preparing the PS&E and has now reached 
a major milestone in that the 95% PS&E was submitted to Caltrans in May 2010.  In reaching 
this significant milestone in the preparation of the PS&E, staff has determined it is the 
appropriate time to review the out of scope work that has been completed to date and to 
evaluate the budget required to complete preparation of the final PS&E and R/W acquisition 
tasks.  The attached HDR letter dated June 28, 2010 discusses unforeseen tasks that have 
been completed since the inception of the contract.  With approval of a contract amendment 
for HDR in the amount not-to-exceed $1,400,000, the budget will be sufficient to complete 
the PS&E and R/W engineering for the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation 
project.   
 
Fiscal Impact:  
The I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project is being funded with bridge 
toll funds all ready allocated to the Project. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve a contract amendment for HDR in the amount of $1,400,000, to complete the PS&E 
and R/W engineering for the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Letter from HDR dated June 28, 2010. 

113



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

114



����������	�
�������
 ��	���������� ������� �

 

 
 
June 28, 2010 
 

Ms. Janet Adams 
Deputy Executive Director 
Solano Transportation Authority 
One Harbor Center, Suite 130 
Suisun City, CA 94585 
 
 
Subject:    Additional Design Services 
                  I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project 
          
Dear Janet: 
 
In September of last year, we meet with STA to discuss additional scope and services 
identified at that time.  While STA recognized additional effort had been required, full 
agreement was not reached on all the items.  In addition, STA requested that only one 
change request be processed for the project.  Since that time HDR has continued to track 
additional scope and service items, communicate the need for these items with STA, and 
has reallocated existing budget for critical items so that progress on the project could be 
maintained.   
 
The HDR team recently completed the 95% PS&E submittal and we believe that all 
additional work necessary to successfully complete the project has now been identified.  
The additional scope and services fall are describe by assigned category below, and are 
described in detail by task in Attachment 1.  
 
Cordelia Vehicle Management System (CVMS) – during the validation phase of the 
project it was determined that the inspection concept for the facility presented in the Draft 
Project Report was not acceptable to the project stakeholders.  Recognizing that without a 
viable solution to the site and vehicle inspections supported by the project stakeholders 
the design process could have be substantially impacted the HDR team was tasked with 
determining an appropriate and acceptable design.  Through additional research, technical 
studies, design activities, and coordination with STA, Caltrans, and CHP, a solution was 
developed based on integration of technology components.  To implement the solution, 
HDR prepared fact sheets and obtained approvals from Caltrans, developed an integration 
plan, prepared the RFP to procure the necessary services, assisted in the selection of the 
consultant, prepared the contract documents, and is coordinating with the consulted on 
the design integration, and will act as STA’s representative for the management of the 
work through construction.  Through these efforts we have been able to maintain progress 
on the project design and allowing right-of-way requirements to be set, and also reached 
consensus with the project stakeholders on the technology integration elements and 
requirements. 

115

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



!�"�#�$�%�&�'�%�(�(�)�' %�&�*�+�%�,�- .�/�0�132

 

  
 
Utility Services and Relocations – several major utility relocations and service 
connections are required for the project.  The relocation of the SID 18” waterline at 
Suisun Creek and the relocation of the PG&E transmission towers in this general vicinity 
were not originally identified as required relocations in the Draft Project Report.  The 
SID relocation has required several additional design efforts due to the location and 
environmental requirements for this area.  Additional borings and geotechnical analysis 
were conducted.  Methods of relocation were investigated and determined that directional 
boring would best meet the requirements.  Additional field surveys were required for the 
relocations, including the surveying of trees and bushes that will need to be trimmed or 
relocated to meet PG&E and environmental requirements.  In addition to the 
unanticipated relocations, several specific scope and design assumptions were not met 
and consequently additional design effort and coordination resulted; identification and 
design of new water connection as existing water line is insufficient, design of new sewer 
force main as gravity flow is not possible across Suisun Creek bridge, additional pot 
holes required for water line and gas line in congested area near Busch Drive, and the 
preparation of Reports of Investigations and new service applications.   
 
The changes and additions to the utility relocations are significant and have required 
extensive coordination, and several right of way modifications and design revisions.  
Because we started as early as possible on the relocations we have the designs and 
easements completed, and continue to coordinate with the owners so that the agreements 
can be obtained in time for the relocations to occur without impact to the construction 
schedule. 
 
Surveys and Right of Way – several unanticipated issues and additional Caltrans or 
project requirements have been encountered as the survey and right of way (ROW) work 
has progressed.  The changes include; resolving discrepancies in the Caltrans District 10 
right of way maps to the satisfaction of District 4, changes to the hard copy maps due to 
changes in the HOV Lane project by CCO, additional title reports requested by Caltrans, 
additional field surveys for utilities and property owners.   
 
The decision that the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) and its Board will be 
responsible for condemnation has lead to changes to the deeds as they were originally 
prepared in Caltrans name.  We anticipate one condemnation and have estimated effort to 
provide the Resolution of Necessity exhibits and documents. 
 
While there have been several changes and unanticipated requirements to the ROW 
process, the HDR team has been able to respond to those changes and provide the 
necessary ROW engineering documents to STA and Caltrans so that the ROW 
acquisition schedule can be maintained.   
 
Additional Design Requirements – to maintain project progress and meet the needs of 
effected utility owners and certain environmental requirements, STA has requested the 

116



4�5�6�7�8�9�:�8�;�;�<�: 8�9�=�>�8�?�@ A�B�C�DFE

 

HDR team prepare contract documents for the SID relocations, building demolition, tree 
removal, prepare the Life Cycle Cost Analysis (LCCA) as a requirement of Caltrans for 
PA&ED approval, and to design and incorporate the Eastbound I-80 Cordelia Bypass 
Management System Relocation into the project plans.  HDR completed the LCCA and 
coordinated extensively with Caltrans so as to avoid any additional delays to PA&ED.  
We have completed the 100% plans for the SID relocations and are on schedule for the 
preparation of the tree removal and demolition contract work.   
 
Resolution of Hydraulics Concerns and Drainage Design – during the later stages of 
PA&ED and the early design work, SID and Caltrans presented several questions and 
comments on the hydraulic studies and proposed drainage features developed in the 
PA&ED phase.  The majority of the comments centered on the Rains Drain area and 
associated drainage requirements.  In coordination with STA and their consultants, the 
HDR team developed design solutions acceptable to Caltrans and SID.  In developing 
these solutions additional hydraulic studies were performed, as well grading and drainage 
plans.  Resulting from these studies and design coordination with SID, additional design 
features are now being incorporated into the project including a crossing structure of 
Rains Drain and a special design box culvert ‘manifold’ structure. 
 
Design Changes – in the scope of work HDR identified 448 plan sheets but due to the 
complexity of the project and various changes and requirements the 95% plans include 
573 sheets.  While we have been able to accommodate much of the design production 
increase in the original, we have not been able to do that for the significant design 
changes.  Those changes and additions include; the re-design of the I-80 off ramp and 
Suisun Creek Bridge at 65% PS&E due to the median barrier change on the HOV project, 
the development of LEED specifications as they are unavailable from Caltrans, additional 
lighting design work due to the “grade separated structure” and pedestrian lighting 
requirements at the truck scales site, additional traffic operations system requirements 
from Caltrans, and design support of the EIR revalidation.  
 
HDR is requesting an amendment of $1,397,257 for the additional services provided, and 
those needed to complete the project.  The breakdown by category is as follows: 
 
Cordelia Vehicle Management System: $237,295 
Utility Services and Relocations:  $121,411 
Surveys and Right of Way:   $144,676 
Additional Design Requirements:  $377,754 
Resolution of Hydraulic Concerns:  $106,248 
Design Changes:    $360,045 
Additional Geotechnical Services:  $  49,829  

Total  $1,397,257 
 
 

117



G�H�I�J�K�L�M�K�N�N�O�M K�L�P�Q�K�R�S T�U�V�W�X

 

Attached is our estimate of the fees associated with this additional work.   After you have 
had a chance to review it, I would like to meet with you to discuss and reach agreement 
on these changes. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
HDR Engineering, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
Carlton L. Haack, P.E. 
Project Manager 
 
Attachments:  

- Additional Scope and Services by Task 
- Additional Fee Spreadsheet 

 
 
 

118



����������	�
�������
 ��	���������� ������� �

 

Additional Scope and Services 
 
1.0 Cordelia Vehicle Management System  

 
1.1 Development of the Technology Implementation Plan – The concept for the 

facility in the Draft Project Report included an inspection booth located between 
the 2nd and 3rd lanes.  During the project’s validation period the team and 
stakeholders determined this was not feasible and consequently recognized the 
need to integrate several technology components to meet the operational need of 
the facility to sort and inspect the forecasted peak of 900 commercial vehicles per 
hour.   To accomplish the identified need, the HDR Team has undertaken and 
completed the research and coordination necessary to develop and gain 
stakeholder approval of the Technology Implementation Plan which defines the 
operational need and provides the recommended solution for the required 
technology integration. These efforts were not originally anticipated in the 
original scope of work.  

 
1.2  Procurement and Management of  Integration Consultant – HDR proposed the 

creation of a Technology Team consisting of the STA, Caltrans, CHP and HDR 
Team representatives to develop the RFP necessary to procure the necessary 
services, and to work with the selected consultant/contractor for implementation 
and construction of the technology integration. The HDR Team has prepared the 
scope of work and RFP, assisted in the selection of a Technology Consultant 
/Contractor, and at the request of STA will continue to provide coordination and 
oversight of the Technology Consultant /Contractor during the design, 
implementation and testing of the system.   
 

1.3 Design Support During Construction – the HDR team will provide design support 
of all CVMS components during the two phase construction of the system. 

 
2.0 Utility Services and Relocations 
 

2.1 Report of Investigation and Utility Agreements – As described in the approved 
Scope of Services, the original assumption was that Caltrans would prepare the 
Report of Investigation (ROI) and Utility Agreements for utility relocations.  
However, the Caltrans/STA Cooperative Agreement executed in July 2009, 
indicates that STA is to perform all utility coordination.  An ROI and Utility 
Agreement must be prepared for the Solano Irrigation District (SID) relocations, 
and separate ROIs and Utility Agreements must be prepared for each of the three 
PG&E utility facilities (electric transmission line electric distribution line and gas 
main) that must be relocated for the project.  Effort includes review of the SID 
and PG&E responses to the Relocation Claim Letters, research on the provisions 
of the applicable statewide Caltrans/PG&E utility agreement, review of SID and 
PG&E relocation designs and cost estimates, preparation of each ROI, and 

119



!�"�#�$�%�&�'�%�(�(�)�' %�&�*�+�%�,�- .�/�0�132

 

coordination with the Caltrans District Utility Coordinator.  Effort also includes 
coordination with each utility and with STA to develop the draft Utility 
Agreements and assist as needed in facilitating execution of the agreements. 

 
2.1    New Service Connection Applications – As described in the approved Scope of 

Services, the original assumption was that Caltrans would prepare all New 
Service Connection Applications.  However, the Caltrans/STA Cooperative 
Agreement indicates that STA is to perform all utility coordination.  The new 
CVEF will require preparation and submittal of a PG&E Application for Service 
for electric and gas services for the new CVEF, submittal of information to the 
City of Fairfield for water service, submittal of information to the Fairfield-Suisun 
Sewer District for sewer service, and submittal of information to AT&T for 
telephone and data service.  Effort includes research to determine the required 
information and format for the applications, preparing the application letters in the 
various formats required, and assembling and submitting the application packets, 
which include copies of plans, CAD files, drawings and calculations for each 
proposed new utility service. 

 
 2.3 Sanitary Sewer Force Main and Pump Station Design - The original assumption 

was that an extension of the existing sanitary sewer pipe using gravity flow was 
possible. A new sewer force main will be required since the new pipe must be 
raised to cross Suisun Creek underneath the new bridge. HDR will design a force 
main from the new pump station at the relocated facilities building to the tie in 
point for the 2-inch force main from the existing scale facility.  The effort 
includes design of piping and a new sewage pump lift station at the site. 

 
 2.4 Water Line Design – The original assumption was that an extension of the 

existing 2” water pipe from the existing CVEF to the new CVEF site was possible 
and would supply sufficient water for the new facility.  During the design effort it 
was determined that   the existing 2” water line is inadequate to provide the 
required irrigation, fire protection, and potable water requirements the new 
CVEF.  After investigation, it was determined that the only feasible source for the 
necessary  quantity of water is from a City of Fairfield water main on Hale Ranch 
Road, which is located about 4000 feet east of the new CVEF.  Additional effort 
includes evaluating the size of the new water pipes needed, coordination with the 
City of Fairfield on connection details, and design of alignments for the pipes.  
Effort also includes developing the design for a fire loop and fire hydrant and fire 
service locations on the new CVEF. 

 
  2.5 Additional Potholes for Water Line Design- additional potholes are needed for the 

Water Service line design at Hale Ranch road and Busch Drive.  Through the final 
verification process of water demands and service needs the City of Fairfield 
directed that the proposed CVEF service line be connected to the proposed City of 
Fairfield 30” water line along Hale Ranch Road that will be installed during the 
summer of 2010. HDR has coordinated with the City and their designers, Creegan 

120



4�5�6�7�8�9�:�8�;�;�<�: 8�9�=�>�8�?�@ A�B�C�DFE

 

& DeAngelo, regarding the location and design of the water service lateral for the 
CVEF building and site. The construction work scheduled for this summer will 
provide a connection joint for the new CVEF service lateral that is to be installed 
under the Caltrans contract.  This connection location requires a 385-foot lateral 
to extend parallel to Hale Ranch Road to the proposed meter pedestal platform 
outside of the future Caltrans R/W.  The lateral alignment outside of the Caltrans 
R/W requires a crossing of an existing PG&E 6” gas main and a AT&T telephone 
line at Hale Ranch Road. Consequently, additional positive field verification of 
these utilities is required through potholing to fulfill the Caltrans Policy on High 
and Low Risk Underground Facilities and complete the Project Engineer’s 
Certification of Utility Facilities  

  
3.0  Additional Surveys and Right of Way Efforts  
 

3.1 Resolving Right of Way Discrepancies and Changes – Due to discrepancies 
between the District 10 right of way maps, County Parcel maps, title reports and 
surveyed monuments HDR’s sub-consultant, Chaudhary, expended additional 
effort in preparing the land net. These efforts included resolution of significant 
differences in property lines between the mapping and actual field monuments.  
The additional efforts included additional deed research, meetings with Caltrans 
RW, coordination with PG&E Land Department and additional right of way 
computational work.  

 
Subsequent to preparing and submitting the hard copy maps, a Contract Change 
Order (CCO) for the Median Barrier under the HOV Lane Project required re-
design of project elements (see 6.1 below) and corresponding revisions to the hard 
copy map.  These revisions entailed substantial changes to the maps and included 
new boundary closures and descriptions. 

 
3.2  Additional Field Surveys – Field surveys were needed beyond the original 

assumptions for several elements of the project RW engineering, design and 
appraisals including the following: 
• Recovery of missing property corners and additional right of way monuments 

additional unanticipated field survey time was required to complete Suisun 
Creek surveys to work around access restrictions on the Valine property and 
on the shoulder of I-80.  

• Additional field work was required to stake PG&E easements for a field 
review of relocation efforts on the 12kV pole lines and 115kV distribution 
towers at PG&E’s request. 

• Additional field surveys are required to meet property owner requests to stake 
proposed right-of-way and temporary construction easements. 

• Field surveys were also performed to verify and tie-in the HOV project 
reconstruction work.  This included survey work for the relocated I-80 median 

121



G�H�I�J�K�L�M�K�N�N�O�M K�L�P�Q�K�R�S T�U�V�W�X

 

concrete barrier, final ETW and EP striping, Suisun Creek Bridge Widening 
work and final Storm Drain and utility verifications.   

• Tree location surveys were required for the SID 18”  HDD pipeline under 
Suisun Creek for alignment design purposes.  Oak Trees along the existing 
truck scale off-ramp to verify removal requirements. 

 
3.3 Additional Right-of-Way Engineering Services and Requirements – additional 

services and effort are required to satisfy unanticipated Caltrans and STA 
requirements and additional property impacts identified during the design and 
right-of-way process.  The additional items include: 
• A Construction Staking and Control Map is required per Caltrans and was not 

included in the original scope of work.  
• Additional title reports are required for properties outside of the identified 

impacted parcels.  Two title reports were obtained due to design changes for 
the PGE 12kV Distribution Line (parcels north of I-80).  The Lyons tile report 
was required due to both the PG&E 115 kV transmission and 12kV 
distribution line relocations.  The Nelson Trust property report was obtained 
as requested by Caltrans and STA for the Carter property appraisal. 

• The Appraisal maps were revised after the 65% submittal due to design 
changes along the 18”  Suisun Creek SID relocation.  As the HDD alignment 
was finalized changes were made to avoid existing trees within the creek and 
to reduce vertical profile while reducing risks of a drilling release during 
construction. 

• Greater than anticipated utility easement documents are necessary to meet the 
project requirements.  Originally, the utilities identified in the draft project 
report were estimated for RW engineering and relocation.  Subsequently, 
through the design process additional conflicts have been identified that 
require the preparation of plats, legal descriptions, quitclaims, JUAs, and 
CCUAs to meet the project and Caltrans requirements. 

 
3.4 Right of Way Condemnation Exhibits and Documents – the HDR team will 

prepare the necessary design exhibits and right-of-way engineering documents for 
the Resolution of Necessity hearing by the STA Board and support of the 
condemnation process.  The estimate for this work is based on a single property 
condemnation. 

 
4.0  Additional Design Requirements  

 
   4.1  Design of the SID Contract Documents – STA requested that HDR prepare the 

design and contract documents for all SID relocations; Young and Chadbourne 
laterals.    Additional services provided include developing construction drawings 
including details of control valves and metering along with specifications and 
engineer’ s estimate necessary to construct the relocations as a separate bid 
package.  The existing18-inch diameter Young’ s lateral and associated control 

122



Y�Z�[�\�]�^�_�]�`�`�a�_ ]�^�b�c�]�d�e f�g�h�iFj

 

structures adjacent to Suisun Creek must be relocated to the south to 
accommodate the proposed Suisun Creek Bridge which was not identified in the 
Draft Project Report. HDR proposed, and STA approved directional boring for 
this work due to in-situ material, environmental, and economic considerations.  
The attached “Evaluation of Trenchless Construction Alternatives for Relocation 
of 18-inch SID Irrigation Water Main”  was previously provided to STA for 
additional information on the proposed design and construction. HDR’ s proposed 
subconsultant, Bennett Trenchless Engineers, will provide expertise in directional 
drill pipeline installation including design analysis and drawing details.  

 
4.2 Private Property Demolition Contract – STA directed HDR to have the demolition 

work for two existing private properties to be done by a separate design contract.  
HDR will be required to hire GEOCON to perform asbestos and lead containing 
paint surveys of the existing structure to be demolished.  HDR is also required to 
field check the two properties for the removal plans and prepare a separate PS&E 
contract to be administered early by STA.  This work includes preparation of 
removal plans, Solano County based specification package and a separate bid item 
estimate.  Additional coordination is also required to identify the necessary 
permitting and application needed to perform the work. 

 
4.3 Pavement Life Cycle Cost Analysis – HDR prepared the pavement life-cycle cost 

analysis required by Caltrans. HDR developed a draft and final report with 
recommendations to be included in the plans and specifications, and coordinate 
the approval of the LCCA with Caltrans.  HDR coordinated with Caltrans 
Planning to verify and approve the project Traffic Index values for each specific 
pavement design section.  Additional coordination with Caltrans Design and 
Material functional groups was required to provide a timely approval of the 
LCCA report.  HDR also coordinated with STA’ s consultant for the final 
pavement design recommendations for the Final Project Report.  During the 
review and preparation of the LCCA report HDR recognized that a design 
exception may be needed to use a 20-year design pavement for the I-80 widening 
section.  A mandatory design exception fact sheet was prepared by HDR and 
submitted to Mike Thomas at Caltrans concurrently with the final review of the 
LCCA report.  The fact sheet was ultimately not required due to user cost data and 
timely review and approval of the LCCA report.  This work was not anticipated 
during preparation of the original scope of work as the TI approval process and 
LCCA report is typically performed as part of the Project Report process.  

 
4.4 EB I-80 Cordelia Bypass Management System Relocation- the HDR team will 

coordinate, develop, and prepare the necessary design to include the relocation of 
the existing pre-pass WIM for the I-680/80 location into the project’ s scope and 
plans.  The team will include the relocation work as a “spot”  location within the 
Truck Scales PS&E package.  

 
 

123



k�l�m�n�o�p�q�o�r�r�s�q o�p�t�u�o�v�w x�y�z�{3|

 

 
 
5.0  Resolution of Hydraulics Concerns and Drainage Design  
 

5.1   Additional Hydraulics Analysis and Preliminary Design Work – due to questions 
and comments presented by Caltrans and SID in review of the hydraulic studies 
and drainage features developed in the PA&ED phase of the project, it was 
necessary for the HDR team to spend additional time and coordination in 
developing solutions to the Raines Drain area that are acceptable to Caltrans and 
SID.  This work included processing a LIDAR database to make it usable for the 
Raines Drain model.  HDR’ s work involved regenerating the surface and 
developing contours to match the existing topography base. The data was 
provided by STA’ s consultant to HDR for resolution of hydraulics issues that 
impacted the project, but was not directly part of HDR’ s scope.  The work also 
includes the additional coordination and design of drainage facilities (detention 
basin, etc.) for handling or storing site runoff for the new site. The effort includes 
additional hydraulic analysis and preparation of additional grading and drainage 
plans. 

 
5.2 Special Design Drainage Structures – Additional civil and structural design of a 

special design  box culvert ‘manifold’  structure and two large non-standard 
reinforced concrete boxes that together capture the series of existing culverts 
coming under I-80 and the proposed drainage culverts that outlet to the Raines 
drain were required. The original assumption was that the existing culverts could 
be extended; however this is not possible due to the final location of the site and 
SR 12 connector off-ramp. 

  
 During design coordination with SID, a new Raines Drain crossing structure was 

identified as being necessary to maintain access Raines Drain along the existing 
County road.  The design for this structure was not included in the original scope 
of work.   

 
6.0 Design Changes and Additions 
 

6.1 HOV CCO’ s for Median Barrier – The HDR team redesigned the I-80 off ramp 
and Suisun Creek Bridge approaching the 65% design in order to accommodate 
the median barrier CCO unknown to HDR. The revision also required significant 
CAD work in re-stationing the I-80 alignment and revising plans, profiles and 
typical cross sections. The change was not part of the original geometric data 
transmitted to HDR by the STA’ s consultant and was unknown to HDR until the 
design survey work was completed and reviewed during the 65% design. 

 
6.2 Additional Architectural Detailing, Research, and Design – During the validation 

effort the HDR Team learned that the existing pit covers at Commercial Vehicle 
Enforcement Facilities across the state have exhibited design challenges and 

124



}�~�������������������� ������������� �������F�

 

maintenance issues.   To develop a pit cover that is satisfactory to both Caltans 
design and CHP, while also meeting safety requirements, HDR’ s architect has 
performed additional efforts in researching inspection pit covers, including field 
visits and meetings with Caltrans and CHP stakeholders. The additional effort 
included understanding and resolving the existing pit cover deficiencies and 
selection and approval of an alternative pit cover design acceptable to both 
Caltrans and CHP.  The results of these efforts will ultimately incorporate a final 
product into the design, and preparation of the specifications. 

 
6.4 LEED Specification Development – Caltrans is currently working on the 

preparation of standard LEED specifications; however, these specifications will 
not be approved in the timeframe necessary to achieve the mandated Silver LEED 
rating for this project.  Consequently, the majority of the building and site related 
specifications will be non standard special provisions (NSSP’ s). The development 
of these NSSPs have required additional effort in the development, tracking and 
approval of all NSSP’ s related to the site and building including the original 
versions of new architectural specifications and sections within Division 12- 
Building section. 

  
6.5 Additional VISSIM Modeling of the Site – The original scope of traffic analysis 

assumed constructing the VISSIM model with one update. During the validation 
process, and in response to Caltrans and CHP comments, the site was revised 
three times to add/remove parking locations, geometric revisions for truck 
turning, and changing vehicle paths/assignments within the facility.  These 
changes resulted in the in revisions to the model and post processing the 
simulations to extract travel times and queue lengths necessary for Caltrans 
review and approval.  The operations memorandum and graphics were updated to 
reflect these differing simulations. In addition, to present and explain the 
configurations and traffic simulations to the PDT and project stakeholders, four 
AVI videos were created for the grade separated flyover, site parking, inspection 
bays and static scales that were not anticipated. All work was undertaken to 
complete the site validation to CHP and Caltrans satisfaction. 

 
6.6 Lighting Design Work – Pedestrian level and tunnel lighting was not anticipated 

in the original scope.  However, the need for this lighting was identified in the 
validation effort and 35% design. The work was incorporated into the final 
design.  Additional lighting design work includes: pedestrian, sign and tunnel 
lighting that will add 9-sheets to the final design.  

 
6.7 Traffic Operations Systems – Caltrans comments on the 35% plans included 

requests for modifications on to the eastbound I-80 traffic monitoring stations 
(TMS). These comments requested that three (3) traffic monitoring stations and 
one (1) CCTV location on I-80 be modified/ relocated. The additional work 
would include production of additional plan sheets to install TMS detectors, 
including detector loops, conduit layouts, service points and associated hardware, 

125



����������������������� ������������� �������¡ 

 

CCTV camera and specifications.  Caltrans has also required that the westbound 
system be shown on the plan sheets due to the interconnectivity of both systems.  
The original scope included work for new TOS along the realigned off -ramps and 
12 connector.  At the 35% design level the I-80 TOS elements were assumed to be 
satisfied with the HOV project work. 

 
6.8 EIR Revalidation Work – A revalidation was required to revised the project 

environmental document to include the proposed relocation of the PG&E 115kV 
Transmission line and 12kV Distribution Line.  Revisions to the overall project 
RW take and TCE impacts were also included in the EIR revalidation.  HDR 
provided analysis of GIS data provided by ICF/Mark Thomas PA&ED team to 
determine current 95% design impact areas.  HDR also provided Circle Point total 
area of impacts for all permanent and temporary design impacts, areas for the 
proposed PG&E and SID relocation easements and coordination efforts with the 
utility agencies, Circle Point, and STA. 

 
6.9  Addition of I-80  Westbound Lanes to the TMP – HDR originally assumed that a 

TMP (Traffic Management Plan) would be needed for the widening work along I-
80 and SR 12.  This includes analysis of existing traffic volumes, preparation of 
lane closure requirement charts and a lane closure plan to perform the widening 
work along I-80 and SR 12 documenting any associated user damages during 
those closures.   

 
During the final design process and after the completion of the HOV project it 
was determined that the 2 advanced warning overhead sign bridges for the SR 12 
Connector along I-80 would require extensive median barrier modifications to 
install the sign  foundations and pedestals.  Although this work can be staged at 
night and the foundations can be installed after the full median shoulder along the 
EB lanes has been provided, it would also require that the HOV lane along the 
WB lanes be closed during these work periods.  No equipment will be needed on 
the WB side but do to the existing WB median shoulder being less than 2-feet and 
a non-standard HOV lane width the WB lane will need to be closed to perform the 
concrete and double thrie beam barrier removal and reconstruction work.  
 
Caltrans required that a traffic analysis and lane closure requirement charts of the 
existing WB I-80 lanes be added to the TMP.  The original assumption was no 
analysis or work would be needed on the WB side of I-80.  The District did not 
want to use the lane requirements prepared for the HOV project due to the 
addition of 5th travel lane. 
 

 
6.10 Additional Structural Design Work – The HDR Team developed structural 

drawings for the Suisun Creek Bridge, separation structure, building and retaining 
walls. As the design progressed, additional 13-sheets (not including LOTB sheets) 

126



¢�£�¤�¥�¦�§�¨�¦�©�©�ª�¨ ¦�§�«�¬�¦��® ¯�°�±�²¡³

 

beyond the initial estimate were needed to depict the building and retaining walls 
developed during the 35% design. 

 
7.0  Geotechnical Services  
 

7.1 Additional Borings – 18”  SID Line and Detention Basin – Additional 
geotechnical work includes additional borings (3) and CPT’ s (3) necessary for the 
18”  SID relocation, as well as three additional borings for the potential detention 
basin design. The work includes permitting, field exploration, laboratory analysis 
and engineering analysis beyond what was anticipated in the original scope. 

 
7.2 Revised Draft and Final Geotechnical Report- The additional geotechnical work 

described above, requires updates to the draft and final reports to present results 
and recommendations.      

 
 

127



PREPARED FOR SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Fee Estimate for Additional Services  
Date: June 28, 2010           Totals:

HDR WMH Kennedy- Biggs Parikh Chaudhary Fehr & Geocon Exaro Bennett Hours
Task No. Task Description  Jenks Cardosa   Peers  Trenchless Cost

           
1 Cordelia Vehicle Management System

1.1 Development of the Technology Implementation Plan 63,696 14,700 78,396
1.2 Procurement and Management of  Integration Consultant 61,992 42,800 104,792
1.3 Design Support During Construction 49,800 49,800

Hourly Subtotal: 628 536 1,164
Labor Subtotal: 125,688 107,300 232,988

Direct Expenses & Tech Charge Subtotal: 2,324 1,983 4,307
Task Total: 128,012$     109,283$     -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                $237,295

2 Utility Services and Relocations
2.1 Report of Investigation and Utility Agreements 15,508 15,508
2.2 New Service Connection Applications 18,100 0 18,100
2.3 Sanitary Sewer Force Main  and Pump Station Design 39,228 39,228
2.4 Water Line Design 39,228 39,228
2.5 Additional Potholes for Water Line Design 960 5,427 6,387

Hourly Subtotal: 800              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              800
Labor Subtotal: $113,024 $0 -              -              -              -              -              -              5,427           -              118,451

Direct Expenses & Tech Charge Subtotal: $2,960 $0 -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              2,960
Task Total: 115,984$     -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                5,427$         -$                $121,411

3 Surveys and Right of Way
3.1 Resolving Right of Way Discrepancies and Changes 11,860 31,589 43,449
3.2 Additional Field Surveys 3,712 32,248 35,960
3.3 Additional Right-of-Way Engineering Services and Requirements 32,801 32,801
3.4 R/W Condemnation Exhibits and Documents

Hourly Subtotal: 170              -              -              -              -              735              -              -              -              -              905              
Labor Subtotal: $25,908 -              -              -              -              $96,639 -              -              -              -              $122,547

Direct Expenses & Tech Charge Subtotal: $629 -              -              -              -              $21,500 -              -              -              -              $22,129
Task Total: 26,537$       -$                -$                -$                -$                118,139$     -$                -$                -$                -$                $144,676

4 Additional Design Requirements
4.1 Coordination and Design of SID Contract Documents 45,348 0 79,760 125,108
4.2 Private Property Demolition Contracts 13,912 6,905 20,817
4.3 Pavement Life Cycle Cost Analysis 10,448 2,240 12,688
4.4 Pre-Pass / WIM Relocation Addition 6,248 205,700 211,948

Hourly Subtotal: 588              1,356           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              446              2,390           
Labor Subtotal: $75,956 $207,940 -              -              $0 -              -              6,905           -              79,760         $370,561

Direct Expenses & Tech Charge Subtotal: $2,176 $5,017 -              -              $0 -              -              -              -              -              $7,193
Task Total: 78,132$       212,957$     -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                6,905$         -$                79,760$       $377,754

5 Resolution of Hydraulics Concerns and Drainage Design
5.1 Additional Hydraulics Analysis & Preliminary Design w/ LIDAR Data 22,796 34,400 57,196
5.2 Special Design Drainage Structures 42,790 3,520 46,310

Hourly Subtotal: 525              216              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              741              
Labor Subtotal: $65,586 $37,920 -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              $103,506

Direct Expenses & Tech Charge Subtotal: $1,943 $799 -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              $2,742
Task Total: 67,529$       38,719$       -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                $106,248

6 Design Changes and Additions
6.1 HOV CCO's - Median Barrier 21,460         54,600         -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              $76,060
6.2 Architectural Detailing -              22,400         15,784         -              -              -              -              -              -              -              $38,184
6.3 Develop LEED Specifications 9,268           12,600         10,920         -              -              -              -              -              -              -              $32,788
6.4 VISSIM Modeling for Site Validation -              5,400           -              -              -              -              14,640         -              -              -              $20,040
6.5 Additional Lighting Design Work -              5,400           -              -              -              -              42,500         -              -              -              $47,900
6.6 Traffic Operations Systems (TOS) -              -              -              -              -              -              45,864         -              -              -              $45,864
6.7 EIR Revalidation Work 8,980           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              $8,980
6.8 Add Westbound Lanes to the TMP -              -              -              -              -              -              16,717         -              -              -              $16,717
6.9 Additonal Structural Design Work -              -              -              65,100         -              -              -              -              -              -              $65,100

Hourly Subtotal: 302              620              160              516              -              -              961              -              -              -              2,559           
Labor Subtotal: $39,708 $100,400 $26,704 $65,100 -              -              $119,721 $0 -              -              $351,633

Direct Expenses & Tech Charge Subtotal: $3,617 $2,294 $592 $1,909 -              -              $0 $0 -              -              $8,413
Task Total: 43,325$       102,694$     27,296$       67,009$       -$                -$                119,721$     -$                -$                -$                $360,045

7 Geotechnical Services
7.1 Additional Borings - 18" SID Line and Detention basin 20,816 20,816
7.2 Revised Draft & Final Geotechnical Reports 14,759 14,759

Hourly Subtotal: -              -              -              -              310              -              -              -              -              -              310              
Labor Subtotal: -              -              -              -              $35,575 -              -              -              -              -              $35,575

Direct Expenses & Tech Charge Subtotal: -              -              -              -              $14,254 -              -              -              -              -              $14,254
Task Total: -              -              -              -              $49,829 -              -              -              -              -              $49,829
Total Hours 3,013 2,728 160 516 310 735 961 0 0 446 8,869
Total Labor $445,870 $453,560 $26,704 $65,100 $35,575 $96,639 $119,721 $6,905 $5,427 $79,760 $1,335,260

Total Direct Expenses & Tech Charge $13,648 $10,094 $592 $1,909 $14,254 $21,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $61,997
TOTAL $459,518 $463,654 $27,296 $67,009 $49,829 $118,139 $119,721 $6,905 $5,427 $79,760 $1,397,257

Cost By Firm and Task

Page 1 of 1 HDR

128



Agenda Item VIII.S 
July 14, 2010 

 
 

 
 

 
DATE:  July 2, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Janet Adams, Deputy Executive Director/Director of Projects 
RE: Mitigation Agreements for I-80 Eastbound Truck Scales Relocation 

Project 
 
 
Background: 
STA has been actively working with State of California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans), California Highway Patrol (CHP) and the Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA) to deliver the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project.  The 
existing Eastbound Truck Scales which were constructed in 1958, are seriously 
undersized and unable to process the existing truck volumes let alone the future projected 
truck volumes.  The purpose of the project is to construct new eastbound truck scales 
with the capacity to accommodate the anticipated 115% growth in truck traffic in the 
corridor by 2035; to provide traffic congestion relief in this section of I-80 due by 
reducing truck /auto weaving and queuing; and to improve the reliability of the system 
with increased capacity and up-to-date equipment.  The Project will rebuild and relocate 
the Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Facility, build a 2-lane bridge across Suisun Creek, 
and construct braided ramps from the new truck scales facility to EB I-80 and EB SR 12 
ramps. 
 
Caltrans is the Lead Agency for the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
compliance for the I-80 Eastbound Truck Scales Relocation Project and the Lead Agency 
for the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) compliance.  The CEQA and NEPA 
environmental documents have been approved for the Project. 
 
Discussion: 
The CEQA and NEPA environmental documents have been approved for the I-80 
Eastbound Truck Scales Relocation Project.  As discussed in the Biological Opinion from 
the US Fish and Wildlife Service, the Project will result in impacts to seasonal wetland 
habitat as well as Swainson’s Hawk habitat, all of which can be mitigated. 
 
The I-80 Eastbound Truck Scales Relocation Project will result in a permanent loss of 
0.12 acres of seasonal wetlands and 25.59 acres of Swainson’s Hawk habitat.  The 
Project’s seasonal wetland impacts will be mitigated through the purchase of 0.12 acres 
of seasonal wetland credits for $14,000 at the off-site Elsie Gridley Mitigation Bank and 
the Project’s Swainson’s Hawk habitat impacts will be mitigated through the purchase of 
19.19 acres of Conservation Credits for $95,950 at the off-site Jenny Farms Mitigation 
Bank.  Both Banks are located in Solano County.  Draft agreements have been prepared 
and are attached (Attachment A and B).  Staff recommends the Board authorize the 

129



Executive Director to finalize and execute separate agreements between STA and the 
Elsie Gridley Mitigation Bank and the Jenny Farms Mitigation Bank.  Should any 
substantial changes to one of more of the draft agreements be required, the agreement(s) 
would be brought back to the Board for approval.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The seasonal wetland and Swainson’s Hawk mitigation for the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia 
Truck Scales Relocation Project is being funded with Bridge Toll funds.   
 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to finalize and execute separate agreements with Elsie 
Gridley Mitigation Bank for $14,000 for seasonal wetland mitigation and Jenny Farms 
Mitigation Bank for $95,950 for Swainson’s Hawk mitigation for the I-80 Eastbound 
Truck Scales Relocation Project.  
 
Attachments:   

A. Agreement with Elsie Gridley Mitigation Bank 
B. Agreement with Jenny Farms Mitigation Bank 

130



Wetland Resources LLC 

3030 Bridgeway, Suite 216, Sausalito, CA 94965 

ELSIE GRIDLEY MITIGATION BANK 
USACE: 200000614 

 
 

AGREEMENT FOR SALE OF  WETLAND  CREDITS 
SPN-2008-00358 S 

 
This Agreement is entered into this 30th day of June, 2010, by and between Wetland 
Resources LLC. (WRLLC), and Solano Transportation Authority jointly referred to as 
the “Parties,” as follows: 

 
RECITALS 

 
A. The WRLLC has developed the Elsie Gridley Mitigation Bank (Bank) located in 

Solano County, California; and 
  
B. The Bank was approved by the U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service) on 

October 25, 2005, and by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) on 
January 27 and March 8, 2006, and by the California Department of Fish and 
Game on December 19, 2005, and is currently in good standing with the 
applicable resource agencies; and 

 
C. The WRLLC has received approval from the USACE to offer Mitigation Credits 

(Credits) at the Bank for sale as compensation for impacts to wetlands and/or 
other waters of the US; and 

 
D. The Solano Transportation Authority is seeking to implement the project 

described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto (Project), which would unavoidably and 
adversely impact wetlands and/or other waters of the US and seeks to compensate 
for those said impacts by purchasing Mitigation Credits from the WRLLC at the 
Bank; and 

 
E. Solano Transportation Authority desire to purchase from WRLLC and WRLLC’s 

desire to sell to the Solano Transportation Authority Seasonal wetland credits. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. Upon exercise of the Solano Transportation Authority right to purchase, 
further described in Provision 5 below, the Bank will sell to  Solano 
Transportation Authority and Solano Transportation Authority will purchase 
from WRLLC  0.12 acres of  seasonal wetlands for the  $14,000.00.  Upon 
payment of the Purchase Price, WRLLC will deliver to the Solano 
Transportation Authority an executed Bill of Sale in the manner and form as 

ATTACHMENT A 

131



attached hereto and marked Exhibit “B”.  The sale and transfer herein is not 
intended as a sale or transfer to the  Solano Transportation Authority of a 
security, license, lease, easement, or possessory or non-possessory interest in 
real property, not the granting of any interest of the foregoing. 

 
2. The Solano Transportation Authority shall have no obligation whatsoever by 

reason of the purchase of the   Wetland Credits, to support, pay for, monitor, 
report on, sustain, continue in perpetuity, or otherwise be obligated or liable 
for the success or continued expense or maintenance in perpetuity of the 
Wetland Credits sold, or the Bank.  Pursuant to the Elsie Gridley Mitigation 
Bank Enabling Instrument with the USACE dated October 25, 2005, which by 
this reference is incorporated herein, and any amendments thereto, WRLLC 
shall monitor and make reports to the appropriate agency or agencies on the 
status of any Credit sold to the Solano Transportation Authority   WRLLC 
shall be fully and completely responsible for satisfying any and all conditions 
placed on the Bank or the Wetland Credits by all state or federal jurisdictional 
agencies.  WRLLC shall hereby indemnify, protect and defend the Solano 
Transportation Authority against and from all such liability, responsibilities 
and obligations. 

 
3. The Wetland Credits sold and transferred to the Solano Transportation 

Authority pursuant to the Agreement shall be non-transferable and non-
assignable, and shall not be used as compensatory mitigation for any other 
Project or purpose, except as mutually agreed to by the Parties in a signed 
written amendment to this Agreement. 

 
4. Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this Agreement, Solano 

Transportation Authority must exercise its right to purchase the Wetland 
Credits by submitting the Purchase Price to WRLLC.  If the Solano 
Transportation Authority fails to submit the Purchase Price to WRLLC with in 
sixty (60) days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, this Agreement will 
be considered null and void. 

 
5. Upon purchase of the Wetland Credits, WRLLC shall complete the payment 

receipt from attached hereto as Exhibit “C”, and shall submit the completed 
payment receipt to the Service. 

 
7.    This Agreement shall be effective as of the date of that last signature 

(“Effective Date”). 

132



 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as follows. 
 
 
 WETLAND RESOURCES LLC,  

Elsie Gridley Mitigation Bank 
 
 

 
 By:____________________________________  

Date: _____________________ 
                

Solano Transportation Authority 
 
 By:____________________________________       

Date:  __________________  
               

133



 
              Exhibit “A” 

 
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

TO BE MITIGATED 
 

80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

134



Exhibit “B” 
 

BILL OF SALE 
 
 

SPN-2008-00358 S 
 
 
 

 In consideration of $ _____, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Wetland Resources LLC 
does hereby bargain, sell, and transfer to the Solano Transportation Authority  0.12 acres of seasonal 
wetlands, for the 80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales project from the Wetland Resources LLC in 
Solano County, California, developed, and approved by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the Army 
Corps of Engineers, and California Department of Fish and Game. 

 
 Wetland Resources LLC represents and warrants that it has good title to the credits, has good right to  
 sell the same, and that they are free and clear of all claims, liens, or encumbrances. 
 

Wetland Resources LLC covenants and agrees with the buyer to warrant and defend the sale of the 
credits herein before described against all and every person and persons whomsoever lawfully claiming 
or to claim the same. 

 
 
 Dated:  ____________________________ 
 
 
 Wetland Resources LLC, 
 Elsie Gridley Mitigation Bank 
 
 
 By:  _________________________________ 

  
 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

135



 
Exhibit “C” 

WETLAND RESOURCES LLC 
 

  PAYMENT RECEIPT 
 

 
  PARTICIPANT INFORMATION 
 

  Name:  Solano Transportation Authority 
  Address: 
                                 
           Telephone: 
  Contact:  
 
  PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
  Project Description:   
 

  Permit Number:  
 

Species/Habitat Affected:  
 

  Credits to be Purchased:  
  Payment Amount: 
   
                     Project Location:  
   
                     County/Address:  
 
 
  PAYMENT INFORMATION 
 
  Payer:   
  Payee:  Wetland Resources LLC, Elsie Gridley Mitigation Bank 
 

  Amount:   
 

  Method of Payment:  Cash  ___         Check No.  ____________________________ 
 

   
  Received by:  _______________________________________  Date:  __________________ 
                           (Signature) 
 
  Name:  _______________________________ 
    Title:    Manager 

 

136



 

137



1 

AGREEMENT FOR SALE OF CONSERVATION CREDITS 
JENNY FARMS CONSERVATION BANK 

 
I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project 

CEQA State Clearinghouse #2008052067  
 

 
This Agreement is entered into this _____ day of __________, 2010, by and between WILDLANDS, 
INC., a Delaware corporation (Bank Owner) and the CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION (Department), jointly referred to as the “Parties,” as follows: 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. The Bank Owner has developed the Jenny Farms Conservation Bank (Bank) located in 
Solano County, California; and 
 

B. The Bank was approved by the California Department of Fish and Game (CDF&G) on 
December 16, 2005, and is currently in good standing with this agency; and 
 
 C. The Bank Owner has received approval from the CDF&G to offer Swainson’s hawk and 
burrowing owl credits (Conservation Credits) for sale as compensation for the loss of Swainson’s hawk 
foraging and/or burrowing owl habitat as specified in the Conservation Bank Agreement through the 
Agreement for Sale of Conservation Credits (Bank Agreement); and 
 
 D. Department is seeking to implement the project described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
(Project), which would unavoidably and adversely impact Swainson's hawk foraging habitat thereon, and 
seeks to compensate for the loss of Swainson's hawk foraging habitat by purchasing Conservation Credits 
from Bank Owner; and 
 
 E. Department has been authorized by CDF&G under CEQA State Clearinghouse Number 
2008052067 to purchase from the Bank Owner 19.19 Conservation Credits upon confirmation by the 
Bank Owner of credit availability/adequate balance of credits remaining for sale; and 
 
 F. Department desires to purchase from Bank Owner and Bank Owner desires to sell to 
Department 19.19 Conservation Credits; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 1. Upon exercise of the Department’s right to purchase, further described in Provision 5 
below, Bank Owner will hereby sell to Department and Department will hereby purchase from Bank 
Owner 19.19 Conservation Credits from the Bank for the lump sum purchase price of $95,950.00 
(Purchase Price).  Upon payment of the Purchase Price, Bank Owner will then immediately deliver to 
Department an executed Bill of Sale and Payment Receipt in the manner and form as attached hereto and 
marked Exhibit “B” and Exhibit “C”, respectively.  The Purchase Price for the 19.19 Conservation 
Credits shall be paid by Department with a State of California warrant or check payable to Wildlands, Inc. 
 

2. The sale and transfer herein is not intended as a sale or transfer to Department of a 
security, license, lease, easement, or possessory or non-possessory interest in real property, nor the 
granting of any interest of the foregoing. 
 

138

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



 

2 

 3. Department shall have no obligation whatsoever by reason of the purchase of the 
Conservation Credits, to support, pay for, monitor, report on, sustain, continue in perpetuity, or otherwise 
be obligated or liable for the success or continued expense or maintenance in perpetuity of the 
Conservation Credits sold, or the Bank.  As required by law and the Bank Agreement, Bank Owner shall 
monitor and make reports to the appropriate agency or agencies on the status of any Conservation Credits 
sold to Department.  Bank Owner shall be fully and completely responsible for satisfying any and all 
conditions placed on the Bank or the Conservation Credits, by all state or federal jurisdictional agencies.  
Bank Owner hereby shall indemnify, defend and hold-harmless the Department of and from all such 
liabilities and obligations. 
 
 4. The 19.19 Conservation Credits sold and transferred to Department shall be 
nontransferable and non-assignable, and shall not be used as compensatory mitigation for any other 
Project or purpose, except as set forth herein this provision 4.  The Parties agree that if the actual number 
of compensatory credits required to compensate for the Project’s impacts are less than 19.19 Conservation 
Credits, then the Department has the exclusive right, subject only to CDF&G approval, to utilize the 
difference between the number purchased and the actual number required, for one or more other 
transportation projects. 
 
 5. Within sixty (60) days from the Effective Date of this Agreement, Department must 
exercise its right to purchase the 19.19 Conservation Credits by submitting the Purchase Price to 
Wildlands, Inc.  If Department fails to exercise its right to purchase the 19.19 Conservation Credits within 
60 days from the Effective Date of this Agreement, then this Agreement will be considered null and void. 
 

6. Within seven (7) days of payment of the Purchase Price by the Department, the Bank 
Owner shall submit the completed Payment Receipt in the manner and form as attached hereto and 
marked Exhibit “C” to CDF&G.  
 

7. In the event that the Bank Owner defaults on its obligations and responsibilities set forth 
herein or the purposes for which the Bank was created are extinguished, and as a result, Department is not 
able to utilize the 19.19 Conservation Credits as contemplated by this Agreement, Bank Owner shall 
reimburse Department the amount of the Purchase Price adjusted to fair market value of the said 19.19 
Conservation Credits at the time of default or extinguishment.   
 
 8. Bank Owner confirms by signing this Agreement that Bank Owner is authorized to sell 
19.19 Conservation Credits and said credits are currently available for sale from the Bank. 
  
 9. The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be the date of the last signature. 
 
 

The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

139



 

3 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as follows: 
 
 

BANK OWNER: 
 
WILDLANDS, INC. 
 
By: _______________________________________________ Date: _____________________ 
Name: 
Its: 
 
 
 
  DEPARTMENT: 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
Department of Transportation 
 
By: _______________________________________________ Date: _____________________ 
Name: 
Its: 
 
 
 
 
 

140



 

4 

Exhibit “A” 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 
TO BE 

MITIGATED 
 
 The California Department of Transportation in cooperation with the Solano Transportation 
Authority proposes to move and rebuild the Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales at a new location on 
Interstate 80 in Solano County, California.  Project is identified as EA 0A5350. 
 
The Cordelia Truck Scales are located within the Interstate 80 /Interstate 680/State Route 12 interchange 
in Solano County, in the vicinity of Fairfield and Suisun City between post miles 14.0 and 15.7 on I-80 
and L1.8 and L 2.0 on the SR 12. The project area extends along I-80 from the Scandia Family Center 
east to the SR 12 East interchange with I-80 and continues east along SR 12E to Chadbourne Road, for 
approximately 2 miles. The proposed Project is located within the Fairfield South 7.5-minute United 
States Geological Survey (USGS) quadrangle; Township 5N, Range 2W of the Mt. Diablo Meridian. 
 
 

***** 
 

141



 

5 

Exhibit “B” 
 

BILL OF SALE 
 

Contract # JFCB-10-      
 

I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project 
CEQA State Clearinghouse #2008052067 

EA 0A5350 
 
 

 In consideration of $95,950.00, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, WILDLANDS, INC. 
(Bank Owner) does hereby bargain, sell and transfer to the CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION (Department), 19.19  Swainson's hawk Conservation Credits in the Jenny Farms 
Conservation Bank in Solano County, California, developed, and approved by the California Department 
of Fish and Game. 
 
 Bank Owner represents and warrants that it has good title to the credits, has good right to sell the 
same, and that they are free and clear of all claims, liens, or encumbrances. 
 
 Bank Owner covenants and agrees with the buyer to warrant and defend the sale of the credits 
hereinbefore described against all and every person and persons whomsoever lawfully claiming or to 
claim the same. 
 
 
Dated: ______________________________________ 
 
Jenny Farms Conservation Bank 
WILDLANDS, INC. 
 
By: ___________________________________________ 
Name: 
Its: 
 

142



 

6 

Exhibit “C” 
 

JENNY FARMS CONSERVATION BANK 
 SWAINSON'S HAWK CREDITS: PAYMENT RECEIPT 

 
PARTICIPANT INFORMATION 
 
Name:  CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
Address: 11 Grand Avenue 
   P.O. Box 23660 
                   Oakland, CA  94623-0660 
 
Telephone:       
 
Contact:        
 
PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
Project Description:  I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project (EA 0A5350) 
 
CEQA State Clearinghouse Number:  2008052067 
 
Species/Habitat Affected: 25.59 acres Swainson's hawk foraging habitat 
 
Credits to be Purchased:  19.19 (0.75:1 ratio)  
 
Payment Amount:  $95,950.00 
 
Project Location:  I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange  
 
County/Address: Solano County 
 
PAYMENT INFORMATION 
 
Payee:  Wildlands, Inc. 
 
Payer:  California Department of Transportation 
 
Amount: Ninety-Five Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty and No/100ths dollars ($95,950.00) 
 
Method of payment:  Cash   Check No.        Money Order No.       
 
Received by: ____________________________________________ Date: ________________ 
    (Signature) 
 
Name: ________________________________________ Title:____________________________ 

 
 

z: marketing/agreements/saleJennyFarmsCALTRANSCORDELIA 
Revised: 06/30/2010 

143



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

144



Agenda Item VIII.T 
July 14, 2010 

 
 

 
 

 
DATE:  July 2, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Janet Adams, Deputy Executive Director/Director of Projects 
RE: Advertise and Award Tree Removal Contracts for I-80 Eastbound Truck 

Scales Relocation Project 
 
 
Background: 
STA has been actively working with the State of California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans), California Highway Patrol (CHP) and the Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA) to deliver the I-80 Eastbound (EB) Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project.  
The existing Eastbound Truck Scales which were constructed in 1958, are seriously 
undersized and unable to process the existing truck volumes let alone the future projected 
truck volumes.  The purpose of the Project is to construct new eastbound truck scales 
with the capacity to accommodate the anticipated 115% growth in truck traffic in the 
corridor by 2035; to provide traffic congestion relief in this section of I-80 due by 
reducing truck /auto weaving and queuing; and to improve the reliability of the system 
with increased capacity and up-to-date equipment.  The Project will rebuild and relocate 
the Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Facility, build a 2-lane bridge across Suisun Creek, 
and construct braided ramps from the new truck scales facility to EB I-80 and EB SR 12 
ramps. 
 
Discussion: 
STA is leading the design phase for the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation 
Project and will also be taking the lead with tree removal contracts for the Project.  The 
tree removal activities at Suisun Creek need to be completed prior to October 15, 2010 
and the balance of the tree removal activities need to be completed by February 15, 2011 
(start of bird nesting season) to facilitate Caltrans advertising the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia 
Truck Scales Relocation Project for construction, which is scheduled to start in the 
summer 2011.   
 
Staff recommends that the Board authorize the Executive Director to advertise one or 
more tree removal contracts in accordance with all applicable sections of the California 
Public Contract Code and solicit bids for their construction.  These contract(s) will be 
advertised for a minimum of twenty-one days with bids anticipated to be opened in late 
August.  Since the STA Board will not be meeting in August, staff also recommends the 
Board authorize the Executive Director to award the contract(s) to the lowest responsible 
and responsive bidder, once the bids are received and reviewed. 
 

145



Fiscal Impact:  
The tree removal contracts for the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation 
Project are being funded with Bridge Toll funds all ready allocated to the Project.   
 
Recommendation:    
Approve Resolution No. 2010-11 authorizing the Executive Director to advertise and 
award one or more tree removal contract(s) for the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales 
Relocation Project for a total amount not-to-exceed $120,000 plus a 20% contingency. 
 
Attachment:   

A. Resolution No. 2010-11  
 

146



ATTACHMENT A 
 
 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION 2010-11 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
TO AUTHORIZE ADVERTISING AND AWARDING TREE REMOVAL 

CONTRACT(S) REQUIRED FOR THE I-80 EASTBOUND TRUCK SCALES 
RELOCATION PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE RELATED ACTIONS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE TREE REMOVAL CONTRACT(S) 

 
WHEREAS, Caltrans approved the Environmental Impact Report/Environmental 
Assessment (EIR/EA) and Project Report for the I-80 Eastbound Truck Scales Relocation 
Project (and associated SID utility relocations) in October 2009; and 
 
WHEREAS, STA, as a Responsible Agency, approved Resolution No. 2010-02, 
including acceptance of the Environmental Impact Report prepared by Caltrans for the 
Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, STA accepted the Caltrans prepared Project Report and approved the build 
alternative for the I-80 EB Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of the Solano 
Transportation Authority hereby:      
 

1. Approves the Tree Removal Contract(s), Notice to Contractors and Special 
Provisions. 

 
2. Determines that the Tree Removal Contract(s) are in compliance with the 

California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code §21000, et seq.), 
and have been fully analyzed in the following documents:  Environmental Impact 
Report/Environmental Assessment (EIR/EA) and Project Report for the I-80 
Eastbound Truck Scales Relocation Project (and associated SID utility 
relocations) in October 2009 and Re-validation. 

 
3. Authorizes the Executive Director or his designee to award the contract(s) on 

behalf of the STA Board for furnishing labor, equipment, and materials for the 
Tree Removal Contract(s) to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder and 
requires the contractor to present surety bonds for payment and faithful 
performance equal to the bid amount(s) for an amount not to exceed $120,000. 

 
4. Authorizes the Executive Director or his designee to sign the contract(s) on behalf 

of the STA Board subject to the Executive Director or his designee having 
reviewed and found sufficient all required documents, including the contract 
signed by the contractor and the required surety bonds and certificates of 
insurance. 

147



5. Directs that, in accordance with the project specifications and/or upon the 
execution of the contract(s) by the Executive Director or designee, any bid bonds 
posted by the bidders be exonerated and any checks or cash submitted for bid 
security be returned. 

 
6. Authorizes the Executive Director or his designee to execute required contract 

change orders for up to 20% of the bid amount(s). 
 

7. Authorizes the Executive Director or his designee to sign any escrow agreements 
prepared for this project to permit direct payment of retention into escrow or the 
substitution of securities for moneys withheld by the STA to ensure performance 
under the contract pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 22300. 

 
8. Delegates the STA Board’s functions under Public Contract Code Sections 4107 

and 4110 to the Executive Director or his designee. 
 

9. Pursuant to Section 6705 of the Labor Code, delegate to a registered civil or 
structural engineer employed by the STA and so designated by the Executive 
Director, the authority to accept detailed plans showing the design of shoring, 
bracing, sloping, or other provisions to be made for worker protection during 
trench excavating covered by that section. 

 
10. Declare that, should the contract(s) award be invalidated for any reason, the STA 

Board in any event would not have awarded the contract(s) to the second bidder 
or any other bidder but instead would have exercised its discretion to reject all of 
the bids received. Nothing herein shall prevent the Board from awarding the 
contract(s) to another bidder in cases where the successful bidder establishes a 
mistake, refuses to sign the contract(s), or fails to furnish required bonds or 
insurance (see Public Contract Code Sections 5100 et seq.). 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Board of the Solano Transportation Authority, held on the 14th day 
July, 2010, by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:  __________ 
Nos:  __________ 
Absent: __________ 
Abstain: __________ 
 
Attest by: _________________________________ 
  Johanna Masiclat 
  Clerk of the Board 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Pete Sanchez, Chair 
       Solano Transportation Authority 
 
 

148



I, Daryl K. Halls, the Solano Transportation Authority Executive Director, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing resolution was introduced, passed, and adopted by 
said Authority at a regular meeting thereof held this the day of July 14, 2010.  
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Daryl K. Halls, Executive Director 
       Solano Transportation Authority 
     

149



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

150



Agenda Item VIII.U 
July 14, 2010 

 
 

 
 

 
DATE:  July 2, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Janet Adams, Deputy Executive Director/Director of Projects 
RE: Utility Relocation Agreements for I-80 Eastbound Truck Scales 

Relocation Project 
 
 
Background: 
STA has been actively working with the State of California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans), California Highway Patrol (CHP) and the Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA) to deliver the I-80 Eastbound (EB) Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project.  
The existing Eastbound Truck Scales which were constructed in 1958, are seriously 
undersized and unable to process the existing truck volumes let alone the future projected 
truck volumes.  The purpose of the Project is to construct new eastbound truck scales 
with the capacity to accommodate the anticipated 115% growth in truck traffic in the 
corridor by 2035; to provide traffic congestion relief in this section of I-80 due by 
reducing truck /auto weaving and queuing; and to improve the reliability of the system 
with increased capacity and up-to-date equipment.  The Project will rebuild and relocate 
the Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Facility, build a 2-lane bridge across Suisun Creek, 
and construct braided ramps from the new truck scales facility to EB I-80 and EB SR 12 
ramps. 
 
Discussion: 
STA is leading the design phase for the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation 
Project and will also be taking the lead with utility relocations for the Project.  The utility 
relocations (PG&E and Solano Irrigation District (SID) facilities), need to be completed 
in advance of Caltrans advertising the project for construction, which is scheduled to start 
in the summer 2011.   
 
Several agreements need to be executed for relocating various utilities, including the 
following: 1) 115 Kv PG&E electrical transmission line; 2) 12Kv PG&E electrical 
distribution line; 3) PG&E gas distribution line; and 4) various SID facilities.  Draft 
agreements have been prepared and are attached (Attachments A and B).  Staff 
recommends the Board authorize the Executive Director to finalize and execute separate 
agreements between STA and PG&E and SID as required.  Should any substantial 
changes to one of more of the draft agreements be required, the agreement(s) would be 
brought back to the Board for approval.  
 
PG&E will be relocating their own facilities, but STA will be advertising and awarding 
the construction contract(s) to relocate SID facilities.  STA’s design consultant, HDR, has 
completed the design for relocation of various SID facilities that are in conflict with the 

151



new truck scale facility.  As such, staff recommends that the Board authorize the 
Executive Director to advertise one or more construction contracts for SID Utility 
Relocations in accordance with all applicable sections of the California Public Contract 
Code and solicit bids for their construction.  The construction contract(s) will be 
advertised for a minimum of twenty-one days with bids anticipated to be opened in late 
August. Since the STA Board will not be meeting in August, staff also recommends the 
Board authorize the Executive Director to award the contract(s) to the lowest responsible 
and responsive bidder, once the bids are received and reviewed. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
The SID Utility Relocation Contract(s) for the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales 
Relocation Project are being funded with Bridge Toll funds already allocated to the 
Project.   
 
Recommendation:    
Approve the following: 

1. Authorize the Executive Director to finalize and execute separate agreements 
between STA, PG&E and Solano Irrigation District (SID) as required; and 

2. Approve Resolution No. 2010-12 authorizing the Executive Director to advertise 
and award one or more construction contracts for the SID Utility Relocations for a 
total amount not to exceed $900,000 plus 20% contingency. 

 
Attachments:   

A. STA and PG&E Agreements 
B. STA and SID Agreement 
C. Resolution No. 2010-12  

 
 

152



DISTRICT 
4 

COUNTY 
Solano 

ROUTE 
80 / SR 12 

POST MILE 
80 PM 14.0 to 
15.7 
SR12 PM L1.8 
to 2.0 

EA 
0A5351 

FEDERAL AID NO. 
                                   NA 

UTILITY OWNER 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company 

FEDERAL PARTICIPATION 
 
                                        On The Project  Yes   No 

 
 
On The Utilities   Yes    No 

 
UTILITY AGREEMENT NO.  04-UT-1810.1 

 
DATE        TBD 

 
The Solano Transportation Authority, hereinafter called “STA,” in cooperation with the California Department 
of Transportation (“Caltrans”), proposes to replace the existing Interstate 80 Eastbound Cordelia Commercial 
Vehicle Enforcement Facility (CVEF) and relocate it one-half mile further east, in and near the City of Fairfield, 
County of Solano, State of California. 
And 
 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company 
 
Herein after called “OWNER,” owns and maintains 

Within the limits of STA’s project which requires 

ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES 

To accommodate STA’s project. 

RELOCATION OF ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION 
FACILITIES 

  It is hereby mutually agreed that:  
 

I. WORK TO BE DONE 
 
In accordance with Notice to Owner No. 1810.1 dated       DATE TBD     , OWNER shall relocate its existing 12kv 
overhead electric distribution line.  All work shall be performed substantially in accordance with OWNER's Plan No. 
30748732 dated December 21, 2009 consisting of two (2) sheets, a copy of which is on file in the Office of the STA at 
One Harbor Center, Suite 130, Suisun City, CA 94585

 

. Deviations from the OWNER’s plan described above initiated 
by either the STA or the OWNER, shall be agreed upon by both parties hereto under a Revised Notice to Owner. Such 
Revised Notices to Owner, approved by the STA and acknowledged by the OWNER, will constitute an approved 
revision of the OWNER’s plan described above and are hereby made a part hereof.  No work under said deviation shall 
commence prior to receipt by the OWNER of the Revised Notice to Owner. Changes in the scope of the work will 
require an amendment to this Agreement in addition to the revised Notice to Owner. 

 

153



 
STA’s project 

The Solano Transportation Authority (STA), in partnership with the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) and the California Highway Patrol (CHP), proposes to replace the existing Eastbound Interstate 80 
Cordelia Commercial Vehicle Enforcement Facility (CVEF) and relocate it one-half mile further east. 
Relocating and reconstructing the truck scales will improve congestion and reduce conflicts between truck 
and car traffic on I-80. The STA has committed to delivering the project, which will be operated by the CHP 
and maintained by Caltrans.  Construction is expected to begin in 2011 and be complete by 2014. 
 

 

OWNER’s ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES and RELOCATIONS OF DISTRIBUTION 
FACILITIES 

The existing PG&E 12kV overhead electric distribution line runs more or less north-south along Suisun 
Creek, crossing over Interstate 80 just east of Suisun Creek.  Just south of Interstate 80, the line crosses from 
the east side of Suisun Creek to the west side, and crosses over the proposed location of the proposed new 
Suisun Creek Bridge for the new off-ramp for the new EB Cordelia Commercial Vehicle Enforcement 
Facility (CVEF).  Because the overhead line would present problems for cranes and other construction 
equipment during construction of the new Suisun Creek Bridge, Solano Transportation Authority (STA) has 
asked PG&E to relocate about 600 feet of this line, including three (3) poles.  Also, if the line were not 
relocated, one of the existing PG&E poles would be inside the new Caltrans right of way/access control line, 
in-between the Interstate 80 mainline and the new truck scales off-ramp, a situation that would be 
inconsistent with Caltrans encroachment policy on freeways. 
 
In addition to the overhead distribution line, a PG&E overhead electric service line (about 1645 feet long, 
with six (6) poles) south of I-80 and east of Suisun Creek that currently serves buildings on the Solano 
County property will be relocated.  A portion of this line will become a distribution line, serving both the 
remaining warehouse building on the Solano County property, and also providing electric service to the new 
CVEF.  The new service line will be located outside of the new Caltrans right of way. 
 

II. LIABILITY FOR WORK 
 

 The existing facilities described in Section I above will be relocated at STA’s expense at 100% STA’s expense and 0%

 

 
OWNER’s expense in accordance with Section 5(A) of the Master Agreement dated November 1, 2004. 

III. PERFORMANCE OF WORK 
 

  OWNER agrees to perform the herein-described work with its own forces or to cause the herein described work to be 
performed by the OWNER's contractor, employed by written contract on a continuing basis to perform work of this 
type, and to provide and furnish all necessary labor, materials, tools, and equipment required therefore; and to 
prosecute said work diligently to completion. 
 

IV. PAYMENT FOR WORK 
 
The STA shall pay its share of the actual cost of the herein described work within 90 days after receipt of OWNER's 
itemized bill in quintuplicate, signed by a responsible official of OWNER's organization and prepared on OWNER's 
letterhead, compiled on the basis of the actual cost and expense incurred and charged or allocated to said work in 
accordance with the uniform system of accounts prescribed for OWNER by the California Public Utilities Commission 
(PUC) or Federal Communications Commission (FCC), whichever is applicable. 

 
 It is understood and agreed that the STA will not pay for any betterment or increase in capacity of OWNER's facilities 

in the new location and that OWNER shall give credit to the STA for all accrued depreciation on the replaced facilities 
and for the salvage value of any material or parts salvaged and retained or sold by OWNER. 
 

154



Not more frequently than once a month, but at least quarterly, OWNER will prepare and submit progress bills for costs 
incurred not to exceed OWNER's recorded costs as of the billing date less estimated credits applicable to completed 
work. Payment of progress bills not to exceed the amount of this Agreement may be made under the terms of this 
Agreement. Payment of progress bills which exceed the amount of this Agreement may be made after receipt and 
approval by STA of documentation supporting the cost increase and after an Amendment to this Agreement has been 
executed by the parties to this Agreement. 

 
 The OWNER shall submit a final bill to the STA within 180 days after the completion of the work described in Section 

I above. If the STA has not received a final bill within 180 days after notification of completion of OWNER’s work 
described in Section I of this Agreement, and STA has delivered to OWNER fully executed Director's Deeds, Consents 
to Common Use or Joint Use Agreements as required for OWNER’s facilities; STA will provide written notification to 
OWNER of its intent to close its file within 30 days and OWNER hereby acknowledges, to the extent allowed by law 
that all remaining costs will be deemed to have been abandoned. 

 
 The final billing shall be in the form of an itemized statement of the total costs charged to the project, less the credits 

provided for in this Agreement, and less any amounts covered by progress billings.  However, the STA shall not pay 
final bills, which exceed the estimated cost of this Agreement without documentation of the reason for the increase of 
said cost from the OWNER. If the final bill exceeds the OWNER’s estimated costs solely as the result of a revised 
Notice to Owner as provided for in Section I, a copy of said revised Notice to Owner shall suffice as documentation. 

 
 In any event if the final bill exceeds 125% of the estimated cost of this Agreement, an amended Agreement shall be 

executed by the parties to this Agreement prior to the payment of the OWNERS final bill. Any and all increases in 
costs that are the direct result of deviations from the work described in Section I of this Agreement shall have the prior 
concurrence of STA. 

 
Detailed records from which the billing is compiled shall be retained by the OWNER for a period of three years from 
the date of the final payment and will be available for audit in accordance with Contract Cost Principals and 
Procedures as set forth in 48 CFR, Chapter 1, Part 31 by STA and/or Federal Auditors. 

 
 

V. GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
All costs accrued by OWNER as a result of STA's request of March 12, 2009 to review, study and/or prepare 
relocation plans and estimates and perform inspections for the project associated with this Agreement may be billed 
pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
If STA's project which precipitated this Agreement is canceled or modified so as to eliminate the necessity of work by 
OWNER, STA will notify OWNER in writing, and STA reserves the right to terminate this Agreement by 
Amendment. The Amendment shall provide mutually acceptable terms and conditions for terminating the Agreement. 
 
OWNER shall submit a Notice of Completion to the STA within 30 days of the completion of the work described 
herein. 
 
STA will acquire new rights of way in the name of Caltrans, STA or OWNER through negotiation or condemnation 
and when acquired in either Caltrans or STA's name, shall convey same to OWNER by Easement Deed. STA's liability 
for such rights of way will be at the proration shown for relocation work involved under this Agreement. 
 
Where OWNER has prior rights in areas which will be within the highway right of way and where OWNER's facilities 
will remain on or be relocated on Caltrans highway right of way, a Joint Use Agreement or Consent to Common Use 
Agreement shall be executed by the parties. 
 
Upon completion of the work to be done by STA in accordance with the above-mentioned plans and specifications, the 
new facilities shall become the property of OWNER, and OWNER shall have the same rights in the new location that 
it had in the old location. 
 

155



It is understood that said highway is a federal-aid highway and accordingly, 23 CFR  Part 645 is hereby incorporated 
into this Agreement by reference; provided, however, the provisions of any agreements entered into between the STA 
and the OWNER pursuant to state law for apportioning the obligations and costs to be borne by each, or the use of 
accounting procedures prescribed by the applicable federal or state regulatory body and approved by the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA), shall govern in lieu of the requirements of said 23 CFR Part 645. 
 
THE ESTIMATED COST TO THE STA FOR ITS SHARE OF THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED WORK IS $201,24
 

7. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above parties have executed this Agreement the day and year above written. 
 
 
SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY: 
 
 
By: 

 
PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY: 
 
 
By:                

           Daryl Halls                                          Date 
           Executive Director 

      Name                                                                            Date 
 
      Title 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND PROCEDURE: 
 
By: 

 
 
By: 

         Charles Lamoree                                    Date 
         STA Legal Counsel                                        

      Name                                                                            Date 
 
      Title 

 

 

 
Distribution:  1 original to STA 
      1 original to PG&E 
      1 copy to Caltrans R/W Utility File 

156



DISTRICT 
4 

COUNTY 
Solano 

ROUTE 
80 / SR 12 

POST MILE 
80 PM 14.0 to 
15.7 
SR12 PM L1.8 
to 2.0 

EA 
0A5351 

FEDERAL AID NO. 
                                   NA 

UTILITY OWNER 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company 

FEDERAL PARTICIPATION 
 
                                        On The Project  Yes   No 

 
 
On The Utilities   Yes    No 

 
UTILITY AGREEMENT NO.  04-UT-1810.3 

 
DATE        TBD 

 
The Solano Transportation Authority, hereinafter called “STA,” in cooperation with the California Department 
of Transportation (“Caltrans”), proposes to replace the existing Interstate 80 Eastbound Cordelia Commercial 
Vehicle Enforcement Facility (CVEF) and relocate it one-half mile further east, in and near the City of Fairfield, 
County of Solano, State of California. 
And 
 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company 
 
Herein after called “OWNER,” owns and maintains 

Within the limits of STA’s project which requires 

GAS TRANSMISSION FACILITY 

To accommodate STA’s project. 

RELOCATION OF GAS TRANSMISSION FACILITY 

  It is hereby mutually agreed that:  
 

I. WORK TO BE DONE 
 
In accordance with Notice to Owner No. 1810.3 dated       DATE TBD     , OWNER shall relocate its existing 
underground 6” steel gas line, and extend the existing 24” casing around the gas line to the new Caltrans right of way 
line.  All work shall be performed substantially in accordance with OWNER's Plan No. XXXXXXXX dated 
XXXXXXXXXXXX consisting of XXXXX sheets, a copy of which is on file in the Office of the STA at One Harbor 
Center, Suite 130, Suisun City, CA 94585

 

. Deviations from the OWNER’s plan described above initiated by either the 
STA or the OWNER, shall be agreed upon by both parties hereto under a Revised Notice to Owner. Such Revised 
Notices to Owner, approved by the STA and acknowledged by the OWNER, will constitute an approved revision of 
the OWNER’s plan described above and are hereby made a part hereof.  No work under said deviation shall commence 
prior to receipt by the OWNER of the Revised Notice to Owner. Changes in the scope of the work will require an 
amendment to this Agreement in addition to the revised Notice to Owner. 

 

157



 
STA’s project 

The Solano Transportation Authority (STA), in partnership with the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) and the California Highway Patrol (CHP), proposes to replace the existing Eastbound Interstate 80 
Cordelia Commercial Vehicle Enforcement Facility (CVEF) and relocate it one-half mile further east. 
Relocating and reconstructing the truck scales will improve congestion and reduce conflicts between truck 
and car traffic on I-80. The STA has committed to delivering the project, which will be operated by the CHP 
and maintained by Caltrans.  Construction is expected to begin in 2011 and be complete by 2014. 
 

 

OWNER’s GAS TRANSMISSION FACILITY and RELOCATIONS OF GAS TRANSMISSION 
FACILITY 

About 15 feet of the existing underground PG&E 6” gas transmission line that crosses under Interstate 80 
near the junction of Busch Drive and Hale Ranch Road must be relocated and the existing 24” steel casing 
around the 6” gas line must be extended to the new Caltrans right of way line.  This gas line, which because 
of its 275 psig pressure, is classified by Caltrans as a “High Risk Facility”, and is required to be encased 
within the Caltrans right of way.  The existing 6” gas line is inside a 24” casing inside the existing right of 
way, but the new right of way line at this location will be about 15 feet to the south of the existing right of 
way, so the 24” casing must be extended. Because this section of the line is not straight (goes from about 13 
feet below ground surface to about 4 feet below ground surface) in this section, the 6” gas line must be 
relocated so that the 24” casing can be extended. 
 

II. LIABILITY FOR WORK 
 

 The existing facilities described in Section I above will be relocated at STA’s expense at 0% STA’s expense and 100%

 

 
OWNER’s expense in accordance with Section 5(B) of the Master Agreement dated November 1, 2004. 

III. PERFORMANCE OF WORK 
 

  OWNER agrees to perform the herein-described work with its own forces or to cause the herein described work to be 
performed by the OWNER's contractor, employed by written contract on a continuing basis to perform work of this 
type, and to provide and furnish all necessary labor, materials, tools, and equipment required therefore; and to 
prosecute said work diligently to completion. 
 

IV. PAYMENT FOR WORK 
 
The STA shall pay its share of the actual cost of the herein described work within 90 days after receipt of OWNER's 
itemized bill in quintuplicate, signed by a responsible official of OWNER's organization and prepared on OWNER's 
letterhead, compiled on the basis of the actual cost and expense incurred and charged or allocated to said work in 
accordance with the uniform system of accounts prescribed for OWNER by the California Public Utilities Commission 
(PUC) or Federal Communications Commission (FCC), whichever is applicable. 

 
 It is understood and agreed that the STA will not pay for any betterment or increase in capacity of OWNER's facilities 

in the new location and that OWNER shall give credit to the STA for all accrued depreciation on the replaced facilities 
and for the salvage value of any material or parts salvaged and retained or sold by OWNER. 

 
Not more frequently than once a month, but at least quarterly, OWNER will prepare and submit progress bills for costs 
incurred not to exceed OWNER's recorded costs as of the billing date less estimated credits applicable to completed 
work. Payment of progress bills not to exceed the amount of this Agreement may be made under the terms of this 
Agreement. Payment of progress bills which exceed the amount of this Agreement may be made after receipt and 
approval by STA of documentation supporting the cost increase and after an Amendment to this Agreement has been 
executed by the parties to this Agreement. 

 

158



 The OWNER shall submit a final bill to the STA within 180 days after the completion of the work described in Section 
I above. If the STA has not received a final bill within 180 days after notification of completion of OWNER’s work 
described in Section I of this Agreement, and STA has delivered to OWNER fully executed Director's Deeds, Consents 
to Common Use or Joint Use Agreements as required for OWNER’s facilities; STA will provide written notification to 
OWNER of its intent to close its file within 30 days and OWNER hereby acknowledges, to the extent allowed by law 
that all remaining costs will be deemed to have been abandoned. 

 
 The final billing shall be in the form of an itemized statement of the total costs charged to the project, less the credits 

provided for in this Agreement, and less any amounts covered by progress billings.  However, the STA shall not pay 
final bills, which exceed the estimated cost of this Agreement without documentation of the reason for the increase of 
said cost from the OWNER. If the final bill exceeds the OWNER’s estimated costs solely as the result of a revised 
Notice to Owner as provided for in Section I, a copy of said revised Notice to Owner shall suffice as documentation. 

 
 In any event if the final bill exceeds 125% of the estimated cost of this Agreement, an amended Agreement shall be 

executed by the parties to this Agreement prior to the payment of the OWNERS final bill. Any and all increases in 
costs that are the direct result of deviations from the work described in Section I of this Agreement shall have the prior 
concurrence of STA. 

 
Detailed records from which the billing is compiled shall be retained by the OWNER for a period of three years from 
the date of the final payment and will be available for audit in accordance with Contract Cost Principals and 
Procedures as set forth in 48 CFR, Chapter 1, Part 31 by STA and/or Federal Auditors. 

 
 

V. GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
All costs accrued by OWNER as a result of STA's request of March 12, 2009 to review, study and/or prepare 
relocation plans and estimates and perform inspections for the project associated with this Agreement may be billed 
pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
If STA's project which precipitated this Agreement is canceled or modified so as to eliminate the necessity of work by 
OWNER, STA will notify OWNER in writing, and STA reserves the right to terminate this Agreement by 
Amendment. The Amendment shall provide mutually acceptable terms and conditions for terminating the Agreement. 
 
OWNER shall submit a Notice of Completion to the STA within 30 days of the completion of the work described 
herein. 
 
STA will acquire new rights of way in the name of Caltrans, STA or OWNER through negotiation or condemnation 
and when acquired in either Caltrans or STA's name, shall convey same to OWNER by Easement Deed. STA's liability 
for such rights of way will be at the proration shown for relocation work involved under this Agreement. 
 
Upon completion of the work to be done by STA in accordance with the above-mentioned plans and specifications, the 
new facilities shall become the property of OWNER, and OWNER shall have the same rights in the new location that 
it had in the old location. 
 
It is understood that said highway is a federal-aid highway and accordingly, 23 CFR  Part 645 is hereby incorporated 
into this Agreement by reference; provided, however, the provisions of any agreements entered into between the STA 
and the OWNER pursuant to state law for apportioning the obligations and costs to be borne by each, or the use of 
accounting procedures prescribed by the applicable federal or state regulatory body and approved by the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA), shall govern in lieu of the requirements of said 23 CFR Part 645. 
 
THE ESTIMATED COST TO THE STA FOR ITS SHARE OF THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED WORK IS $0. 

159



 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above parties have executed this Agreement the day and year above written. 
 
 
SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY: 
 
 
By: 

 
PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY: 
 
 
By:                

           Daryl Halls                                          Date 
           Executive Director 

      Name                                                                            Date 
 
      Title 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND PROCEDURE: 
 
By: 

 
 
By: 

         Charles Lamoree                                    Date 
         STA Legal Counsel                                        

      Name                                                                            Date 
 
      Title 

 

 

 
Distribution:  1 original to STA 
      1 original to PG&E 
      1 copy to Caltrans R/W Utility File 

160



DISTRICT 
4 

COUNTY 
Solano 

ROUTE 
80 / SR 12 

POST MILE 
80 PM 14.0 to 
15.7 
SR12 PM L1.8 
to 2.0 

EA 
0A5351 

FEDERAL AID NO. 
                                   NA 

UTILITY OWNER 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company 

FEDERAL PARTICIPATION 
 
                                        On The Project  Yes   No 

 
 
On The Utilities   Yes    No 

 
UTILITY AGREEMENT NO.  04-UT-1810.2 

 
DATE        TBD 

 
The Solano Transportation Authority, hereinafter called “STA,” in cooperation with the California Department 
of Transportation (“Caltrans”), proposes to replace the existing Interstate 80 Eastbound Cordelia Commercial 
Vehicle Enforcement Facility (CVEF) and relocate it one-half mile further east, in and near the City of Fairfield, 
County of Solano, State of California. 
And 
 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company 
 
Herein after called “OWNER,” owns and maintains 

Within the limits of STA’s project which requires 

ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION FACILITIES 

To accommodate STA’s project. 

RELOCATION OF ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION 
FACILITIES 

  It is hereby mutually agreed that:  
 

I. WORK TO BE DONE 
 
In accordance with Notice to Owner No. 1810.2 dated       DATE TBD     , OWNER shall relocate its existing 115kv 
overhead electric transmission line.  All work shall be performed substantially in accordance with OWNER's Plan No. 
211155 dated May 10, 2010 consisting of one (1) sheet, and OWNER’s Plan No. 3000114 dated May 10, 2010 
consisting of one (1) sheet, a copy of which is on file in the Office of the STA at One Harbor Center, Suite 130, Suisun 
City, CA 94585

 

. Deviations from the OWNER’s plan described above initiated by either the STA or the OWNER, 
shall be agreed upon by both parties hereto under a Revised Notice to Owner. Such Revised Notices to Owner, 
approved by the STA and acknowledged by the OWNER, will constitute an approved revision of the OWNER’s plan 
described above and are hereby made a part hereof.  No work under said deviation shall commence prior to receipt by 
the OWNER of the Revised Notice to Owner. Changes in the scope of the work will require an amendment to this 
Agreement in addition to the revised Notice to Owner. 

 

161



 
STA’s project 

The Solano Transportation Authority (STA), in partnership with the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) and the California Highway Patrol (CHP), proposes to replace the existing Eastbound Interstate 80 
Cordelia Commercial Vehicle Enforcement Facility (CVEF) and relocate it one-half mile further east. 
Relocating and reconstructing the truck scales will improve congestion and reduce conflicts between truck 
and car traffic on I-80. The STA has committed to delivering the project, which will be operated by the CHP 
and maintained by Caltrans.  Construction is expected to begin in 2011 and be complete by 2014. 
 

 

OWNER’s ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION FACILITIES and RELOCATIONS OF TRANSMISSION 
FACILITIES 

The existing PG&E “Vaca-Suisun-Jameson” 115kV overhead electric transmission line runs more or less 
east-west along the south side of Interstate 8 in the vicinity of the existing Caltrans truck scales, crossing 
over Suisun Creek near the proposed new bridge over Suisun Creek for the new CVEF off-ramp.  If not 
relocated, the transmission line would encroach into the new Caltrans right of way for the CVEF, both at the 
off-ramp at Suisun Creek and at the new CVEF itself.  Because of this, the Solano Transportation Authority 
(STA) has asked PG&E to relocate about 3000 linear feet of this line.  Five existing transmission towers will 
be removed, including the towers at each end of the section of line to be relocated.  Two new transmission 
towers will be installed on a new alignment south of the CVEF, and the two towers at each end of the new 
alignment will be replaced with two new towers, for a total of four new transmission towers.  This relocation 
will eliminate any encroachment into the new Caltrans right of way for the new CVEF. 
 

II. LIABILITY FOR WORK 
 

 The existing facilities described in Section I above will be relocated at STA’s expense at 100% STA’s expense and 0%

 

 
OWNER’s expense in accordance with Section 5(A) of the Master Agreement dated November 1, 2004. 

III. PERFORMANCE OF WORK 
 

  OWNER agrees to perform the herein-described work with its own forces or to cause the herein described work to be 
performed by the OWNER's contractor, employed by written contract on a continuing basis to perform work of this 
type, and to provide and furnish all necessary labor, materials, tools, and equipment required therefore; and to 
prosecute said work diligently to completion. 
 

IV. PAYMENT FOR WORK 
 
The STA shall pay its share of the actual cost of the herein described work within 90 days after receipt of OWNER's 
itemized bill in quintuplicate, signed by a responsible official of OWNER's organization and prepared on OWNER's 
letterhead, compiled on the basis of the actual cost and expense incurred and charged or allocated to said work in 
accordance with the uniform system of accounts prescribed for OWNER by the California Public Utilities Commission 
(PUC) or Federal Communications Commission (FCC), whichever is applicable. 

 
 It is understood and agreed that the STA will not pay for any betterment or increase in capacity of OWNER's facilities 

in the new location and that OWNER shall give credit to the STA for all accrued depreciation on the replaced facilities 
and for the salvage value of any material or parts salvaged and retained or sold by OWNER. 

 
Not more frequently than once a month, but at least quarterly, OWNER will prepare and submit progress bills for costs 
incurred not to exceed OWNER's recorded costs as of the billing date less estimated credits applicable to completed 
work. Payment of progress bills not to exceed the amount of this Agreement may be made under the terms of this 
Agreement. Payment of progress bills which exceed the amount of this Agreement may be made after receipt and 
approval by STA of documentation supporting the cost increase and after an Amendment to this Agreement has been 
executed by the parties to this Agreement. 

162



 
 The OWNER shall submit a final bill to the STA within 180 days after the completion of the work described in Section 

I above. If the STA has not received a final bill within 180 days after notification of completion of OWNER’s work 
described in Section I of this Agreement, and STA has delivered to OWNER fully executed Director's Deeds, Consents 
to Common Use or Joint Use Agreements as required for OWNER’s facilities; STA will provide written notification to 
OWNER of its intent to close its file within 30 days and OWNER hereby acknowledges, to the extent allowed by law 
that all remaining costs will be deemed to have been abandoned. 

 
 The final billing shall be in the form of an itemized statement of the total costs charged to the project, less the credits 

provided for in this Agreement, and less any amounts covered by progress billings.  However, the STA shall not pay 
final bills, which exceed the estimated cost of this Agreement without documentation of the reason for the increase of 
said cost from the OWNER. If the final bill exceeds the OWNER’s estimated costs solely as the result of a revised 
Notice to Owner as provided for in Section I, a copy of said revised Notice to Owner shall suffice as documentation. 

 
 In any event if the final bill exceeds 125% of the estimated cost of this Agreement, an amended Agreement shall be 

executed by the parties to this Agreement prior to the payment of the OWNERS final bill. Any and all increases in 
costs that are the direct result of deviations from the work described in Section I of this Agreement shall have the prior 
concurrence of STA. 

 
Detailed records from which the billing is compiled shall be retained by the OWNER for a period of three years from 
the date of the final payment and will be available for audit in accordance with Contract Cost Principals and 
Procedures as set forth in 48 CFR, Chapter 1, Part 31 by STA and/or Federal Auditors. 

 
 

V. GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
All costs accrued by OWNER as a result of STA's request of March 12, 2009 to review, study and/or prepare 
relocation plans and estimates and perform inspections for the project associated with this Agreement may be billed 
pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
If STA's project which precipitated this Agreement is canceled or modified so as to eliminate the necessity of work by 
OWNER, STA will notify OWNER in writing, and STA reserves the right to terminate this Agreement by 
Amendment. The Amendment shall provide mutually acceptable terms and conditions for terminating the Agreement. 
 
OWNER shall submit a Notice of Completion to the STA within 30 days of the completion of the work described 
herein. 
 
STA will acquire new rights of way in the name of Caltrans, STA or OWNER through negotiation or condemnation 
and when acquired in either Caltrans or STA's name, shall convey same to OWNER by Easement Deed. STA's liability 
for such rights of way will be at the proration shown for relocation work involved under this Agreement. 
 
Upon completion of the work to be done by STA in accordance with the above-mentioned plans and specifications, the 
new facilities shall become the property of OWNER, and OWNER shall have the same rights in the new location that 
it had in the old location. 
 
It is understood that said highway is a federal-aid highway and accordingly, 23 CFR  Part 645 is hereby incorporated 
into this Agreement by reference; provided, however, the provisions of any agreements entered into between the STA 
and the OWNER pursuant to state law for apportioning the obligations and costs to be borne by each, or the use of 
accounting procedures prescribed by the applicable federal or state regulatory body and approved by the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA), shall govern in lieu of the requirements of said 23 CFR Part 645. 
 
THE ESTIMATED COST TO THE STA FOR ITS SHARE OF THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED WORK IS $1,141,256.

163



 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above parties have executed this Agreement the day and year above written. 
 
 
SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY: 
 
 
By: 

 
PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY: 
 
 
By:                

           Daryl Halls                                          Date 
           Executive Director 

      Name                                                                            Date 
 
      Title 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND PROCEDURE: 
 
By: 

 
 
By: 

         Charles Lamoree                                    Date 
         STA Legal Counsel                                        

      Name                                                                            Date 
 
      Title 

 

 

 
Distribution:  1 original to STA 
      1 original to PG&E 
      1 copy to Caltrans R/W Utility File 

164



DISTRICT 
4 

COUNTY 
Solano 

ROUTE 
80 / SR 12 

POST MILE 
80 PM 14.0 to 
15.7 
SR12 PM L1.8 
to 2.0 

EA 
0A5351 

FEDERAL AID NO. 
                                   NA 

UTILITY OWNER 
Solano Irrigation District 

FEDERAL PARTICIPATION 
 
                                        On The Project  Yes   No 

 
 
On The Utilities   Yes    No 

 
UTILITY AGREEMENT NO.  04-UT-1810.4 

 
DATE   July 14, 2010 

 
The Solano Transportation Authority, hereinafter called “STA,” in cooperation with the California Department 
of Transportation (“Caltrans”), proposes to replace the existing Interstate 80 Eastbound Cordelia Commercial 
Vehicle Enforcement Facility (CVEF) and relocate it one-half mile further east, in and near the City of Fairfield, 
County of Solano, State of California. 
And 
 
The Solano Irrigation District, an independent special district, a local governmental agency, formed in 1948. 
508 Elmira Road, Vacaville, CA 95687  Phone: (707) 448-6847 x4000 
 
Herein after called “OWNER,” owns and maintains 

Within the limits of STA’s project which requires 

IRRIGATION FACILITIES 

To accommodate STA’s project. 

RELOCATION OF IRRIGATION FACILITIES 

  It is hereby mutually agreed that:  
 

I. WORK TO BE DONE 
 
In accordance with Notice to Owner No. 04-UT-1810.4 dated ______(date TBD)

  

________, STA shall relocate 
OWNER's irrigation facilities as shown on STA's contract plans, which by this reference are made a part hereof. 
OWNER hereby acknowledges review of STA's plans for work and agrees to the construction in the manner proposed. 

Deviations from the plan described above initiated by either the STA or the OWNER, shall be agreed upon by both 
parties hereto under a Revised Notice to Owner. Such Revised Notices to Owner, approved by the STA and 
acknowledged by the OWNER, will constitute an approved revision of the plan described above and are hereby made a 
part hereof. No work under said deviation shall commence prior to receipt by the OWNER of the Revised Notice to 
Owner. Changes in the scope of the work will require an amendment to this Agreement in addition to the revised 
Notice to Owner. OWNER shall have the right to inspect the work during construction. Upon completion of the work 
by STA, OWNER agrees to accept ownership and maintenance of the constructed facilities and relinquishes to STA 
ownership of the replaced facilities. 
 

165



 
STA’s project 

The Solano Transportation Authority (STA), in partnership with the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) and the California Highway Patrol (CHP), proposes to replace the existing Eastbound Interstate 80 Cordelia 
Commercial Vehicle Enforcement Facility (CVEF) and relocate it one-half mile further east. Relocating and 
reconstructing the truck scales will improve congestion and reduce conflicts between truck and car traffic on I-80. The 
STA has committed to delivering the project, which will be operated by the CHP and maintained by Caltrans.  
Construction is expected to begin in 2011 and be complete by 2014. 
 

 
OWNER’s IRRIGATION FACILITIES and RELOCATIONS OF IRRIGATION FACILITIES 

Young Lateral – about 250 feet of this 18” irrigation pipe that runs under Interstate 80 generally north-south along 
Suisun Creek will be impacted by the truck scales relocation project, including a portion of this pipe that crosses under 
Suisun Creek, and an irrigation field service.  This pipe is located on 20 foot wide OWNER easements within the 
Carter property (APN 0027-260-120) and Solano County property (APN 0027-272-080 S.C.R.). A new 236 foot 
long pipe will be installed along the west side of Suisun Creek, to go around most of the work area for the 
proposed new Suisun Creek Bridge.  Where this new pipe will be inside the new Caltrans right of way, it will 
be placed inside a 30” steel casing.  A new 260 foot long pipe will be bored under Suisun Creek to connect to 
the existing 18” Young Lateral on the east side of Suisun Creek. New irrigation field services will be installed on 
the Carter and Solano County properties.  The portion of OWNER’s existing easement that will be within the new 
Caltrans right of way will be quitclaimed, with the exception of the crossing under I-80 that is covered under a 
Caltrans Director’s Deed, which will remain in place.  The portion of OWNER’s new easement that will be within the 
new Caltrans right of way will be covered under a Joint Use Agreement (JUA) with Caltrans. 
 
Young Lateral 4 - about 220 feet of this 12” irrigation pipe south of Interstate 80, west of Suisun Creek that is within 
a 20 foot wide OWNER easement on the Carter property (APN 0027-260-120) will be impacted by relocation of the 
18” Young Lateral irrigation pipe.  A new section of 12” pipe will connect the relocated portion of the Young 
Lateral to the existing Young Lateral 4 west of Suisun Creek. The portion of OWNER’s existing easement that 
will be within the new Caltrans right of way will be quitclaimed. 
 
Valine Lateral (aka “Valine Turnout” and “Suisun Creek Recovery Lateral”) – the entire length of this 8” 
irrigation pipe that is on a 20 foot wide OWNER easement within the Solano County property (APN 0027-272-080 
S.C.R.) and the entire length of this pipe that is on a 20 foot wide OWNER easement within the Valine property (APN 
0027-272-140 S.C.R.) will be impacted by the project.  Since this pipe serves only the Valine property, and since the 
Valine property will be acquired in its entirety for the new truck scales project, this pipe will no longer be needed and 
will be removed and the easement quitclaimed – no replacement pipe will be constructed. The portion of OWNER’s 
existing easement that will be within the new Caltrans right of way will be quitclaimed. 
 
Chadbourne Lateral 5-2 – about 515 feet of this 12” irrigation pipe that runs generally east-west, on a 20 foot wide 
OWNER easement within the Thompson property (APN 0027-272-180 S.C.R.) and a 20 foot wide OWNER easement 
within the Anheuser-Busch property (APN 0027-252-080 S.C.R), west of Hale Ranch Road will be impacted, 
including an irrigation field service on the Thompson property. About 476 feet of new 12” irrigation pipe will be 
placed within a new 20 foot wide easement along the northwest side of the Hale property (APN 0027-272-160 S.C.R.) 
into the northeast corner of the Thompson property (APN 0027-272-180 S.C.R.) parallel and outside of the new 
Caltrans right of way line.  A new field service for the Thompson property will be installed in this easement within the 
Thompson property.  The portion of OWNER’s existing easement that will be within the new Caltrans right of way 
will be quitclaimed. 
 
Chadbourne Lateral 5-2-1 – about 90 feet of this 12” irrigation pipe that runs north from the Chadbourne Lateral 5-2 
in a 20 foot wide OWNER easement within the Anheuser-Busch property (APN 0027-252-080 S.C.R) will be 
impacted, including an existing irrigation field service on the Anheuser-Busch property. A new irrigation field service 
will be installed outside of the new Caltrans right of way line, within the existing OWNER easement.  The portion of 
OWNER’s existing easement that will be within the new Caltrans right of way will be quitclaimed. 

166



Raines Drain – about 200 feet of this concrete lined irrigation channel that is on a 16 foot wide OWNER easement on 
the Valine property (APN 0027-272-080 S.C.R.) starting at the south end of two pipes that cross under Interstate I-80, 
will be impacted by the project. The portion of Raines Drain that will be within the new Caltrans right of way/access 
control line will be enclosed in new pipes and in a box culvert structure to accommodate the new CVEF on-ramp.  
Because the new Caltrans right of way/access control line will be along the west side of Raines Drain, OWNER will 
no longer be able to access Raines Drain from the west side of the channel for periodic inspections, maintenance and 
repair. A new crossing structure will be built over Raines Drain just south of the new CVEF, to allow OWNER to 
cross from the west side over to the east side of Raines Drain.  A new 20 foot easement will be purchased from the 
Thompson property (APN 0027-272-180 S.C.R.) along the east side of Raines Drain from this new crossing structure 
north to the new Caltrans right of way line, to give OWNER access to the portion of Raines Drain that OWNER will 
continue to own and maintain.  The portion of the OWNER’s existing easement that will be within the new Caltrans 
right of way will be converted to a Consent to Common Use Agreement (CCUA) with Caltrans, with the exception of 
a small portion that will no longer be needed, which will be quitclaimed. 
 

II. LIABILITY FOR WORK 
 

 Existing facilities are located in their present position pursuant to rights superior to those of the STA and will be 
relocated at STA’s expense. 
 

III. PERFORMANCE OF WORK 
 

  OWNER shall have access to all phases of the relocation work to be performed by STA for the purpose of inspection to 
ensure that the work is in accordance with the specifications contained in the Contract; however, all questions 
regarding the work being performed will be directed to STA's Resident Engineer for their evaluation and final 
disposition. 
 

IV. PAYMENT FOR WORK 
 
The STA shall perform the work under Section I above at no expense to OWNER. 
 
It is understood and agreed that the STA will not pay for any betterment or increase in capacity of OWNER's facilities 
in the new location and that OWNER shall give credit to the STA for all accrued depreciation on the replaced facilities 
and for the salvage value of any material or parts salvaged and retained or sold by OWNER. 
 

V. GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
All costs accrued by OWNER as a result of STA's request of March 9, 2009 to review, study and/or prepare relocation 
plans and estimates and perform inspections for the project associated with this Agreement may be billed pursuant to 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
If STA's project which precipitated this Agreement is canceled or modified so as to eliminate the necessity of work by 
OWNER, STA will notify OWNER in writing, and STA reserves the right to terminate this Agreement by 
Amendment. The Amendment shall provide mutually acceptable terms and conditions for terminating the Agreement. 
 
OWNER shall submit a Notice of Completion to the STA within 30 days of the completion of the work described 
herein. 
 
STA will acquire new rights of way in the name of Caltrans, STA or OWNER through negotiation or condemnation 
and when acquired in either Caltrans or STA's name, shall convey same to OWNER by Easement Deed. STA's liability 
for such rights of way will be at the proration shown for relocation work involved under this Agreement. 
 
Where OWNER has prior rights in areas which will be within the highway right of way and where OWNER's facilities 
will remain on or be relocated on Caltrans highway right of way, a Joint Use Agreement or Consent to Common Use 
Agreement shall be executed by the parties. 
 

167



Upon completion of the work to be done by STA in accordance with the above-mentioned plans and specifications, the 
new facilities shall become the property of OWNER, and OWNER shall have the same rights in the new location that 
it had in the old location. 
 
It is understood that said highway is a federal-aid highway and accordingly, 23 CFR 645 is hereby incorporated into 
this Agreement. 
 
THE ESTIMATED COST TO THE STA FOR ITS SHARE OF THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED WORK IS $800,00
 

0. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above parties have executed this Agreement the day and year above written. 
 
 
SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY: 
 
 
By: 

 
SOLANO IRRIGATION DISTRICT: 
 
 
By:                

           Daryl Halls                                          Date 
           Executive Director 

      Name                                                                            Date 
 
      Title 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND PROCEDURE: 
 
 
By: 

 
 
 
By: 

         Charles Lamoree                                    Date 
         STA Legal Counsel                                        

      Name                                                                            Date 
 
      Title 

 

 

 
Distribution:  1 original to STA 
      1 original to SID 
      1 copy to Caltrans R/W Utility File 

168



ATTACHMENT C 
 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION 2010-12 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
TO AUTHORIZE ADVERTISING AND AWARDING SID UTILITY 

RELOCATION CONTRACT(S) REQUIRED FOR THE I-80 EASTBOUND 
TRUCK SCALES RELOCATION PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE RELATED 
ACTIONS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE SID UTILITY RELOCATION 

CONTRACT(S) 
 

WHEREAS, Caltrans approved the Environmental Impact Report/Environmental 
Assessment (EIR/EA) and Project Report for the I-80 Eastbound Truck Scales Relocation 
Project (and associated SID utility relocations) in October 2009; and 
 
WHEREAS, STA, as a Responsible Agency, approved Resolution No. 2010-02, 
including acceptance of the Environmental Impact Report prepared by Caltrans for the 
Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, STA accepted the Caltrans prepared Project Report and approved the build 
alternative for the I-80 EB Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of the Solano 
Transportation Authority hereby:      
 

1. Approves the SID Utility Relocation Contract(s), Notice to Contractors and 
Special Provisions. 

 
2. Determines that the SID Utility Relocation Contract(s) are in compliance with the 

California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code §21000, et seq.), 
and have been fully analyzed in the following documents:  Environmental Impact 
Report/Environmental Assessment (EIR/EA) and Project Report for the I-80 
Eastbound Truck Scales Relocation Project (and associated SID utility 
relocations) in October 2009 and Re-validation. 

 
3. Authorizes the Executive Director or his designee to award the contract(s) on 

behalf of the STA Board for furnishing labor, equipment, and materials for the 
SID Utility Relocation Contract(s) to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder 
and requires the contractor to present surety bonds for payment and faithful 
performance equal to the bid amount(s) for an amount not to exceed $900,000. 

 
4. Authorizes the Executive Director or his designee to sign the contract(s) on behalf 

of the STA Board subject to the Executive Director or his designee having 
reviewed and found sufficient all required documents, including the contract 
signed by the contractor and the required surety bonds and certificates of 
insurance. 

5. Directs that, in accordance with the project specifications and/or upon the 
execution of the contract(s) by the Executive Director or designee, any bid bonds 
posted by the bidders be exonerated and any checks or cash submitted for bid 
security be returned. 

169



 
6. Authorizes the Executive Director or his designee to execute required contract 

change orders for up to 20% of the bid amount(s). 
 

7. Authorizes the Executive Director or his designee to sign any escrow agreements 
prepared for this project to permit direct payment of retention into escrow or the 
substitution of securities for moneys withheld by the STA to ensure performance 
under the contract pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 22300. 

 
8. Delegates the STA Board’s functions under Public Contract Code Sections 4107 

and 4110 to the Executive Director or his designee. 
 

9. Pursuant to Section 6705 of the Labor Code, delegate to a registered civil or 
structural engineer employed by the STA and so designated by the Executive 
Director, the authority to accept detailed plans showing the design of shoring, 
bracing, sloping, or other provisions to be made for worker protection during 
trench excavating covered by that section. 

 
10. Declare that, should the contract(s) award be invalidated for any reason, the STA 

Board in any event would not have awarded the contract(s) to the second bidder 
or any other bidder but instead would have exercised its discretion to reject all of 
the bids received. Nothing herein shall prevent the Board from awarding the 
contract(s) to another bidder in cases where the successful bidder establishes a 
mistake, refuses to sign the contract(s), or fails to furnish required bonds or 
insurance (see Public Contract Code Sections 5100 et seq.). 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Board of the Solano Transportation Authority, held on the 14th day 
July, 2010, by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:  __________ 
Nos:  __________ 
Absent: __________ 
Abstain: __________ 
 
Attest by: _________________________________ 
  Johanna Masiclat 
  Clerk of the Board 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Pete Sanchez, Chair 
       Solano Transportation Authority 
 
I, Daryl K. Halls, the Solano Transportation Authority Executive Director, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing resolution was introduced, passed, and adopted by 
said Authority at a regular meeting thereof held this the day of July 14, 2010.  
 
       ______________________________ 
       Daryl K. Halls, Executive Director 
       Solano Transportation Authority 
    

170



Agenda Item VIII.V 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 

 
 

DATE:  July 2, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Elizabeth Richards, Director of Transit and Rideshare Services 
RE: Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Matrix – 

July 2010  
 
 
Background: 
The Transportation Development Act (TDA) of 1971 established two sources of funds that 
provide support for public transportation services statewide – the Local Transportation Fund 
(LTF) and the Public Transportation Account (PTA).  Solano County receives TDA funds 
through the LTF and State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) through the PTA.  The new 
TDA and STAF FY 2010-11 revenue projections were approved by the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) in February 2010 as required by State statute.  The initial 
estimate is shown on the Solano FY 2010-11 TDA matrix (Attachment A).    
 
The FY 2010-11 TDA fund estimate includes FY 2009-10 commitments through December 
31, 2009.  For jurisdictions that had claims processed toward the end of the calendar year or 
in early 2010, the MTC ‘available for allocation’ estimates needed further adjustment to take 
these later allocations into account.  A column has been added to the TDA matrix to take 
these into account.    
 
MTC is required to use County Auditor estimates for TDA revenues.  TDA is generated from 
a percentage of countywide sales tax and distributed to local jurisdictions based on 
population share.  Given the economic downturn, sales tax and TDA revenues have 
decreased and will remain suppressed until the economy improves.  Staff reemphasizes that 
these TDA figures are revenue estimates.  With the existing fiscal uncertainty, the TDA 
amounts are not guaranteed and should not be 100% claimed to avoid fiscal difficulties if the 
actual revenues are lower than the projections. 
 
The TDA matrix is developed and updated to guide MTC as they review allocations from 
Solano jurisdictions and to prevent any jurisdictions’ TDA balances being over-subscribed.  
Tracking various allocations is essential given the amount of cross claiming of TDA in 
Solano for various shared cost transit services.  One of the major services shared by multiple 
jurisdictions is the seven major intercity routes covered in the Intercity Transit Funding 
agreement and the multiple operators’ TDA shares for the new intercity taxi program.  In 
June, the TDA matrix was updated to include the City of Vacaville’s FY 2010-11 TDA 
claims for operating and capital. 
 
Discussion: 
The TDA matrix is now being updated to include the County of Solano and the City of 
Vallejo/Vallejo Transit TDA claims.  The County of Solano is claiming for the 
unincorporated area ADA paratransit service and transit administration for a total of $65,000.  
In addition, they are claiming $328,000 for streets and roads.   The County will be phasing 
out of the Unmet Needs process over the next few years.

171



The City of Vallejo plans to claim only $176,765 for transit operations.  Vallejo Transit has 
been able to utilize federal ARRA funds to reserve TDA funds for future years when ARRA 
funds are no longer available.  Both the County of Solano and Vallejo claims are consistent 
with the TDA matrix.  The balance of Vallejo’s FY 2010-11 TDA funds will be put in 
reserve to cover future operating costs. 
 
Both the Consortium and TAC reviewed and recommended approval of the TDA matrix. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
No impact to STA Budget. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the FY 2010-11 TDA Matrix – July 2010 as shown in Attachment A for the County 
of Solano and Vallejo Transit.  
 
Attachment: 

A. FY 2010-11 TDA Matrix – July 2010 (An enlarged color copy has been provided to 
the Board members under separate enclosure and is available upon request by 
contacting the STA at (707) 424-6075.) 
 

 

172



FY2010-11 TDA Matrix -July 2010 version

062310 - v7 FY 2010-11     
  

FAST FAST FAST   Vjo T       Vjo T       Vjo T     FAST FAST VJO T
AGENCY TDA Est 

from MTC 
(1)

Projected 
Carryover  (1)

Available for 
Allocation (1)

Adjustments for 
FY10 claims 

allocated after 
12/31/09

ADA 
Subsidized 

intercity Taxi 
Phase I

Paratransit 
/local taxi

Benicia 
Breeze

Dixon 
Readi-
Ride

FAST Rio Vista 
Delta 

Breeze

Vacaville 
City 

Coach

Vallejo Transit   Rt 20 Rt 30 Rt 40 Rt. 78  Rt. 80   Rt 85  Rt. 90  Intercity 
Subtotal

  Intercity 
Subtotal

STA 
Planning

STA/VV 
STIP swap

Transit 
Capital

Streets & 
Roads

Total Balance

2/24/2010 2/24/2010 FY 10-11 (3) (4)   (4)  (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (9) (10) (11) (12)
 

Benicia 856,130 821,354 1,677,484 883,548               12,750 2,512$     3,048$        8,372$        51,294$    (1,665)$     (3,382)$     5,483$     19,415$      46,247$           23,847$      985,807$             691,677
Dixon 537,755 45,287 583,042 65,199 1,989 1,577$     38,898$      10,025$      1,379$      (338)$        (5,509)$     5,739$     56,239$      (4,468)$            14,982$      133,941$             449,101
Fairfield 3,257,193 2,982,412 6,239,605 876,469               106,080 68,766$   76,660$      148,334$    10,671$    (10,866)$   (45,522)$   173,342$ 467,102$    (45,717)$          90,994$      1,494,928$          4,744,677
Rio Vista 251,603 221,983 473,586 52,805                 1,530 0 -$                 6,879$        61,214$               412,372
Suisun City 883,029 -48,950 834,079 51,913 14,572$   16,956$      69,852$      5,146$      (1,934)$     (19,848)$   62,546$   163,926$    (16,636)$          24,031$      223,234$             610,845
Vacaville 2,951,487 610,418 3,561,905 161,052               73,644 748,017 76,541$   87,289$      83,845$      9,119$      440$         (11,016)$   64,059$   311,734$    (1,457)$            82,601$      750,000$    1,274,000 3,399,591$          162,314
Vallejo 3,704,430 1,947,429 5,651,859 165,460 42,500 53,317 0 14,908$   36,238$      28,249$      79,785$    (18,354)$   (29,979)$   20,477$   99,872$      31,452$           103,222$    495,823$             5,156,036
Solano County 616,798 467,143 1,083,941 539,101 7,650 65,000 14,178$   19,932$      22,214$      17,485$    19,846$    8,418$      23,772$   80,096$      45,749$           17,203$      328,000 1,082,799$          1,142

 
Total 13,058,425 7,047,076 20,105,501 2,795,547 246,143       7,877,337$          12,228,164

  
 

NOTES:  
Background colors on Rt. Headings denote operator of intercity route
Background colors denote which jurisdiction is claiming funds  

(1)  MTC February 24, 2010 estimate; Reso 3939
(2) Adjusted for FY10 claims allocated after 12/21/09
(3) Claimed by Vacaville; amounts as agreed to by local jurisdictions
(4)  Includes flex routes, paratransit, local subsidized taxi
(5)  
(6)
(7)  
(8) Net Due and Consistent with FY2010-11 Intercity Transit Funding Agreement and FY2008-09 Reconciliation
(9)  Claimed by STA from all agencies per formula
(10) Second and final year of swap
(11) Transit Capital purchases include bus purchases, maintenance facilities, etc.
(12) TDA funds can be used for repairs of local streets and roads if Solano County does not have transit needs that can reasonably be met.
 

Local Service IntercityParatransit

173

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

174



Agenda Item VIII.W 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  July 8, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Robert Macaulay, Director of Planning 
RE: Revised 2010 Congestion Management Program (CMP)  
 
 
Background: 
California law requires urban areas to develop a Congestion Management Program 
(CMP).  The CMP plans strategies for addressing congestion problems by holding 
jurisdictions to a variety of mobility standards in order to obtain state gas tax 
subventions.  These mobility standards include Level of Service (LOS) standards on the 
CMP network and transit standards.  To help jurisdictions maintain these mobility 
standards, the CMP lists improvement projects in a seven-year Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP).  Jurisdictions that are projected to exceed the CMP standards, based on 
the Napa-Solano Travel Demand Model, are required to create a deficiency plan to meet 
the CMP standards within the seven-year time frame of the CIP. 
 
The 2009 CMP was approved by the STA Board on September 9, 2009.  In order for 
projects in the CMP’s CIP to be placed in the Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program (RTIP), state law requires that the CMP be consistent with the Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP).  The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) found 
the 2009 Solano CMP to be consistent with the RTP. 
 
Discussion: 
Subsequent to STA approval and MTC acceptance of the 2009 Solano CMP, several 
programs have been updated that impact the CMP.  These updates impact the content of 
the CMP, as well as the CMP’s CIP.  The STA staff have proposed CMP amendments to 
address those changes as follows: 
 
Model Update.  STA adopted an update to the Napa-Solano Travel Demand Model.  The 
update did not involve changes to the base land use for roadway network, but did involve 
technical network and unique land use corrections, as well as a reduction in “K” factors 
and peak hour modifications.  The updated model did not result in significant changes to 
the Level of Service reports found in Table 1. 
 
Safe Routes to School.  Safe Routes to Schools (SR2S) provides congestion relief by 
diverting trips from single occupant vehicles to bicycle, pedestrian and carpool/transit.  
STA has worked further with local cities and school districts to obtain grant funding for 
SR2S projects, and to provide coordination resources for the delivery of those projects.  
New text for SR2S is found on Page 39 of the amended 2009 Solano CMP.  In the CIP, 
RTP project 230550 is amended to address both MTC and STA SR2S programs. 

175

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



Senior and Disabled Transit.  The CMP and RTP currently address ‘Lifeline’ transit 
programs for low income residents, but do not adequately address transportation for 
senior and disabled residents.  By providing transit alternatives for senior and disabled 
residents, STA and partner providers can help these populations obtain and/or maintain 
mobility while providing some limited reduction in congestion.  New text for Senior and 
Disabled Transit is found on Page 36 of the amended 2009 Solano CMP.  In the CIP, 
RTP project 22423 is amended to address both MTC and STA SR2S programs. 
 
At its meeting of May 26, 2010, the STA Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 
reviewed the proposed amendments to the CMP.  The TAC voted unanimously to 
recommend that the STA Board approve the CMP with the amendments identified. 
 
At its meeting of June 9, 2010, the STA Board received the updated 2010 Solano CMP.  
The Board delayed action on this item for 30 days to allow Board members more time to 
review the document. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Adopt the revised 2010 Solano CMP as specified in Attachment A. 
 
Attachment: 

A. 2010 Solano CMP (This document has been provided to the STA Board Members 
under separate enclosure.  To obtain a copy, please contact the STA at (707) 424-
6075.)  

176

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



Agenda Item IX.A 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  July 7, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Daryl Halls, Executive Director 
 Bill Gray, Gray-Bowen, Inc. 
RE: Public Input for Proposed Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) Expenditure 

Plan Categories   
 
 
Background: 
In 2009, the State Legislature approved and the Governor signed Senate Bill (SB) 83 
(Hancock) which authorizes Congestion Management Agencies (CMAs) to place a 
countywide measure before the county’s voters to propose raising the motor vehicle 
registration fee up to $10 to fund projects benefitting or mitigating the effects of the 
automobile congestion.  For Solano County, each $1 in motor vehicle registration fee 
would generate an estimated $320,000 per year or up to $3.2 million per year if a $10 fee 
was enacted.  SB 83 requires a majority vote for passage. 
 
At the STA Board meeting of April 14, 2010, the STA Board acted on a recommendation 
by the State Transportation Improvement Authority (STIA) Board to authorize staff to 
collect additional data and/or initiate feasibility studies for several new revenue options.  
One of the recommended revenue options was to evaluate the feasibility of Solano 
County voter receptivity to a motor Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) as authorized by the 
passage of SB 83.  As part of this action, the Board directed staff to focus the potential 
Expenditure Plan on three categories and public opinion polling on the following: 
maintenance of local streets and roads (fixing potholes), safe routes to school, and senior 
and disabled mobility. 
 
On June 15, 2010, the Solano Transportation Improvement Authority (STIA) Board was 
presented the summary results of a public opinion poll of 804 likely Solano County 
voters conducted by EMC Research.  Alex Evans of EMC Research presented the results 
and responded to questions.  A copy of the results presented to the STIA Board has been 
included as Attachment A. 
 
In order to prepare a potential SB 83 Expenditure Plan in a timely manner, STA retained 
the consultant firm of Gray-Bowen to assist in this effort.  Gray-Bowen is currently 
assisting the Alameda CMA and the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) in 
the development of their Counties’ SB 83 Expenditure Plans.  At the Board meeting, Bill 
Gray of Gray-Bowen presented a list of Expenditure Plan categories and six options, 
including not proceeding forward with an Expenditure Plan.  The STIA Board 
recommended staff and the consultant prepare a draft Expenditure Plan focused on option 
#1 that includes a proposed $10 VRF and funding for all three categories.

177

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



Discussion: 
The draft Expenditure Plan (option #1) focuses on the three initial expenditure plan 
priorities identified by the Board: 
  

1. Maintenance of Local Streets and Roads 
2. Safe Routes to School 
3. Senior and Disabled Mobility 

 
This approach strives to dedicate resources to assist all three transportation needs and 
priorities of the STA Board.  As part of this action, the Board also requested staff to 
prepare options for allocating the funds from the proposed fee for each of the three 
categories and options for flexibility within and between the categories based on local 
community needs.  A discussion of the Expenditure Plan was presented for input to the 
STA’s Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), Transit Consortium, and Senior and 
Disabled Advisory Committee.  Presentations are also scheduled for the Paratransit 
Coordinating Council (PCC), Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) and at a Countywide 
Safe Routes to School Advisory Committee meeting.  A summary of each committee’s 
input will be provided at the July 14th STA Board meeting. 
 
Consistent with Expenditure Plan option #1 which focuses on allocating funds for all 
three specified categories, staff is recommending the following allocation formula: 
 

Maintenance of local streets and roads: 50% 
Safe routes to school:    25% 
Senior and disabled mobility:   20% 
Administration of the VRF:     5% 

 
DISCUSSION OF VRF EXPENDITURE PLAN CATEGORIES (Attachment B) 
 

1. MAINTENANCE OF LOCAL STREETS AND ROADS 
 
Solano County’s average Pavement Condition Index (PCI) for the condition of its 
local streets and roads has dropped 6 points from almost “good” to “fair” since 
2000.  Pavement that is in very poor condition is the most expensive to 
rehabilitate.  If these trends continue, Solano County local streets and roads PCI 
will reach “at-risk” status, potentially multiplying current street rehabilitation 
costs by five times. Cities with the lowest PCI averages, such as Rio Vista (47 – 
poor), Suisun City (53 – at-risk), and Vallejo (54 – at-risk) have already reached 
more expensive road rehabilitation stages. 
 
Based on a proposed $10 VRF and dedication of 50% of the fee revenues to 
maintenance of local streets and roads, this would provide an estimated $1.6 
million in annual funds for this purpose.  STA staff discussed two options for the 
allocation of maintenance of local streets and roads funds with the STA’s 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), which is comprised of the cities’ and 
county public works directors.   
 
The first option was to allocate the funds utilizing the existing local streets and 
roads distribution formula adopted by the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) and STA Board for the allocation of federal cycle funds.  

178



This is based on 25% population, 25% lane-miles, 25% agency street 
rehabilitation shortfalls, and 25% preventative maintenance spending.  However, 
under this option, several smaller cities would only receive between $22,000 and 
$57,000 per year.  This would result in smaller cities having to wait between 5 to 
10 years to accumulate enough VRF funds for a meaningful road rehabilitation 
project. 
 
The second option sets aside a $75,000 per year minimum for all agencies, 
speeding up the delivery of road rehabilitation projects countywide.  This reduces 
larger city shares by less than 1 %, while increasing smaller city share to a more 
meaningful amount.  See Attachment C for an illustration of these two options.   
 
At their meeting of June 30th, the TAC unanimously recommended the Board 
consider option 2 for the allocation of maintenance of local streets and roads 
funds. 
 

2. SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL 
 
In 2008, the STA Board adopted a Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Plan in 
partnership with the seven cities, seven school districts, the County of Solano, and 
the Solano County Office of Education.  The STA has been able to obtain $1.3 
million in one-time grants to fund SR2S activities over the next two fiscal years.  
Without a new local funding source, it is estimated that SR2S funding will be 
reduced to 20% of planned capacity by Fiscal Year (FY) 2012-13.  In addition, 
the SR2S grants also place restrictions on what SR2S activities can be funded.  
For examplt, two SR2S priorities, radar speed signs and crossing guards, are 
ineligible for the majority of the grants funding currently available. 
 
A 25% share of the projects VRF funding under Expenditure Plan option# 1 
would generate an estimated $800,000 per year for the Safe Routes to School 
Program.  Staff discussed two options with the STA TAC for the allocation of 
Safe Routes to School funding (Attachment D).  The first option would set aside 
$110,000 for a countywide school crossing guard equipment, training and funding 
program and $240,000 for the STA’s SR2S Education and Encouragement 
Program.  This would enable STA to expand the SR2S Program to all of Solano 
County’s schools.  The remaining $450,000 in SR2S funding would be allocated 
using enrollment from the most recent fiscal year enrollment statistics by school 
district. 
 
The second option would establish a school district share minimum at $40,000, 
leaving $100,000 for the countywide crossing guard program and $232,000 for 
the STA’s SR2S Education and Encouragement Program.  The intent of the 
minimum amount of funding is to assist local agencies in building smaller SR2S 
projects that are currently ineligible for SR2S grants in a realistic timeframe.  
Under both options, it is recommended that these SR2S funds would only be 
accessible if local agencies submit project and program improvement plans 
through partnerships between the cities/County and the school districts.     

179



A countywide Safe Routes to School meeting has been scheduled for July 13th to 
review and discuss options for Safe Routes to School funding.  Representatives 
from the STA’s Countywide SR2S Steering Committee and each of seven 
community level SR2S Advisory Committees have been invited to attend.  A 
summary of their comments will be provided at the Board meeting. 
 
The STA’s Bicycle Advisory Committee is scheduled to meet on July 8th to 
discuss the VRF Expenditure Plan and specifically the Safe Routes to School 
component of the Plan.  A summary of the BAC’s comments will be provided at 
the Board meeting. 
  
The TAC reviewed both options and recommended option two with a 
modification to provide a minimum of $20,000 for Rio Vista and a $40,000 
minimum for the other jurisdictions and to align the minimum allocation based on 
student enrollment within city boundaries rather than school district boundaries.  
A copy of this modified option is included in Attachment D1.   
 

3. SENIOR AND DISABLED MOBILITY 
 
Solano County’s senior population is projected to increase from 48,200 to 76,800 
over the next ten years (an increase of 60%).  Over this same timeframe, Solano 
County’s disabled population is projected to increase from 8,570 to 11,500 (an 
increase of 35%).  Currently, 64% of senior and disabled transportation in Solano 
County is dependent upon local Transportation Development Act (TDA) funding.  
Over the last two years, due to the State fiscal crisis and lagging economy, TDA 
revenues in Solano County have dropped by 10%.  This has impacted Solano 
County’s ability to maintain current services and ability plan for the future 
demand for senior and disabled mobility needs. 
 
Staff presented four options for the allocation of an estimated $640,000 (20% of 
VLF funds) in annual Senior and Disabled Mobility funding (Attachment E).  
Option 1 proposes to allocate the funding to each transit operator based on the 
share of senior and disabled residents located within the jurisdiction served by the 
transit operator. 
 
Option 2 proposes to distribute the funding with a minimum amount of $50,000 
for the smaller cities and the unincorporated County with the remaining funds to 
be distributed using the number of senior and disabled residents located within 
each jurisdiction.   
 
Option 3 proposes to dedicate all of the Senior and Disabled Mobility to funding 
the Solano Intercity and local taxi scrip program and to funding a reduced price 
Senior and Disabled Fare Program.  
 
Option 4 proposes to dedicate $320,000 (50%) of the funding for the Intercity 
Taxi Scrip Program and reduced Senior and Disabled Fare Program.  The 
remaining 50% would be distributed back to each operator based on the share of 
senior and disabled population with a minimum of $25,000 for smaller cities and 
the unincorporated County. 
 

180



The Senior and Disabled Mobility category of the proposed VRF Expenditure 
Plan was discussed at a June 24th meeting of the STA’s Senior and Disabled 
Advisory Committee.  At the meeting, the Committee opted to appoint a 
Subcommittee to discuss the Senior and Disabled Mobility category of the VRF 
Plan in more detail and to provide a specific recommendation to the STA Board.  
The meeting of the Subcommittee has been scheduled for July 12th.  A summary 
of the Subcommittee’s comments will be provided at the Board meeting.  
 
The Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) is scheduled to meet on July 15th to 
discuss this category.  Their comments will be forwarded to the Board prior to 
subsequent action by the STA Board. 
 
The Solano Express Transit Consortium met on June 30th and reviewed and 
discussed the four options for allocating the Senior and Disabled Mobility funds.  
The Consortium recommended the Board consider a modified version of option 3 
that allocates the funding on a countywide basis, but expands the eligible funding 
categories to include the following: 
 

- Intercity and/or local subsidized taxis services for ambulatory and/or non-
ambulatory passengers 

- Reduced price senior and disabled fares 
- Purchase of paratransit vehicles 
- Senior shuttles 
- Non-profit mobility programs to assist the disabled and seniors  

 
 

DRAFT VRF EXPENDITURE PLAN (Attachment F) 
 
Staff has developed a draft Solano Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) Expenditure Plan 
based on the direction of the STA Board and the advisory committees and public 
comments received to date.  The plan contains the following sections: 
 

A. Purpose of the Expenditure Plan 
B. Statutory Authorization and Requirements 
C. Programmatic Expenditures 
D. Governing Board and Organizational Structure 

 
FLEXIBILITY BETWEEN CATEGORIES & AMENDMENTS TO THE PLAN 
 
One of the follow-up discussions requested by the Board was the issue of flexibility.   
The Expenditure Plan does include a provision pursuant to future amendments to the 
Plan.  As proposed, this would limit expenditures to the three specified categories of 
maintenance of local streets and roads, safe routes to school, and senior and disabled 
mobility, but would provide the flexibility for a local jurisdiction to request modifying 
the funding between categories for a specific year, subject to the approval of the STA 
Board.  A future amendment to the Expenditure Plan would require approval by two-
thirds vote of the STA Board, representing a majority of the population, plus a 45-day 
public notification and opportunity to provide comment.   

181



Recommendation:  
Receive public comment and provide staff with direction regarding the eligible categories 
for VRF expenditures and options for allocation of VRF funds for each category. 
 
Attachments: 

A. STIA Board (June 15, 2010) Powerpoint – Summary of Poll Results 
B. Proposed Allocation VRF Funds by Category 
C. Maintenance of Local Streets and Roads Eligible Expenditures and Allocation 

Options 
D. Safe Routes to School Eligible Expenditures and Allocation Options 

(D1 Updated Safe Routes to School Eligible Expenditures and Allocation 
Options) 

E. Senior and Disable Mobility Eligible Expenditures and Allocation Options 
F. Draft Solano Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) Expenditure Plan 

 

182



EMC Research, Inc.
436 14th Street, Suite 820
Oakland, CA  94612
(510) 844-0680
EMC 10-4272

TELEPHONE SURVEY OF LIKELY
SOLANO COUNTY NOVEMBER 2010 VOTERS

Presented to:
SOLANO TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

JUNE 15, 2010

Presentation of Results

183

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



2

Methodology

Telephone Survey of likely November 2010 
voters in Solano County

804 completed interviews

Margin of error ±3.5 percentage points

Conducted May 9-13,  2010

Interviews conducted by trained, professional 
interviewers

As with any opinion research, the release of 
selected figures from this report without the 
analysis that explains their meaning would be 
damaging to EMC.  Therefore, EMC reserves the 
right to correct any misleading release of this data 
in any medium through the release of correct data 
or analysis.

Please note that due to rounding, percentages may 
not add up to exactly 100%

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

City Number of Respondents Margin of Error for Sub-Group

Fairfield 194 (24%) +/-7.0%

Vallejo 185 (23%) +/-7.2%

Vacaville 177 (22%) +/-7.4%

Benicia 73 (9%) +/-11.5%

Suisun 60 (7%) +/-12.7%

Dixon 38 (5%) +/-15.9%

Rio Vista 22 (3%) +/-20.9%

Unincorporated 55 (7%) +/-13.2%

184



3

Conclusions

Initial vote on a $10 vehicle registration fee ballot measure is right at 50%.
Women, Democrats, and younger voters are the most supportive.  The measure sees the most 
support in Vallejo and Fairfield.
Vacaville and unincorporated areas of the county are the least supportive.

While a 20 year sunset is not appealing to voters, reducing the fee attracts slightly more 
supporters.

A $5 fee boosts support slightly, to 54% in favor.

Creating safe routes to school for children and repairing and maintaining local streets 
and roads are the top transportation expenditure priorities for Solano County voters.

Other programs that are supported include:  fixing potholes and transportation programs for 
seniors and disabled persons.

Voters see a need for increased funding for transportation.
Three out of four voters believe there is some need for transportation funding.

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

185



4

Thinking about Solano County’s transportation network, including streets, roads, and public transit, would you say that 
there is a great need for additional funding, some need, a little need, or no real need for additional funding? (Q14)

Three-quarters think that additional transportation 
funding is needed in Solano County

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

75%

186



5

Thinking about Solano County’s transportation network, including streets, roads, and public transit, would you say that 
there is a great need for additional funding, some need, a little need, or no real need for additional funding? (Q14)

Voters in Rio Vista, Vallejo, and Dixon see the 
greatest need for additional transportation funding

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

187



6

Shall a local vehicle registration fee of 
ten dollars be established and proceeds 
directed to fixing potholes, providing more 
and easier transportation options for 
seniors and the disabled, and creating 
safe routes to school; with expenditures 
subject to strict monitoring and with all 
revenues staying in Solano County?

Would you vote “Yes” to approve this 
measure, or “No” to reject it? (Q16)

Initial support for the measure 
as asked is right at 50%

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

47%

50%

188



7

The measure sees the highest support in Fairfield and Vallejo, 
and the lowest support in Vacaville and unincorporated areas

If this measure [$10 vehicle registration fee] were on the ballot today, 
would you vote “Yes” to approve this measure, or “No” to reject it? (Q16)

Bubble size represents proportion of demographic group

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

189



8

Support for the measure is highest in Supervisorial Districts 1 
and 2, and support is lowest in Districts 4 and 5

If this measure [$10 vehicle registration fee] were on the ballot today, 
would you vote “Yes” to approve this measure, or “No” to reject it? (Q16)

Bubble size represents proportion of demographic group

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

190



9

Comparison of $10 VRF measures

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

*Poll conducted by separate firm191



10

Voter support for the $18 parks surcharge and the 
$10 registration fee is nearly identical

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

192



11

Thinking about the second measure I 
just read, the county vehicle 

registration fee measure, what if the 
county vehicle registration fee measure 
expired after twenty years and could 

not be continued without another vote 
on the fee and the expenditure plan? 

(Q17)

Instead of ten dollars, what if the fee 
was five dollars? (Q18)

The sunset provision does not attract more support, while 
reducing the fee to $5 increases support only marginally

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

193



12

Safe routes to school for children and repairing local 
streets and roads are the top expenditure priorities

I am going to read you a list of things the [$10 VRF] measure might pay for.  For each one, please tell me how high of 
a priority it should be to pay for with the revenues.  Please use a scale from one to five, where one means it should 

not be a priority at all and five means it should be a very high priority. (Q20-29)

3.84

3.72

3.66

3.63

Mean

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

194



13

Mid-level transportation expenditure priorities 
for Solano County voters

I am going to read you a list of things the [$10 VRF] measure might pay for.  For each one, please tell me how high of 
a priority it should be to pay for with the revenues.  Please use a scale from one to five, where one means it should 

not be a priority at all and five means it should be a very high priority. (Q20-29)

3.53

3.44

3.43

Mean

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

195



14

Pedestrian safety improvements and reducing 
commute traffic are not voter priorities

I am going to read you a list of things the [$10 VRF] measure might pay for.  For each one, please tell me how high of 
a priority it should be to pay for with the revenues.  Please use a scale from one to five, where one means it should 

not be a priority at all and five means it should be a very high priority. (Q20-29)

3.39

3.28

3.20

Mean

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

196



15

Voter Priorities Overall Vallejo Fairfield Vacaville Benicia Suisun Dixon
Rio 

Vista
Unincorp

Safe routes to school for children
3.84 3.90 3.95 3.71 3.82 3.95 3.95 3.81 3.58

Repairing and maintaining local 
streets and roads 3.72 3.98 3.82 3.43 3.55 3.81 3.51 3.81 3.63

Fixing Potholes
3.66 3.93 3.77 3.29 3.64 3.58 3.35 4.00 3.73

Disabled Transportation 
Programs 3.63 3.79 3.64 3.61 3.45 3.76 3.35 3.71 3.35

Senior Transportation Programs 3.53 3.55 3.59 3.51 3.40 3.69 3.55 3.38 3.38

Make it easier to bike, walk, and 
take public transit 3.44 3.64 3.59 3.28 3.44 3.39 3.16 3.33 3.09

Funding for crossing guards 3.43 3.47 3.46 3.41 3.37 3.59 3.51 3.45 3.15

Public transportation 
improvements 3.39 3.52 3.49 3.17 3.53 3.41 3.49 3.41 2.98

Reduce commute traffic 3.28 3.30 3.41 3.18 3.45 3.41 2.87 3.18 3.09

Pedestrian safety improvements 3.20 3.52 3.33 2.99 3.15 3.34 3.13 3.10 2.98

Overview of Expenditure Priorities
By City

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

197



16

Options for next step

Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

OPTION 1
$10 

Registration 
Fee

OPTION 2
$10 

Registration 
Fee

OPTION 3
$10 

Registration 
Fee

OPTION 4
$5 

Registration 
Fee

OPTION 5
$5 

Registration 
Fee

OPTION 6
Do not place 
measure on 

ballot

Funds Generated $3.2 Million 
annually

$3.2 Million 
annually

$3.2 Million 
annually

$1.6 Million 
annually

$1.6 Million 
annually

n/a

Safe Routes to Schools
• Crossing Guards
• Radar speed detection signs
• Improved bike and pedestrian paths near 

schools
• Improved rail, highway, and road crossing 

signs near schools
• School shuttle programs
• Bicycle and pedestrian safety programs
• Education and encouragement programs
Senior and Disabled Transportation
• Intercity and local subsidized taxi services for 

ambulatory and non‐ambulatory transit
• Reduced‐price senior and disabled passes
• Purchase of paratransit vehicles
• Senior shuttles
• Non‐profit mobility programs assisting the 

disabled and seniors
Maintenance of Local Streets and Roads
• Street repaving and rehabilitation
• Traffic signal maintenance and upgrades
• Signing and striping on roadways
• Fixing potholes

198



Solano Transportation Authority                   
EMC 10-4272

Solano Transportation Improvement Authority
One Harbor Center, Suite 130

Suisun City, CA 94585
Tel: 707.424.6075

199



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

200



Expenditure Plan Categories

STIA Board Meeting, June 15, 2010

1
201

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



Maintenance of Local Streets and Roads

2

Street repaving and rehabilitation

Traffic signal maintenance and upgrades

Signing and striping on roadways

Fixing potholes

202



Safe Routes to School

3

Crossing Guards

Radar speed detection signs

Improved bike and pedestrian paths 
near schools

Improved rail, highway, and road 
crossing signs near schools

Increased traffic enforcement near 
schools

Bicycle & pedestrian safety programs

Education and encouragement 
programs

203



Senior & Disabled Transportation
Intercity and local subsidized taxis services 
for ambulatory and non-ambulatory transit

Reduced-price senior & disabled passes

Purchase of paratransit vehicles

Senior shuttles

Non-profit mobility programs assisting the 
disabled & seniors

4
204



Options

5

Option 1
$10 Fee

Option 2
$10 Fee

Option 3
$10 Fee

Option 4
$5 Fee

Option 5
$5 Fee

Option 6
No Fee

Funds Generated $3.2 M 
annually

$3.2 M 
annually

$3.2 M 
annually

$1.6 M 
annually

$1.6 M 
annually

$0

Maintenance
of Local 
Streets and 
Roads

Safe Routes 
to School

Senior and 
Disabled 
Transportation

205



Proposed Public Input Process

6

June 24 Senior & Disabled Transportation Advisory Committee

June 30 STA Technical Advisory Committee

June 30 STA Transit Consortium

July 8 Bicycle Advisory Committee

July 8 or 13 Countywide Safe Routes to School Advisory Committee 

July 14 STA Board Public Workshop

July 15 Paratransit 
Coordinating Council

Prior to August 6
STA Board Action

206



$400,000 

$600,000 

$800,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,200,000 

$1,400,000 

$1,600,000 

$1,800,000 

SB 83, 50% for Local Streets and Roads
Two Options to distribute Agency Shares of $1.6 M (1 year & 4 years projections)

Option 1 is by formula and Option 2 is by formula with $75k annual minimums for Benicia, Dixon, and Rio Vista

1 Year by formula

4 Years by formula

1 Year ($75k min)

4 Years ($75k min)

Option 1, by Formula

Option 2, Formula
+ 75k minimum shares

$‐

$200,000 

$400,000 

$600,000 

$800,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,200,000 

$1,400,000 

$1,600,000 

$1,800,000 

County of Solano Benicia Dixon Fairfield Rio Vista Suisun City Vacaville Vallejo

1 Year by formula $264,000  $75,000  $57,000  $355,000  $22,000  $113,000  $301,000  $413,000 

4 Years by formula $1,056,000  $300,000  $228,000  $1,420,000  $88,000  $452,000  $1,204,000  $1,652,000 

% Share 16.52% 4.66% 3.56% 22.17% 1.38% 7.07% 18.82% 25.82%

1 Year ($75k min) $251,000  $75,000  $75,000  $338,000  $75,000  $107,000  $286,000  $393,000 

4 Years ($75k min) $1,004,000  $300,000  $300,000  $1,352,000  $300,000  $428,000  $1,144,000  $1,572,000 

% share with 75k min 15.69% 4.69% 4.69% 21.13% 4.69% 6.69% 17.88% 24.56%

SB 83, 50% for Local Streets and Roads
Two Options to distribute Agency Shares of $1.6 M (1 year & 4 years projections)

Option 1 is by formula and Option 2 is by formula with $75k annual minimums for Benicia, Dixon, and Rio Vista

1 Year by formula

4 Years by formula

1 Year ($75k min)

4 Years ($75k min)

* Formula used for distribution of funding  is the Metropolitan Transportation Commission's (MTC) Local Streets & Roads Formula: 
25% Population,  25% Lane‐miles, 25% agency street rehabilitation funding shortfall, 25% preventative maintenance spending.

Option 1, by Formula

Option 2, Formula
+ 75k minimum shares

207

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C



$1
49
,0
00

 

00
0 

$3
50
,0
00

 

$1
35
,9
85

 

$3
32
,0
00

 

$150 000

$200,000 

$250,000 

$300,000 

$350,000 

$400,000 

SB 83, 25% for Safe Routes to School / Safety Projects & Programs
School District Annual Shares of $0.8 M compared to K‐12 school district student enrollment

Option 1) District Share by Enrollment / Countywide Crossing Guard & STA Education & Encouragement Programs

Option 2) $40,000 minimum shares & Countywide Crossing Guard & STA Education & Encouragement Programs

$3
3,
00
0 

$2
7,
00
0 

$1
49
,0
00

 

$3
5,
00
0 

$8
7,
00
0 

$1
11
,0
00

 

$8
,0
00

 

$3
50
,0
00

 

$4
0,
00
0 

$4
0,
00
0 

$1
35
,9
85

 

$4
0,
00
0  $7

3,
98
5 

$9
7,
98
5 

$4
0,
00
0 

$3
32
,0
00

 

$‐

$50,000 

$100,000 

$150,000 

$200,000 

$250,000 

$300,000 

$350,000 

$400,000 

Benicia USD Dixon USD Fairfield‐Suisun USD Travis USD Vacaville USD Vallejo City USD River Delta USD in Rio 
Vista

Crossing Guards & STA 
SR2S Program

SB 83, 25% for Safe Routes to School / Safety Projects & Programs
School District Annual Shares of $0.8 M compared to K‐12 school district student enrollment

Option 1) District Share by Enrollment / Countywide Crossing Guard & STA Education & Encouragement Programs

Option 2) $40,000 minimum shares & Countywide Crossing Guard & STA Education & Encouragement Programs

208

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D



$1
41
,0
00

 

00
0 

$3
50
,0
00

 

13
0,
75
4 

4 

$3
40
,0
00

 

$150 000

$200,000 

$250,000 

$300,000 

$350,000 

$400,000 

SB 83, 25% for Safe Routes to School / Safety Projects & Programs
City shares of $0.8 M compared to K‐12 school district student enrollment

Option 1) City Share by Enrollment / Countywide Crossing Guard & STA Education & Encouragement Programs

Option 2) $40,000 min for Benicia, Dixon, & Suisun City ($20k for Rio Vista) & Countywide Crossing Guard & STA Education 
& Encouragement Programs

$3
3,
00
0 

$2
7,
00
0 

$1
41
,0
00

 

$8
,0
00

 

$1
8,
00
0 

$9
6,
00
0 

$1
11
,0
00

 

$3
50
,0
00

 

$4
0,
00
0 

$4
0,
00
0 

$1
30
,7
54

 

$2
0,
00
0 

$4
0,
00
0 

$8
5,
75
4 

$1
00
,7
54

 

$3
40
,0
00

 

$‐

$50,000 

$100,000 

$150,000 

$200,000 

$250,000 

$300,000 

$350,000 

$400,000 

Benicia Dixon Fairfield +TAFB Rio Vista Suisun City Vacaville +TAFB Vallejo Crossing Guards & STA 
SR2S Program

SB 83, 25% for Safe Routes to School / Safety Projects & Programs
City shares of $0.8 M compared to K‐12 school district student enrollment

Option 1) City Share by Enrollment / Countywide Crossing Guard & STA Education & Encouragement Programs

Option 2) $40,000 min for Benicia, Dixon, & Suisun City ($20k for Rio Vista) & Countywide Crossing Guard & STA Education 
& Encouragement Programs

209

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D1



$
2

0
,7

2
1

 

$
3

9
,7

5
0

 

$
2

0
,7

8
7

 

$
1

8
2

,8
5

4
 

$
1

8
,8

7
9

 

$
1

2
8

,7
4

5
 $

2
2

8
,2

6
4

 

$
-

$
5

0
,0

0
0

 

$
5

0
,0

0
0

 

$
5

0
,0

0
0

 $
1

4
9

,0
3

0
 

$
5

0
,0

0
0

 

$
1

0
4

,9
3

0
 

$
1

8
6

,0
4

0
 

$
-

$
-

$
-

$
-

$
-

$
-

$
-

$
-

$
6

4
0

,0
0

0
 

$
2

5
,0

0
0

 

$
2

5
,0

0
0

 

$
2

5
,0

0
0

 

$
7

4
,5

1
5

 

$
2

5
,0

0
0

 

$
5

2
,4

6
5

 

$
9

3
,0

2
0

 

$
3

2
0

,0
0

0
 

$
6

4
0

,0
0

0
 

$-

$100,000 

$200,000 

$300,000 

$400,000 

$500,000 

$600,000 

$700,000 

County of 
Solano

Benicia Dixon Fairfield-Suisun Rio Vista Vacaville Vallejo Countywide Taxi 
Scrip & Reduced 

Fares or All 
Categories are 

Eligible

SB 83, 20% for Senior and Disabled Mobility
Five Options to distribute $640,000

Option 1) By Population Formula to Transit Operators

Option 2) By Formula with $50,000 minimums

Option 3) All Countywide Taxi Scrip & Reduced Fares

Option 4) 50% Countywide Taxi Scrip & Reduced Fares / 50% By Formula with 
$25,000 minimums

Option 5) All Categories are Eligible

210

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT E



ATTACHMENT F 
 
 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE 

EXPENDITURE PLAN 
 

A. Purpose of the Expenditure Plan 
The Solano County Vehicle Registration Fee Expenditure Plan (Plan) will guide the annual expenditures 
of the funds generated by a $10 per year vehicle registration fee (Fee), if approved by voters in the 
November 2010 election.  Solano County has significant unfunded transportation needs, and this Fee 
would provide funding to meet some of those needs.  It is expected that this Fee will generate 
approximately $3,200,000 per year.  
 
The Fee would be administered by the Solano Transportation Authority (STA).  The goal of this Plan is 
to support transportation investments in a way that sustains the transportation network and reduces 
traffic congestion and vehicle-related pollution in Solano County and the cities of Benicia, Dixon, 
Fairfield, Rio Vista, Suisun City, Vacaville and Vallejo (County).  The Fee would be a key part of an 
overall strategy to develop a balanced, well thought-out program that improves transportation, mobility 
and safety for the County’s residents.  The Fee will fund programs that: 
 

• Repair and maintain local streets and roads in the County. 
• Support programs and projects identified in the Solano Safe Routes to Schools Plan. 
• Support programs and vehicle acquisition for Senior and Disabled Mobility. 

 
The Plan would have the following specific elements: 
 

• All of the money raised by the Fee would be used exclusively for transportation projects and 
programs in the County. 

• None of the funds raised, outside of the costs incurred by the Department of Motor Vehicle to 
collect the Fee, can be taken by the State. 

• Projects and programs included in the Plan must have a relationship or benefit to the owner’s of 
motor vehicles paying the Fee.  Those elements contained in the Plan have demonstrated that 
relationship. 

• The Plan will help fund roadway repairs and maintenance that make roads in the County safer, 
more efficient and less congested for motorists, bicyclists and pedestrians. 

• The Plan will establish a reliable source of funds to implement the Solano Safe Routes to 
Schools Plan in order to reduce traffic congestion around schools, increase safety for bicycle and 
pedestrian access to schools, and reduce childhood obesity. 

• The Plan will establish a reliable source of funds for Senior and Disabled Mobility services in 
order to reduce congestion related to individual operation of vehicles typically used for 
transportation of seniors and the disabled. 

• The Plan will provide matching funds for funding made available from other sources for the 
programs eligible and included in the Plan.

211



B. Statutory Authorization and Requirements  
The opportunity for a Countywide transportation agency, such as the STA, to place this Fee before the 
voters was authorized in 2009 by the passage of Senate Bill 83, authored by Senator Loni Hancock.  The 
STA Board may choose to place a transportation measure (Measure) on the November 2, 2010 ballot to 
enact a $10 vehicle registration fee that would be used for local transportation and transit improvements 
throughout the County, as specified in the Plan.  A majority vote of the electorate is required to adopt 
this Fee. 
 
The statute requires that the Fee collected be used only to pay for programs and projects that bear a 
relationship or benefit to the owners of motor vehicles paying the Fee, and that the expenditures be 
consistent with a regional transportation plan.  The Fee will be imposed on each annual motor-vehicle 
registration or renewal of registration in Solano County occurring on or after six-months following the 
November 2, 2010 election, where the Measure was approved by the voters, for an unlimited period, 
unless otherwise terminated by the voters of Solano County.   To implement this Fee, the statute requires 
the governing board of the STA to adopt an Expenditure Plan.  The statute also requires the ballot 
measure resolution be approved by majority vote of the STA Board at a noticed public hearing.  The 
Joint Powers Agreement establishing the STA further requires that the STA Board vote also represent 
the majority of the population in Solano County. 

C. Programmatic Expenditures  
The Plan identifies three types of programs that will receive funds generated by the Fee.  Below are 
descriptions of each program and the percentage of the annual revenue that will be allocated to each 
program.  In addition, not more than five percent (5%) of the fee collected would be used for Plan 
administration and accountability, including the cost of annual audits. 
 
Local Streets and Roads Repair and Maintenance     50% 

• Repair and maintain local streets and roads.  This covers all portions of the roadway, 
including curb and gutter or roadway shoulder, but excluding sidewalks. 

• Repair, maintain and install traffic control signs, signals and controllers. 
• Repair, maintain and install street lights. 
• Repair, maintain and install accessibility improvements to meet federal and state 

requirements. 
• Revenue estimate - $1,600,000 per year. 
• Revenue distribution – direct return to source based upon the following formula: 25% 

jurisdiction population, 25% jurisdiction lane-miles, 25% jurisdiction street 
rehabilitation funding shortfalls, 25% jurisdiction preventative maintenance local 
streets and roads repair and maintenance. 

Safe Routes to Schools        25% 
• Install and maintain radar feedback signs near schools. 
• Install, improve and maintain bicycle and pedestrian paths near schools. 
• Improve rail, highway and road crossings near schools. 
• Help cities or school districts hire crossing guards. 
• Provide for additional traffic enforcement near schools. 
• Conduct bicycle and pedestrian safety programs, and education and encouragement 

programs consistent with the Solano Safe Routes to Schools Plan. 
• Revenue Estimate - $800,000 per year. 

212



• Revenue distribution – 25 % for countywide Safe Routes to School programs, with 
remaining funds distributed by direct return to source based upon jurisdiction student 
population, with a minimum $20,000 per year for the City of Rio Vista and a 
minimum $40,000 for all other Solano County cities. 

 
Senior and Disabled Mobility        20% 

• Intercity and local subsidized taxi service for ambulatory and non-ambulatory transit. 
• Reduced-fare senior and disabled transit passes. 
• Purchase of paratransit and senior shuttle vehicles. 
• Non-profit mobility programs to assist seniors and the disabled. 
• Revenue estimate - $ 640,000 per year. 
• Revenue distribution – funds to be allocated by STA Board with recommendation 

from the STA’s Senior and Disabled Advisory Committee. 

D. Governing Board and Organizational Structure 
1. Agency Responsible for Administering Proceeds of Fee 

The STA, pursuant to California Government Code Section 65089.20, shall place a majority vote 
ballot measure before the voters to authorize a $10 per year increase in the motor vehicle 
registration fee.  If so approved, the STA will collect and administer the Fee in accordance with 
the Plan. 

2. Contract with Department of Motor Vehicles 
The STA shall contract with the Department of Motor Vehicles to collect the fee imposed 
pursuant to California Government Code section 65089.20 upon the registration or renewal of 
registration of a motor vehicle registered in the County, except those vehicles that are expressly 
exempted under this code from the payment of registration fees, pursuant to California Vehicle 
Code section 9250.4, as approved by the voters of Solano County.  

3. Annual Budget Financial Projections 
The Annual Budget, adopted by the STA each year, will project the expected Fee revenue, other 
anticipated funds and planned expenditures for administration and programs. 

4. Annual Report 
The STA shall complete an Annual Report, which shall be made available to the public and will 
include the following: 

• Revenues collected 
• Expenditures by programs, including distribution of funds within each program, and 

administrative costs 
• Accomplishments and benefits realized by the programs 
• Proposed projects for funding in each program 
• Project sponsors receiving funds through this Plan will be required to provide an annual 

report to the STA that specifies funds expended and the progress of projects and programs 
funded by this plan. 

 
Before adopting the Annual Report, the STA will hold a public meeting and will address public 
comments in the Annual Report. 

213



5. Use of Proceeds 
The proceeds of the Fee shall be used solely for the programs and purposes set forth in the Plan 
and for the administration thereof.  The STA will administer the proceeds of the Fee to carry out 
the mission described in the Plan.  Pursuant to California Government Code Section 65089.20, 
not more than five percent (5%) of the Fee shall be used for administrative costs associated with 
the programs and projects, including the annual audit of the Plan’s expenditures. 
 
Pursuant to California Vehicle Code Section 9250.4, the initial setup and programming costs 
identified by the Department of Motor Vehicles (Department) to collect the Fee upon registration 
or renewal of registration of a motor vehicle shall be paid by the STA from the Fee.  Any direct 
contract payment with the Department by the STA shall be repaid, with no restriction on the 
funds, to the STA as part of the initial revenue available for distribution.  The costs deducted 
pursuant to this paragraph shall not be counted against the five percent (5%) administrative cost 
limit specified in California Government Code Section 65089.20(d).   
 
The costs of placing the Measure authorizing imposition of the Fee on the ballot, including 
payments to the County Registrar of Voters and payments for the printing of the portions of the 
ballot pamphlet relating to the Fee, advanced by the STA, shall be paid from the proceeds of this 
Fee, and shall not be counted towards the five percent (5%) limit on administrative costs.  The 
costs of preparing the Plan, advanced by the STA, shall be paid from the proceeds of the Fee 
subject to the five percent (5%) limit on administrative costs.  At the discretion of the STA, these 
costs may be amortized over a period of years. 

The proceeds of the Fee shall be spent only inside the limits of Solano County.  None of the 
proceeds, outside of the costs incurred by the Department to collect the fee, shall be taken by the 
State. 

6. Duration of Fee 
The Fee, if so approved, would be imposed annually unless repealed. 

7. Severability 
If any provision of this Plan or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held 
invalid, the remainder of this Plan and the application thereof to other persons or circumstances 
shall not be affected.  If any proposed expenditure based on this Plan is held invalid, those funds 
shall be redistributed to other expenditures in accordance with the Plan. 

8. Amendments to the Plan 
It is expected that the Plan will be amended from time to time.  Amendments to the Plan shall be 
limited to the three funding programs specified in Section C (Programmatic Expenditures).  
Amendment to the Plan shall be approved by a two-thirds vote of the STA Board, representing 
the majority of the population of Solano county.  The City Clerks of the cities of Benicia, Dixon, 
Fairfield, Rio Vista, Suisun City, Vacaville and Vallejo, and the County Clerk of the County of 
Solano, will be given a minimum of 45-days notice and opportunity to comment on any proposed 
Plan amendment prior to its adoption. 

9. Option to Bond 
The STA shall be authorized to issue bonds for the purposes of implementing the Plan.  The 
bonds will be paid with the proceeds of the Fee.  The costs associated with bonding will be borne 
only by programs in the Plan utilizing the bond proceeds.  The costs and risks associated with 
bonding will be presented in the STA’s Annual Budget and will be subject to public comment 
before approving a bond sale. 

214



10. Statute of Limitations 
Any suit, action or proceeding in any court against the STA, or against any officer of the STA, to 
prevent or enjoin the collection under this ordinance, of any Fee or any amount of Fee required 
to be collected must be brought within 120 days of the approval of the imposition of the Fee by 
the voters of Solano County. 
 

11. Effective Date 
The Measure shall take effect at the close of the polls on the day of election at which the Fee is 
adopted by a majority of the electors voting on the Measure. 

215



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

216



Agenda Item IX.B 
July 14, 2010 

 
 

 
 

 
DATE:  June 30, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Janet Adams, Deputy Executive Director/Director of Projects 
RE: Locally Preferred Alternative for the I-80/I-680/State Route (SR) 12 

Interchange Project  
  
 
Background: 
The I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange, located along the I-80 corridor in Solano County, is 
one of the busiest in Northern California.  Each day, the volume of cars, buses, and trucks 
exceed the roadway’s capacity, causing long delays and back-ups, particularly during 
commute hours. Improving this major bottleneck is a top priority for Solano County and 
the State of California.  
 
For many years, the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), in cooperation 
with the Solano Transportation Authority (STA), Solano County, and the cities of 
Fairfield and Suisun City, has been evaluating a variety of alternatives to improve local 
and regional mobility and safety within the corridor.  
 
The I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project evolved out of the broader I-80/I-680/I-780 
Major Investment Study (MIS).  STA, in cooperation with Caltrans, initiated the MIS in 
2001 to evaluate current and 2030 projected countywide mobility needs and corridor-
related issues.  The MIS was completed in 2004 and identified several areas of concern 
within the corridor, including: 

• Increasing traffic volumes exceeding current capacity 
• Increasing traffic delays 
• Deteriorating level of service 
• Increasing traffic conflicts at key merging areas 
• Increasing need for park-and-ride facilities 
• Doubling of the truck traffic and associated demand for trucking facilities 

 
These issues formed the basis for the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project; Attachment 
A is the Project Area Map.  To resolve the issues, the following key improvements were 
recommended: 

• Modify or construct new interchanges;  
• Add freeway capacity, High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) and auxiliary lanes; 
• Construct a local roadway parallel to I-80 to connect SR 12 East to SR 12 West 

(evolved into the North Connector Project, now known as the Suisun Parkway); 
and 

• Reconfigure or relocate and expand of the truck scales. 
 
Based on the needs identified in the MIS and with input from the public, Caltrans, in 
cooperation with STA staff, began development of alternatives that would address these 
needs. 

217



Initial Alternatives Identification 
In early 2003, even before the MIS was completed, STA initiated a series of public 
meetings to identify possible alternatives to address the needs of the I-80/I-680/SR12 
Interchange complex.  An informational Open House was held in March 2003, followed 
in May 2003 by a public scoping meeting to receive input on issues of concern and the 
scope of the analysis to be conducted as part of the environmental process.  Attendees at 
the scoping meeting also identified numerous potential alignments and issues of interest.  
This public input was also used by Caltrans and STA to further develop and refine the 
criteria that would be used to evaluate various alternatives and refine the project Purpose 
and Need. 
 
Project Purpose and Need 
Out of the MIS and public input process, Caltrans and STA prepared a Purpose and Need 
statement for the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project.  Developing the Purpose and 
Need statement is the first step in the environmental processes and is one of the key 
factors in evaluating and screening alternatives.  
 
The project’s Purpose and Need statement was developed in a collaborative effort with 
the cities of Fairfield and Suisun City, Solano County, and in consultation with various 
resource agencies including the US Fish and Wildlife Service, California Department of 
Fish and Game, and the Environmental Protection Agency, among others.  The Purpose 
and Need of the project was defined as the following:   

• Reduce congestion through the I-80/I-680/SR 12 interchange to accommodate 
current and future traffic volumes. 

• Reduce the amount of cut-through traffic on local roads attempting to avoid 
congestion on the freeway system. 

• Establish logical and adequate access to and from the freeway system to 
accommodate existing and planned land uses in the project area. 

• Accommodate current and future truck volumes using the I-80, I-680 and SR 12 
corridors for goods movement. 

• Accommodate current and future truck volumes accessing the truck scales facility 
within the interchange area. 

• Improve safety conditions within the project limits. 
• Increase the use of High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) lanes and ridesharing 

through the project area. 
 
Alternatives Evaluation Process 
Based on the MIS and input gathered from the public and key stakeholder agencies, 
twelve (12) alternatives were developed and evaluated using a two-tier screening process.   
 
Tier 1 Screening 
The alternatives evaluation process began with 12 alternatives.  These alternatives were 
evaluated for: 

• The ability to fulfill project purpose and need. 
• General feasibility or the presence of an obvious “fatal flaw”.  
• The effect on traffic operations and major environmental issues. 
• Any substantial local opposition. 

 
Tier 1 Screening Results: Eight alternatives were withdrawn and four (A, B, C, D) were 
advanced for in-depth study.  (Attachment B) 

218



Tier 2 Screening 
The Tier 2 Screening of Alternatives A, B, C and D included evaluation of:  

• The alternative’s ability to fulfill project purpose and need. 
• Detailed environmental analysis. 
• Traffic operations. 
• Engineering considerations. 

 
Tier 2 Screening Results: Alternatives A and D were eliminated because Alternative A 
would result in a higher overall cost and greater environmental right-of-way impacts than 
Alternative B, but with little added benefit and Alternative D would construct an elevated 
roadway system(viaduct), which would have created significant visual impact and 
alterations to highway access in commercial areas.  (Attachment C) 
 
During the course of evaluating and screening alternatives, several projects with 
independent utility were identified and pursued as separate projects.  These projects 
include the I-80 HOV Lanes, the North Connector (Suisun Parkway) and the I-80 
Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation.  The first project has been completed, the 
North Connector (Suisun Parkway) is under construction and the I-80 Eastbound 
Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project is currently in final design, with start of 
construction anticipated in 2011. 
 
Upon completion of the Tier 2 screening, two Alternatives, B and C, were recommended 
to be advanced for further study in the Environmental Impact Report/Environmental 
Impact Statement (EIR/EIS).  These Alternatives (B and C) are considered “ultimate” or 
full-build alternatives to meet the long-term traffic and safety demands of the project 
area.  In addition to the ultimate Alternatives, two fundable (or Phase 1) Alternatives for 
B and C have been developed and evaluated in the EIR/EIS.  The two Phase 1 
Alternatives evaluated in the EIR/EIS represent the fundable portions of the full-build 
alternatives.  Phase 1 construction is expected to be complete by 2022.  The key elements 
of Alternatives B and C (including Phase 1) are described below: 
 
Alternative B (Attachment D) 

• Retains the same basic alignments that exist today but would braid all of the 
freeway-to-freeway connections with the next adjacent interchange (either local 
or Truck Scales). 

• The I-80/I-680 Interchange would be reconfigured to have the I-680 connectors, 
including HOV lanes, which would come into and out of the median of I-80. 

• Local traffic and trucks would use new slip ramps from/to the freeway to freeway 
connectors that are connected to the Suisun Valley Road Interchange. 

• No direct connections from I-680 North to I-80 West/SR 12 West. Traffic would 
need to use local arterial (Red Top Road). 

• The westbound Truck Scales would be reconstructed and braided ramps on the 
east with the SR 12 East Interchange would be provided. 

• Adds new access to downtown Suisun City and parallel roads and interchanges 
along SR 12 East. 

 
Alternative B Phase 1 (Attachment E) 

• Improved interchange at Suisun Valley Road 
• Widening I-80 from west of Green Valley Road to Dan Wilson Creek 
• Realignment of Neitzel Road 
• Improved interchange at Green Valley Road 

219



• I-680 connectors, including HOV lanes, which would come into and out of the 
median of I-80, along with the HOV connectors. 

• Widening I-680 from Gold Hill Interchange to I-80 
• New Beck Avenue/SR 12 East Interchange 

 
Alternative C (Attachment F) 

• Realigns I-680 to the west to connect directly with SR 12 West, thereby 
combining the I-80/I-680 and SR12/I-80 Interchanges into a single interchange, 
with direct connectors for all movements, with the exception of direct connections 
between I-80 East and SR 12 (W) and the corresponding movement from SR 12 
(W) and I-80 West. 

• All I-80/I-680 connections would be freeway-to-freeway ramps, including HOV 
direct connectors. 

• The Green Valley Road Interchange would have direct connections to I-80, with 
the west side ramps connecting further to the west and braided with the freeway 
connectors to eliminate any weave conflicts.   

• Existing I-680, between I-80 on the north and the beginning of the realignment 
(near Red Top Road) on the south would be converted to a local street. 

• Adds new access to downtown Suisun City and removes one access point to 
downtown Fairfield. 

 
Alternative C Phase 1 (Attachment G) 

• Realigns I-680 to the west to connect directly with SR 12 West, thereby 
combining the I-80/I-680 and SR 12/I-80 Interchanges into a single interchange, 
with the following direct connectors: 1) I-80 West to I-680 South, 2) I-680 North 
to I-80 East, and 3) I-80 West to SR12 West; and 4) SR12 West to I-80 East 

• New direct HOV connectors between I-680 and I-80 to the east 
• New interchange at SR 12West/Red Top Road 
• New roadway connecting the I-80/Red Top Road Interchange with Business 

Center Drive 
• Realigned connector from I-80 West to SR 12 West 
• Improved interchange at Red Top Road and I-80 
• Realigned and widened I-80 West 
• New overcrossing and improved interchange at Green Valley Road 
• New bridge over Green Valley Creek 
• New interchange at I-680 and Red Top Road 
• Realign Lopes and Fermi Roads (local) 
• New lane on SR 12 East from I-80 to Pennsylvania 

 
Public Participation 
To ensure public awareness and involvement throughout the project development and 
environmental process, STA staff prepared and distributed four newsletters containing 
Project information and updates.  Caltrans, in cooperation with STA, held public 
meetings, including two in April 2007 (a property owner meeting for owners and tenants 
in the vicinity of Alternative C and an informational open house to provide overall 
project updates and collect feedback) and an informational open house in Fairfield in 
March 2009.  
 
In addition, the Project was also presented and discussed with the public at meetings held 
for the North Connector Project in December 2006 and October 2007.  

220



Information about the Project has also been provided through STA’s website including 
copies of all project newsletters, project studies and presentations made to the public and 
STA Board.  
 
Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement (EIR/EIS) 
STA has worked closely with the Caltrans to prepare the Draft EIR/EIS for the Project.  
The Draft EIR/EIS is nearing completion and is anticipated to be published for public and 
agency review in July of this year.  The Draft EIR/EIS will be made available for a 60-
day review period during which a public hearing will be held within the project area.   
 
Identification of the Preferred Alternative 
The Draft EIR/EIS includes extensive study of both Alternatives B and C.  The 
alternatives were compared to assess:  

• The project’s ability to fulfill project Purpose and Need 
• Extent and level of significance of environmental impacts 
• Effect on traffic operations and engineering considerations 
• Constructability and phasing 

 
Attachment H contains a comprehensive comparison of the Alternatives based on the 
evaluation contained in the Draft EIR/EIS.  Based upon the analyses and consultation 
performed to date, staff recommends Alternative C (and Alternative C - Phase 1) be 
identified as the locally preferred Alternative for the following reasons: 

1. Traffic operations of Alternative C would be superior to Alternative B.  
Alternative C would include all freeway to freeway movements between I-80 and 
I-680 via direct connectors, whereas Alternative B would not have a direct 
connector between I-680 North and I-80 West. 

2. Alternative C would encourage regional traffic to stay off local roads by 
providing a high-capacity connection from I-680 to SR 12 West/I-80 West that 
would carry an acceptable level of traffic during peak hours (500 vehicles per 
hour in 2035).  Without this connection, traffic making the same movement using 
Alternative B would more likely use Red Top Road which would pass by 
Rodriguez High School. 

3. Alternative C would provide drivers on I-680 with standard, outside-lane 
entrances/exits to I-80.  Alternative B would provide these entrances/exits in the 
median, potentially increasing driver confusion.  

4. Alternative C would create relatively less traffic friction (less merging on and off 
the freeway) in the area between Green Valley and Suisun Valley Roads. 
Alternative B would leave two partial interchanges (I-80/SR 12 West and I-80/I-
680) that, together with the median-lane I-680 to I-80 merge and the outer lane 
braided traffic, could lead to greater traffic friction and driver confusion. 

5. Alternative C would move I-680 away from the residential areas in Cordelia, 
reducing noise impacts on an existing community and potential impacts to the 
Village of Cordelia Historic District.  

6. The environmental impacts of Alternatives B and C would be similar, including 
impacts to biology, farmland and other areas of environmental concern. 

7. Alternative C offers more favorable construction phasing and staging 
opportunities, as it will be constructed on a new alignment.  Staging and 
construction for Alternative B would be more complicated because the 
improvements would be constructed essentially in the same alignment and 
existing traffic would need to be accommodated.   

221



8. The Alternative C alignment would impact light industrial areas that are relatively 
less difficult to relocate, whereas the Alternative B alignment would impact 
freeway commercial areas that are relatively more difficult to relocate. 

 
Under the National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA), a locally preferred alternative 
can be identified in the draft environmental document if one is known at the time of 
publication.  In this case, staff believes that Alternative C (and Alternative C-1) should be 
identified in the Draft EIR/EIS as the locally preferred alternative for the reasons 
identified above.  Staff further believes it is important the Draft EIR/EIS include this 
determination to allow full public disclosure and comment.   
 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to send a letter to Caltrans to inform them STA has 
identified Alternative C (and Alternative C-1) as the locally preferred alternative and to 
include this information in the Draft EIS/EIR for public review and comment. 
 
Attachments: 

A. Project Area Map 
B. Tier 1 Screening 
C. Tier 2 Screening 
D. Alternative B Features 
E. Alternative B Phase 1 Features 
F. Alternative C Features 
G. Alternative C Phase 1 Features 
H. Alternatives Comparison Table 

222



§̈¦680

Cordelia Rd

Red Top Rd

G
ol

d Hill Rd

§̈¦80

!(12

Pittm
an

Rd

Bus
ine

ss Cent er DrMangels Blvd

G
reen

Valley
R

d

Su
is

un
 V

al
le

y 
R

d

Cordelia Rd

P
ennsylvania A

ve

Ohio St

Texas St

B
eck

A
ve

Courage Dr

C
hadb our ne

R
d

!(12

Rockville Rd

A
berna thy

R
d §̈¦80

Western Segment Eastern SegmentCentral Segment

D
an

 W
ils

on
 C

re
ek

1 inch equals 3,000 feet

Source: Nolte 2007, ESRI 2005,
CirclePoint 2007, NAIP 2006.

0 6,2003,100
Feet

0 1,500750
Meters

Legend
I680/I80/SR12 Interchange

Proposed Project Area

Segment Lines

CONTRA COSTA
COUNTY

SOLANO
COUNTY

NAPA
COUNTY

SONOMA
COUNTY

Project Area
§̈¦80

§̈¦680

!(29

!(12

!(37

San Pablo
Bay

Project
Location Map

Figure 2-1
Project Area Map

Source:  Circle Point 2008.

G
ra

ph
ic

s …
 0

21
66

.0
2 

EI
S 

(6
-9

-0
9)

G
reen Valley C

reek

Su
is

un
 C

re
ek

Peltier Slough

W
ells S

lough

Ledgewood Creek

Pu
ta

h 
So

ut
h 

C
an

al

Boyn
ton Slough

hguol
S enruobdah

C

Sheldrake Slough

Jameson Canyon Creek

223

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

224



Attachment B 
 

Summary of Tier 1 Screening Results 
 
Tier 1 Screening Results - Alternatives Withdrawn From Further Study  
During the initial development and screening of alternatives for the I-80/I-680/State Route (SR) 
12 Interchange Project, twelve (12) alternatives were identified and evaluated for Tier 1 
screening.  Of these twelve (12) alternatives, eight (8) were withdrawn from further study for the 
reasons noted below.  
 
1. Eliminate Green Valley Interchange 

Proposed removal of the Green Valley Road Interchange, in lieu, route traffic through Suisun 
Valley Road and two proposed new Red Top Road Interchanges (on SR 12 and I-680) and 
one existing Red Top Road Interchange on I-80. 
 
Rejected based on preliminary traffic operations analyses and because it didn’t meet Purpose 
and Need. 

 
2. I-80 Viaduct 

Proposed elevating of I-80 on a structure (or viaduct) through the Interchange Complex area 
for regional traffic in both directions. 
 
Rejected due to extremely high cost without appreciable benefit over other alternatives, out-
of-character visual impacts for a rural road segment, lack of regional traffic access from 
viaduct to freeway commercial businesses, and potential driver confusion. 

 
3. Combined Green Valley and Suisun Valley Roads Interchanges 

Proposed combining Green Valley Road and Suisun Valley Road Interchanges as a couplet 
by eliminating the ramps in between and routing traffic through frontage roads to the 
adjacent interchange. 
 
Rejected based on preliminary traffic operations analyses. 

 
4. I-680 Exit/Enter I-80 to the Outside 

Proposed I-680 entering and exiting along the outside of I-80. 
 
Rejected based on preliminary traffic operations analyses that indicated higher costs with 
similar or worse operations. 

 
5. Eliminate Suisun Valley Road Interchange 

Proposed removing the Suisun Valley Road Interchange and routing traffic through Green 
Valley Road Interchange and two proposed new Red Top Road Interchanges (on SR 12 and 
I-680). 
 

225



Rejected based on preliminary traffic operations analyses and because it didn’t meet Purpose 
and Need. 

 
6. South Parkway – 4-Lane Arterial 

Proposed widening Cordelia Road to a 4-lane facility to connect I-680 and SR 12 East. 
 
Rejected due to proposed use of the local road network for regional trips and impacts to the 
Primary Suisun Marsh. 

 
7. South Parkway – Expressway/Freeway 

Proposed a parallel route South of I-80 intended to connect I-680 and SR 12 East. 
 
Rejected due to impacts on the Primary Suisun Marsh. 

 
8. South Parkway – Frontage Alignment 

Proposed routing a South Parkway along the east side of I-680 and the south side of I-80, to 
connect I-680 and SR 12 East. 
 
Rejected due to impacts to historic resources and limited incentive to travel an arterial with 
multiple signals instead of a freeway segment of the same length. 

 
 
Conclusion: 
Based on the results of the Tier 1 screening, the eight (8) alternatives noted above were 
withdrawn from consideration for the reasons noted.  Four (4) alternatives, A through D, were 
recommended for further detailed study and are described in Attachment B.   
 

226



Attachment C 

 
Summary of Tier 2 Screening Results 

 
Tier 2 Screening Results - Alternatives withdrawn From Further Study  
Following completion of the Tier 1 screening, four (4) alternatives were carried forward into the 
Tier 2 screening.  Of the four (4) alternatives described below, two were withdrawn from further 
study and two were recommended for further detailed study in the Environmental Impact 
Report/Environmental Impact Study (EIR/EIS) for the reasons noted below.  
 
Alternative A 

• This would retain the same basic alignments that exist today, but would separate the local 
interchanges from the mainline by using collector-distributor (C-D) roads.  The State 
Route (SR) 12 West Interchange would be braided with C-D roads. 

• The I-80/I-680 Interchange would be reconfigured to have the I-680 mixed-flow 
connectors come into and out of the median of I-80, along with the High Occupancy 
Vehicle (HOV) connectors. 

• Local traffic and trucks would use a new slip ramp to access the C-D roads. 
• No direct connections from I-680 North to I-80 West/SR 12 West. Traffic would need to 

use local arterials (most likely Red Top Road past Rodriguez High School). 
• The Truck Scales would be reconstructed and braided ramps would be provided with 

adjacent interchange ramps. 
 
Recommendation:  This alternative would have a higher cost and greater environmental and right 
of way impacts than Alternative B, but with little added benefit.  This alternative is not 
recommended for further study. 
 
Alternative B 

• This would retain the same basic alignments that exist today, but would braid all of the 
freeway-to-freeway connections with the next adjacent interchange (either local or Truck 
Scales). 

• The I-80/I-680 Interchange would be reconfigured to have the I-680 connectors come 
into and out of the median of I-80, along with the HOV connectors (as in Alternative A). 
Local traffic and trucks would use new slip ramps braided with the Suisun Valley Road 
Interchange. 

• No direct connections from I-680 North to I-80 West/SR 12 West.  Traffic would need to 
use local arterials (most likely Red Top Road past Rodriguez High School). 

• The Truck Scales would be reconstructed and braided ramps would be provided with 
adjacent SR 12 East Interchange ramps.  

 
Recommendation:  This alternative would provide similar congestion relief benefits as 
Alternative A, but with less environmental and right of way impacts. This alternative is 
recommended for further study. 
 

227



Alternative C 
• This would realign I-680 to curve to the northwest and connect to I-80 and SR 12 West 

(Jameson Canyon) near the existing SR 12 West/I-80 Interchange. 
• The I-80/I-680 and SR 12/I-80 Interchanges would be combined, including a direct 

connection between SR 12 West and I-680. 
• All I-80/I-680 movements would be freeway-to-freeway ramps, with HOV connections 

included. 
• The west ramps to and from the Green Valley Road Interchange would connect to I-80 

farther west than today, removing the weave between those and the I-80/SR 12 West 
freeway connectors. 

• All other ramps would connect directly to the freeway, with the exception of the east 
ramps from the reconstructed Truck Scales, which would be braided with the SR 12 East 
Interchange. 

• The existing I-680, between I-80 on the north and the beginning of the realignment (near 
Red Top Road) on the south, would be converted to a local street. 

 
Recommendation: This alternative would provide improved mainline flow along I-80. This 
alternative is recommended for further study. 
 
Alternative D 

• The I-80/I-680 connectors would be relocated to the east by means of parallel viaducts 
running along the outsides of I-80.  

• The viaducts would connect to I-80 near the relocated Truck Scales and would be braided 
with SR 12 East.  Local traffic and trucks would use new slip ramps. 

• No direct connections from I-680 northbound to I-80 West/SR 12 West.  Traffic would 
need to use local arterial (most likely Red Top Road by Rodriguez High School). 

• HOV connectors between I-680 and I-80 would be provided.  
• The I-80 viaduct would be braided with the SR 12 east connector ramps. 
• The Truck Scales would be reconstructed and have braided ramps on the east. SR 12 

West would be braided with the Green Valley Road Interchange and the slip ramps 
braided with the Suisun Valley Road Interchange. 

 
Recommendation: The addition of an elevated structure (viaduct) in this area would have 
significant visual impact and access alterations to highway commercial areas.  This alternative is 
not recommended for further study. 
 
Conclusion 
Upon completion of Tier 2 screening, Alternatives A and D were withdrawn from further study 
and Alternatives B and C were carried forward for further study in the EIR/EIS.  
 

228



D
an

 W
ils

on
 C

re
ek

Suisun Creek

Ledgewood              Creek

Green Valley Creek

Jameson Canyon Creek

Western Segment Eastern SegmentCentral Segment

New Roadway Connecting
Red Top Road Interchange
with Business Center Drive

New Roadway Connecting
Red Top Road at I-80 to SR 12W

New Roadway Extending
Myer Lane to Pennsylvania Avenue

Widened Bridge over 
Ledgewood Creek

UPPR  Overcrossing Providing
Access to Suisun City

New Interchange at
Red Top Road and SR 12W

Improved Interchange
at I-80 and Red Top Road

Improved/Expanded 
Interchange at 
SR 12W and I-80

Improved/Expanded  Interchange 
at I-80 and I-680 (with HOV
Lane Conectors)

Improved/Expanded  Interchange 
at I-80 and SR 12E

Improved Interchange at 
I-80 and Abernathy Road New Overcrossing 

at Beck Avenue

New Central Interchange

New Interchange at I-680
and Red Top Road

New Single Span Bridges 
over Green Valley Creek

New, Expanded Westbound
Truck Scale Facility

Widened Overcrossing
at Chadbourne Road

New Single Span 
Bridge over Suisun Creek

New Single Span Bridge 
over Dan Wilson Creek

Improved Interchange at I-80
and Green Valley Road

Improved Interchange at I-80
and Suisun Valley Road

G
reen Valley Rd.

New Overcrossing
at Pennsylvania Avenue

New Bike Path Alignment

Red Top Rd.

Busin
ess Center D

riv
e

Cordelia Rd.

Gold Hill R
d.

Cordelia Rd.

Pe
nn

sy
lv

an
ia

 A
ve

.

Su
is

un
 V

al
le

y 
Rd

.

A
bernathy Rd.

C
hadbourne Rd.

Beck A
ve.

80

80

680

12

12

W. Texas St.

FAIRFIELD

SUISUN
CITY

CORDELIA

G
ra

ph
ic

s …
 0

21
66

.0
2 

EI
S 

(3
-1

0-
10

)

Figure 2-2
Alternative B Project Features

Mile

0.5 1.00

Legend
 Proposed New or
 Expanded/Improved Road
 
 Features Common
 to both Alternatives
 
 Proposed New or Expanded/
 Improved Bridge/Overcrossing
 
 Creek

229

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



Green Valley Cree

k

Dan Wilson Creek

Green
 Valley

 Creek

Ja
m

es
on

 C
an

yo
n 

Cr
ee

k

Business Center Dr.

Business Center Dr.

Cordelia Rd.

Cordelia Rd.

Br
id

ge
po

rt
 A

ve
.

Br
id

ge
po

rt
 A

ve
.

W
. Cordelia Rd.

W
. Cordelia Rd.

CORDELIA

Central W
ay

Central W
ay

Central Way

Central WayRi
tc

hi
e 

Rd
.

Ri
tc

hi
e 

Rd
.

Ditt
mer R

d.

Ditt
mer R

d.

A
ut

o 
Pl

az
a

C
t.

A
ut

o 
Pl

az
a

C
t.

Lopes Rd.Lopes Rd.

Pittm
an Rd.

Pittm
an Rd.

Li
nk

 R
d.

Li
nk

 R
d.

Commerce Ct.

Commerce Ct.
G

ro
br

ic
 C

t.

G
ro

br
ic

 C
t.

Green Valley Rd.

Green Valley Rd.

Nei
tz

el
Rd

.

Nei
tz

el
Rd

.

M
an

ge
ls

 B
lv

d.
M

an
ge

ls
 B

lv
d.

Mangels Blvd.

Mangels Blvd.

80

80

680

12

Suisun Valley Rd.

Suisun Valley Rd.

Business Center Dr.

Business Center Dr.

Improved Interchange
at Suisun Valley Road

Improved/Expanded
Mixed Flow and HOV
Connectors between
I-80 and I-680

Improved Interchange
at Green Valley Road

Widened I-680

Widened  I-80

Realignment of
Neitzel Road

Figure 2-4a
Alternative B Phase 1 Features

Mile

0.250

Aerial Photo:  Google Inc. 2009. Google Earth Pro, Version 4.2. 
Mountain View, CA. Accessed:  January 13, 2009.

Legend
 Proposed New or
 Expanded/Improved Roads
 Proposed New or Expanded/
 Improved Bridge/Overcrossing
 Creeks

G
ra

ph
ic

s 
…

 0
21

66
.0

2 
EI

S 
(9

-2
1-

09
)

230

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT E.1



Ledgewood   Creek

Be
ck

 A
ve

Be
ck

 A
ve

Meyer  WayMeyer  Way

Busch  DriveBusch  Drive

Abernathy Road

Abernathy Road

C
ha

db
ou

rn
e 

 R
oa

d
C

ha
db

ou
rn

e 
 R

oa
d

Auto  M
all  P

arkway

Auto  M
all  P

arkway

Courage  DriveCourage  Drive

Cordelia  Road

Cordelia  Road

Cordelia  RoadCordelia  Road

Be
ck

 A
ve

Be
ck

 A
ve

Pe
nn

sy
lv

an
ia

  A
ve

Pe
nn

sy
lv

an
ia

  A
ve

Pe
nn

sy
lv

an
ia

  A
ve

Pe
nn

sy
lv

an
ia

  A
ve

Woolner  AveWoolner  Ave

West  Texas  StreetWest  Texas  Street Texas  StreetTexas  Street

Broadway  StreetBroadway  Street
80

12

New Beck Avenue/
SR12E Interchange

Figure 2-4b
Alternative B Phase 1 Features

Legend
 Proposed New or
 Expanded/Improved Roads
 Proposed New or Expanded/
 Improved Bridge/Overcrossing
 Creek

Aerial Photo:  Google Inc. 2009. Google Earth Pro, Version 4.2. 
Mountain View, CA. Accessed: January 13, 2009.

Mile

0.250

G
ra

ph
ic

s …
 0

21
66

.0
2 

EI
S 

(7
-8

-0
9)

231

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT E.2

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



D
an

 W
ils

on
 C

re
ek

Suisun Creek

Ledgewood              Creek

Green Valley Creek

Jameson Canyon Creek

Western Segment Eastern SegmentCentral Segment

New Roadway Connecting
I-80/Red Top Road Interchange
and Business Center Drive

New Roadway Connecting
Red Top Road at I-80 to SR 12W

UPRR Overcrossing
Providing Access to 
Suisun City

New Interchange at
Red Top Road and SR 12W

Improved Interchange
at I-80 and Red Top Road

Realignment of I-680 to Connect 
with SR 12W/I-80 Interchange

New Interchange at 
I-80/I-680/SR 12W

Old I-680 Alignment
Added to Local Jurisdiction

Improved/Expanded  Interchange 
at I-80 and SR 12E

Improved Interchange at 
I-80 and Abernathy Road

New Interchange at I-680
and Red Top Road      

Realignment of  Pipeline

Improved Interchange at
Suisun Valley Road and I-80

G
reen Valley Rd.

New Overcrossing and Interchange 
at Pennsylvania Avenue and SR 12ENew Overcrossing and

Interchange at Beck 
Avenue and SR 12E

Removal of Highway
Access from Jackson Street
and Webster Street

New, Expanded Westbound
Truck Scale Facility

Improved Interchange at I-80
and Green Valley Road

New Single Span 
Bridge over Suisun Creek

New Single Span Bridge 
over Green Valley Creek

New Single Span Bridge 
over Dan Wilson Creek

Widened Bridge over 
Ledgewood Creek

New Bike Path Alignment

Red Top Rd.

Busin
ess Center D

riv
e

Cordelia Rd.

Gold Hill R
d.

Cordelia Rd.

Pe
nn

sy
lv

an
ia

A
ve

.

Su
is

un
 V

al
le

y 
Rd

.

A
bernathy Rd.

C
hadbourne Rd.

Beck A
ve.

80

80

680

12

12

W. Texas St.

FAIRFIELD

SUISUN
CITY

CORDELIA

Figure 2-3
Alternative C Project Features

G
ra

ph
ic

s …
 0

21
66

.0
2 

EI
S 

(3
-1

0-
10

)

Mile

0.5 1.00

Legend

 Proposed New or
 Expanded/Improved Road

 Proposed New or Expanded/
 Improved Bridge/Overcrossing

 Features Common
 to both Alternatives
 
 Creek

232

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT F

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



Green Valley Creek

D
an

 W
ils

on
 C

re
ek

Jameson Canyon Creek 

Jameson Canyon Creek

New Roadway Connecting
Red Top Road Interchange
with Business Center Drive

New Interchange 
at SR 12W

Temporary Bike Route

New HOV
Connector

New Roadway Improved Interchange at 
Red Top Road and I-80 

New Interchange at 
I-680 and Red Top Road

New Overcrossing and Improved 
Interchange at Green Valley Road

New Connector from
WB I-80 to SB I-680

Realigned and 
Widened WB I-80

New Connector from
NB I-680 to WB SR 12W

New Connector from
WB I-80 to WB SR 12W

New Bridge over
Green Valley CreekBusin

ess 

  C
ente

r  
 D

riv
e

Busin
ess 

  C
ente

r  
 D

riv
e

Central Way
Central Way

Central W
ay

Central W
ay

Ritchie Rd.

Ritchie Rd.

Dittm
er Rd.

Dittm
er Rd.

Fulton Dr.Fulton Dr.

Femi Rd.

Femi Rd.

Lopes R
d.

Lopes R
d.

Red Top Rd.

Red Top Rd.

Red Top Rd.

Red Top Rd.

W
at

t D
r.

W
at

t D
r.

Pittm
an Rd.

Pittm
an Rd.

Link Rd.
Link Rd.

Cordelia Rd.

Cordelia Rd.

G
reen Valley Rd.

G
reen Valley Rd.

80

80

680

12

CORDELIACORDELIA

Figure 2-5a
Alternative C Phase 1 Features

Mile

0.25 0.50

Legend
 Proposed New or
 Expanded/Improved Roads
 Proposed New or Expanded/
 Improved Bridge/Overcrossing
 Creek

Aerial Photo:  Google Inc. 2009. Google Earth Pro, Version 4.2. 
Mountain View, CA. Accessed:  January 13, 2009.

G
ra

ph
ic

s …
 0

21
66

.0
2 

EI
S 

(3
-1

0-
10

)

233

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT G.1



Ledgewood   Creek

From the project description
 
A third lane would be added to eastbound SR 12E. This 
lane would connect (start) at the eastbound SR 
12E/Chadbourne Road interchange and would extend 
east connecting and ending at the eastbound SR 
12E/Webster Street exit.

Be
ck

 A
ve

Be
ck

 A
ve

Meyer  WayMeyer  Way

Busch  DriveBusch  Drive

Abernathy Road

Abernathy Road

C
ha

db
ou

rn
e 

 R
oa

d
C

ha
db

ou
rn

e 
 R

oa
d

Auto  M
all  P

arkway

Auto  M
all  P

arkway

Courage  DriveCourage  Drive

Cordelia  Road

Cordelia  Road

Cordelia  RoadCordelia  Road

Be
ck

 A
ve

Be
ck

 A
ve

Pe
nn

sy
lv

an
ia

  A
ve

Pe
nn

sy
lv

an
ia

  A
ve

Pe
nn

sy
lv

an
ia

  A
ve

Pe
nn

sy
lv

an
ia

  A
ve

Woolner  AveWoolner  Ave

West  Texas  StreetWest  Texas  Street Texas  StreetTexas  Street

Broadway  StreetBroadway  Street
80

12

12

New Lane on EB SR 12E

Figure 2-5b
Alternative C Phase 1 Features

Legend
 Proposed New or
 Expanded/Improved Roads
 Proposed New or Expanded/
 Improved Bridge/Overcrossing
 Creek

Aerial Photo:  Google Inc. 2009. Google Earth Pro, Version 4.2. 
Mountain View, CA. Accessed: January 13, 2009.

Mile

0.250

G
ra

ph
ic

s …
 0

21
66

.0
2 

EI
S 

(7
-8

-0
9)

234

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT G.2



ATTACHMENT H 
 
 
 
 

Comparison of Alternatives 

I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project 

235



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

236



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

HUMAN ENVIRONMENT 

3.1.1—Land Use 

Effect on Fairfield Linear Park No effect Minimal impact No effect Minimal impact No effect None required 

3.1.2—Growth 

Potential to Induce Growth No effect Any new or intensified 
development would 
occur in accordance 
with county and local 
plans 

Same as B Same as B Same as B None required 

3.1.3—Farmlands 

No effect Direct Conversion of Farmland 18 parcels, ~140 acres 
affected 

None 19 parcels, ~122 acres 
affected 

9 parcels, ~77 acres 
affected 

Provide Replacement 
Conservation Easement 

No effect Conversion of Agricultural Lands 
under Williamson Act Contracts 

48.76 acres would be 
converted 

None 40 acres would be 
converted 

None None required 

No effect Conversion of Agricultural Lands 
under Conservation Easements 

22.5 acres of Valine 
easement converted 

None 22.5 acres of Valine 
easement converted 

None Provide Replacement 
Conservation Easement 

3.1.4—Community Impacts 

Community Character and 
Cohesion 

No effect No separation or 
division of an existing 
neighborhood 

Effects would be 
similar to full build 

Same as B; Possible 
beneficial effect on 
Cordelia area by 
moving highway further 
from residential areas 

Effects would be 
similar to full build 

None required 

Displacement of Residences and 
Businesses 

No effect 1 residential 
displacement. 201 
partial and 27 full 
acquisitions of 
businesses; relocation 
parcels available  

67 partial and 5 full 
acquisition of 
businesses; relocation 
parcels available  

1 residential 
displacement; 144 
partial and 32 full 
acquisitions of 
businesses; relocation 
parcels available  

54 partial and 9 full 
acquisitions of 
businesses; relocation 
parcels available  

None required 

237



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Environmental Justice No effect 9 displacements in 
Environmental Justice 
Block Groups; No 
residential 
displacements; 
business 
displacements are 
spread out over project 
area 

Fewer than under full 
build;  Same as B 

10 displacements in 
Environmental Justice 
Block Groups; Same 
as B 

Fewer than under full 
build; Same as B 

None required 

3.1.5—Utilities and Emergency Services 

Potential Effect to Utilities No effect Possible impacts on 
utilities or interruption 
of service during 
construction and 
operation 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Minimize Disruption of 
Utilities Services 

Potential Effects on Police, Fire, 
and Emergency Service 
Providers during Construction 

No effect Possible short-term 
effects due to lane 
closures during 
construction 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Prepare Transportation 
Management Plan (TMP) 

3.1.6—Traffic and Transportation/Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities 

Effects on System-Wide MOEs 2015: in a.m. peak 
hour condition would 
not worsen 
significantly, but in 
p.m. peak hour VHD 
would increase more 
than 100%,duration 
of congestion would 
nearly double, 
queues on SR 12E 
would back traffic up 
on I-80 

2035: Significant 
congestion and 
delays in a.m. peak 
hour; severe 
congestion on SR 
12E in p.m. peak 
hour 

Beneficial impact in 
a.m. peak hour (VMT 
up 7%, VHD down 
nearly 70%, network 
travel speed up 25%) 
and p.m. peak hour 
(VMT up 60%, VHD 
down 70%, network 
travel speed up 140%)  

2015: Beneficial 
impact in p.m. peak 
hour (VMT up 11%, 
VHD down 58%, 
network travel speed 
up 32%) and very little 
effect in a.m. peak 
hour (VMT down less 
than 0.5%, VHD up 
nearly 20%, network 
travel speed up 3%) 

2035: Beneficial 
impact in a.m. peak 
hour (VMT up 5%, 
VHD down nearly 
100%, network speed 
up 17%) and in the 
p.m. peak hour (VMT 
up 39%, VHD down 
47%, network speed 
up 82%) 

Same as B 2015: Beneficial 
impact in p.m. peak 
hour (VMT up 7%, 
VHD down 39%, 
network travel speed 
up 20%) and minimal 
effect in a.m. peak 
hour (VMT down less 
than 0.5%, VHD up 
3%, no change in 
network travel speed) 

2035: Beneficial 
impact in a.m. peak 
hour (VMT up 1%, 
VHD down 18%, 
network speed up 6%) 
and in the p.m. peak 
hour (VMT up 16%, 
VHD down 16%, 
network speed up 
25%) 

None required 

238



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Effects on Travel Times 2015: Peak direction 
travel times would 
increase to 8 to 15 
minutes in the a.m. 
peak hour, and 12 to 
34 minutes in the 
p.m. peak hour 

2035: Peak direction 
travel times would 
increase to 11 to 20 
minutes in the a.m. 
peak hour and 17 to 
48 minutes in the 
p.m. peak hour 

Beneficial impact, peak 
direction reduction in 
travel time of 20%–
40% in a.m. peak hour 
and 10%–85% in the 
p.m. peak hour 

2015: Beneficial 
impact, peak direction 
reduction in travel time 
of 4%–35% in the a.m. 
peak hour and 30%–
75% in the p.m. peak 
hour 

2035: Beneficial 
impact, peak direction 
reduction in travel time 
of 10%-50% in the 
a.m. peak hour and 
19%-73% in the p.m. 
peak hour 

Beneficial impact, peak 
direction reduction in 
travel time of 20%–
25% in the a.m. peak 
hour and 15%–80% in 
p.m. peak hour 

2015: Beneficial 
impact, peak direction 
reduction in travel 
time of 0%–7% in 
a.m. peak hour, and 
0%–60% in p.m. peak 
hour. 

2035: Beneficial 
impact in a.m., peak 
direction reduction in 
travel time of 5%–
20%; worsening of 
peak direction travel 
time in p.m. peak 
hour, of 29% to more 
than 200% (see 
Section 3.1.6) 

None required 

Effects on Freeway Operations 2015: In a.m. peak 
hour, bottleneck on 
WB SR 12E; 
congestion remains 
at near existing 
levels, with 
congested period 
lasting about 1.5 
hours. 

In p.m. peak hour, 
bottlenecks on EB I-
80, EB SR 12Et, and 
WB SR 12E; 
congested period 
increases to 3 hours. 

2035: In a.m. peak 
hour, bottlenecks on 
WB 12W, I-80, and 
12E in a.m. peak 
hour, congested 
period increases to 3 
hours. 

In p.m. peak hour, 
bottlenecks in both 
directions on SR 12E 
and I-80, on SR 12W 
EB, and I-680 NB; 
congested period 

In a.m. peak hour, no 
bottlenecks within 
project limits; 
congestion decreases 
to existing levels 
(relative to 3 hours 
under 2035 No Build). 

In p.m. peak hour, 
bottleneck on EB I-80 
at Air Base Parkway 
(east of project limits), 
congested period 
decreases to 3 hours 
(relative to 6 hours 
under No Build). 

2015: In a.m. peak 
hour, bottleneck on 
WB SR 12E; 
congestion remains 
near existing levels. 

In p.m. peak hour, 
bottleneck on EB SR 
12E, congestion  
decreases to near 
existing levels (relative 
to 3 hours under 2015 
No Build).2035: In 
a.m. peak hour, 
bottlenecks on SR 
12W WB and SR 12E 
WB, congestion 
decreases to near 
existing levels (relative 
to No Build). 

In p.m. peak hour, 
bottlenecks on I-80 
WB, I-80 EB, SR 12W 
EB, and SR 12E EB; 
congested period 
would decrease to 4.5 
hours (relative to 6 
hours under 2035 No 
Build).   

In a.m. peak hour, no 
bottlenecks within 
project limits; 
congestion decreases 
to near existing levels 
(relative to 3 hours 
under 2035 No Build). 

In p.m. peak hour, 
bottleneck on EB I-80 
at Air Base Parkway 
(east of project limits), 
congested period 
decreases to 3 hours 
(relative to 6 hours 
under 2035 No Build). 

2015: In a.m. peak 
hour, bottleneck on 
WB SR 12E; 
congestion remains 
near existing levels. 

In p.m. peak hour, 
bottleneck on EB and 
WB SR 12E; 
congested period 
decreases to about 2 
hours (relative to 3 
hours under 2015 No 
Build). 

2035: In a.m. peak 
hour, bottlenecks on 
EB and WB SR 12E; 
congested period 
decreases to 2.5 
hours, relative to 3 
hours under 2035 No 
Build. 

In p.m. peak hour, I-
80 WB, I-80 EB, SR 
12W EB, and SR 12E 
WB and EB; 
congested period 
would decrease to 5 
hours, relative to 6 

None required 

239



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

increases to 6+ 
hours. 

hours under 2035 No 
Build.   

Effects on Intersection 
Operations 

2015: in the a.m. 
peak hour, 3 
intersections would 
operate unacceptably 
(one ramp terminal 
intersection and two 
non-ramp terminal 
intersections); in the 
p.m. peak hour, 9 
intersections would 
operate unacceptably 
(5 ramp terminal 
intersections and 4 
non-ramp terminal 
intersections). 

2035: in the a.m. 
peak hour 8 
intersections would 
operate unacceptably 
(4 ramp terminal 
intersections and 4 
non-ramp terminal 
intersections); in the 
p.m. peak hour, 22 
intersections would 
operate unacceptably 
(14 ramp terminal 
intersections and 8 
non-ramp terminal 
intersections).  

All intersections except 
Lopes Road/Gold Hill 
Road would operate 
acceptably in a.m. 
peak hour; in p.m. 
peak hour 4 non-ramp 
terminal intersections 
would continue to 
operate unacceptably 

2015: two non-ramp 
terminal intersections 
would operate 
unacceptably in the 
a.m. peak hour; in 
p.m. peak hour, 1 
ramp terminal 
intersection and 3 
non-ramp terminal 
intersections would 
operate unacceptably 

2035: one ramp 
terminal intersection 
and 3 non-ramp 
terminal intersections 
would operated 
unacceptably in the 
a.m. peak hour; 8 
ramp terminal 
intersections and 7 
non-ramp terminal 
intersections would 
operate unacceptably 
in the p.m. peak hour 

All intersections would 
operate acceptably in 
the a.m. peak hour; 3 
non-terminal ramp 
intersections would 
operate unacceptably 
in the p.m. peak hour 

2015: one ramp 
terminal intersection 
would operate 
unacceptably in the 
a.m. peak hour; in the 
p.m. peak hour, 3 
ramp terminal 
intersections and 2 
non-ramp terminal 
intersections would 
operate unacceptably 

2035: one ramp 
terminal intersection 
would operate 
unacceptably in the 
a.m. peak hour; in the 
p.m. peak hour, 3 
ramp terminal 
intersections and 5 
non-ramp terminal 
intersections would 
operate unacceptably  

Design and Construct 
Intersection 
Improvements 

Effects on Pedestrian and 
Bicycle Facilities 

No effect May require special 
design or construction 
measures to ensure 
that existing facilities 
can be maintained 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Maintain Existing or 
Accommodate Planned 
Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Facilities 

Effects on Transit Routes and 
Service 

Worsened traffic 
conditions in p.m. 
peak hour in 2015 
and 2035 will result in 
delays for buses and 
paratransit vehicles 

Improved traffic 
operations would 
reduce delays for 
buses and paratransit 
vehicles 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Adjust Transit Routes and 
Stops as Needed 

240



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Construction Period Description 
of Vehicle, Pedestrian, and 
Bicycle Circulation 

No effect Construction would 
result in temporary 
condition of additional 
traffic from 
construction vehicles 
and workers and 
possibly temporary 
lane closures and 
detours 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Develop and Implement a 
Transportation 
Management Plan and 
Construction Scheduling 
to Minimize Adverse 
Effects 

3.1.7—Visual and Aesthetic Resources 

Temporary Visual Impacts 
Caused by Construction 
Activities 

No effect Temporary impacts 
that would not contrast 
with existing visual 
character 

Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent 

Same as B Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent 

None required 

Long-Term Changes in Visual 
Quality and Character 

No effect  Result in adverse 
and beneficial 
changes to visual 
character. Adverse 
visual impacts would 
occur at Viewpoint 8 
in Landscape Unit 1 
and Viewpoint 2 in 
Landscape Unit 3.  

Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent 

 Result in adverse 
and beneficial 
changes to visual 
character. Adverse 
visual impacts would 
occur at viewpoints 6 
and 8 in Landscape 
Unit 1 and Viewpoint 
2 in Landscape Unit 
3. 

Same as C, but to a 
lesser extent. 

Use Appropriate Building 
Materials and Forms for 
the Westbound Truck 
Scales 

Incorporate Aesthetic 
Recommendations in 
Design of Freeway-
Related Structures 

Replace Landscaping as 
Appropriate 

Effect on Officially Designated 
Scenic Highways 

No effect No effect; there are no 
existing scenic 
highways in the project 
area  

Same as B Same as B Same as B None required 

Light and Glare No effect Increased lighting and 
glare during 
construction and, to 
some extent, during 
operations, but 
consistent with existing 
conditions 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Incorporate Appropriate 
Light and Glare Screening 
Measures 

241



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

3.1.8—Cultural Resources 

Effects on Unknown or Known 
Resources from Construction 

No effect Potential to disturb 
buried cultural 
resources during 
construction 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Conduct 
Geomorphological 
Research and Subsurface 
Investigations 

Stop Work if Buried 
Cultural Deposits Are 
Encountered during 
Construction Activities 

Discovery of Human Remains 
during Construction 

No effect Potential to disturb 
buried human remains 
during construction 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Protection of Human 
Remains if Encountered 
during Excavation 
Activities as per State 
Health and Safety Code 
Section 7050.5 and 
Public Resources Code 
5097  

Potential to Affect Historic 
Properties at 177 Main Street, 
the Suisun City Train Depot 
(APN 0032-020-240) 

No effect Construction on the 
parcel would create 
visual impact, but 
would not substantially 
alter the existing 
setting, so no adverse 
effect would result 

No effect; no project 
improvements in the 
area 

Same as B No effect; no project 
improvements in the 
area 

None required 

Potential to Affect Village of 
Cordelia Historic District 

No effect Construction on empty 
parcel within the 
district boundaries will 
not affect integrity of 
district 

Same as B Removal of elevated 
ramps may result in 
beneficial visual impact 

Removal of elevated 
ramps may result in 
beneficial visual 
impact 

None required 

Potential to Affect Suisun City 
Historic District 

No effect Construction at the 
edge of the district 
would result in minor 
visual impact but 
would not substantially 
alter the existing 
setting, so no adverse 
effect would result 

No effect; no project 
improvements in the 
area 

Same as B No effect; no project 
improvements in the 
area 

None required 

242



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Effects to Historic Resource 
Protected under Section 4(f) 

No effect Minor or negligible 
impact on the Suisun 
City Train Depot (APN 
0032-020-240), and 
the Village of Cordelia 
and Suisun City 
Historic Districts 

Minor or negligible 
impact on the Village 
of Cordelia Historic 
District  

Minor or negligible 
impact on Suisun City 
Train Depot (APN 
0032-020-240) and 
Suisun City Historic 
District 

No effect None required 

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT 

3.2.1—Hydrology and Floodplain 

Hydraulic Capacity and 
Floodplain of Green Valley 
Creek 

No effect Flow characteristics 
would be improved; 
existing structures 
would be replaced with 
freespan structures; 
existing piers would be 
removed 

Same as B Same as B Same as B None required 

Hydraulic Capacity and 
Floodplain of Dan Wilson Creek 

No effect Flow characteristics 
would be improved; 
existing structures 
would be replaced with 
freespan structures; 
existing piers would be 
removed 

Same as B Same as B No effect; no project 
improvements in the 
area 

None required 

Hydraulic Capacity and 
Floodplain of Suisun Creek 

No effect Flow characteristics 
would be improved; 
existing structures 
would be replaced with 
freespan structures; 
existing piers would be 
removed 

No effect; no project 
improvements in the 
area 

Same as B No effect; no project 
improvements in the 
area 

None required 

Hydraulic Capacity and 
Floodplain of Raines Drain 

No effect Increased mainline 
elevation (up to 3’ 
higher) and relocation 
of westbound truck 
scales (reduction of 
floodplain storage) will 
result in impacts on the 
existing floodplain 

No effect; no project 
improvements in the 
area 

Same as B No effect; no project 
improvements in the 
area 

Construct Upstream Inlet 
Structure and 
Underground Flood 
Control Storage 

 

243



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Hydraulic Capacity and 
Floodplain of Alonzo Drain and 
Ledgewood Creek 

No effect New bridges over 
Ledgewood Creek 
would be freespan; 
bridge/culvert widening 
would not alter existing 
conditions 

Bridge/culvert 
widening would not 
alter existing 
conditions 

Same as B, Phase 1 Same as B, Phase 1 None required 

Hydraulic Capacity and 
Floodplain of Pennsylvania 
Avenue Creek 

No effect Culvert widening and 
new culverts would not 
alter existing 
conditions 

No effect; no project 
improvements in the 
area 

Same as B No effect; no project 
improvements in the 
area 

None required 

3.2.2—Water Quality and Stormwater Runoff 

Increased Runoff and 
Associated Operational Water 
Quality Issues 

No effect Increase in impervious 
surfaces would result 
in increase in runoff 

Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent 

Same as B Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent 

Construct Upstream Inlet 
Structure and 
Underground Flood 
Control Storage 

Prepare and Implement 
Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan and Best 
Management Practices 

Potential Water Quality, Erosion 
and Sediment Control Issues 
during Construction 

No effect Potential for sediment 
or pollutants 
associated with 
construction to enter 
waterways 

Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent 

Same as B Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent 

Prepare and Implement 
Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan and Best 
Management Practices 

Potential to Require Dewatering 
during Construction 

No effect Anticipated due to 
water level 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Prepare and Implement 
Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan and Best 
Management Practices 

3.2.3—Geology/Soils/Seismic/Topography 

Risk of Fault Rupture during 
Operations 

No effect Potential impact due to 
faults in the vicinity 

Same as B Same as B, though 
elevated structures are 
proposed in immediate 
vicinity of faults 

Same as C  Implement Requirements 
from State and Local 
Standards into Final 
Project Design 

Implement 
Recommendations from 
Draft Geotechnical 
Reports to Accommodate 
Permanent Fault-Related 
Ground Deformation 
Effects from Surface Fault 
Rupture on Project 

244



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Facilities and to 
Accommodate Effects of 
Ground Shaking on 
Project Facilities 

Risk from Ground Shaking 
during Operation 

No effect Potential impact due to 
active faults in the 
vicinity 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Implement Requirements 
from State and Local 
Standards into Final 
Project Design 

Implement 
Recommendations from 
Draft Geotechnical 
Reports to Accommodate 
Permanent Fault-Related 
Ground Deformation 
Effects from Surface Fault 
Rupture on Project 
Facilities and to 
Accommodate Effects of 
Ground Shaking on 
Project Facilities 

Conduct Future 
Geotechnical 
Investigations 

Risks from Development on 
Unstable Materials 

No effect Potential impact at 
bridge and 
overcrossing locations 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Implement Requirements 
from State and Local 
Standards into Final 
Project Design 

Conduct Future 
Geotechnical 
Investigations 

Implement 
Recommendations from 
Draft Geotechnical Report 
to Accommodate Effects 
of Liquefaction on Project 
Facilities/Design Specific 
Project Elements to 
Accommodate Effects of 
Liquefaction 

245



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Risk from Landslides or Other 
Slope Failure during Operation 

No effect Potential effects from 
landslides and debris 
flows in hilly areas of 
the project area 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Implement Requirements 
from State and Local 
Standards into Final 
Project Design 

Conduct Future 
Geotechnical 
Investigations 

Conduct Future 
Geotechnical 
Investigation/Implement 
Preliminary 
Recommendations from 
Draft Geotechnical Report 
to Accommodate Effects 
of Slope Failure on 
Project Facilities 

Risk during Operation as a 
Result of Development on 
Expansive Soils 

No effect Soils in the project 
area have moderate to 
high shrink-swell 
potential 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Conduct Future 
Geotechnical 
Investigations 

Risk during Operation as a 
Result of Weak Foundation 
Materials and Postconstruction 
Settlement 

No effect Potential consolidation 
settlement hazard in 
the vicinity of Suisun 
Valley Road and Dan 
Wilson Creek 

Same as B Same as B Potential 
consolidation 
settlement hazard in 
the vicinity of Suisun 
Valley Road; no 
project improvements 
proposed in the 
vicinity of Dan Wilson 
Creek 

Implement Requirements 
from State and Local 
Standards into Final 
Project Design 

Conduct Future 
Geotechnical 
Investigations 

Implement Preliminary 
Recommendations from 
Draft Geotechnical Report 
to Accommodate Effects 
of Consolidation 
Settlements on Project 
Facilities 

Runoff, Erosion, and 
Sedimentation from Grading 
Activities Associated with 
Construction 

No effect Potential impact during 
construction activities 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Prepare and Implement 
Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan and Best 
Management Practices 

246



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

3.2.4—Paleontology 

Destruction of Vertebrate or 
Otherwise Scientifically 
Significant Paleontological 
Resources as a Result of 
Construction Activities 

No effect Excavation for 
foundations in 
sensitive units could 
result in the 
inadvertent destruction 
of fossil resources 

Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent as less 
excavation occurs in 
high-sensitivity areas 

Same as B, but to a 
greater extent as there 
would be more 
excavation in sensitive 
units 

Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent as less 
excavation occurs in 
high-sensitivity areas 

Conduct Preconstruction 
Surveys 

Educate Construction 
Personnel in Recognizing 
Fossil Material 

Retain a Qualified 
Professional 
Paleontologist to Monitor 
Ground-Disturbing 
Activities 

Stop Work and Conduct 
Appropriate Treatment if 
Substantial Fossil 
Remains Are Encountered 
During Construction 

3.2.5—Hazardous Waste/Materials 

Potential for Exposure of 
Construction Workers or Nearby 
Land Uses to Previously 
Unknown Hazardous Materials 
as a Result of Construction 
Activities 

No effect Project area has a 
moderate risk of 
previously unreported 
hazards 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Develop a Health and 
Safety Plan to Address 
Worker Health and Safety 

Potential for Exposure of Known 
Hazardous Materials to Humans 
or the Environment as a Result 
of Construction Activities 

No effect Hazardous materials 
present may include 
heavy metals, ACMs, 
contaminated soils, 
ADL  

Same as B Same as B Same as B Conduct Sampling, 
Testing, Removal, 
Storage, Transportation, 
and Disposal of Yellow 
Striping along Existing 
Roadways 

Dispose of Soils 
Contaminated with ADL, 
Arsenic, Pesticides, and 
Herbicides in Accordance 
with Appropriate 
Regulations 

Time Construction to 
Avoid Exposure of 
Construction Workers to 
Respiratory Irritants from 
Aerially Applied 
Chemicals 
 

247



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Sampling and Testing of 
Groundwater 

Perform Groundwater 
Contamination Testing 

 

Potential for Exposure of 
Humans and the Environment to 
Hazardous Conditions from the 
Accidental Release of 
Hazardous Materials as a Result 
of Construction Activities 

No effect Potential for accidental 
release of materials 
associated with 
construction 
equipment, or from 
utility lines 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Develop a Health and 
Safety Plan to Address 
Worker Health and Safety 

3.2.6—Air Quality 

Conformity with the Regional 
Transportation Plan 

No effect N/A Not in RTP N/A This alternative is 
included in 2035 RTP 
and 2009 TIP 

Amend the Transportation 
Improvement Program to 
Include Additional 
Alternatives 

Potential Violations of Carbon 
Monoxide NAAQS or CAAQS 

Not anticipated to 
exceed 1- or 8-hour 
NAAQS or CAAQS 

Not anticipated to 
exceed 1- or 8-hour 
NAAQS or CAAQS 

Same as B Same as B Same as B None required 

Potential Violations of PM2.5 
NAAQS or CAAQS 

No effect Not yet determined 
whether  considered 
Project of Air Quality 
Concern; consultation 
ongoing 

Same as B Same as B Same as B None required 

Potential Generation of 
Significant Levels of MSAT 
Emissions 

Lower MSAT 
emissions than all 
build alternatives 
except Alternative C, 
Phase 1 for 2035 

Minor increase in all 
MSAT emissions 
compared to  No 
Project conditions 

Same as B  Same as B Minor increase in all 
MSAT emissions for 
2015; minor increase 
in all but 2 air toxics 
for 2035 

Implement Measures to 
Reduce MSAT and 
Criteria Pollutant 
Emissions 

Potential Generation of 
Significant Operation-Related 
Emissions of Ozone Precursors, 
Carbon Monoxide, and 
Particulate Matter 

Lower emissions of 
ozone precursors 
than all build 
alternatives except 
Alternative C, Phase 
1 for 2035 

Minor increase in 
emissions of all ozone 
precursors compared 
to  No Project 
conditions 

Same as B  Same as B Same as B, except for 
decrease in ROG, 
PM10 and PM2.5 for 
2035 

Implement Measures to 
Reduce MSAT and 
Criteria Pollutant 
Emissions 

248



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Potential Temporary Increase in 
Ozone Precursors (ROG and 
NOx), CO, and PM10 Emissions 
during Grading and Construction 
Activities 

No effect Temporary increase in 
all ozone precursors 
due to construction 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Implement California 
Department of 
Transportation Standard 
Specification Section 14 

Implement Additional 
Control Measures for 
Construction Emissions of 
Fugitive Dust 

Implement Measures to 
Reduce Exhaust 
Emissions from Off-Road 
Diesel Powered 
Equipment 

3.2.7—Noise 

Exposure of Noise Sensitive 
Land Uses to Increased Traffic 
Noise 

Noise levels would 
increase as traffic 
congestion increases 

Increased noise in 
areas D, E, and R 
affecting 49 units; no 
effect under NEPA 

Increased noise in 
areas D, E, and R 
affecting 21 units; no 
effect under NEPA 

Increased noise in 
areas E, H, and R 
affecting 37 units; no 
effect under NEPA 

Increased noise is 
area E affecting 1 
unit; no effect under 
NEPA 

None required, abatement 
under consideration 

Exposure of Noise-Sensitive 
Land Uses to Construction Noise 

No effect Construction 
equipment would 
generate noise 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Minimize Construction 
Noise 

3.2.8—Energy 

None       

BIOLOGICAL ENVIRONMENT 

3.3.1—Natural Communities 

Loss or Disturbance of Riparian 
Woodland Resulting from 
Construction 

No effect Permanent loss of 1.28 
acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.35 
acres 

Permanent loss of 
0.08 acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.06 
acres 

Permanent loss of 1.98 
acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.41 
acres 

Permanent loss of 
0.64 acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.09 
acres 

Place Environmentally 
Sensitive Area Fencing 
around all Sensitive 
Biological Resources in 
and near the Construction 
Area 

Conduct Environmental 
Awareness Training for 
Construction Employees 

Retain a Biological 
Monitor to Conduct Daily 
Visits during Construction 
in Sensitive Habitats 

Avoid and Minimize 

249



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Potential Disturbance of 
Riparian Communities 

Compensate for 
Temporary and 
Permanent Loss of 
Riparian Vegetation 

3.3.2—Wetlands and Other Waters 

Loss or Disturbance of Perennial 
Drainage Resulting from 
Construction 

No effect Permanent loss of 0.62 
acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.46 
acres 

Permanent loss of 
0.14 acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.09 
acres 

Permanent loss of 0.66 
acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.45 
acres 

No effect Place Environmentally 
Sensitive Area Fencing 
around all Sensitive 
Biological Resources in 
and near the Construction 
Area Protect Water 
Quality and Prevent 
Erosion and 
Sedimentation into 
Drainages and Wetlands 

Restore Temporarily 
Disturbed Drainage 
Habitat and Compensate 
for Permanent Loss of 
Drainage Habitat 

Loss or Disturbance of 
Jurisdictional Seasonal 
Drainages Resulting from 
Construction 

No effect Permanent loss of 1.78 
acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.80 
acres 

Permanent loss of 
0.64 acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.11 
acres 

Permanent loss of 1.88 
acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.57 
acres 

Permanent loss of 
0.97 acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.30 
acres 

Place Environmentally 
Sensitive Area Fencing 
around all Sensitive 
Biological Resources in 
and near the Construction 
Area Protect Water 
Quality and Prevent 
Erosion and 
Sedimentation into 
Drainages and Wetlands 

Restore Temporarily 
Disturbed Drainage 
Habitat and Compensate 
for Permanent Loss of 
Drainage Habitat 

Loss or Disturbance of Perennial 
Marsh Resulting from 
Construction 

No effect Permanent loss of 5.23 
acres; temporary 
disturbance of 5.13 
acres 

Permanent loss of 
0.52 acres; temporary 
disturbance of 1.84 
acres 

Permanent loss of 5.47 
acres; temporary 
disturbance of 2.30 
acres 

Permanent loss of 
0.87 acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.19 
acres 

Place Environmentally 
Sensitive Area Fencing 
around all Sensitive 
Biological Resources in 
and near the Construction 
Area Protect Water 
Quality and Prevent 

250



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Erosion and 
Sedimentation into 
Drainages and Wetlands 

Restore Temporarily 
Disturbed Drainage 
Habitat and Compensate 
for Permanent Loss of 
Drainage Habitat 

Restore Temporarily 
Disturbed Perennial 
Marsh 

Compensate for 
Permanent Loss of 
Wetlands 

Loss or Disturbance of Alkali 
Seasonal Marsh Resulting from 
Construction 

No effect Permanent loss of 1.75 
acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.28 
acres 

No effect Permanent loss of 1.03 
acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.13 
acres 

Permanent loss of 
0.05 acres; temporary 
0.01 acres 

Protect Water Quality and 
Prevent Erosion and 
Sedimentation into 
Drainages and Wetlands 

Restore Temporarily 
Disturbed Drainage 
Habitat and Compensate 
for Permanent Loss of 
Drainage Habitat 

Compensate for 
Permanent Loss of 
Wetlands 

Loss or Disturbance of 
Jurisdictional Seasonal Wetland 
Resulting from Construction 

No effect Permanent loss of 7.57 
acres; temporary 
disturbance of 1.65 
acres 

Permanent loss of 
1.38 acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.42 
acres 

Permanent loss of 7.69 
acres; temporary 
disturbance of 1.04 
acres 

Permanent loss of 
2.24 acres; temporary 
disturbance of 0.96 
acres 

Protect Water Quality and 
Prevent Erosion and 
Sedimentation into 
Drainages and Wetlands 

Restore Temporarily 
Disturbed Drainage 
Habitat and Compensate 
for Permanent Loss of 
Drainage Habitat 

Compensate for 
Permanent Loss of 
Wetlands 

3.3.3—Plant Species 

None       

251



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

3.3.4—Animal Species 

Potential Loss or Disturbance of 
Western Pond Turtles Resulting 
from Construction 

No effect Construction in and 
near ponds and 
streams could result in 
loss or disturbance of 
habitat 

Same as B Same as B Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent as there 
would be less 
construction in or near 
suitable aquatic 
habitat  

Place Environmentally 
Sensitive Area Fencing 
around all Sensitive 
Biological Resources in 
and near the Construction 
Area Conduct 
Environmental Awareness 
Training for Construction 
Employees 

Retain a Biological 
Monitor to Conduct Daily 
Visits during Construction 
in Sensitive Habitats 

Avoid and Minimize 
Potential Disturbance of 
Riparian Communities 

Compensate for 
Temporary and 
Permanent Loss of 
Riparian Vegetation 

Conduct Preconstruction 
Surveys for Western Pond 
Turtle 

Potential Disturbance of Nesting 
White-tailed Kites Resulting from 
Construction 

No effect Tree removal and 
construction noise 
could result in 
disturbance to nesting 
birds 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Place Environmentally 
Sensitive Area Fencing 
around all Sensitive 
Biological Resources in 
and near the Construction 
Area Conduct 
Environmental Awareness 
Training for Construction 
Employees 

Retain a Biological 
Monitor to Conduct Daily 
Visits during Construction 
in Sensitive Habitats 

Avoid and Minimize 
Potential Disturbance of 
Riparian Communities 

Compensate for 
Temporary and 
Permanent Loss of 

252



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Riparian Vegetation 

Conduct Preconstruction 
Nesting Bird and Raptor 
Surveys and Establish a 
No-Disturbance Buffer, if 
Necessary 

Potential Disturbance of 
Burrowing Owls and Permanent 
Loss of Habitat Resulting from 
Construction 

No effect Construction activities 
could disturb nesting 
owls and 
implementation of the 
project would result in 
loss of nesting and 
foraging habitat  

Same as B Same as B  Same as B Place Environmentally 
Sensitive Area Fencing 
around all Sensitive 
Biological Resources in 
and near the Construction 
Area Conduct 
Environmental Awareness 
Training for Construction 
Employees 

Retain a Biological 
Monitor to Conduct Daily 
Visits during Construction 
in Sensitive Habitats 

Avoid and Minimize 
Potential Disturbance of 
Riparian Communities 

Compensate for 
Temporary and 
Permanent Loss of 
Riparian Vegetation 

Conduct Preconstruction 
Surveys for Active 
Burrowing Owl Burrows 
and Implement the 
California Department of 
Fish and Game 
Guidelines for Burrowing 
Owl Mitigation, if 
Necessary 

Compensate for Loss of 
Burrowing Owl Nesting 
Habitat 

253



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Potential Disturbance of Nesting 
Northern Harriers Resulting from 
Construction 

No effect Construction activities 
could disturb nesting 
birds and 
implementation of the 
project would result in 
loss of nesting and 
foraging habitat 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Conduct Preconstruction 
Nesting Surveys for 
Northern Harrier in the 
Annual Grassland Habitat 
North of SR 12W 

Potential Disturbance of Nesting 
Loggerhead Shrikes Resulting 
from Construction 

No effect Construction activities 
could disturb nesting 
birds 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Place Environmentally 
Sensitive Area Fencing 
around all Sensitive 
Biological Resources in 
and near the Construction 
Area Conduct 
Environmental Awareness 
Training for Construction 
Employees 

Retain a Biological 
Monitor to Conduct Daily 
Visits during Construction 
in Sensitive Habitats 

Avoid and Minimize 
Potential Disturbance of 
Riparian Communities 

Compensate for 
Temporary and 
Permanent Loss of 
Riparian Vegetation 

Conduct Preconstruction 
Nesting Bird and Raptor 
Surveys and Establish a 
No-Disturbance Buffer, if 
Necessary 

Potential Disturbance of Nesting 
Tricolored Blackbirds Resulting 
from Construction 

No effect Construction activities 
could disturb nesting 
birds 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Place Environmentally 
Sensitive Area Fencing 
around all Sensitive 
Biological Resources in 
and near the Construction 
Area Conduct 
Environmental Awareness 
Training for Construction 
Employees 

Retain a Biological 
Monitor to Conduct Daily 
Visits during Construction 

254



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

in Sensitive Habitats 

Avoid and Minimize 
Potential Disturbance of 
Riparian Communities 

Compensate for 
Temporary and 
Permanent Loss of 
Riparian Vegetation 

Conduct Preconstruction 
Nesting Bird and Raptor 
Surveys and Establish a 
No-Disturbance Buffer, if 
Necessary 

Potential Disturbance of Nesting 
Migratory Birds and Raptors 
Resulting from Construction 

No effect Construction activities 
could remove or 
disturb occupied nests 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Place Environmentally 
Sensitive Area Fencing 
around all Sensitive 
Biological Resources in 
and near the Construction 
Area Conduct 
Environmental Awareness 
Training for Construction 
Employees 

Retain a Biological 
Monitor to Conduct Daily 
Visits during Construction 
in Sensitive Habitats 

Avoid and Minimize 
Potential Disturbance of 
Riparian Communities 

Compensate for 
Temporary and 
Permanent Loss of 
Riparian Vegetation 

Conduct Preconstruction 
Nesting Bird and Raptor 
Surveys and Establish a 
No-Disturbance Buffer, if 
Necessary 

Potential Disturbance to Nesting 
Swallows Resulting from 
Construction 

No effect Construction activities 
associated with bridge 
construction could 
result in loss of active 
nests 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Prevent Swallows from 
Nesting Adjacent to New 
Bridge Construction 

255



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Potential Disturbance to 
Roosting Bats Resulting from 
Construction 

No effect Construction could 
result in removal of bat 
roosting habitat and 
disturb roosting bats 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Conduct Preconstruction 
Surveys for Roosting Bats 
in Mature Trees 

256



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

River Lamprey 

Potential Effects on River 
Lamprey Resulting from 
Construction 

      

Water Quality Effects No effect Construction activities 
could result in 
sediments or 
contaminants entering 
streams 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Prepare and Implement 
Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan and Best 
Management Practices 

Prevent Contaminants 
and Hazardous Materials 
from Entering the Stream 
Channel 

Restrict In-Water Work to 
Avoid Special-Status Fish 
Spawning Seasons 

Channel Morphology and River 
Lamprey Habitat  

No effect Construction in and 
adjacent to streams 
could affect channel 
morphology and 
streamside vegetation  

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Minimize Impacts on 
Creek Channels 

Water Temperature Effects No effect Minimal impact to 
water temperature 
from removal/addition 
of shading 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Minimize Impacts on 
Creek Channels 

Interference with River Lamprey 
Movement  

No effect Dewatering activities 
associated with 
construction could 
interfere with fish 
movement 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Restrict In-Water Work to 
Avoid Special-Status Fish 
Spawning Seasons 

Provide Alternate 
Migration Corridor through 
Creek Channels 

Disturbance and Direct Injury to 
River Lamprey  

No effect Noise, vibration and 
other physical 
disturbances could 
disturb fish; direct 
injury could result 
during in-stream work 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent due to 
less construction in the 
vicinity of Ledgewood 
Creek 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Restrict In-Water Work to 
Avoid Special-Status Fish 
Spawning Seasons 

Provide Alternate 
Migration Corridor through 
Creek Channels 

Minimize Noise Impacts 
on Special-Status Fish 
Species 

257



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Potential Water Quality Effects 
on River Lamprey Associated 
with Operations 

No effect Increase in impervious 
surfaces could result in 
increase in pollutants 
entering streams 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Prepare and Implement 
Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan and Best 
Management Practices 

Prevent Contaminants 
and Hazardous Materials 
from Entering the Stream 
Channel 

Central Valley Fall-Run/Late-Fall-Run Chinook Salmon 

Potential Effects on Chinook 
Salmon Resulting from 
Construction 

      

Water Quality Effects No effect Construction activities 
could result in 
sediments or 
contaminants entering 
streams 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Prepare and Implement 
Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan and Best 
Management Practices 

Prevent Contaminants 
and Hazardous Materials 
from Entering the Stream 
Channel 

Restrict In-Water Work to 
Avoid Special-Status Fish 
Spawning Seasons 

Chinook Salmon Habitat and 
Channel Morphology 

No effect Construction in and 
adjacent to streams 
could affect channel 
morphology and 
streamside vegetation  

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Minimize Impacts on 
Creek Channels 

Water Temperature Effects  No effect Minimal impact to 
water temperature 
from removal/addition 
of shading 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Minimize Impacts on 
Creek Channels 

Interference with Chinook 
Salmon Movement 

No effect Dewatering activities 
associated with 
construction could 
interfere with fish 
movement 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Restrict In-Water Work to 
Avoid Special-Status Fish 
Spawning Seasons 

Provide Alternate 
Migration Corridor through 
Creek Channels 

258



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Disturbance to Potential 
Spawning Habitat 

No effect Construction 
associated with the 
bridge over Suisun 
Creek could result in 
disturbance to 
spawning habitat 
located 20 feet 
downstream of bridge 

No effect Same a B No effect Minimize Impacts on 
Creek Channels 

Avoid Potential Fish 
Spawning Habitat 

Disturbance and Direct Injury of 
Chinook Salmon  

No effect Noise, vibration and 
other physical 
disturbances could 
disturb fish; direct 
injury could result 
during in-stream work 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent due to 
less construction in the 
vicinity of Ledgewood 
Creek 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Restrict In-Water Work to 
Avoid Special-Status Fish 
Spawning Seasons 

Provide Alternate 
Migration Corridor through 
Creek Channels 

Minimize Noise Impacts 
on Special-Status Fish 
Species 

Potential Water Quality Effects 
on Chinook Salmon Resulting 
from Operations 

No effect Increase in impervious 
surfaces could result in 
increase in pollutants 
entering streams 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Prepare and Implement 
Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan and Best 
Management Practices 

Prevent Contaminants 
and Hazardous Materials 
from Entering the Stream 
Channel 

Potential Interference with Fish 
Movement Resulting from 
Operations 

No effect Culvert extension in 
Ledgewood Creek 
under SR 12E would 
worsen fish passage 
conditions 

Same as B Same as B Same as B  Implement Culvert 
Retrofit at the SR 12E 
Crossing on Ledgewood 
Creek 

259



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Sacramento Splittail  

Potential Water Quality Effects 
on Sacramento Splittail 
Resulting from Construction 

No effect Construction 
associated with 
bridges over 
Ledgewood Creek 
could result in 
sediments or 
contaminants entering 
the creek 

Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent 

Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent 

Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent 

Prepare and Implement 
Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan and Best 
Management Practices 

Prevent Contaminants 
and Hazardous Materials 
from Entering the Stream 
Channel 

Potential Water Quality Effects 
on Sacramento Splittail 
Associated with Operations 

No effect Increase in impervious 
surfaces could result in 
increase in pollutants 
entering Ledgewood 
Creek 

Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent 

Same as B Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent 

Prepare and Implement 
Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan and Best 
Management Practices 

Prevent Contaminants 
and Hazardous Materials 
from Entering the Stream 
Channel 

3.3.5—Threatened and Endangered Species 

Loss or Disturbance of Contra 
Costa Goldfields Resulting from 
Construction 

No effect Construction would 
result in the loss of 30 
plants (this number 
may vary from year to 
year), and permanent 
loss of 55.95 acres 
and temporary 
disturbance of 14.02 
acres of critical habitat 

No effect Construction would 
result in the loss of 30 
plants, and permanent 
loss of 39.53 acres and 
temporary disturbance 
of 7.24 acres of critical 
habitat 

No effect Place Environmentally 
Sensitive Area Fencing 
around all Sensitive 
Biological Resources in 
and near the Construction 
Area Protect Water 
Quality and Prevent 
Erosion and 
Sedimentation into 
Drainages and Wetlands 

Compensate for the Loss 
of Contra Costa Goldfields 

Potential Loss or Disturbance of 
Callippe Silverspot Butterfly 
Resulting from Construction 

No effect Construction would 
result in the loss of 
habitat and could 
result in the loss of 
individuals 

No effect Same as B Same as B Avoid and Minimize 
Potential Direct and 
Indirect Disturbance of 
Populations of Johnny 
Jump-Ups 

260



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Potential Loss or Disturbance of 
Vernal Pool Fairy Shrimp/Vernal 
Pool Tadpole Shrimp Resulting 
from Construction 

No effect Construction would 
result in direct affect to 
1.12 acres and indirect 
affect to 1.78 acres of 
potential habitat 

Construction would 
result in direct affect to 
0.20 acres and 
indirect affect to 0.04 
acres of potential 
habitat 

Construction would 
result in direct affect to 
1.11 acres and indirect 
affect to 1.30 acres of 
potential habitat 

Construction would 
result in direct affect 
to 1.08 acres and 
indirect affect to 0.58 
acres of potential 
habitat 

Protect Water Quality and 
Prevent Erosion and 
Sedimentation into 
Drainages and Wetlands 

Avoid and Minimize 
Potential Indirect 
Disturbance of Vernal 
Pool Fairy Shrimp and 
Vernal Pool Tadpole 
Shrimp Habitat 

Compensate for Loss of 
Direct and Indirect 
Impacts on Vernal Pool 
Fairy Shrimp or Vernal 
Pool Tadpole Shrimp 
Habitat 

Potential Loss of Valley 
Elderberry Longhorn Beetle 
Habitat Resulting from 
Construction 

No effect Construction would 
result in direct affects 
to 11 shrubs and 
indirect affects to 1 
shrub 

Construction would 
result in direct affects 
to 2 shrubs, and no 
indirect affects.  

Construction would 
result in direct affects 
to 10 shrubs and 
indirect affects to 1 
shrub 

Construction would 
result in direct affects 
to 6 shrubs and 
indirect affects to 4 
shrubs 

Establish a Minimum 20-
Foot-Wide Buffer around 
All Elderberry Shrubs 
Where Feasible 

Implement Dust Control 
Measures 

Compensate for Direct 
Effects on Valley 
Elderberry Longhorn 
Beetle Habitat 

Potential Loss of California Red-
legged Frog and its Habitat 
Resulting from Construction 

No effect Construction would 
result in permanent 
loss of 1.32 acres of 
aquatic habitat, 95.72 
acres of upland 
habitat, and 16.46 
proposed critical 
habitat and temporary 
disturbance of 3.69 
acres of aquatic 
habitat, 26.40 acres of 
upland habitat and 
2.97 of proposed 
critical habitat 

Construction would 
result in permanent 
loss of 0.22 acres of 
aquatic habitat, and  
12.07 acres of upland 
habitat, and temporary 
disturbance of 1.67 
acres of aquatic 
habitat, and 2.86 
acres of upland 
habitat; no critical 
habitat would be 
affected 

Construction would 
result in permanent 
loss of 1.05 acres of 
aquatic habitat, 72.58 
acres of upland habitat, 
and 17.85 proposed 
critical habitat and 
temporary disturbance 
of 0.86 acres of aquatic 
habitat, 20.30 acres of 
upland habitat and 
3.45 of proposed 
critical habitat 

Construction would 
result in permanent 
loss of 0.59 acres of 
aquatic habitat, 48.94 
acres of upland 
habitat, and 17.77 
proposed critical 
habitat and temporary 
disturbance of 0.19 
acres of aquatic 
habitat, 14.55 acres of 
upland habitat and 
3.55 of proposed 
critical habitat 

Place Environmentally 
Sensitive Area Fencing 
around all Sensitive 
Biological Resources in 
and near the Construction 
Area Conduct 
Environmental Awareness 
Training for Construction 
Employees 

Retain a Biological 
Monitor to Conduct Daily 
Visits during Construction 
in Sensitive Habitats 

Avoid and Minimize 
Potential Disturbance of 
Riparian Communities 

Compensate for 

261



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Temporary and 
Permanent Loss of 
Riparian Vegetation 

Conduct Preconstruction 
Surveys for California 
Red-Legged Frog 
Monitor Construction 
Occurring near Potential 
California Red-Legged 
Frog Habitat 

Compensate for Loss and 
Disturbance of California 
Red-Legged Frog Habitat 

Potential Loss of Swainson’s 
Hawk Nesting and Foraging 
Habitat Resulting from 
Construction 

No effect Construction would 
result in the permanent 
loss of 224.38 acres of 
foraging habitat and 
1.28 acres of potential 
nesting habitat and the 
temporary disturbance 
of 72.45 acres of 
foraging habitat and 
0.35 acres of potential 
nesting habitat 

Construction would 
result in the 
permanent loss of 
44.74 acres of 
foraging habitat and 
0.08 acres of potential 
nesting habitat and 
the temporary 
disturbance of 11.91 
acres of foraging 
habitat and 0.06 acres 
of potential nesting 
habitat 

Construction would 
result in the permanent 
loss of 217.87 acres of 
foraging habitat and 
1.97 acres of potential 
nesting habitat and the 
temporary disturbance 
of 58.32 acres of 
foraging habitat and 
0.42 acres of potential 
nesting habitat 

Construction would 
result in the 
permanent loss of 
124.54 acres of 
foraging habitat and 
0.64 acres of potential 
nesting habitat and 
the temporary 
disturbance of 29.90 
acres of foraging 
habitat and 0.09 acres 
of potential nesting 
habitat 

Place Environmentally 
Sensitive Area Fencing 
around all Sensitive 
Biological Resources in 
and near the Construction 
Area Conduct 
Environmental Awareness 
Training for Construction 
Employees 

Retain a Biological 
Monitor to Conduct Daily 
Visits during Construction 
in Sensitive Habitats 

Avoid and Minimize 
Potential Disturbance of 
Riparian Communities 

Compensate for 
Temporary and 
Permanent Loss of 
Riparian Vegetation 

Conduct Preconstruction 
Nesting Bird and Raptor 
Surveys and Establish a 
No-Disturbance Buffer, if 
Necessary 

Compensate for Loss of 
Swainson’s Hawk 
Foraging Habitat 

Central California Coast Steelhead 

262



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Potential Effects on Steelhead 
Resulting from Construction 

      

Water Quality Effects No effect Construction activities 
could result in 
sediments or 
contaminants entering 
streams 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Prepare and Implement 
Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan and Best 
Management Practices 

Prevent Contaminants 
and Hazardous Materials 
from Entering the Stream 
Channel 

Restrict In-Water Work to 
Avoid Special-Status Fish 
Spawning Seasons 

Steelhead Habitat and Channel 
Morphology  

No effect Construction in and 
adjacent to streams 
could affect channel 
morphology and 
streamside vegetation  

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Minimize Impacts on 
Creek Channels 

Water Temperature Effects No effect Minimal impact to 
water temperature 
from removal/addition 
of shading 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Minimize Impacts on 
Creek Channels 

Interference with Steelhead 
Movement  

No effect Dewatering activities 
associated with 
construction could 
interfere with fish 
movement 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Restrict In-Water Work to 
Avoid Special-Status Fish 
Spawning Seasons 

Provide Alternate 
Migration Corridor through 
Creek Channels 

Disturbance to Potential 
Spawning Habitat  

No effect Construction 
associated with the 
bridge over Suisun 
Creek could result in 
disturbance to 
spawning habitat 
located 20 feet 
downstream of bridge 

No effect Same a B No effect Minimize Impacts on 
Creek Channels 

Avoid Potential Fish 
Spawning Habitat 

   

263



Impact No Build 
Alternative B Alternative C Avoidance, 

Minimization, and/or 
Mitigation Measures Full Build Phase 1 Full Build Phase 1 

Disturbance and Direct Injury to 
Steelhead  

No effect Noise, vibration and 
other physical 
disturbances could 
disturb fish; direct 
injury could result 
during in-stream work 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B, but to a 
lesser extent due to 
less construction in the 
vicinity of Ledgewood 
Creek 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Restrict In-Water Work to 
Avoid Special-Status Fish 
Spawning Seasons 

Provide Alternate 
Migration Corridor through 
Creek Channels 

Minimize Noise Impacts 
on Special-Status Fish 
Species 

Potential Water Quality Effects 
on Steelhead Resulting from 
Operations 

No effect Increase in impervious 
surfaces could result in 
increase in pollutants 
entering streams 

Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Same as B Same as B, but no 
effects at Suisun 
Creek 

Prepare and Implement 
Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan and Best 
Management Practices 

Prevent Contaminants 
and Hazardous Materials 
from Entering the Stream 
Channel 

Potential Interference with Fish 
Movement Resulting from 
Operations 

No effect Culvert extension in 
Ledgewood Creek 
under SR 12E would 
worsen fish passage 
conditions 

Same as B Same as B Same as B 

3.3.6—Invasive Species 

Implement Culvert 
Retrofit at the SR 12 
Crossing on Ledgewood 
Creek 

Potential Introduction and 
Spread of Invasive Plant Species 
Resulting from Construction 

No effect Construction activities 
have the potential to 
spread invasive plant 
species 

Same as B Same as B Same as B Avoid the Introduction and 
Spread of Invasive 
Plants—Minimize Soil 
Disturbance, Restore 
Disturbed Areas Using 
Native Species 

3.3.7—Native Trees 

None        

3.3.8—Suisun Marsh Secondary Management Area 

None       
 

264



Agenda Item IX.C 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  July 2, 2010  
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Elizabeth Richards, Director of Transit and Rideshare Services 
RE: Solano County Transit Joint Powers Agreement – Consolidation of 

Benicia and Vallejo Transit Services 
 
 
Background: 
The issue of consolidating some or all of the Solano’s transit services had been discussed 
and proposed for evaluation for several years prior to the STA Board members discussing 
it formally at the February 2005 Board retreat.  At the Board retreat, participants 
expressed interest and support for transit service becoming more convenient through a 
seamless system, that there should be a reasonable level of service throughout the county, 
and that local transit issues and needs would have to be considered and addressed.  Later 
in 2005, the STA Board directed STA staff to initiate a countywide Transit Consolidation 
Study and approved goals, objectives and evaluation criteria to be incorporated in the 
scope of work for this study.  After funding was secured, DKS Associates was selected to 
lead the Transit Consolidation Study.   DKS worked on the transit consolidation project 
through June 2009. 
 
In June 2009, the STA Board approved the following recommendations: 

1. Option 1:  Consolidation of Benicia and Vallejo transit services; 
2. Option 4c: Decentralize intercity paratransit service to local transit operators and 

continue study of consolidation of interregional Solano transit services under one 
operator to be selected by the STA Board; 

3. Forward the STA recommended transit consolidation recommendations to the 
affected agencies for their consideration and participation; 

4. Direct STA staff to work with the affected local transit staff to develop 
Implementation Plans for Option 1 and Option 4c; and 

5. Report back to the STA Board by September 2009 on the status of the 
Implementation Plan. 

 
Discussion: 
Since the STA Board action in June 2009, the STA, Benicia, and Vallejo have met 
multiple times.  Over the past year a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was 
approved by the three organizations to guide the development of a Solano County Transit 
Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) and Transition Plan.  The JPA is the topic of this staff 
report.  
 
The development of the MOU, JPA and Transition Plan have been guided by the Solano 
County Transit Coordinating Committee in coordination with a Management Committee 

265

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



and a Staff Working Committee.  The Coordinating Committee members are Benicia 
Mayor Patterson, Vallejo Mayor Davis, Benicia Councilmember Ioakimedes, and Vallejo 
Councilmember Hannigan.  The Management Committee consists of the Benicia and 
Vallejo City Managers and the STA’s Executive Director.  The Staff Working Committee 
has been the staff level committee from all three agencies with support from legal counsel 
and consultants. 
 
Over the past year, there has been a consistently high level of cooperation and interest in 
working toward consolidation and better transit coordination and service.  Guiding 
principles were developed and incorporating into an MOU that was approved by the three 
agencies (Benicia, Vallejo and STA) to establish a framework for moving toward 
consolidation.  The STA approved the MOU in September 2009 (Attachment A).   
 
A  JPA was drafted, reviewed multiple times and approved by the Coordinating 
Committee in May 2010 (Attachment B). Key points of the JPA are: 

• The consolidated Benicia/Vallejo transit agency will be known as Solano 
County Transit (SolTrans); 

• The JPA Board will be comprised of the Mayors of Benicia and Vallejo, a 
City Councilmember from each jurisdiction, and the fifth voting member will 
be Solano’s MTC representative; 

• The STA will be an ex-officio member of the Board; 
 
The Coordinating Committee directed that the JPA be forwarded to the member agencies 
once a Transition Plan was completed.  The Transition Plan has been prepared to guide 
the development of the new SolTrans organization (Attachment C).  The Transition Plan 
covers the following: 

• Background 
• Structure and Governance 
• Financial Management (including a one and 10-year budget) 
• Organizational and Human Resources Management 
• Service Planning and Operations 
• Capital Project Management 
• Other Issues:  WETA Transition and new Administration Building 
• Implementation Schedule 

 
In June 2010, the STA Board approved a contract to retain Phil McGuire to function as 
the Interim Executive Director of the new JPA.  If the JPA is approved by the member 
agencies, he will work with the new SolTrans Board to begin the steps necessary to build 
the organization prior to transferring and hiring staff hiring a permanent Executive 
Director, transferring service and other contracts, and transferring operating funds and 
capital assets related to operating service.  This transitional process is projected to 
conclude by the Spring of 2011. 
 
Construction of transit capital projects such as Curtola Park and Ride, Vallejo Station, 
Benicia’s Park and Rides will remain with the Cities.  With the transfer of transit service 
operations from the Cities to the JPA, the intention is to reimburse the Cities for any 
auditable funds they have advanced in the past to cover transit costs as well as to start the 
new JPA on sound financial grounds.  To address these and other one-time transitional 
costs (moving, re-branding, professional services) an estimate has been developed with 

266



the Cities and is incorporated into the Transition Plan.  STA and SolTrans will approach 
MTC to assist with these costs and STAF funds were approved by the STA Board in June 
2009 to serve as local match. 
 
During the transition, service levels will remain consistent to both cities.  Funding for a 
joint Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) is being secured from MTC and will provide the 
opportunity for the new agency in its first year to review how the newly combined transit 
service area may be served. 
 
Both the JPA and Transitional Plan have been reviewed and recommended for adoption 
by both cities and the STA by the MOU’s Coordinating Committee.  The JPA is 
scheduled to next be reviewed for action by the Benicia City Council on July 20.  The 
Vallejo City Council is scheduled to review the JPA for action on July 27 with a City 
Council briefing on July 20 and the Council Transit (VTAC) committee meeting on July 
8.  If the JPA is approved by the three member agencies, the first SolTrans JPA meeting 
is expected to occur in September 2010. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
STA will support the transition as needed with staff time, legal counsel services, and 
consultant services in support of this effort. 
 
Recommendations: 
Approve the following: 

1. Resolution No. 2010-09 approving the creation of the Solano County Transit 
(“SOLTRANS”)  Joint Powers Agency by and among the STA, the City of 
Benicia, and the City of Vallejo; and   

2. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a JPA with the Cities of Benicia 
and Vallejo to form Solano County Transit. 

 
Attachment: 

A. South County Transit MOU 
B. Solano County Transit JPA 
C. Solano County Transit Transition Plan 
D. Resolution No. 2010-09 

267



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

268



Original wfLegal
CC: SF/ERILN Binder
November 20, 2009

Final Benicia/Vallejo Transit Consolidation Evaluation MOU October 28, 2009

FY 2009-10.25.00

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
BY AND AMONG

THE SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY,
THE CITY OF BENICIA AND

THE CITY OF VALLEJO
FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE

SOUTH SOLANO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this J .?~ay of fjd. ,2009, by
and among the municipal corporations of the CITY OF BENICIA ("BENICIA") and the CITY OF
VALLEJO ("VALLEJO"), and the SOLANO TRANSPORTAnON AUTHORITY, ajoint
powers entity organized under Government Code section 6500 et seq. and the Congestion
Management Agency of Solano County ("STA"). Unless specifically identified, the various
public agencies herein may be commonly referred to as "the Parties" or "Authority and Cities" or
"Jurisdictions" as the context may require.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the provision of transit services throughout Solano County has been developed on a
jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis and, as a result, the provision of transit services to the citizens of
Solano County may be enhanced by the improved coordination oftransit routes and other issues
among the transit providers including consolidation. The cities of Benicia and Vallejo share
boundaries and regional transit routes while each agency operates its own transit service; and

WHEREAS, STA was created in 1990 through a Joint Powers Agreement between the cities of
Benicia, Dixon, Fairfield, Rio Vista, Suisun City, Vacaville, Vallejo and the County of Solano to
serve as the Congestion Management Agency for Solano.

WHEREAS, STAas the Congestion Management Agency (CMA) for the Solano area, the STA
partners with various transportation and planning agencies, such as the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission (MTC) and Caltrans District 4.

WHEREAS, STA is responsible for countywide transportation planning, progranuning
transportation funds, managing and providing transportation programs and services, delivering
transportation projects, and setting transportation priorities.

WHERAS, STA has sponsored, and the COUNTY and CITIES have joined and participated in,
various studies of the potential consolidation of transit systems and,

WHEREAS, STA's transit consolidation study was approved by the STA Board with a
recommendation to consider consolidation pursuant to adopted guiding principles of transit

269

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



Final Benicia/Vallejo Transit Consolidation Evaluation MOD

services in Benicia and Vallejo; and

October 28, 2009

WHEREAS, STA's coordination of the annual multi-agency Transportation Development Act
(TDA) matrix, the State Transit Assistance Fund's (STAF) project funding for the county, and
Regional Measure 2 funding has clarified and simplified the funding claims process locally and
regionally, including for both Benicia and Vallejo;

WHEREAS, evaluation of the funding and service benefits of consolidation needs to occur prior to
undertaking the step of establishing a joint powers agency for the provision oftransit to Benicia
and Vallejo and to allow the parties an opportunity to regularly review and refine data and funding
fonnulae by following the guiding Principlesset forth in Part II below to guide the consolidation
and funding of Benicia-Vallejo transit operations in the future.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, following approval by the respective governing body of each
agency, STA and the cities of BENICIA and VALLEJO, in consideration of the mutual promises
herein, agree as follows:

Part I
South Solano Transit Advisory Committee; Management Committee; Staff Working Group

In order to facilitate the evaluation of the potential consolidation of the Benicia and Vallejo transit
services, there is hereby established the "South Solano Transit Advisory Committee." The
function of the Advisory Committee is to oversee the goals and work plan in order to facilitate the
consolidation and any interim service plans of the two transit services, consistent with the adopted
guiding principles. Following the completion ofthe work plan the Advisory Committee will make
a recommendation relative to consolidation to the respective city councils of Benicia and Vallejo
and to the STA Board. The Advisory Committee is a body subject to the provisions of the Ralph
M. Brown Act (Government Code Sections 54950 et seq.) and will consist ofthe Mayor of each
city and each city's alternate to the STA Board. At the first meeting of this Committee, a
chairperson will be selected. Further meetings shall be called by the chair when necessary and
appropriate but not less than every two months for the duration of this MOD

There shall also be a South Solano Transit Management Committee to monitor and oversee the
progress of the work plan and other activities set forth herein. The Management Committee shall
consist of the City Manager or their designee of each city and the STA Executive Director and
shall meet at the call of any member.

A staff Working Group made up of the STA Director of Transit Rideshare Service, the STA
Transit Manager, the Public Works Directors of Benicia and the COV, the Finance Director and
Transit Coordinator of Benicia, and the Transportation Superintendent and Contract
Administrator/Operations Analyst from the City of Vallejo, will implement the day to day

2

270



Final BenicialVallejo Transit Consolidation Evaluation MOD

progress of the work plan and other activities set forth herein.

October 28, 2009

Part II
Guiding Principals

The members of the South County Transit Advisory Committee have adopted the following
Principles to guide the study and evaluation ofthe potential consolidation of Benicia and Vallejo
Transit:

A. The Benicia Breeze and Vallejo Transit services shall be consolidated to streamline,
simplif'y, and improve access for transit riders through enhanced service coverage,
frequency, affordability, and mobility options contingent upon available funding. The
consolidated service shall be responsible for coordinating transportation services in
Benicia and Vallejo and to locations beyond the two cities such as Bay Area Rapid Transit
(BART).

B. Consolidated transit service provides an opportunity to improve standards for greenhouse
gas emissions and energy reductions, reduce single-occupant vehicle miles traveled,
thereby minimizing the carbon footprint of Benicia and Vallejo residents. A consolidated'
transit service will further the Benicia and Solano County Climate Action Plans
greenhouse gas reduction targets.

C. The Benicia Breeze and Vallejo Transit service consolidation shall be consistent with the
Countywide Transportation Plan Transit Element to maximize the ability of Solano
residents, workers, and visitors to reach destinations within Solano County, and to access
regional transportation systems.

D. The consolidated transit service shall be designed to be comparatively cost effective and
efficient while considering the unique characteristics of each jurisdiction.

E. The consolidation of services shall be managed in a public and transparent process to
encourage participation by residents, stakeholders, and decision-makers in both
communities.

F. The consolidated transit service shall strive to maintain the continuity of current service
provided by both jurisdictions, minimizing service disruptions and passenger
inconveniences due to the transition. If possible, service levels shall be maintained and
expanded.

G. The consolidated transit service shall maximize opportunities for regional funding.
/

3

271



Final Benicia/Vallejo Transit Consolidation Evaluation MOD October 28, 2009

Part III
Work Plan to Facilitate the Implementation of the South Solano Transit Authority

The following steps outline the requirements and schedule for consolidating Vallejo Transit and
Benicia Breeze as recommended in the Solano County Transit Consolidation Study. The
respective staffof the cities of Benicia and Vallejo and the STA will lead the transition planning
effort with the support of STA consultants. The Committees and staff shall make every effort to
complete the tasks in the work plan by December 31, 2009 and to fully consolidate transportation
services ofthe two cities by July 1,2010.

A. Task Area 1: Structure and Governance
Incorporate adopted guiding principles for Transition Plan
Identify form of governance for consolidated entity (e.g., JPA)
Identify board membership and representation
Draft by-laws for the new entity
Identify policies and procedures for the new entity

B. Task Area 2: Public Outreach
Engage and inform public of consolidation plans and conduct public workshops to hear public
concerns and answer questions
Establish a Public Outreach Plan
Prepare plan for re-branding the system
Develop public information for transition

C. Task Area 3: Finance
Prepare a business plan for consolidating the two agencies, identifying an administrative
framework and costs of consolidation
Establish new entity as a federal, state, regional transit grantee
Identify fiscal agent to provide accounting and information technology services
Determine how procurement will be managed (e.g., using fiscal agent or another approach)
Identify capital asset ownership and potential transfer of assets to new entity
Prepare consolidated armual budget for new entity

Task Area 4: Human Resources
Describe how existing employees will be transferred/absorbed in to new entity
Develop an organization chart for the new entity
Prepare a staffing plan, including duties and responsibilities for each function/position
Identify organization to provide human resources services (e.g., payroll processing, benefits
administration, etc.)

Task Area 5: Legal
Identify legal requirements to establish consolidated entity
Potential for near term, operating MOD

4

272



Final BenicialVallejo Transit Consolidation Evaluation MOD October 28, 2009

Establishment of Joint Powers Agreement (JPA)
Determine how potential United States Department of Labor (USDOL) B(c) labor protections
would be applied to the consolidated entity
Identify organization or entity to provide legal services
Assist in determination of how to best contract for services (exiting service contracts and/or
new bids)

Task Area 6: Service Planning and Operations
Establish service objectives and standards including customer service and training standards
for a consolidated system
Prepare consolidated Short Range Transit Plan

Operations
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)

Determine how existing service contracts will be transferred and transitioned

Part IV
Interim Service Planning

In preparation for consolidation of the two transit services, the Parties agree to work cooperatively
to deliver service to the two cities in the most effective and efficient manner and consistent with
the Transit Consolidation Goals in Section II ofthis MOU until the services are fully consolidated.

1. Changes in fares or transit routes shall not become effective until approval by the SSTAC
and the respective city councils of Benicia and Vallejo.

2. The criteria for evaluating consolidated transit services shall be developed as part of the
SRTP and may include, but are not limited to, the following::

a) Productivity Measures
• Farebox recovery ratio
• Cost per vehicle service hour
• Cost per vehicle mile
• Cost per passenger trip
• Passengers per vehicle service hour

b) Policy/Coverage Requirements (contingent on available funding)
• Provides connectivity between cities
• Provides regional transit connections
• Meets unmet transit needs
• User friendly
• Consistent with greenhouse gas reduction goals
• Consistent with future federal and regional transportation planning
• Established life cycle costing criteria

5

273



Final BenicialVallejo Transit Consolidation Evaluation MOU October 28, 2009

Part V
Joint Powers Agreement

Based on the results of the work plan, ajoint powers agreement shall be developed for adoption by
the Parties leading to consolidated transit functions on July 1,2010. A draft JPA shall be
presented to the SSTAC no later than August 31,2009.

Part VI
General Terms and Conditions

A. Term of Agreement.
The term ofthis Agreement shall be as follows:

a. The Goals set forth herein shall continue in effect until modified in writing by the
parties or the two transit functions are consolidated;

B. Indemnification.
The PARTIES and STA shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless each other and their
respective officers, agents, employees, or subcontractors from any claim, loss or liability,
including, without limitation, those for personal injury (including death) or damage to
property, arising out of or connected with any aspect of the performance by any of the Partied,
or their respective officers, agents, employees, or subcontractors of activities required under
this Agreement, and any fees and/or costs reasonably incurred by the staff attorneys or contract
attorneys of the Party(ies) to be indemnified, and any and all costs, fees and expenses incurred
in enforcing this provision.

C. No Waiver.
The waiver by any Party of any breach or violation of any requirement of this Agreement shall
not be deemed to be a waiver of any such breach in the future, or of the breach of any other
requirement of this Agreement.

D. Notices.
All notices required or authorized by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered
in person or by deposit in the United States mail, by certified mail, postage prepaid, return
receipt requested. Any mailed notice, demand, request, consent, approval or communication
that a PARTY desires to give to the other PARTIES shall be addressed to the other PARTIES
at the addresses set forth below. A PARTY may change its address by notifying the other
PARTIES ofthe change of address. Any notice sent by mail in the manner prescribed by this
paragraph shall be deemed to have been received on the date noted on the return receipt or five
days following the date of deposit, whichever is earlier.

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Daryl K. Halls, Executive Director
One Harbor Center, Suite 130
Suisun City, CA 94585

6

274



Final BenicialVallejo Transit Consolidation Evaluation MOD

CITY OF BENICIA
Robert Sousa
Finance Director
250 East "L"
Benicia, CA 94510

CITY OF VALLEJO
Gary Leach
Public Works Director
555 Santa Clara St.
Vallejo, CA 94590

October 28, 2009

E. Subcontracts.
Within the funds allocated by the PARTIES under this agreement, any member agency may be
authorized by the Advisory Committee or the Management Committee to contract for any and
all of the tasks necessary to undertake the projects or studies contemplated by this Agreement.

F. Amendment/Modification.
Except as specifically provided herein, this Agreement may be modified or amended only in
writing and with the prior written consent of the Parties.

G. Interpretation.
Each PARTY has reviewed this Agreement and any question of doubtful interpretation shall
not be resolved by any rule or interpretation providing for interpretation against the drafting
party. This AGREEMENT shall be construed as if all Parties drafted it. The headings used
herein are for convenience only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this
Agreement. The terms of the Agreement are set out in the text under the headings. This
Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.

H. Severability.
If any provision of this Agreement, or any portion thereof, is found by any court of competent
jurisdiction to be unenforceable or invalid for any reason, such provision shall be severable
and shall not in any way impair the enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement.

1. Local Law Compliance.
The Parties shall observe and comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws,
ordinances, and Codes including those of the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).

J. Non-Discrimination Clause.
a. During the performance of this Agreement, the Parties and their subcontractors

shall not deny the benefits thereof to any person on the basis of race, religion,

7

275



Final Benicia/Vallejo Transit Consolidation Evaluation MOD October 28, 2009

color, ethnic group identification, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap,
mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age, sex or sexual orientation,
nor shall they discriminate unlawfully against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, religion, color, ethnic group identification, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, mental disability, medical conclition, marital
status, age, sex or sexual orientation. STA shall ensure that the evaluation and
treatment of employees and applicants for employment are free of such
discrimination.

b. The Parties shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing
Act (Govermnent Code section 12900, et seq.), the regulations promulgated
thereunder (Title 2, California Code of Regulations, section 7285.0, et seq.), the
provisions of Article 9.5, Chapter 1, Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 ofthe Govermnent
Code (sections 11135-11139.5) and any state or local regulations adopted to
implement any of the foregoing, as such statutes and regulations may be amended
from time to time.

K. ACcess to RecordslRetention.
All Parties, any federal or state grantor agency funding all or part of the compensation payable
hereunder, the State Controller, the Comptroller General of the United States, or the duly
authorized representatives ofany of the above, shall have access to any books, documents,
papers and records of any PARTY which are directly pertinent to the subject matter of this
Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. Except
where longer retention is required by any federal or state law, the PARTIES shall maintain all
required records for three years after final payment for any work authorized hereunder, or after
all pending matters are closed, whichever is later.

L. Conflict oflnterest.
The Parties hereby covenant that they presently have no interest not disclosed, and shall not
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the
performance of its obligations hereunder, except for such conflicts that the Parties may consent
to in writing prior to the acquisition by a Party of such conflict.

M. Entirety of Agreement.
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties relating to the subject
matter of this Agreement and supersedes all previous agreements, promises, representations,
understandings and negotiations, whether written or oral, among the Parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof.
/
/
/
/

8

276



Final BeniciaIVallejo Transit Consolidation Evaluation MOD October 28, 2009

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement was executed by the PARTIES hereto as of
the date first above wntten.

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

By: _~fJJ-,-----__lC__~ _
Daryl K. Halls, Executive Director

CITY OF BENICIA

By: -M'lJ&If,4U(/f)j~--
Jim Eri, ~son, City Manager

By:~~~~==:==_
Robert F. D. Adams, Interim City Manager

9

APPR~O~
By: .~
Charles Lamoree, STA Legal Counsel

APPROVED AS TO FORM

B~C~
Heather McLaughlin, City Attorney

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By: d:l)z&d~-~~
Fred Soley, City Attorney

277



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

278



SOLANO COUNTY TRANSIT (“SOLTRANS”) 
 

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 
 
 
This Joint Powers Agreement is by and among the CITY OF BENICIA, a municipal corporation 
(hereinafter "BENICIA"), the City of Vallejo, a municipal corporation (hereinafter 
"VALLEJO"), and the SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (hereafter "STA"), a joint 
powers agency and the congestion management agency for Solano County (hereinafter "STA"), 
which public entities (collectively "Members" or "Member Agencies") have entered into this 
Joint Powers Agreement ("Agreement") creating Solano County Transit, a joint powers agency. 
All Members of the Authority are public entities organized and operating under the laws of the 
State of California and each is a public agency as defined in California Government Code 
Section 6500. 
 

RECITALS 
A. Government Code Sections 6500-6515 permit two or more local public entities, by 

agreement, to jointly exercise any power common to them and, thereby, authorizes the 
Members to enter into this Agreement. 

B. In the performance of their essential governmental functions, Benicia and Vallejo each 
provide transit services within their respective municipal boundaries and to areas outside 
of said boundaries in order to perform or participate in intercity, regional transit services. 

C. Among the responsibilities and transportation functions performed by STA, said agency 
provides planning, funding and management of intercity transit routes and paratransit 
services and, further, STA is eligible to act as a transit provider. 

D. Public entities have the opportunity to provide transit and related services in a 
cooperative and coordinated manner, in order to best manage the public resources 
committed and necessary for delivery of such transit services. 

E. The formation of Solano County Transit enables the Members to take advantage of the 
opportunities for more economical provision of transit services through economies of 
scale and to improve and expand the provision of a variety of transit services including, 
but not limited to, normal and customary intra-city bus transit, intercity transit, paratransit 
services, dial-a-ride, commuter and passenger ferries, and connecting transit to other 
transportation providers such as BART and/or the Capitol Corridor commuter train in 
such manner and at such time as the Members may decide necessary and appropriate for 
public benefit. 

F. The governing board of each Member has determined that it is in the Member's best 
interest, and in the public interest, that this Agreement be executed and they become 
Participating Members of Solano County Transit. 

 
AGREEMENT 

1. 
Pursuant to Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of 
California (commencing with Section 6500) as amended from time to time, and 
commonly known as the Joint Powers Authority Law, the Members hereby create a joint 
powers agency which is named Solano County Transit and may otherwise be referred to 
as "SolTrans" or such other acronym, brand or identifier as determined appropriate by the 
Board. 

Formation of the South Solano Transit (SolTrans). 

 
 

279

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



2. 
In mutual consideration of the promises herein, each Member certifies that it intends to, 
and does, contract with every other Member which is a signatory to this Agreement and, 
in addition, with such other Member as may be later added as provided in Section 18. 
Each Member also certifies that the deletion of any Member from this Agreement does 
not affect this Agreement or the remaining Members' intent to contract with the other 
Members then remaining. 

Parties to Agreement. 

 
3. 

Solano County Transit will be the agency created by the merger of the presently existing 
transit services in Benicia and Vallejo through this joint powers agreement. In accordance 
with a merger schedule, business plan or merger plan approved by the Members 
contemporaneous with this joint powers agreement, Benicia and Vallejo with transfer, 
and Solano County Transit will receive, all the transit related assets, personal property, 
roiling stock and equipment of each presently operating transit service and, thereafter, 
will operate as a unified entity separate and apart from the originating cities of Benicia 
and Vallejo. Unless prohibited by law, Solano County Transit shall succeed to and 
undertake all those transit related agreements in place at the execution of this Agreement.  
Any debt of a Member to be assumed by Solano County Transit such as but not limited 
to, funds advanced by Member to their transit system, shall be specifically set forth and 
described in the approved merger schedule, business plan or merger plan. 

Purpose; Transfer of Assets; Succession to Existing Contracts. 

 
4. 

To the degree required by law, existing transit employees of each agency will become 
employees of the Authority. 

Transit Employees. 

 
5. 

In addition to the originating members Benicia, Vallejo and STA, the following entities, 
or types of entities, are eligible for membership in Solano County Transit: 

Membership. 

a. Municipal corporations located within the County of Solano; 
b. The County of Solano; or 
c. Any other public entity or public/private partnership providing, or proposed to 

provide, transit in Solano County. 
New members may be added upon the approval of 2/3rds of the Solano County Transit 
Board and with not less than one vote on the part of each then existing Member agency. 
 

6. 
Except as otherwise authorized or permitted by the JPA Law and for purposes of, and to 
the extent required by Government Code Section 6509, Solano County Transit is subject 
to the restrictions upon the manner of exercising the powers of the Members specified in 
the Bylaws. 

Limitation. 

 
7. 

The following Principles are intended to guide the consolidated Benicia and Vallejo 
transit services: 

Guiding Principles 

 
 
 
 
 

280



a. The Benicia Breeze and Vallejo Transit services were consolidated to streamline, 
simplify, and improve access for transit riders through enhanced service coverage, 
frequency, affordability, and mobility options contingent upon available funding. 
The consolidated service shall be responsible for coordinating transportation 
services in Benicia and Vallejo and to locations beyond the two cities such as Bay 
Area Rapid Transit (BART). 

b. Consolidated transit service is intended to improve standards for greenhouse gas 
emissions and energy reductions, reduce single-occupant vehicle miles traveled, 
thereby minimizing the carbon footprint of Benicia and Vallejo residents. A 
consolidated transit service will further the Benicia and Solano County Climate 
Action Plans greenhouse gas reduction targets. 

c. The Benicia Breeze and Vallejo Transit consolidation shall be consistent with the 
STA's Countywide Transportation Plan Transit Element to maximize the ability 
of Solano residents, workers, and visitors to reach destinations within Solano 
County, and to access regional transportation systems. 

d. The consolidated transit service shall be designed to be comparatively cost 
effective and efficient while considering the unique characteristics of each 
jurisdiction. 

e. The consolidation of services shall be managed in a public and transparent 
process to encourage participation by residents, stakeholders, and decision-makers 
in both communities. 

f. The consolidated transit service shall strive to maintain the continuity of current 
service provided by both jurisdictions, minimizing service disruptions and 
passenger inconveniences due to the transition. If possible, service levels shall be 
maintained or expanded. 

g. The consolidated transit service shall maximize opportunities for regional 
funding. 

 
8. 

Solano County Transit is authorized, in its own name, to do all acts necessary to fulfill 
the purposes of this Agreement referred to in Section 3 including, but not limited to, each 
of the following: 

Powers. 

a. Make and enter into contracts; 
b. Incur debts, liabilities and obligations; provided that no debt, liability or 

obligation of Solano County Transit is a debt, liability or obligation of any 
Member except as separately agreed to by a Member agreeing to be so obligated; 

c. Acquire, hold, construct, manage, maintain, sell or otherwise dispose of real and 
personal property by appropriate means, excepting only eminent domain; 

d. Receive contributions and donations of property, funds, services and other forms 
of assistance from any source including, but not limited to, special or general 
taxes and assessments;Sue and be sued in its own name; 

e. Employ agents and employees; 
f. Lease real or personal property as lessee and as lessor; 
g. Receive, collect, invest and disburse moneys; 
h. Issue revenue bonds or other forms of indebtedness, as provided by law; 
i. Carry out other duties as required to accomplish other responsibilities as set forth 

in this Agreement; 
j. Assign, delegate or contract with a Member or third party to perform any of these 

duties of the Board, including, but not limited to, acting as Executive Director for 
Solano County Transit; 

281



k. Exercise all other powers necessary and proper to carry out the provisions of this 
Agreement; 

l. Claim transit funds from state and federal sources. 
m. These powers will be exercised in the manner provided by applicable law and as 

expressly set forth in this Agreement or reasonably inferred therefrom. 
 

9. 
The initial Governing Board of Solano County Transit is comprised of five (5) voting 
directors and one (1) ex-officio, non-voting director.  When a director is absent, their 
alternative may act in their place. 

Board of Directors. 

a. Upon approval of this joint powers agreement, the City Councils of Benicia and 
Vallejo will appoint two directors and one alternate to be voting members of the 
Board.  Thereafter, each new Member Agency of the Solano County Transit shall 
appoint two directors and one alternate to be voting members of the Board.  The 
STA Board will appoint the ex-officio member. The directors and/or alternate 
director appointed by a Member Agency other than the Solano Transportation 
Authority must be an elected official and a member of the city council or 
governing board of the member agency.  The fifth voting director shall be the 
Solano County representative to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC), unless such representative is from either Benicia or Vallejo City Councils 
or a Supervisorial representative from District 1 or 2, in which case the fifth 
voting director shall be determined through a process to be established by the 
balance of the JPA Board.  Such process may include the appointment of the 
MTC representative from the aforementioned jurisdictions at the sole discretion of 
the remaining JPA Board. 

b. All actions of the Board require the affirmative vote of a majority of the board 
and at least one vote of director representing each Member Agency. 

c. Directors shall serve a term of two (2) years unless earlier removed by a vote of 
the remaining directors or replaced by the appointing Member Agency in 
accordance with that Member Agency's procedures.  A voting director is 
automatically removed if he or she is no longer an elected official or the Solano 
County representative to the MTC.  Directors may serve any number of terms.  

d. Directors and alternate directors are eligible for a stipend of up to $100 per 
meeting with a maximum of one compensated meeting per month The Board may 
authorize reimbursement of expenses incurred by directors or alternate directors 
on behalf of the Authority. 

e. The Board may delegate certain powers to specified committees but may not 
delegate the power to remove Member's representative or amend this joint powers 
agreement or the Bylaws of Solano County Transit. 

 
10. 

The following committees are hereby established: 
Committees. 

a. Executive Management Committee. The Executive Management Committee 
periodically meets as necessary to assist in advising the employees or agents and 
the Board of the Authority, to review proposed budget items, service and fare 
adjustments, and to otherwise provide management assistance and oversight as 
necessary. The Executive Committee shall consist of the city managers or 
designees for Benicia and Vallejo and the Executive Director or designee of the 
STA. 
 

282



b. Technical Advisory Committee.  The Technical Advisory Committee will consist 
of staff representatives appointed by the city manager or executive director of the 
Member Agencies to coordinate with Agency staff on funding and service issues. 

c. Citizen's Advisory Committee.  Each Member Agency will appoint three citizens 
with demonstrated expertise or special interest in, transit issues and who reside 
within the boundaries of the agencies that they represent to serve on a Citizen's 
Advisory Committee (CAC). This will include representatives selected by 
Benicia, Vallejo and the STA. The CAC will serve as an advisory committee to 
the Solano County Transit Board and will review and comment to the Solano 
County Transit Board on the following matters: 

i.  Service and fare adjustments,  
ii. Development of Short Range Transit Plans, and 

iii.  Review of the agency's annual work plan. 
d. Other Committees. The Board may create other committees from time to time as 

necessary and appropriate. 
 

11. 
a. The officers of Solano County Transit are the Board Chair, Vice-Chair, Executive 

Director, Legal Counsel, Chief Fiscal Officer/Treasurer, and Clerk to the Board. 
The positions of Chair and Vice-Chair shall be appointed by the members of the 
Solano County Transit Board from their membership.   The Chair and Vice-Chair 
are directors elected or appointed by the Board at its first meeting and serve the 
remainder of the year in which appointed and one additional year. Thereafter, 
terms for Chair and Vice-Chair are one year beginning January 1.  The Chair and 
Vice Chair assume their office upon election by the governing board.  If either the 
Chair or Vice-Chair ceases to be a director, the resulting vacancy will be filled at 
the next meeting of the Board. 

Officers and Employees 

b. The Board shall appoint an Executive Director and Legal Counsel to the 
Authority who shall serve at the pleasure of the Authority Board.  The Executive 
Director shall appoint the Authority's Chief Fiscal Officer/Treasurer and the Clerk 
and who shall serve at the pleasure of the Executive Director. 

c.  Board may authorize reimbursement of expenses incurred by officers or 
employees on behalf of the Authority. 

d. The Board may create such other offices and appoint individuals to such offices it 
considers either necessary or convenient to carry out the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

 
12. 

The Authority Board shall adopt bylaws as necessary and proper for the efficient and 
effective functioning of the Authority. 

By-Laws 

 
13. 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 6508.1, the debts, liabilities, and obligations of 
Solano County Transit do not constitute debts, liabilities, or obligations of any party to 
this Agreement. A Member may separately contract for or assume responsibility for 
specific debts, liabilities, or obligations of Solano County Transit. 

Limitation on Liability of Members for Debts and Obligations of South Solano  Transit 
Authority. 

 
 
 

283



14. 
The first fiscal year of Solano County Transit is the period from the date of this 
Agreement through June 30, 2011. Each subsequent fiscal year of the Solano County 
Transit begins on July 1st and ends on June 30th. 

Fiscal Year. 

 
15. 

The Board may adopt, at its sole discretion, an annual or multi-year budget not later than 
sixty (60) days before the beginning of a fiscal year. 

Budget. 

 
16. 

The Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer will cause an annual financial audit to be made by 
an independent certified public accountant with respect to all Solano County Transit 
receipts, disbursements, other transactions and entries into the books. A report of the 
financial audit will be filed as a public record with each Member. The audit will be filed 
no later than required by State law.  Solano County Transit will pay the cost of the 
financial audit and charge the cost against the Members in the same manner as other 
administrative costs. 

Annual Audits and Audit Reports. 

 
17. 

a. Solano County Transit shall be responsible for the strict accountability of all funds 
and reports of all receipts and disbursements. It will comply with the provisions of 
law relating to the establishment and administration of funds, particularly Section 
6505 of the California Government Code. 

Establishment and Administration of Funds. 

b. The funds will be accounted for on a full accrual basis. 
c. The Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer will receive, invest, and disburse funds only in 

accordance with procedures established by the Board and in conformity with 
applicable state or federal law. 

d. Should Solano County Transit contract with a member agency for the provision of all 
or some financial services, the funds of Solano County Transit will be maintained in a 
separate account(s) from those of the member agency itself. 

 
18. 

a. For the purpose of this section only, all Members admitted after the initial creation of  
Solano County Transit are New Members. 

New Members. 

b. A public entity meeting the criteria in Section 5 above may be admitted as a New 
Member upon a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board and upon complying with all other 
requirements established by the Board and the Bylaws. 

c. Each applicant for membership as a New Member must pay all fees and expenses, if 
any, set by the Board in order to pay for the costs of adding the New Member and to 
address their participation in the ownership of Solano County Transit assets  and 
liability for any debt of Solano County Transit upon approval as a New Member. 

 
19. 

Members may withdraw in accordance with conditions set forth in the Bylaws provided 
that no Member may withdraw if such withdrawal would adversely affect a bond or other 
indebtedness issued by the Solano County Transit Authority.  No withdrawal from 
membership shall be effective until approval by the Board of a withdrawal schedule, 
business plan or withdrawal plan approved by the Members Agencies. 

Withdrawal From Membership. 

 
 

284



20. 
a. This Agreement continues until terminated or the agency is dissolved. 
Termination and Distribution. 

b. This Agreement it cannot be terminated until such time as all principal of and interest 
on bonds and other forms of indebtedness issued by Solano County Transit are paid in 
full or assumed by a successor agency. Thereafter, this Agreement may be terminated 
by the written consent of two-thirds (2/3) of the Members; provided, however, that 
this Agreement and Solano County Transit shall continue to exist after termination for 
the purpose of disposing of all claims, distribution or assets and all other functions 
necessary to conclude the obligations and affairs of Solano  County Transit. 

c. After termination or dissolution of Solano County Transit, any surplus money on 
deposit in any fund or account of Solano County Transit will be returned to the 
Member Agencies as required by law. The Board is vested with all powers of Solano 
County Transit for the purpose of concluding and dissolving the business affairs of 
the agency. 

 
21. 

Notice to each Member under this Agreement is sufficient if mailed to the Member and 
separately to the Member's Directors to their respective addresses on file with Solano 
County Transit. 

Notices. 

 
22. 

No Member may assign a right, claim, or interest it may have under this Agreement. No 
creditor, assignee or third party beneficiary of a Member has a right, claim or title to any 
part, share, interest, fund or asset of Solano County Transit.  However, nothing in this 
section prevents Solano County Transit from assigning any interest or right it may have 
under this Agreement to a third party. 

Prohibition Against Assignment. 

 
23. 

This Agreement may be amended by an affirmative vote of the governing bodies of two- 
thirds (2/3rds) of the Members acting through their governing bodies. A proposed 
amendment must be submitted to each Member at least thirty (30) days in advance of the 
date when the Member considers it. An amendment is to be effective immediately unless 
otherwise designated. 

Amendments. 

 
24. 

If a portion, term, condition or provision of this Agreement is determined by a court to be 
illegal or in conflict with a law of the State of California, or is otherwise rendered 
unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining portions, terms, conditions and 
provisions is not affected. 

Severability. 

 
25. 

Subject to limitations thereon contained in any trust agreement or other documents 
pursuant to which financing of Solano County Transit is implemented, funds of Solano 
County Transit may be used to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Solano County 
Transit, any Member Agency, any Director or alternate, and any employee or officer of 
the agency for actions taken within the scope of their duties and acting on behalf of 
Solano County Transit. 

Liability of Solano County Transit. 

 
 
 

285



26. 
This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of California. 

Governing Law. 

 
27. 

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which is an original 
and all of which constitutes but one and the same instrument. 

Counterparts. 

 
28. 

This Agreement becomes effective and Solano County Transit exists as a separate public 
entity when approved by the governing boards of the three original Members. 

Effective Date. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year written below. 
 
 
SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY         APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
By:  _________________________________         By:  _______________________________ 
          Daryl K. Halls, STA Executive Director       Charles Lamoree, STA Legal Counsel 
 
CITY OF BENICIA 
 
By:  _________________________________          By:  ______________________________ 
          Jim Erickson, City Manager          Heather McLauglin, City Attorney 
 
CITY OF VALLEJO 
 
By:  _________________________________          By:  ______________________________ 
          Robert F. D. Adams, City Manager          Fred Soley, City Attorney 
 
 

286



287

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



ATTACHMENT D 
 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION No. 2010-09 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY BOARD 

APPROVING A THE CREATION OF THE SOLANO COUNTY TRANSIT (“SOLTRANS”) 
JOINT POWERS AGENCY BY AND AMONG THE SOLANO TRANSPORTATION 

AUTHORITY, THE CITY OF BENICIA AND THE CITY OF VALLEJO  

WHEREAS, the Solano Transportation Authority (“STA”) has identified a strategy for 
preserving and enhancing infrastructure through the increased use of mass transit, including the 
feasibility of merging transit services in Benicia and Vallejo; and 

WHEREAS, the STA has determined that substantial cost-savings and service enhancements can 
be realized from the potential merger of the two transit services; and 

WHEREAS, the STA has assisted the two transit agencies in developing a Memorandum of 
Understanding that will insure that each participating agency will receive equal consideration as the 
consolidation research moves forward; and 

WHEREAS, STA and the cities of Benicia and Vallejo believe that the formation of a joint powers 
agency is in the best interest of both the public and each member agency to provide transit services 
within the respective municipal boundaries as well as to participate in intercity, regional transit 
services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Governing Board of the Solano 
Transportation Authority hereby approves the  Solano County Transit Joint Powers Agreement 
between the Solano Transportation Authority, the City of Vallejo and the City of Benicia and its full 
participation as a Participating Member. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the STA Executive Director is hereby authorized to sign 
the Solano County Transit Joint Powers Agreement on behalf of the STA. 
 
 
 

             __________________________________ 
       Pete Sanchez, Chair 
       Solano Transportation Authority 

 
I, Daryl K. Halls, the Solano Transportation Authority Executive Director, do hereby certify that the 
above and foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted by said Authority at the regular 
meeting thereof held this day of July 14, 2010. 

 
             __________________________________ 

       Daryl K. Halls, Executive Director 
       Solano Transportation Authority 
  
Passed by the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) Board on this 14th day of July, 2010 by the 
following vote: 
 
Ayes: ________ 
Nos: ________ 
Absent: ________ 
Abstain: ________ 
 
Attest: ______________________ 
 Johanna Masiclat 
 Clerk of the Board 335



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

336



Agenda Item X.A 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 

 
DATE:   June 23, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Daryl Halls, Executive Director 
 Susan Furtado, Accounting & Administrative Services Manager 
RE: STA’s Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 Budget Revision and FY 2011-12  
 Proposed Budget 
 
 
Background: 
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) has an adopted policy requiring a two-year annual 
fiscal year budget plan for its proposed expenditures and the proposed means of financing them.  In 
July 2009, the STA Board adopted the two-year budget for FY 2009-10 and FY 2010-11.   
 
The financial plan is presented to the Board for adoption and is usually revised mid-year and 
finalized at the end of the fiscal year.  This budget system provides STA the basis for appropriate 
budgetary control of its financial operations for the fiscal year and for multi-year funded projects. 
 
Discussion: 
Attachment A is the Proposed Budget Revision for FY 2010-11 and Attachment B is the Proposed 
Budget for FY 2011-12.  The FY 2010-11 Budget Revision is balanced, with the proposed changes 
to the approved budget modified from $42.66 million to $41.13 million, a $1.53 (3.6%) million 
reduction.  This is due to new funds and anticipated amount of funds carryover from FY 2009-10 
for the continuation of projects and anticipated project delivery expenditures.  Budget changes are 
summarized as follows: 
 
FY 2010-11 Revenue Changes 

1. The Members Contribution is also known as the Gas Tax Fund.  The STA Board adopted a 
policy to index the local gas tax subventions provided by member agencies to STA.  Based 
on recent legislation changes, these funds are actually generated from the Fee in gas.  This 
revenue funds a percentage of the STA’s core operations, Strategic Planning, and Project 
Development not covered by other planning grants and project revenues.  These operations 
include administrative management and operational costs, including the Contingency and 
Insurance Reserve Policy approved by the STA Board in July 2007.   
 
Due to the continued economic status and the on-going State budget crisis, STA staff has 
prepared for the next two fiscal year by carrying over Members Contribution funds from FY 
2008-09 to cover potential transportation funding impact to the STA budget.  In April 2010, 
the STA Board was presented with the FY 2010-11 Members Contributions total amount of 
$252,676.  The Members Contribution fund has an anticipated carryover of approximately 
$322,103 for program allocation into FY 2011-12. 

2. The annual local Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds for FY 2010-11, presented 
to the STA Board in April 2010 in the amount of $363,757, has been reduced $58,468 
(13.8%) from FY 2009-10 revenue budget.   

337

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



3. The Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Program received additional TDA Article 3 funding of 
$71,000 for the continuation of the multiyear SR2S Program and for local match fund to the 
Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) Transportation for Clean Air 
(TFCA) Grant for its program activities such as the Education, Enforcement, 
Encouragement, and Engineering.  The TDA Article 3 fund in the amount of $40,000 is a 
carryover from FY 2009-10. 

4. With the reinstatement of the State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) in March 2010 due to 
passing of the legislation ABX8 6 and ABX8 9, STA is allocated a funding amount of 
$375,000 (revenue-based) and $100,000 (population-based) for transit operations and 
activities on short-term or transitional basis, and to support STA’s revenue planning efforts.  
The STAF fund includes the unexpended STAF funds from FY 2008-09 in the amount of 
$50,250 reprogrammed for the continuation of transit coordination and STA’s transit 
planning efforts, such as the Solano Senior & Disabled Transit Plan Update, the I-80/I-
680/I-780 Transit Corridor Study Update, and the Public Private Partnership (P3) Feasibility 
Study. 

5. The Surface Transportation Program (STP) fund is increased by $310,691 from the original 
anticipated funds, to include the FY 2009-10 carryover fund for planning activities and 
Transportation for Livable Communities (TLC) funds.  The new Cycle 1 STP Congestion 
Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ) Program from the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) allocation is increased by 4% for the next three (3) 
fiscal years beginning FY 2009-10.  

6. The STA received a funding allocation from the MTC Cycle 1 Block Grant under the newly 
adopted Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) in the amount of $190,000.  This fund is for 
planning and programming activities, which will help free up other restricted fund sources 
that are currently being used to move specific projects forward, and to help offset the 
projected reduction in STA’s STIP/PPM funds in future fiscal years.  

7. The Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA) fund is increased by $81,155 due to carryover 
funds from FY 2009-10 for the ongoing program activities of the Transit Rideshare 
Services/Solano Napa Commuters Information (SNCI) Program, and the SR2S Program. 

8. The SR2S Program received a funding allocation of Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality 
(CMAQ) in the amount of $280,000 from MTC.  These funds are anticipated to be spent in 
FY 2010-11 for education, encouragement, and enforcement program activities. 

9. The Eastern Solano Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (ECMAQ) funds has carryover from 
FY 2009-10 in the amount of $119,432 for the Transit and Rideshare Services/Solano Napa 
Commuter Information (SNCI) for the continuation and delivery of transit and rideshare 
activities, and the amount of $55,000 for the SRS2S Program.  

10. The Community Based Transportation Plan (CBTP) Grant for the City of Vacaville and 
East Segment of the City of Fairfield studies are increased by $45,000 to include the 
carryover funds from FY 2009-10 due to the delayed start of the studies. 

11. The fund swap of STA's State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) funds with the 
City of Vacaville’s TDA funds of $750,000 for countywide planning, transit, and delivery 
of projects is in its second and final year of funding. 

12. The Coastal Conservancy grant for the State Route (SR) 12 Jameson Canyon Ridge 
Trail/Pedestrian/Bicycle Connections Plan study is programmed for the carryover fund in 
the amount of $15,000 for the continuation and final phase of the project.  This study is 
expected to finish in early FY 2010-11. 

338



13. The Jepson Parkway Project has an approved funding amount from the STIP of $2.4 
million.  This fund was taken out of the budget in FY 2009-10 and is reprogrammed for FY 
2010-11 in anticipation of the allocation approval from the California Transportation 
Commission (CTC).  In addition, a carryover fund from the County of Solano in the amount 
of $700,000 and the Federal Earmark of $378,152 is added to the budget for the 
continuation of the project.  

14. The I-80 High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Lanes Project fund from Regional Measure (RM) 
2 is reduced by $123,797 due to the final design phase of the ramp metering element of the 
Project being completed. 

15. The North Connector East funding allocation from RM 2 is increased by $5.0 million to 
reflect the actual project activities.  This project is in construction phase and the project 
funding share from the County of Solano and the City of Fairfield, for the construction of 
the City’s water line as part of this Project, is carried over from FY 2009-10. 

16. The I-80 HOV/Express Lanes Conversion funding from the RM 2 is reduced by $4.75 
million, and the I-80/I-505 Express Lanes funding is reduced by $4.7 million due to the 
later initiation of the project.  This project is for the planned conversion of the I-80 HOV 
Lanes between Red Top Road and Air Base Parkway to an Express Lanes, and a new I-80 
Express Lanes between Air Base Parkway and I-505. 

17. The SR 12 Bridge Realignment Study fund has a carryover from FY 2009-10 of $25,000.  
This project is in its final phase of the study. 

18.  The Redwood Parkway - Fairground Drive Access Improvement Project is initiated in FY 
2009-10.  Due to a delay in negotiating the project agreement, the funding for the project is 
added in FY 2010-11. 

 
FY 2010-11 Expenditure Changes 
Changes to the approved budget are reflective of funds carryover and revenue changes as described 
above.  The budget expenditure revisions are as follows: 
 

1. The Operation and Management budget is increased by $53,915 (3.3%).  The STA 
Operation & Administration budget expenditures were reviewed for its reduction 
opportunities in these current economic times, which resulted in a reduction of $13,981.  
Operation cost reductions, such as the following, were taken into account:  Two vacant staff 
positions, No Cost of Living Allowance (COLA), limited training and conferences, and 
limited office equipment and capital purchases.  The STA Board Budget is reduced to 
reflect less travel costs.  The Contingency and Insurance Reserves is increased by $17,896 
in accordance with the adopted policy.  The Expenditure Plan is programmed with a budget 
in the amount of $50,000 for the continuation of projects initiated in FY 2009-10 using the 
available Members Contribution and the STAF fund for the collection of data and/or to 
initiate feasibility studies for potential new transportation revenues options. 
 

2. The Transit and Rideshare Services/Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) budget 
is increased by $383,432 (39.3%).  New transit studies and activities are added in the 
budget, such as the Solano Senior & Disabled Transit Plan Update, the Transit 
Consolidation Implementation Phase 3, and the I-80/I680/I-780 Transit Corridor Study 
Update using the reinstated STAF funding. 

339



 
3. The Project Development budget is reduced by $2.64 million (6.7%) to primarily reflect a 

reduction in the I-80 Express Lanes currently available funds.  The budget includes the 
carryover of funds and the accelerated pace from delivery of the several projects, such as 
the North Connector East which started construction in FY 2009-10; the I-80 Eastbound 
Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation initial construction phase; and the final phase of the I-80 
HOV Lanes Project, including the ramp metering design element.  The initial start of the I-
80 Express Lanes Conversion and the I-80/I-505 Express Lanes Projects were delayed and 
budgets were reduced by the total amount of $9.45 million to reflect actual allocations to 
date for the project.   
 
The Safe Route to School Program budget is increased by $604,835 to reflect the carried 
over funds for the continuation of the safety engineering activities with the installations of 
speed radars.  This program was awarded additional funding from MTC CMAQ and 
ECMAQ to encourage more students to walk and bike to school with education & safety 
training, encouragement contests & events, and enforcement coordination with police. 
 
The Program Manager Application ($50,000) and the Public Private Partnership (P3) 
Feasibility Study ($150,000) are added to the budget using the MTC Block Grant and the 
STIP/PPM funds. 

 
4. The Strategic Planning budget is increased by $678,808 (118.6%).  The Solano County 

TLC Program fund from STP/TLC is increased by $151,182, the State Route (SR) 12 Major 
Investment Study (MIS)/Corridor Study fund from STIP/PPM is increased by $75,000, and 
the TFCA Program fund is increased by $238,331.  These funding increases are due to the 
carryover funds from FY 2009-10 for the continuation of program and project activities.  
The Safe Route to Transit study, the SR 12 Jameson Canyon Ridge Trail study, and the 
Climate Change Strategy are ongoing projects studies.  These studies are added to the 
budget and are scheduled to finish in FY 2010-11.  The Jepson Parkway TLC Plan Update 
is also added to the budget using the STIP/PPM funds. 
 

Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) for STA Staff: 
The STA Board has adopted a policy for calculating cost of living adjustments for STA staff 
salaries using the average Consumer Price Index (CPI) of three areas:  United States cities, Western 
Urban areas, and the San Francisco/Oakland/San Jose urban area.  With the current economic status 
and loss of revenue sources, the STA staff recommends no COLA for the second consecutive fiscal 
year. 
 
Budget highlights for FY 2011-12 is summarized as follow: 
 
FY 2011-12 Revenues 
STA’s core revenues such as the Members Contribution (Gas Tax) and TDA funding are 
anticipated to continue at a lower funding level based on the current economic status.  MTC 
Rideshare Program is in its final contract year.  It is anticipated that the contract will be renewed, 
but with the current State budget crisis, it will not be determined until well into FY 2010-11.  
Project delivery and construction are on-going for the North Connector Project, I-80 Eastbound 
Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project, the I-80/I-680/I-780 Interchange Project, the I-80 HOV 
Lanes conversion to HOT Lanes/Express Lanes, which are all primarily funded by RM 2; and the 
Jepson Parkway Project funded by the STIP fund.  No fund swap is anticipated to replace Projects 
and Project Studies fund sources, which tends to fluctuate with the expenditures on multi-year 

340



projects and for the different transit activities to backfill the possible loss of Members Contribution 
and STAF funds.  No new project studies will be initiated without additional funding availability. 
 
FY 2011-12 Expenditure 

1. No new positions are added to the proposed FY 2011-12 budgets.  Salaries have been 
budgeted to cover annual merit and performance based step increases and no cost of living 
adjustment for the third year in a row. 
 

2. Health Benefits premium rates historically increases annually, hence, the budget have been 
increased to reflect an 8% increase for FY 2011-12. 

 
3. Contribution to the Reserve Account is at the approved level using the Member Contribution 

carried over from FY 2009-10.  At the end of FY 2010-11, STA will have a total reserve 
amount of approximately $811,551, which covers the reserve amount of $611,551 for 
Contingency Reserve and the Insurance Reserve of $200,000.   

 
4. No new project study is added to the FY 2011-12 Budget.  Projects such as the North 

Connector Project, I-80/I-680/I-780 Interchange Project, I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck 
Scales Relocation Project, and SR 12 Jameson Canyon Project are anticipated to be in 
construction for FY 2011-12.  Unless additional funding or a specific grant is available, no 
new project studies are added to the proposed budget. 

 
The total FY 2011-12 revenue and expenditure is $41.64 million.  The proposed balanced budget 
has STAF funding and the MTC Block Grant for the continued delivery of STA’s priority projects; 
no fund swap is reflected in the budget. 
 
To ensure conformance with the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-87 (Cost 
Principles of State, Local, and Indian Tribal Government) and the STA’s Accounting Policies and 
Procedures, the two-year budget FY 2010-11 and FY 2011-12 is presented with revision to the 
approved budget for FY 2010-11 to reflect changes in the budget revenue and expenditures. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The fiscal impact for FY 2010-11 is as follows: 

1. Total FY 2010-11 budget is reduced by $1.53 million (3.6%), which includes changes to the 
North Connector East Project, I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation; and 
initialization of the I-80 HOT/Express Lanes. 

2. No Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) for STA staff in FY 2010-11. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Adopt the STA’s FY 2010-11 Budget Revision as shown in Attachment A; and 
2. Adopt the STA’s FY 2011-12 Proposed Budget as shown in Attachment B. 

 
Attachments: 

A. STA FY 2010-11 Budget Revision dated July 14, 2010 
B. STA FY 2011-12 Proposed Budget dated July 14, 2010 

341



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

342



STA Fund Adopted       
FY 10-11

Proposed       
FY 10-11 Operations & Administration Adopted       

FY 10-11
Proposed       
FY 10-11

MembersContribution/Gas Tax (Reserve Accounts) 90,104              108,000            Operations Management 1,495,955         1,484,674            
Members Contribution/Gas Tax -                        114,061               

Transportation Dev. Act (TDA) Art. 4/8 378,000            363,757            
TDA Art. 3 -                        44,200                 Expenditure Plan -                        50,000                 

State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) 127,641            525,200               Contributions to STA Reserve Account 90,104              108,000            
Surface Transportation Program (STP) 525,000            835,691               Subtotal 1,632,759$          1,686,674$          

State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 45,440              -                          
STIP Planning, Programming and Monitoring (PPM) 547,098            551,762            

CMA Block Grant -                        190,000            
Federal Earmark -                        39,561                 Transit/SNCI Management/Administration 435,500            472,500               

Regional Measure (RM) 2 - North Connector - Design 31,396              10,695                 Employer Van Pool Outreach 10,000              10,000                 

RM 2 -  I-80 HOV Lanes 7,839                4,562                   SNCI General Marketing 40,000              40,000                 

RM 2 - I-80 Interchange Project 27,003              37,421                 Commute Challege 16,000              16,000                 

RM 2 - I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation 27,737              27,398                 Bike to Work Campaign 20,000              20,000              
Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA) 225,200            235,263               Bike Links 5,000                5,000                   

TFCA Regional Grant 109,000            190,155            Incentives 15,000              15,000              

Yolo/Solano Air Quality Management District (YSAQMD) 150,000            134,480               Emergency Ride Home (ERH) Program 5,000                5,000                
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) -                        280,000            Solano Express 50,000              47,281              

Eastern Solano Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (ECMAQ) -                        230,772            Transit Management Administration 258,974            213,125            
Regional Rideshare Program (RRP) 240,000            240,000            Community Based Transportation Plan (CBTP) 60,000 105,000               

Community Based Transportation Plan (CBTP) 60,000              105,000               Lifeline Program 16,000              16,000              
Abondoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program/DMV 10,000              10,000              Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) 45,000              45,000              

City of Vacaville (swap) TDA 750,000            725,000               Solano Senior & Disable Transit Plan Update -                        110,000               
CA State Coastal Conservancy -                        15,000                 Transit Consolidation Implementation Phase 3 -                        90,000                 

Local Funds - Cities/County 98,600              98,600            
Sponsors 18,000              18,000            
Subtotal  $         3,468,058  $         5,134,578 

Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA)                16,368                254,699 
Subtotal  $              16,368  $            254,699 

         Safe Route to School Program 109,000            713,835            
Department of Motor Vehicle (DMV) 320,000            320,000            

Transit and Rideshare Services/SNCI

1,359,906$          

143,706            

50,000 50,000

976,474$             

Project Development 
Project Management/Administration

Regional Impact Fee (Feasibility Study/AB 1600)

I-80/I-680/I-780 Transit Corridor Study Update

Subtotal

Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Program

TFCA Program

FY 2010-11 BUDGET  REVISON
July 14, 2010

REVENUES EXPENDITURES

STA Board of Directors/Administration 46,700              44,000                 

-                        150,000            

127,567               

Subtotal  $            320,000 $            320,000 

State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 2,354,560         2,400,000            Public Private Partnership (P3) Feasibility Study -                        150,000            
Federal Earmark -                        378,152               
County of Solano -                        700,000 Jepson Parkway 2,354,560         3,478,152            

Subtotal 2,354,560$          3,478,152$          

RM 2 Funds 3,348,249 3,347,571
Subtotal  $         3,348,249  $         3,347,571 

STIP/TCRP 700,000            700,000            
Subtotal  $            700,000  $            700,000 

PA/ED Design RM-2 641,268 517,471
Subtotal 641,268$             517,471$             

I-80 HOV Lanes/Vallejo Fairgrounds 750,000            947,733               

County of Solano -                        -                          
City of Fairfield 575,000            350,000               

Subtotal  $        15,543,604  $        20,319,964 Subtotal 39,477,507$        36,835,249$        

RM 2 Funds           5,517,120           5,537,956 
Subtotal  $         5,517,120  $         5,537,956 

Events 10,000              15,000                 
RM 2 Funds 5,000,000         250,000          Model Development/Maintenance 24,000             24,000               

Subtotal  $         5,000,000  $            250,000 Solano County TLC Program 150,000            301,182               

RM 2 Funds 5,000,000         300,000          SR 12 MIS/Corridor Study 75,000             150,000             
Subtotal  $         5,000,000  $            300,000 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP)/EIR 115,273            210,273               
Fedeal Earmark                         -                  20,000 
City of Rio Vista                         -                   5,000 

Subtotal -$                        25,000$               

Climate Change Strategy -                        40,000                 
Federal Earmark 600,000            720,687

Local Match Funds-STA - 25,000

 I-80 HOV/Vallejo Fairgrounds

SR 12 Jameson Canyon Ridge Trail Study 15,000                 

I-80/I-505 HOT Lanes 

25,000                 

20,000                 

-                        

 Strategic Planning

Planning Management/Administration 181,846            171,141               

50,000              I-80/I-505 High Occupancy Toll (HOT) Lanes

 I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange EIR/EIS

I-80 High Occupancy Toll (HOT) Lanes Conversion

Jepson Parkway TLC Plan Update -                        

-                        

 SR 12 Bridge Realignment

SR 29 MIS/Corridor Study -                        

Safe Route to Transit

TFCA Programs 16,368 254,699

300,000            5,000,000         

-                        

I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation 3,348,249         3,347,571         

North Connector-East 20,319,964          

641,268            517,471            

700,000            

50,000 50,000

Preliminary Engineering/Right of Way - RM-2 Funds 14,968,604       19,969,964       

Jameson Canyon Project 700,000            

250,000            I-80 HOT Lanes Conversion 5,000,000         

-                        

I-80/HOV Lanes/Ramp Metering

5,517,120         5,537,956         

eg o a pact ee ( eas b ty Study/ 600)

50,000              

I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation

North Connector East (Chadbourne Rd/Right of Way)

I-80 High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Lane/Ramp Metering

Jameson Canyon Project

Jepson Parkway Project Program Manager Application

DMV Abandoned Vehicle Abatement  (AVA) Program 320,000            320,000            

SR 12 Bridge Realignment Study -                        

15,543,604       

I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange PA/ED

Local Match Funds STA                     25,000
Local Match Funds-Solano County/City of Vallejo 150,000            202,046

Subtotal  $            750,000  $            947,733 Subtotal 572,487$             1,251,295$          

TOTAL, ALL REVENUE 42,659,227$     41,133,124$     TOTAL, ALL EXPENDITURES 42,659,227$     41,133,124$     

TFCA Programs 16,368             254,699             

343

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



STA Fund Proposed          
FY 11-12 Operations & Administration Proposed          

FY 11-12
MembersContribution/Gas Tax (Reserve Accounts) 108,000                  Operations Management 1,495,955                   

Members Contribution/Gas Tax 248,480                     

Transportation Dev. Act (TDA) Art. 4/8 327,381                  
TDA Art. 3 91,500                       Expenditure Plan -                                 

State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) 477,307                     Contributions to STA Reserve Account 108,000                  
Surface Transportation Program (STP) 619,000                     Subtotal 1,650,655$                 

State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 34,505                       

STIP Planning, Programming and Monitoring (PPM) 422,098                  
CMA Block Grant 190,000                  

Transit/SNCI Management/Administration 435,500                     

Employer Van Pool Outreach 10,000                       

SNCI General Marketing 40,000                       

Commute Challege 16,000                       

RM 2 - I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation 28,509                       Bike to Work Campaign 20,000                    
Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA) 251,143                     Bike Links 5,000                         

TFCA Regional Grant 61,226                    Incentives 15,000                    

Yolo/Solano Air Quality Management District (YSAQMD) 14,400                       Emergency Ride Home (ERH) Program 5,000                      
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) 362,000                  Solano Express 50,000                    

Eastern Solano Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (ECMAQ) 348,660                  

Abondoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program/DMV 10,000                    

Subtotal  $                4,022,678 

Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA)                       258,771 

Subtotal  $                   258,771 

Department of Motor Vehicle (DMV) 320,000                  

FY 2011-12 PROPOSED BUDGET
July 14, 2010

REVENUES EXPENDITURES

STA Board of Directors/Administration 46,700                       

Subtotal

Project Development 

916,474$                    

Transit and Rideshare Services/SNCI

Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Program

TFCA Program

RM 2 - I-80 Interchange Project 38,688                       

Local Funds - Cities/County 98,600                    

Sponsors 18,000                    

Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC)

258,974                  

Lifeline Program 16,000                    

45,000                    

Project Management/Administration 143,706                     

Safe Route to School Program 740,590

Regional Measure (RM) 2 - North Connector - Design 33,181                       

Regional Rideshare Program (RRP) 240,000                  
Transit Management Administration

Subtotal  $                   320,000 

State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 1,000,000                   Public Private Partnership (P30 @ Transit Facility Study -                              
Federal Earmark -                                 

County of Solano -                                 Jepson Parkway 1,000,000                   

Subtotal 1,000,000$                 

RM 2 Funds 13,349,793
Subtotal  $              13,349,793 

STIP/TCRP 700,000                  
Subtotal  $                   700,000 

PA/ED Design RM-2 0
Subtotal -$                               

I-80 HOV Lanes/Vallejo Fairgrounds 922,000                     

County of Solano -                                 

City of Fairfield -                                 

Subtotal  $              14,972,177 Subtotal 38,238,756$               

RM 2 Funds                 5,540,490 

Subtotal  $                5,540,490 

Events 10,000                       

RM 2 Funds 250,000                Model Development/Maintenance 24,000                     

Subtotal  $                   250,000 Solano County TLC Program 160,000                     

RM 2 Funds 300,000                SR 12 MIS/Corridor Study -                               

Subtotal  $                   300,000 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) Follow Up -                                 

Fedeal Earmark                                  - 
City of Rio Vista                                  - 

Subtotal -$                               

Climate Change Strategy -                                 

Federal Earmark 720,000
Local Match Funds-STA 0

DMV Abandoned Vehicle Abatement  (AVA) Program 320,000                  

SR 12 Bridge Realignment Study

14,972,177                 

I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange PA/ED

North Connector East (Chadbourne Rd/Right of Way)

I-80 High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Lanes

Jameson Canyon Project

Program Manager Application

-                              

5,540,490               

700,000                  

I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation 13,349,793             

North Connector-East 

I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation

TFCA Programs 258,771

300,000                  

-                              

 I-80 HOV/Vallejo Fairgrounds

I-80/I-505 High Occupancy Toll (HOT) Lanes

 I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange EIR/EIS

I-80 High Occupancy Toll (HOT) Lanes Conversion

Jepson Parkway TLC Plan Update

Preliminary Engineering/Right of Way - RM-2 Funds

 Strategic Planning

Planning Management/Administration 287,253                     

90,000                    

Jepson Parkway Project

 SR 12 Bridge Realignment

SR 29 MIS/Corridor Study

14,972,177             

Jameson Canyon Project

I-80/HOV Lanes

Safe Route to Transit -                                 

I-80/I-505 HOT Lanes 

-                                 

I-80 HOT Lanes Conversion

-                              

250,000                  

Sa e oute to Sc oo og a 7 0,590

Local Match Funds STA 0
Local Match Funds-Solano County/City of Vallejo 202,000

Subtotal  $                   922,000 Subtotal 830,024$                    

TOTAL, ALL REVENUE 41,635,909$           TOTAL, ALL EXPENDITURES 41,635,909$           

TFCA Programs 258,771                   

344

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



Agenda Item XI.A 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 

 
DATE: June 30, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Sam Shelton, Project Manager 
RE: Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) Update 
 
 
Background: 
On December 10, 2009, the STA Board adopted the Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) 
Nexus Study Scope of Work and authorized the Executive Director to issue a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) for consultant services.  STA staff has been working with Economic Planning 
Systems (EPS) and three RTIF committees to begin work on the RTIF Nexus Study: 

• RTIF Technical Working Group, 
Public Works & Planning Directors who review and verify the technical feasibility and 
correctness of STA and EPS staff documents and proposals prior to review by other 
committees. 

• RTIF Stakeholders Committee, 
Various elected officials, development industry leaders, and interested parties review 
RTIF documents and proposals prior to review by the RTIF Policy Committee. 

• RTIF Policy Committee, 
Mayors, City Managers, County Administrators Office (CAO) representative, and Board 
of Supervisors representative review RTIF documents and proposals for policy 
implications prior to review by the STA’s advisory committees and the STA Board. 

 
Generally, RTIF Technical and Stakeholders groups are scheduled to meet on even months while 
the Policy Committee meets on odd months. 
 
Discussion: 
RTIF Development Schedule 
The current schedule for the STA’s Nexus Study projects completing the Nexus Study by 2011 
and implementing an RTIF afterwards.   
 
Since December 2009, the RTIF committees and the STA Board have reviewed and adopted 
RTIF project selection and ranking criteria and a list of projects to evaluate for potential 
inclusion in an impact fee program.  Over the summer, the RTIF Working Group will review 
preliminary project modeling results and criteria scores.  Between August and December, RTIF 
committees will be requested to review and recommend project cost allocation options, revenue 
estimates, preliminary fee schedules, fee economic analyses, and review the draft RTIF Nexus 
Study.  By 2011, the STA Board will be requested to review and consider approval of the RTIF 
Nexus Study and discuss the potential implementation of a RTIF Program in partnership with the 
County of Solano and the seven cities. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 

345

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



 

346



Agenda Item XI.B 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 

 
 
DATE:  June 30, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Sam Shelton, Project Manager 
RE: PM 2.5 Hotspot Analysis  
 
 
Background: 
To assist local project sponsors of federally funded projects, STA Project Delivery staff regularly 
attends the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and Caltrans meetings and present 
updates to the Solano Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and the Solano Project Delivery 
Working Group (PDWG). 
 
Discussion: 
On December 14, 2009, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) designated 
the Bay Area as a nonattainment for the national 24-hour fine particulate matter (PM 2.5) 
standards.  All Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA) non-exempt projects must have a project-level conformity determination. 
 
Earlier in June, MTC held a workshop to discuss new air quality conformity process review and 
regulations related to the emissions of PM 2.5.  All projects that could potentially produce 
additional PM 2.5 emissions (e.g., diesel emissions) will need to have an approved conformity 
finding prior to receiving approval for federal funds, such as FHWA obligations and FTA grant 
agreements.   
 
The following Q&A is provided to help answer common questions raised by Solano PDWG 
members. 
 
I already have environmental clearance.  Do I still need to do this? 
This is different from environmental clearance.  Even if a project sponsor has federal 
environmental clearance, the sponsor must receive a PM 2.5 air quality conformity finding from 
FHWA or FTA prior to receiving additional federal funds or other federal actions (e.g., permits 
and reviews).  By December 14, 2010, all projects will be subject to this new regulation. 
 
I think my project could produce additional PM 2.5 emissions.  What do I do next? 
To help local project sponsors through this process so their projects are not stalled after 
December 14, 2010, MTC has created an automated interagency consultation process to help 
project sponsors understand if their project needs further review, such as a PM 2.5 hotspot 
analysis.  In MTC’s Fund Management System (FMS), there is a new page titled “Air Quality” 
that asks project sponsors a few questions about their project.  MTC will circulate this 
information to members of their conformity task force for their review (i.e., Caltrans HQ, FHWA 
staff, FTA staff, etc.).   
 

347

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



Sometime next week, MTC will open up FMS for project revisions, but only for the air quality 
page.  Based on information provided by project sponsors during the 2011 TRasportaion 
Improvement Plan (TIP) development process, the following projects may have PM 2.5 impacts 
and would still need additional federal actions.  Project sponsors for these projects should take 
advantage of MTC’s PM 2.5 consultation process and fill out the air quality page for their 
project: 
 

• Any capacity increasing roadway project (but not exempt road rehab or bike/ped capacity 
projects) such as: 

o Dixon: I-80/Pedrick Road Interchange Modification 
o Dixon: Parkway Blvd UPRR Grade Separation 
o Vallejo: American Canyon Rd Overpass Improvements 
o Solano County: Travis AFB, North Gate & South Gate projects 
o Solano County: Redwood Fairgrounds Dr. Interchange improvements 
o STA: I-80/680/State Route12 Interchange project 
o STA: North Connector (if West Segment is federal funded) 
o STA: All Express Lane projects 
o STA; Jepson Parkway segments 

• New or Expanded Transit Centers and Train Stations (but not transit operations or vehicle 
purchases) such as: 

o Benicia: Benicia Industrial Park Multi-modal Transportation Center (once the 
concept is complete) 

o Dixon: Multimodal Transportation Center 
o Fairfield: Fairfield/Vacaville Intermodal Rail Station 
o Fairfield: Fairfield Transportation Center, Phase III 
o Vacaville: Vacaville Intermodal Station Phase 2 
o Vallejo: Vallejo Curtola Transit Center (if federal funds to be used and not just 

Regional Measure 2 funds) 
o Vallejo: Vallejo Station Intermodal (last parking structure phase, if federally 

funded) 
 
I do not have a PM 2.5 Hotspot analysis.  What do I do? 
Project sponsors do not need the analysis now.  This is similar to Preliminary Environmental 
forms and the field review process.  Based on the information posted on FMS on the air quality 
page for your project, the MTC task force will make a recommendation whether or not to 
conduct a PM 2.5 hotspot analysis later.  In other nonattainment regions that are more 
accustomed to completing these analyses, PM 2.5 hotspot analysis and air quality conformity 
approval is usually combined with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) process for 
federal approval.  MTC has example documents on the air quality page from other regions for 
review. 
 
I already have a PM 2.5 hotspot analysis.  What do I do? 
Project sponsors can post hotspot documents to the air quality page for the MTC task force to 
review. 
 
What is the deadline to complete this review and obtain an air quality conformity approval? 
The deadline is the date of the next federal funding approval or federal action required for your 
project.  After December 14, 2010, all projects will be subject to this new regulation.  Going 
through this process is at the project sponsor’s discretion and is provided as a service to local 

348



project sponsors by MTC.  If federal actions or approvals for a project are a long way off, then 
this process could be put off.  However, if federal funding decisions are needed soon and are 
currently going through the NEPA process, then project sponsors should begin this process now. 
 
More information from this workshop is available at the following web address: 
http://www.mtc.ca.gov/meetings/events/6-2-2010.htm  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 
 
Attachment: 

A. MTC PM 2.5 Hotspot Analysis Workshop Presentation, 06-02-10 

349

http://www.mtc.ca.gov/meetings/events/6-2-2010.htm�


THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

350



M  E   T   R   O  P  O   L   I   T   A   N     T   R   A   N   S P   O   R   T   A   T   I   O   N     C   O   M   M   I   S  S   I   O   N 
1

Air Quality Conformity (PM2.5) &
2011 TIP Development Workshop

June 2, 2010

Air Quality Conformity (PM2.5) &
2011 TIP Development Workshop

June 2, 2010

351



M  E   T   R   O  P  O   L   I   T   A   N     T   R   A   N   S P   O   R   T   A   T   I   O   N     C   O   M   M   I   S  S   I   O   N 
2

Workshop ObjectivesWorkshop Objectives

Explain PM2.5 project-level conformity requirements 
and Bay Area’s PM2.5 interagency consultation 
procedures

Provide a brief tutorial on the 2011 TIP development 
procedures with emphasis on what the sponsors 
need to do between June 4 and June 17

Demo the new Air Quality Module in the Fund 
Management System (FMS)

352



M  E   T   R   O  P  O   L   I   T   A   N     T   R   A   N   S P   O   R   T   A   T   I   O   N     C   O   M   M   I   S  S   I   O   N 
3

Fine Particulate Matter (PM2.5)Fine Particulate Matter (PM2.5)
Particles smaller than 2.5 
microns can be inhaled 
deeply into lungs and cause 
damage to our health

Sources of PM include 
combustion activities (motor 
vehicles, power plants, wood 
burning, etc.)

EPA designated Bay Area as 
nonattainment for national 
24-hour PM2.5 standard on 
December 14, 2009

353



M  E   T   R   O  P  O   L   I   T   A   N     T   R   A   N   S P   O   R   T   A   T   I   O   N     C   O   M   M   I   S  S   I   O   N 
4

PM2.5 Planning RequirementsPM2.5 Planning Requirements

RTP and TIP must demonstrate transportation 
conformity (effective December 14, 2010)

PM2.5 hot-spot analysis must be prepared for certain 
roadway and transit projects involving diesel vehicle 
traffic (effective December 14, 2010)

State Implementation Plan must outline how region 
will attain and maintain the standard 
(by December 2012)

354



M  E   T   R   O  P  O   L   I   T   A   N     T   R   A   N   S P   O   R   T   A   T   I   O   N     C   O   M   M   I   S  S   I   O   N 
5

What is a PM2.5 Hot-Spot Analysis?What is a PM2.5 Hot-Spot Analysis?

Per 40 CFR 93.101, a PM2.5 Hot-Spot Analysis:
Estimates likely future localized PM2.5 pollutant concentrations
and compares those concentrations to the national ambient air 
quality standards
Estimates the air quality impacts of a project on a small scale,
such as at a congested roadway intersection or a bus terminal, 
and uses an air quality dispersion model to determine the 
effects of emissions on air quality
Is used to demonstrate that a transportation project meets 
Clean Air Act conformity requirements to support state and 
local air quality goals with respect to potential localized air 
quality impacts

355



M  E   T   R   O  P  O   L   I   T   A   N     T   R   A   N   S P   O   R   T   A   T   I   O   N     C   O   M   M   I   S  S   I   O   N 
6

PM2.5 Project-Level Conformity 
Requirements

PM2.5 Project-Level Conformity 
Requirements

PM2.5 Hot-Spot Analysis not required for: 
• Projects exempt under 40 CFR 93.126

• Examples: Safety improvements (RR crossing, shoulders, medians, 
lighting, etc.); mass transit (transit operations, purchase of 
vehicles/operating equipment, renovation of transit 
buildings/structure, etc.); bicycle/pedestrian projects, rideshare 
projects; etc.

• Traffic signal synchronization projects under 40 CFR 93.128; or
• Projects that use no federal funds and/or require no federal 

approval

PM2.5 Hot-Spot Analysis must be prepared for:
• Projects of Air Quality Concern under 40 CFR 93.123(b)(1)
• Projects that use federal funds and/or require federal approval

356



M  E   T   R   O  P  O   L   I   T   A   N     T   R   A   N   S P   O   R   T   A   T   I   O   N     C   O   M   M   I   S  S   I   O   N 
7

What Is a Project of Air Quality Concern?What Is a Project of Air Quality Concern?

Per 40 CRF 93.123(b)(1):
New or expanded highway projects that have a significant number of 
or significant increase in diesel vehicles;
Projects affecting intersections that are at Level-of-Service D, E, or F 
with a significant number of diesel vehicles, or those that will change 
to Level-of-Service D, E, or F because of increased traffic volumes 
from a significant number of diesel vehicles related to the project;
New bus and rail terminals and transfer points that have a significant 
number of diesel vehicles congregating at a single location;
Expanded bus and rail terminals and transfer points that significantly 
increase the number of diesel vehicles congregating at a single 
location; and
Projects in or affecting locations, areas, or categories of sites which 
are identified in the PM2.5 or PM10 applicable implementation plan or 
implementation plan submission, as appropriate, as sites of violation 
or possible violation.

357



M  E   T   R   O  P  O   L   I   T   A   N     T   R   A   N   S P   O   R   T   A   T   I   O   N     C   O   M   M   I   S  S   I   O   N 

What is the EPA Transportation Conformity 
Guidance for Quantitative Hot-Spot Analyses?

What is the EPA Transportation Conformity 
Guidance for Quantitative Hot-Spot Analyses?

Replacement for the 2006 Qualitative Guidance 
Overview of the Analytical Process 
> Emissions (EMFAC or MOVES)

> Air Quality Modeling (CAL3QHCR or AERMOD)

> Evaluate Results ¨NAAQS/No Build

> Assess Potential Mitigation

Comments are Due By July 19, 2010.
See Requested Questions for Comment 
> Comments can be sent electronically to PMhotspot-

comments@epa.gov

8

358



M  E   T   R   O  P  O   L   I   T   A   N     T   R   A   N   S P   O   R   T   A   T   I   O   N     C   O   M   M   I   S  S   I   O   N 
9

What is the Purpose of 
Interagency Consultation?

What is the Purpose of 
Interagency Consultation?

Determine if project is deemed a “project of air 
quality concern” pursuant to 40 CFR 93.123(b)(1)

Evaluate the assumptions, methods and analysis of 
the PM2.5 hot-spot analysis

359



M  E   T   R   O  P  O   L   I   T   A   N     T   R   A   N   S P   O   R   T   A   T   I   O   N     C   O   M   M   I   S  S   I   O   N 
10

Bay Area 
Interagency Consultation Procedures

(MTC Resolution No. 3946)

Bay Area 
Interagency Consultation Procedures

(MTC Resolution No. 3946)

Interagency consultation is facilitated through MTC’s 
Air Quality Conformity Task Force

Sponsor submits project information, and Conformity 
Task Force determines if project is of air quality concern 
and therefore requires a PM2.5 hot-spot analysis

Sponsor submits PM2.5 hot-spot analysis for review by 
Conformity Task Force

After consultation, sponsor completes PM2.5 hot-spot 
analysis and seeks approval from FHWA and FTA 

360



M  E   T   R   O  P  O   L   I   T   A   N     T   R   A   N   S P   O   R   T   A   T   I   O   N     C   O   M   M   I   S  S   I   O   N 
11

MTC ContactMTC Contact

Ashley Nguyen
Project Manager, Transportation Conformity
anguyen@mtc.ca.gov
510.817.5809

361



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

362



Agenda Item XI.C 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 

 
DATE:  July 2, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Jayne Bauer, Marketing and Legislative Program Manager 
RE:  Legislative Update 
 
 
Background: 
STA staff monitors State and federal legislation pertaining to transportation and related issues.  
The STA Board-approved 2010 Legislative Priorities and Platform provides policy guidance on 
transportation legislation and activities during 2010.  Attachment A is an updated STA 
legislative bill matrix. 
 
Discussion: 
State: 
On May 12th the STA Board approved a position of “oppose” for previous versions of Assembly 
Bill (AB) 2620, which would have required that up to 15% of toll revenue generated by a toll 
facility on the State highway system be dedicated to the State Highway Operation and Protection 
Program (SHOPP) for highway maintenance and rehabilitation projects.   
 
Shaw/Yoder/Antwih, STA’s state legislative advocacy firm, worked with a broad coalition of 
agencies in an attempt to amend or defeat the bill.  While the bill narrowly passed off the 
Assembly Floor by a vote of 44 to 29 on June 3rd, STA’s advocates, in conjunction with the 
coalition, met with Senate Transportation and Housing Committee staff as well as the 
Department of Finance (DOF) and Caltrans to request that the author amend the bill to make the 
State Highway Operations and Protection Program (SHOPP) an eligible expenditure, rather than 
affixing a percentage for funding of that program from any net revenues that are realized. 
 
The bill’s sponsor, Professional Engineers in California Government (PECG), recently gutted 
and amended the bill for an entirely different purpose.  The June 22nd version of the bill would 
change the overhead rate that the Department of Transportation (Caltrans), charges for 
reimbursed work it performs for local agencies or private entities in order to make it more 
competitive in obtaining work from local jurisdictions.  
 
The most recent version of the bill was approved by the Senate Transportation and Housing 
Committee on June 29th.  STA staff has indicated that even the most recent language should not 
be in statute since decisions about overhead and indirect costs associated with capital outlay 
support are best left to negotiation with Caltrans. 
 
More details regarding AB 2620 and other State legislative activities can be found in 
Shaw/Yoder/Antwih’s June State Legislative Update (Attachment B). 

363

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



Federal: 
On July 1, the House Appropriations Subcommittee on Transportation, Housing and Urban 
Development (THUD) approved a bill that would provide $79.3 billion in funding for 
transportation programs for fiscal year 2011, nearly $3.7 billion more than appropriated for fiscal 
2010 and $1.7 billion above the president’s request. 
 
The bill includes: 
$750,000 for the Travis Air Force Base North Gate Access Improvements Project 
$750,000 for the Vacaville Intermodal Station - Phase 2 Project 
$750,000 for the Vallejo Ferry Maintenance Project 
 
It appears unlikely that Congress will enact a stand alone appropriations bill for fiscal year 2011 
transportation spending.  The House Appropriations Committee has not considered any of the 12 
appropriations bills and Subcommittees have completed work on only 5 bills.  With the limited 
time left in the schedule, it is more likely that Congress will adopt an omnibus bill or a 
continuing resolution to fund the government until after the election. 
 
More information on appropriations and other federal programs and funding measures can be 
found in Akin Gump’s June Federal Legislative Update (Attachment C). 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 
 
Attachment: 

A. STA Legislative Matrix 
B. State Legislative Update - June (Shaw/Yoder/Antwih) 
C. Federal Legislative Update - June (Akin Gump) 
 

364



 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX 
 

2009-2010 State and Federal Legislative Session 
 

July 1, 2010 

Solano Transportation Authority
One Harbor Center, Suite 130

Suisun City CA  94585-2427
Phone: 707-424-6075  Fax: 707-424-6074

http://www.solanolinks.com/programs.html#lp 

AB = Assembly Bill; ACA = Assembly Constitutional Amendment; ASM = Assembly; SB = Senate Bill; SCA = Senate Constitutional Amendment; SEN = Senate 
 
STATE Legislation: 
Bill Number/Topic Location Summary Position 

AB 744 Torrico D 
 
Transportation: Bay 
Area high-occupancy 
vehicle network. 

SEN. APPR. 
SUSPENSE FILE 
12/10/09 - (Corrected 
Dec. 10.) In 
committee: Held 
under submission. 

This bill would authorize the Bay Area Toll Authority to acquire, construct, administer, and operate a 
value pricing high-occupancy vehicle network program on state highways within the geographic 
jurisdiction of the Metropolitan Transportation Commission, as specified. The bill would authorize 
capital expenditures for this program to be funded from program revenues, revenue bonds, and revenue 
derived from tolls on state-owned toll bridges within the geographic jurisdiction of MTC. 
Last Amended on 7/15/2009  

Support 

AB 2620 
Eng D 
 
Transportation: toll 
facilities. 

SEN APPR. 
6/30/10 

The most recent version of the bill is a “gut and amend” that was recently amended to change the 
overhead rate that the Department of Transportation (Caltrans) charges for reimbursed work it performs 
for local agencies or private entities in order to make it more competitive in obtaining work from local 
jurisdictions.  STA was opposed to previous versions of the bill which would have required that 15% of 
all net revenues collected within a corridor be used to fund SHOPP projects in the corridor which 
collected the fees.  The bill also would have authorized Caltrans to jointly apply with the public agency 
implementing the toll facility to direct the funds to non-SHOPP projects on the state highway system 
within the county. 
Last Amended on 6/22/2010  

Oppose 
(05/12/10) 

SB 82  
Hancock D 
 
Community 
colleges: parking and 
transportation fees 

ASM FLOOR 
7/1/10 
 

Existing law limits the transportation fee and parking services fee to $60 per semester or $30 per 
intersession that community college districts are authorized to charge students and district employees.  
This bill would increase the combined limit to $70 per semester or $35 per intersession.  
 
 
 
Last Amended 6/14/10 

 

365

http://www.solanolinks.com/programs.html#lp
http://ct2k2.capitoltrack.com/Billinfo.asp?measure=AB%20744
http://democrats.assembly.ca.gov/members/a20
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery?bill_number=ab_2620&sess=0910&house=B
http://democrats.assembly.ca.gov/members/a49
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/09-10/bill/sen/sb_0051-0100/sb_82_bill_20100614_amended_asm_v96.pdf
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/09-10/bill/sen/sb_0051-0100/sb_82_bill_20100614_amended_asm_v96.pdf
jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



 
Bill Number/Topic Location Summary Position 

SB 409 
Ducheny D 
 
Passenger rail 
programs: strategic 
planning. 

ASM TRANS. 
6/28/10  Hearing 
postponed.  

Existing law creates the Department of Transportation in the Business, Transportation and Housing 
Agency (BT&H), with various powers and duties relative to the intercity passenger rail program, among 
other transportation programs. Existing law creates in state government the High-Speed Rail Authority, 
with various powers and duties relative to development and implementation of a high-speed passenger 
train system. The authority has 9 members, 5 appointed by the Governor and 4 appointed by the 
Legislature. Existing law also creates in state government the California Transportation Commission 
(CTC), with various powers and duties relative to programming of transportation capital projects and 
assisting the Secretary of BT&H in formulating state transportation policies. This bill would: place the 
High-Speed Rail Authority within the BT&H; require the 5 members of the authority appointed by the 
Governor to be appointed with the advice and consent of the Senate; require authority to annually submit 
a funding plan to CTC for approval, identifying the need for investments during the fiscal year and the 
amount of bond sales necessary. This bill contains other related provisions.  
Last Amended on 1/26/2010 

Support with 
Amendments 

(05/12/10) 

SB 1348 
Steinberg D 
 
California 
Transportation 
Commission: 
guidelines. 

ASM FLOOR 
7/1/10 

Existing law generally provides for programming and allocation of state and federal funds available for 
transportation capital improvement projects by the California Transportation Commission, pursuant to 
various requirements. Existing law authorizes the commission, in certain cases, to adopt guidelines 
relative to its programming and allocation policies and procedures. This bill would establish specified 
procedures that the commission would be required to utilize when it adopts guidelines pursuant to a 
statutory authorization or mandate that exempts the commission from the requirements of the 
Administrative Procedure Act. This bill contains other existing laws.   
Last Amended on 6/17/2010   

Watch 
(05/12/10) 

SB 1418 
Wiggins D 
 
Transportation: 
motorist aid services. 

ASM TRANS 
6/28/10 Failed 
Passage (5 to 6). 

Makes a number of changes to state law governing service authorities for freeway emergencies.  
Specifically, the bill: Deletes the requirement that an authority operate and fund a system of call boxes. 
Requires an authority to spend its funds on implementation, maintenance, and operation of systems, 
projects, and programs to aid and assist motorists, including, but not limited to, a call box system, 
freeway service patrol, mobile roadside assistance systems, intelligent transportation systems, incident 
management programs and coordination, traveler information system programs, and support for traffic 
operation centers. Allows an authority to charge a fee of up to $2 per vehicle in the county, in $1 
increments. Provides that an authority's amendment to its existing call box plan is deemed approved if 
Caltrans and CHP do not reject the amendment within 60 days of receipt. Allows the Bay Area's 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), in counties where it functions as the authority, to   
place call boxes in parking or roadway area, under specified terms,  in state and federal parks where 
telecommunication services are unavailable, provided that MTC and the park administrator agree. Limits 
the applicability of Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements to call boxes, as opposed to the 
entire motorist aid system. 
 
Last Amended on 6/21/10  

Watch 
(05/12/10) 

366

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery?bill_number=sb_409&sess=0910&house=B
http://www.senate.ca.gov/Ducheny
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery?bill_number=sb_1348&sess=0910&house=B
http://www.senate.ca.gov/Steinberg
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery?bill_number=sb_1418&sess=0910&house=B
http://www.senate.ca.gov/Wiggins


 
Bill Number/Topic Location Summary Position 

SB 1445 
DeSaulnier D 
 
Planning. 

ASM TRANS 
6/28/10 
Failed Passage (6 to 
5). 

Existing law creates the Strategic Growth Council consisting of the Director of State Planning and 
Research, the Secretary of the Natural Resources Agency, the Secretary for Environmental Protection, the 
Secretary of Business, Transportation and Housing, the Secretary of California Health and Human 
Services, and one public member appointed by the Governor. Existing law specifies the powers and 
duties of the council with respect to identification and review of activities and programs of member 
agencies that may be coordinated to improve certain planning and resource objectives and associated 
matters, including provision of financial assistance to support the planning and development of 
sustainable communities. Existing law requires the council to report to the Legislature not later than July 
1, 2010, and every year thereafter, on the financial assistance provided. This bill would instead provide 
for an initial reporting date of July 1, 2012. The bill would require the council to coordinate certain of its 
activities with the Planning Advisory and Assistance Council. This bill contains other related provisions 
and other existing laws.   
 
Last Amended on 5/13/2010  

Watch 
(05/12/10) 

367

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery?bill_number=sb_1445&sess=0910&house=B
http://www.senate.ca.gov/DeSaulnier


STA Legislative Bill Matrix 7/1/2010     Page 4 of 4 
 

FEDERAL Legislation: 
Bill Number/Topic Location Summary Position 

HR 2454 
Waxman (D-CA) 
 
American Clean 
Energy and Security 
Act of 2009 
Safe Climate Act 

7/7/2009: Read second 
time. Placed on Senate 
Legislative Calendar 
under General Orders. 
Calendar No. 97. 
 

To create clean energy jobs, achieve energy independence, reduce global warming pollution and 
transition to a clean energy economy.  This bill would reduce US emissions 17 percent by 2020 
from 2005 levels, with no allowances to transit agencies and local governments.  Large MPOs and 
states would need to develop plans establishing goals to progressively reduce transportation-
related greenhouse gas emissions within 3 years of the bill’s enactment.  Strategies include: 
efforts to increase public transportation (including commuter rail service and ridership); updates 
to zoning and other land use regulations and plans to coordinate transportation and land use 
planning; construction of bike and pedestrian pathways to support “complete streets” policy and 
telecommuting; adoption of pricing measures and parking policies; and intermodal freight system 
planning. 

None 

S 1156 
Harkin (D-IA) 
 
Safe Routes to School 
Program 
Reauthorization Act 

05/21/09: Referred to 
Senate committee; 
read twice and referred 
to Committee on 
Environment and 
Public Works. 

This bill would provide $600 million annually to fund the program.  Likely to be included in the 
surface transportation reauthorization bill, it would fund infrastructure improvements (sidewalks, 
pathways, bike lanes, and safe crossings), as well as educational, law enforcement, and 
promotional efforts to make it safer for children to walk and bicycle to and from school.  The bill 
would also expand eligibility to include high schools, allow funds to be used to improve bus stop 
safety and expand access in rural communities; improve project delivery and reduce overhead by 
addressing regulatory burdens; and authorize research and evaluation of the program. 

None 

S 3412 
Dodd (D-CT) 
 
Public Transportation 
Preservation Act of 
2010 

5/25/10: Read twice 
and referred to the 
Committee on 
Banking, Housing, and 
Urban Affairs 

This bill would authorize $2 billion in emergency operating assistance through fiscal year 2011 
for public transit agencies.  Transit agencies could use the funds to reduce fare increases and 
restore services cut after January 2009, or prevent future service cuts or fare hikes through 
September 2011.  Agencies that have not hiked fares or slashed services would be able to use the 
money for infrastructure improvements.  The grants would be distributed through existing 
formulas, with a small amount set aside for oversight and administration. 

Support 
(06/09/10) 

 

368

http://thomas.loc.gov/cgi-bin/bdquery/z?d111:h.r.02454:
http://thomas.loc.gov/
http://thomas.loc.gov/cgi-bin/bdquery/z?d111:s.03412:


                          
 

 
 
 
July 1, 2010 
 
TO:  Board Members, Solano Transportation Authority 
FROM:  Gus Khouri, Legislative Advocate  

Shaw / Yoder / Antwih, Inc.   
 
RE:  STATE LEGISLATIVE UPDATE- JUNE 
Budget Conference Committee 
The Budget Conference Committee has been meeting in an attempt to reconcile the various 
proposals between Senate and Assembly proposals. Many of the tough decisions will be left 
up to the Big 5 (Governor, Speaker of the Assembly, President pro Tempore of the Senate, 
Senate Republican Leader, Assembly Republican Leader) to ultimately decide. To date, a 
meeting of the Big 5 has yet to occur. Given that transportation was addressed in the March 
Special session, there is little to be concerned about at this point.  
 
The Senate Democrats have entertained delaying corporate tax breaks, increasing the 
vehicle license fee rate (1.15% to 1.5%), increasing the alcohol tax (1 to 2 cents per bottle), 
and retaining a .25% personal income tax surcharge and reduction in dependent tax credits 
to balance the budget. 
 
The Assembly Democrats have countered with a proposal to securitize against the California 
Beverage Recycling Fund and impose an oil severance tax.  
 
The constitutional deadline for the legislature to submit a budget to the Governor was June 
15th. While legislators have stated that they will work through the Summer Recess (July 2nd 
through August 2nd), it appears unlikely that a budget agreement will be reached prior to the 
end of July.  
 
State Transit Assistance Allocations 
The California State Controller's Office has posted the regional allocation totals for the $400 
million statewide State Transit Assistance Program (STA) allocation to be distributed this 
month. Allocations are to be made by June 25th. As a result, the City of Benicia will receive 
roughly $11,000, Dixon $5,600, Fairfield $133,000, Rio Vista $3,755, and Vallejo $563,000.  
 
The "gas tax swap" budget package signed in late March by Governor Schwarzenegger 
made an immediate $400 million appropriation to transit operations from the existing Public 
Transportation Account (PTA) balance. The payment is a one-time lump sum amount which 
will cover the remainder of 2009-10 and 2010-11. The total amount allocated is actually 
$399,984,000. This is because the State Controller's Office normally receives a small 
percentage of the allocation for administrative costs.  
 
Key Legislation 
On May 12th the STA Board approved a position of “oppose” for previous versions of 
Assembly Bill (AB) 2620, which would have required that up to 15% of toll revenue generated 
by a toll facility on the State highway system be dedicated to the State Highway Operation 
and Protection Program (SHOPP) for highway maintenance and rehabilitation projects.   
 
Our firm worked with a broad coalition of agencies in an attempt to amend or defeat the bill.  
While the bill narrowly passed off the Assembly Floor by a vote of 44 to 29 on June 3rd, we 

ATTACHMENT A 

369



worked in conjunction with the coalition, and met with Senate Transportation and Housing 
Committee staff as well as the Department of Finance (DOF) and Caltrans, to request that 
the author amend the bill to make the State Highway Operations and Protection Program 
(SHOPP) an eligible expenditure, rather than affixing a percentage for funding of that 
program from any net revenues that are realized.  Both Senate staff and DOF agreed that 
decisions about net revenues are best left to the corridor management group which is 
typically comprised of Caltrans, the California Highway Patrol, the local Congestion 
Management Agency and Regional Transportation Planning or Metropolitan Planning 
Organization to organize the cooperative agreement for management of the facility. 
 
As a result, the sponsor, the Professional Engineers in California Government (PECG), 
recently gutted and amended the bill for an entirely different purpose. The June 22nd version 
of the bill would change the overhead rate that the Department of Transportation (Caltrans), 
charges for reimbursed work it performs for local agencies or private entities in order to make 
it more competitive in obtaining work from local jurisdictions.  
 
According to the sponsors (PECG), Caltrans is unnecessarily charging local and regional 
agencies overhead and administrative costs that are not related to the delivery of capital 
outlay support associated with designing highway improvements. PECG argues that for 
reimbursed work Caltrans is currently charging local and regional authorities for all Caltrans' 
administrative costs, including charges for building depreciation, bond interest charges, 
audits, and multiple other items unrelated to state highway project delivery.  
 
The most recent version of the bill was approved by the Senate Transportation and Housing 
Committee on June 29th. STA staff has indicated that even the most recent language should 
not be in statute since decisions about overhead and indirect costs associated with capital 
outlay support are best left to negotiation with Caltrans.  

370



M E M O R A N D U M  

July 2, 2010 
 
To: Solano Transportation Authority 

From: Akin Gump Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP 

Re: June Report 

 

During the month of June, we monitored the appropriations process, grant opportunities, and 
legislative developments, including surface transportation reauthorization, supplemental funding 
for transit operations and climate change.   

1. Fiscal Year 2011 Appropriations 
 
On July 1, the House Appropriations Subcommittee on Transportation, Housing and Urban 
Development (THUD) approved a bill that would provide $79.3 billion in funding for 
transportation programs for fiscal year 2011, nearly $3.7 billion more than appropriated for fiscal 
2010 and $1.7 billion above the president’s request. 
 
The bill includes $750,000 for the Travis Air Force Base North Gate Access Improvements 
project from the federal highway account, sponsored by Rep. John Garamendi and $750,000 for 
the Vacaville Intermodal Station - Phase 2 from the bus and bus facilities account, sponsored by 
Rep. George Miller.  The bill also includes $750,000 for the Vallejo Ferry Maintenance project 
from the ferry boat discretionary program, sponsored by Rep. Miller.  Republicans did not 
request earmarks this year so there are no projects sponsored by Rep. Lungren. 
 
The House bill would provide $11.3 billion for transit programs, $508 million above the 
President’s request, including $8.9 billon for Formula and Bus Grants ($600 million more than 
fiscal year 2010 funding) and $2 billion for Capital Investment Grants (the same amount as fiscal 
year 2010 funding).  The Federal Highway Administration would receive $45.2 billion, $3.1 
million over fiscal year 2010 appropriations.  The TIGER grants program would receive $400 
million for projects of significant national significance, $200 million less than in fiscal year 
2010.  High speed and intercity passenger rail would receive $1.4 billion, an amount $4 million 
below the President’s request and $9 million less than fiscal year 2010 funding.   

The bill proposes $527 million to fund the Administration’s initiative to create Livable 
Communities.  The Committee appropriated $200 million from the general fund and would 
transfer the remainder from the Highway Trust Fund.  Republican Subcommittee Members have 
objected to the use of highway funds to support non-road projects. 

ATTACHMENT C 

371



The bill would not fund the Rail Transit Safety Oversight Program (a $25 million Administration 
request), the TIGGER program (a $52 million Administration request) or the National 
Infrastructure Innovation and Finance Fund (a $4 million Administration request), intended to be 
used to finance large-scale infrastructure projects. 

It appears unlikely that Congress will enact a standalone appropriations bill for fiscal year 2011 
transportation spending.  The House Appropriations Committee has not considered any of the 12 
appropriations bills and Subcommittees have completed work on only 5 bills.  With the limited 
time left in the schedule, it is more likely that Congress will adopt an omnibus bill or a 
continuing resolution to fund the government until after the election. 

2. Grants to Promote Sustainable Communities 

A joint Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for $75 million in fiscal year 2010 funding was 
published on June 21 for Department of Transportation (DOT) TIGER II planning grants ($35 
million) and Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Sustainable Community Challenge Grants 
($40 million) to help foster planning for more livable, sustainable communities.   

This portion of TIGER II funding will be awarded to plan, prepare or design surface 
transportation projects that would be eligible for funding under TIGER II Discretionary Grants, 
including highways, bridges, transit, railways, ports, or bicycle and pedestrian facilities.  HUD’s 
Sustainability Grants will be awarded to support planning projects, including amending or 
replacing local master plans and zoning codes to promote mixed-use development, affordable 
housing and reuse of older buildings for new purposes with the goal of promoting sustainability 
at the local level.  The grants may be awarded individually or jointly.  Applicants applying for a 
TIGER II grant for capital expenditures may request planning funds associated with the capital 
request.  Pre applications are due by July 26 and full applications are due by August 23. 

The joint program with DOT is only part of a larger program within HUD’s Sustainable 
Communities Initiative.  The initiative received $150 million in fiscal year 2010 funding to 
improve regional planning efforts that integrate housing and transportation decisions, and 
increase the capacity to improve land use and zoning.  HUD issued another NOFA on June 24 for 
$100 million for Regional Planning Grants to support metropolitan and multijurisdictional 
planning efforts that integrate housing, land use, economic and workforce development, 
transportation and infrastructure investments in a manner that empowers jurisdictions to consider 
the interdependent challenges of: 1) economic competitiveness and revitalization; 2) social 
equality, inclusion, and access to opportunity; 3) energy use and climate change; and 4) public 
health and the environmental impact.  Final applications are due by August 23. 

 

372



3. Emergency Operating Assistance Legislation  
 
In June, the STA sent letters to the California delegation in support of the Public Transportation 
Preservation Act [S. 3412 (Dodd)/H.R. 5418 (McMahon)], which would authorize $2 billion in 
emergency operating assistance through fiscal year 2011 for public transit agencies.  Transit 
agencies could use the funds to reduce fare increases and restore services cut after January 2009, 
or prevent future service cuts or fare hikes through September 2011.  Agencies that have not 
hiked fares or slashed services would be able to use the money for infrastructure improvements.  
The grants would be distributed through existing formulas, with a small amount set aside for 
oversight and administration.    
 
Senate Banking Committee Chairman Christopher Dodd (D-CT) had intended to attach the bill 
as an amendment to an emergency supplemental spending bill, but the overall cost of that bill 
made it an unacceptable vehicle for the amendment.  While the Chairman is expected to look for 
other potential vehicles, the current climate in the Senate favoring deficit reduction over stimulus 
spending will make enactment difficult.  We will continue to monitor any progress and keep you 
informed if a floor vote becomes imminent. 
 
4. Senate Climate Change Bill 

Senators continue to negotiate a draft climate change bill that could obtain 60 votes and defeat a 
filibuster to secure Senate passage.  The climate change bill proposed by Senators John Kerry 
(D-MA) and Joseph Lieberman (I-CT), The American Power Act, which included a fee on oil 
production with a portion of the revenues dedicated to transportation spending, did not secure 
sufficient support to bring it to the floor.  The Senators have proposed scaling back the bill so 
that only emissions from power plants are likely to be capped.  It is unclear how any revenue 
under the bill may be allocated or if the measure would receive support from Republican 
Senators. 

 
5. Transportation Safety 

The Senate Banking Committee approved the Public Transportation Safety Act, a draft bill to 
establish federal oversight of transit safety, on June 29.  The 2009 WMATA train crash that 
killed 9 people has motivated Congress to mandate federal safety standards for rail systems.  
Under the bill, the Department of Transportation would develop and implement a national public 
transportation plan to improve transit systems that receive federal funding by establishing safety 
criteria and minimum standards for all modes of public transportation. The bill also would allow 
the Transportation Department to inspect and investigate public transportation systems and issue 
safety directives and require the Department to define the term "state of good repair" for transit 
systems.  It would require states with fixed guideway systems, such as light rail, commuter rail 
and others, that are not regulated by the Federal Railway Administration, to create safety 

373



oversight agencies, assume responsibility for overseeing the safety of those systems and adopt 
applicable federal laws. The Transportation Department would be authorized to provide grants to 
states to cover 80 percent of the costs of carrying out the oversight responsibilities. 

The House Transportation and Infrastructure Committee is likely to include a transit safety 
provision in the reauthorization bill and the House THUD Appropriations Subcommittee did not 
appropriate funding for the initiative in the fiscal year 2011 spending bill. 

6. Highway Funding 

Congress has been unable to correct a perceived inequity in the distribution of highway formula 
funds resulting from the most recent SAFETEA-LU extension.  When the extension, included in 
the Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment “HIRE” Act (H.R. 2847) passed, it distributed 
funds under the Projects of National and Regional Significance (PNRS) and National Corridor 
Infrastructure Improvement programs to states based on the percentage of earmarks a state 
received under those programs in SAFETEA-LU.   Because four states, including California, 
received nearly 60 percent of the funding, House Transportation Committee Chairman Oberstar 
objected and Majority Leader Reid agreed to fix the funding distribution in subsequent 
legislation.   The Senate tax extenders bill included a provision that would provide funding under 
those programs to states based on their share of formula funds in SAFETEA-LU, but hold all 
states, including California harmless.  Unfortunately, the Senate was not been able to move the 
legislation because of concerns by Republicans regarding cost.  Of note, the bill also reauthorizes 
the Build America Bonds program. 

 
7.   Rescissions Legislation 
 

On July 1, the House Transportation and Infrastructure Committee approved the Surface 
Transportation Savings Act, which would rescind $106.8 million in unspent transportation funds.  
The bulk of the rescission would come from $80.9 million in fiscal year 2010 funding for the 
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration’s safety belt performance grants.  However, the 
rescission would also include $17.3 million authorized for the Federal Transit Administration’s 
formula programs and bus grants.  These funds cannot be expended because fiscal year 2010 
appropriations bill did not fully fund the accounts to their authorized levels.  The bill, introduced 
by Rep. Tom Perriello (D-VA) on June 25 and approved by voice vote, demonstrates that 
members are anxious to show voters that they are serious about deficit reduction. 

 
 

 

374



Agenda Item XI.D 
July 14, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 
DATE:  July 1, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Sara Woo, Associate Planner 
RE: Funding Opportunities Summary 
 
 
Discussion: 
Below is a list of funding opportunities that will be available to STA member agencies during the 
next few months. Attachment A provides further details for each program. Please distribute this 
information to the appropriate departments within your jurisdiction. 
 

 FUND SOURCE AMOUNT AVAILABLE APPLICATION 
DEADLINE 

    
1.  Carl Moyer Memorial Air Quality Standards 

Attainment Program (for San Francisco Bay 
Area) 

Approximately $20 million Application Due On 
First-Come, First 
Served Basis 

2.  Carl Moyer Off-Road Equipment 
Replacement Program (for Sacramento 
Metropolitan Area) 

Approximately $10 million  Application Due On 
First-Come, First-
Served Basis 

3.  TIGER II Grant for Surface Transportation* $600 million Pre-application due 
July 26, 2010 
Final application due 
August 23, 2010 

4.  TIGGER II Grant for Transit* $75 million August 11, 2010 
 

*New funding opportunity 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Detailed Funding Opportunities Summary 

 

375

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

376



The following funding opportunities will be available to the STA member agencies during the next few months. Please distribute this 
information to the appropriate departments in your jurisdiction. 
 
Fund Source Application/Program 

Contact Person** 
Application 
Deadline/Eligibility 

Amount Available Program 
Description 

Additional 
Information 

      
Carl Moyer Memorial 
Air Quality Standards 
Attainment Program 
(for San Francisco Bay 
Area) 

Anthony Fournier 
Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District 
(415) 749-4961 
afournier@baaqmd.gov  

Application Due On 
First-Come, First Served 
Basis 
 
Eligible Project 
Sponsors: private non-
profit organizations, 
state or local 
governmental 
authorities, and 
operators of public 
transportation services 

Approximately $20 
million 

Carl Moyer Memorial 
Air Quality Standards 
Attainment Program 
provides incentive 
grants for cleaner-than-
required engines, 
equipment, and other 
sources of pollution 
providing early or extra 
emission reductions. 

Eligible Projects: 
cleaner on-road, off-
road, marine, 
locomotive and 
stationary agricultural 
pump engines 
http://www.baaqmd.g
ov/Divisions/Strategic-
Incentives/Carl-
Moyer-Program.aspx  

Carl Moyer Off-Road 
Equipment 
Replacement 
Program (for 
Sacramento 
Metropolitan Area) 

Gary A. Bailey 
Sacramento Metropolitan 
Air Quality Management 
District 
(415) 749-4961 
gbailey@airquality.org  
 
 

Application Due On 
First-Come, First-
Served Basis 
 
Eligible Project 
Sponsors: private non-
profit organizations, 
state or local 
governmental 
authorities, and 
operators of public 
transportation services 

Approximately 
$10 million 

The Off-Road 
Equipment 
Replacement Program 
(ERP), an extension of 
the Carl Moyer 
Program, provides 
grant funds to replace 
Tier 0, high-polluting 
off-road equipment 
with the cleanest 
available emission 
level equipment. 

Eligible Projects: install 
particulate traps, 
replace older heavy-
duty engines with 
newer and cleaner 
engines and add a 
particulate trap, 
purchase new vehicles 
or equipment, replace 
heavy-duty equipment 
with electric equipment, 
install electric idling-
reduction equipment 
http://www.airquality.
org/mobile/moyererp/i
ndex.shtml  

377

mailto:swoo@sta-snci.com�
mailto:afournier@baaqmd.gov�
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Strategic-Incentives/Carl-Moyer-Program.aspx�
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Strategic-Incentives/Carl-Moyer-Program.aspx�
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Strategic-Incentives/Carl-Moyer-Program.aspx�
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Strategic-Incentives/Carl-Moyer-Program.aspx�
mailto:gbailey@airquality.org�
http://www.airquality.org/mobile/moyererp/index.shtml�
http://www.airquality.org/mobile/moyererp/index.shtml�
http://www.airquality.org/mobile/moyererp/index.shtml�


TIGGER II Grant 
for Surface 
Transportation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Leslie T. Rogers 
(415) 744-3133 
201 Mission Street 
Room 1650 
San Francisco, CA 94105-
1926 
 
 
 
 
 

Pre-application due 
July 26, 2010 
 
Final application due 
August 23, 2010 
 
Eligible Applicants: 
State and local 
governments 
 
 

$600 million 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As with the 
Transportation 
Investment Generating 
Economic Recovery 
(TIGER Discretionary 
Grant) program, funds 
for the TIGER II 
Discretionary Grant 
program are to be 
awarded on a 
competitive basis for 
transportation projects 
that will have a 
significant impact on 
the Nation, a 
metropolitan area or a 
region. 

Eligible Projects: 
Highway or bridge 
projects, public 
transportation projects, 
passenger and freight 
rail projects, and port 
infrastructure 
investments. 
http://www.dot.gov/re
covery/ost/tigerii/  
 

TIGER II Grant for 
Transit 

Leslie T. Rogers 
(415) 744-3133 
201 Mission Street 
Room 1650 
San Francisco, CA 94105-
1926 

August 11, 2010 
 
Eligible Applicants: 
Only public 
transportation agencies 
or State DOTs may 
apply 

$75 million This program provides 
grants to public transit 
agencies for capital 
investments that will 
reduce the energy 
consumption or 
greenhouse gas 
emissions of their 
public transportation 
systems. 
 

Eligible Projects: 
(1) For capital 
investments that will 
assist in reducing the 
energy consumption of 
a transit system; or (2) 
for capital investments 
that will reduce 
greenhouse gas 
emissions of a public 
transportation system. 
Project proposals may 
be submitted under 
either or both 
categories; only one 
project may be 
submitted under a single 
proposal. 
http://www.grants.gov
/search/search.do?mod
e=VIEW&oppId=5428
0  

 

378

mailto:swoo@sta-snci.com�
http://www.dot.gov/recovery/ost/tigerii/�
http://www.dot.gov/recovery/ost/tigerii/�
http://www.grants.gov/search/search.do?mode=VIEW&oppId=54280�
http://www.grants.gov/search/search.do?mode=VIEW&oppId=54280�
http://www.grants.gov/search/search.do?mode=VIEW&oppId=54280�
http://www.grants.gov/search/search.do?mode=VIEW&oppId=54280�
jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



Agenda Item XI.E 
July 14, 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
DATE:  July 6, 2010 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Johanna Masiclat, Clerk of the Board 
RE: STA Board Meeting Schedule for Calendar Year 2010 
 
 
Discussion: 
Below is the STA Board meeting schedule for Calendar Year 2010. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 
 

DATE TIME LOCATION STATUS 
    
July 14, 2010 6:00 p.m. Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
No Meeting in August 
Sept. 8, 2010 6:00 p.m. Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
October 13, 2010 6:00 p.m. Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Nov. 10, 2010, 13th STA Annual Awards 
Ceremony 

6:00 p.m. TBD, Suisun City Confirmed 

Dec. 8, 2010 6:00 p.m. Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
 

 

 

379


	STA Board Agenda Only_07-14-10
	Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) Member Appointment 
	Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) Member Appointment
	Pg. 171
	Pg. 175
	(6:25 – 6:55 p.m.)
	(6:55 – 7:05 p.m.)
	(7:05 – 7:15 p.m.)
	(7:15 – 7:25 p.m.)
	Pg. 345
	Pg. 347
	Pg. 363
	Pg. 375
	Informational
	Pg. 379

	STA Board Complete Packet_07-14-10
	STA Board Agenda Only_07-14-10
	Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) Member Appointment 
	Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) Member Appointment
	Pg. 171
	Pg. 175
	(6:25 – 6:55 p.m.)
	(6:55 – 7:05 p.m.)
	(7:05 – 7:15 p.m.)
	(7:15 – 7:25 p.m.)
	Pg. 345
	Pg. 347
	Pg. 363
	Pg. 375
	Informational
	Pg. 379

	pg.
	07-10 Board_(00) Executive Directors ReportJuly2010
	MEMORANDUM

	07-10 Board_(00.1) STA Acronyms List_April 2009 - 2 Pages_Attach A - Exec. Directors Report
	07-10 Board_(01) STA Board Meeting Minutes_06-09-10
	SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
	Board Minutes for Meeting of
	June 9, 2010

	CALL TO ORDER
	MEMBERS
	City of Dixon
	Jack Batchelor, Jr., Acting Chair
	City of Benicia
	Elizabeth Patterson
	City of Fairfield
	Chuck Timm, Alternate Board Member
	City of Rio Vista
	Jan Vick
	Mike Hudson, Alternate Board Member
	City of Vacaville
	City of Vallejo
	County of Solano
	MEMBERS
	City of Suisun City
	ABSENT:
	City of Fairfield
	Harry Price, Vice Chair
	STAFF
	Executive Director
	Daryl K. Halls
	PRESENT:
	Interim Legal Counsel
	Bernadette Curry 
	Clerk of the Board
	Johanna Masiclat
	Director of Planning
	Robert Macaulay
	Director of Transit and Rideshare Services
	Elizabeth Richards
	Transit Manager
	Liz Niedziela
	Accountant and Administrative Services Manager
	Susan Furtado
	Program Manager
	Judy Leaks
	Project Manager
	Sam Shelton
	Assistant Planner
	Sara Woo
	ALSO 
	OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
	COMMENTS FROM METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION (MTC), CALTRANS, AND STAFF:
	2010 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) Update 


	07-10 Board_(02) TAC Meeting Minutes_06-30-10
	TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
	DRAFT Minutes for the meeting of

	CALL TO ORDER
	Present:
	Janet Koster
	City of Fairfield
	Gene Cortright
	City of Rio Vista
	Morrie Barr
	City of Suisun City
	Dan Kasperson
	City of Vacaville
	Rod Moresco
	City of Vallejo
	Gary Leach
	County of Solano
	Matt Tuggle
	STA
	Daryl Halls
	STA Staff Present:
	STA
	Robert Macaulay
	STA
	Elizabeth Richards
	STA
	Jayne Bauer
	STA
	Robert Guerrero
	STA
	Sam Shelton
	STA
	Sara Woo
	STA
	Johanna Masiclat
	STA Intern
	Bridget Carlson
	STA Intern
	Aysha Berrios Strader
	STA Intern
	Marisa Berrios Strader
	(In Alphabetical Order by Last Name)
	Others Present:
	Caltrans District 4
	Joe Aguilar
	Caltrans District 4
	Erik Alm
	MV Transportation
	Jennifer Brown
	PDM
	Dale Dennis
	City of Vacaville
	Jeff Knowles
	City of Suisun City
	Alysa Majer
	MV Transportation
	Monica Manuel
	Caltrans District 4
	Cameron Oakes
	City of Suisun City Intern
	David Rosenberg
	APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
	OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
	OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
	Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) Member Appointment Representing the City of Fairfield

	ACTION FINANCIAL ITEMS
	Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 & FY 2011-12 Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Programming Specifics
	A.
	A.
	B.
	C.
	D.
	INFORMATIONAL – NO DISCUSSION 

	07-10 Board_(03) ECMAQ SNCI
	07-10 Board_(04) TFCA Program Approval
	FROM: Robert Guerrero, Senior Planner

	07-10 Board_(04.1) TFCA 40% Attachment A
	07-10 Board_(05) Climate Grant
	Agenda Item VIII.E
	July 14, 2010

	07-10 Board_(05.1) SR2S Letter of Interest Attachment A
	07-10 Board_(06) TDA Art3
	Agenda Item VIII.F
	FROM: Sara Woo, Associate Planner
	Background:
	FY 2008-09 TDA Article 3 Approved Projects

	07-10 Board_(06.1) Attach A - TDA Reso 2010
	07-10 Board_(06.2) Attach B TDA Art3
	07-10 Board_(07) BikePed Funding Amendment.ver3
	Agenda Item VIII.G
	July 14, 2010
	FROM: Sara Woo, Associate Planner
	Background:
	On May 12, 2010, the STA Board approved the recommendation for Cycle 1 (Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-11 and FY 2011-12) bicycle and pedestrian funds for Solano Countywide Bicycle Priority Projects and Pedestrian Priority Projects. The funding strategy for pr...
	Since the Board approval of these projects and funding amounts, administrative amendments have been identified through the programming process.
	Discussion:
	Fiscal Impact:
	Recommendation:

	07-10 Board_(07.1) Attach A - BikePed Project Funding
	Bike Funding and Scores

	07-10 Board_(08) BAC Membership
	FROM: Sara Woo, Associate Planner
	RE:  Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) Member Appointment


	07-10 Board_(08.1) Attachment A - BAC Terms
	07-10 Board_(08.2) Attachment B - Nomination Letter
	07-10 Board_(08.3) Attach C - BAC Nomination - David Pyle
	07-10 Board_(10) PAC Membership
	FROM: Sara Woo, Associate Planner
	RE:  Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) Member Appointment


	07-10 Board_(10.1) Attachment A - PAC Terms
	07-10 Board_(10.2) Attach B PAC Member
	07-10 Board_(11) I780 Overcrossing
	Agenda Item VIII.J
	July 14, 2010
	FROM: Sara Woo, Associate Planner
	Background:
	The City of Benicia is currently constructing the I-780 Bicycle and Pedestrian Overcrossing Project which connects to the Benicia State Recreation Area. This project was identified as a priority project by the Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) and the ...
	Discussion:
	Fiscal Impact:
	Recommendation:

	07-10 Board_(12) West B Undercrossing 071410
	Agenda Item VIII.K
	July 14, 2010

	07-10 Board_(12.1) Bike Project Amendment Attachment A  071410
	Preliminary Design

	07-10 Board_(13) SR2S FY10-11 11-12 MTC Final Workscope
	07-10 Board_(13.1) SR2S Attachment A update 6-4-10
	07-10 Board_(14) Jepson Pkwy Contract Amendment
	Agenda Item VIII.M
	July 14, 2010

	07-10 Board_(15) Amendment for MTCo_Nolte for Rockville Waterline
	07-10 Board_(15.1) Attachment A MTCo Rockville Waterline
	07-10 Board_(16) Award North Connector Mitigation Planting Contract
	Agenda Item VIII.O

	07-10 Board_(16.2) Attachment B Reso 2010 - Planting contract
	07-10 Board_(17) North Connector Construction Contingency Increase
	Agenda Item VIII.P

	07-10 Board_(18) ARWS Contract Amendment
	Agenda Item VIII.Q

	07-10 Board_(18.1) Attachment A ARWS Amendment
	07-10 Board_(19) HDR Amendment Truck Scales
	07-10 Board_(19.1) Attachment A1 HDRAmendment Request Letter_062810
	07-10 Board_(19.2) Attachment A2 HDR
	07-10 Board_(19.3) Attachment A3 HDR
	07-10 Board_(20) Truck Scales Project Mitigation
	Agenda Item VIII.S

	07-10 Board_(20.1) Attachment A Truck Scales - Elsie Gridley Seasonal Wetlands Agreement
	ELSIE GRIDLEY MITIGATION BANK
	SPN-2008-00358 S
	RECITALS

	07-10 Board_(20.2) Attachment B  Truck Scales Jenny Farms Swainson's Hawk Credit Sale Agreement
	07-10 Board_(21) Tree Removal - Truck Scales Project
	Agenda Item VIII.T

	07-10 Board_(21.1) Attachment A Resolution for Tree Removal Contracts
	07-10 Board_(22) Truck Scales Project - Utility Agreements
	Agenda Item VIII.U

	07-10 Board_(22.1) Attachment A1 PG&E Distribution Line Utility Agreement
	07-10 Board_(22.2) Attachment A2 PG&E Gas Line Utility Agreement
	07-10 Board_(22.3) Attachment A3 PG&E Transmission Line Utility Agreement
	07-10 Board_(22.4) Attachment B SID Utility Agreement
	07-10 Board_(22.5) Attachment C Resolution for SID Relocations
	07-10 Board_(24) FY11 TDA Matrix - vJuly 2010
	07-10 Board_(24.1) TDA Budget Matrix FY 10-11  v7 July 2010
	FY2010-11 TDA Matrix

	07-10 Board_(25) CMP Update 071410
	Agenda Item VIII.W

	07-10 Board_(26) BoarddevelopmentofExpenditurePlanCategoriesSB83July10
	Agenda Item IX.A
	July 14, 2010

	07-10 Board_(26.1) Attach A_PP Poll Results
	Telephone Survey of Likely �Solano County November 2010 Voters� �
	Methodology
	Conclusions
	Three-quarters think that additional transportation funding is needed in Solano County
	Voters in Rio Vista, Vallejo, and Dixon see the greatest need for additional transportation funding
	Initial support for the measure �as asked is right at 50%
	The measure sees the highest support in Fairfield and Vallejo, and the lowest support in Vacaville and unincorporated areas
	Support for the measure is highest in Supervisorial Districts 1 and 2, and support is lowest in Districts 4 and 5
	Comparison of $10 VRF measures
	Voter support for the $18 parks surcharge and the $10 registration fee is nearly identical
	The sunset provision does not attract more support, while reducing the fee to $5 increases support only marginally
	Safe routes to school for children and repairing local streets and roads are the top expenditure priorities
	Mid-level transportation expenditure priorities �for Solano County voters
	Pedestrian safety improvements and reducing commute traffic are not voter priorities
	Overview of Expenditure Priorities�By City
	Options for next step
	Slide Number 17

	07-10 Board_(26.2) Attach B_PP Categories
	Expenditure Plan Categories
	Maintenance of Local Streets and Roads
	Safe Routes to School
	Senior & Disabled Transportation
	Options
	Proposed Public Input Process

	07-10 Board_(26.3) Attach C_SB83 Shares 06-23-10 LSnR
	07-10 Board_(26.4) Attach D SR2S Options
	07-10 Board_(26.4a) Attach D SR2S Options
	07-10 Board_(26.5) Attach E_Senior and Disabled
	07-10 Board_(26.6) Attach F STA SB 83 Expenditure Plan DRAFT 071410
	Purpose of the Expenditure Plan
	Statutory Authorization and Requirements
	Programmatic Expenditures
	Governing Board and Organizational Structure
	Agency Responsible for Administering Proceeds of Fee
	Contract with Department of Motor Vehicles
	Annual Budget Financial Projections
	Annual Report
	Use of Proceeds
	Duration of Fee
	Severability
	Amendments to the Plan
	Option to Bond
	Statute of Limitations


	07-10 Board_(27) Local Preferred Alternative 80 680 Interchange_DD Revised 062210
	Agenda Item IX.B
	Recommendation:

	07-10 Board_(27.1) Attachment A Project Area Map
	07-10 Board_(27.2) Attachment B Tier 1 Screening
	07-10 Board_(27.3) Attachment C Tier 2 Screening
	07-10 Board_(27.4) Attachment D Alt B Features
	07-10 Board_(27.5a) Attachment E1 Alt B Phase 1 Features West
	07-10 Board_(27.5b) Attachment E2 Alt B Phase 1 Features East
	07-10 Board_(27.6) Attachment F Alt C Features
	07-10 Board_(27.7a) Attachment G1 Alt C Phase 1 Features West
	07-10 Board_(27.7b) Attachment G2 Alt C Phase 1 Features East
	07-10 Board_(27.8) Cover Sheet_Attach H
	07-10 Board_(27.8a) Attachment H Alt Comparision Table
	07-10 Board_(28) Solano County Transit Joint Powers Agreement (2)
	Agenda Item IX.C
	FROM: Elizabeth Richards, Director of Transit and Rideshare Services
	Background:
	Fiscal Impact:
	Recommendations:

	07-10 Board_(28.1) Attach A_SolTrans FY 2009-10.25.00
	07-10 Board_(28.2) Attach B_SolTRans  Draft_JPA_060710
	07-10 Board_(28.3) Attach C_Soltrans Transitional Plan
	07-10 Board_(28.4) Attach D_Reso No 2010-09_ MOU Benicia-Valeljo Transit Coordinating bc edits
	ATTACHMENT D
	SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

	07-10 Board_(29) FY 2010-11 Budget Revision and FY 2011-10 Proposed Budget
	Background:
	FY 2010-11 Revenue Changes
	FY 2010-11 Expenditure Changes
	FY 2011-12 Revenues
	FY 2011-12 Expenditure

	Recommendation:

	07-10 Board_(29.1) Attachment A
	FY 09-10

	07-10 Board_(29.2) Attachment B
	FY 09-10

	07-10 Board_(30) RTIF Update
	Agenda Item XI.A
	July 14, 2010

	07-10 Board_(31) PM 2_5 Hotspot Analysis Process
	Agenda Item XI.B
	July 14, 2010


	07-10 Board_(31.1) Attachment A PM2.5 Att A - MTC_ppt
	07-10 Board_(32) Legislative Report
	Agenda Item XI.C
	July 14, 2010

	07-10 Board_(32.1) Att A STA Legislative Bill Matrix 07-01-10
	July 1, 2010

	07-10 Board_(32.2) Att B 06-10 Shaw Yoder State Legislative Update-June
	07-10 Board_(32.3) Att C AG Federal Legislative Report June 07-02-10
	07-10 Board_(33) Funding Opportunities Report
	DATE:  July 1, 2010

	07-10 Board_(33.1) Attach A Funding Opportunities
	07-10 Board_(34) STA Board Meeting Schedule Memo
	Agenda Item XI.E
	DATE:  July 6, 2010

	07-10 Board_(12) West B Undercrossing 071410.pdf
	Agenda Item VIII.K
	July 14, 2010


	07-10 Board_(26.6) Attach F STA SB 83 Expenditure Plan DRAFT 071410.pdf
	Purpose of the Expenditure Plan
	Statutory Authorization and Requirements
	Programmatic Expenditures
	Governing Board and Organizational Structure
	Agency Responsible for Administering Proceeds of Fee
	Contract with Department of Motor Vehicles
	Annual Budget Financial Projections
	Annual Report
	Use of Proceeds
	Duration of Fee
	Severability
	Amendments to the Plan
	Option to Bond
	Statute of Limitations






